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ABB at a glance
Committed to unlocking value

ABB is a pioneering technology leader in
electrification products, robotics and
motion, industrial automation and power
grids, serving customers in utilities, industry
and transport & infrastructure globally.
Continuing more than a 125-year history of
innovation, ABB today is writing the future
of industrial digitalization and driving the
Energy and Fourth Industrial Revolutions.

ABB operates in more than 100 countries
with about 132,000 employees.

abb.com







INTRODUCTION

CHAIRMAN AND CEO LETTER

Dear Shareholders, Customers,
Partners and Employees:

As we compose this letter, we realize that 2016

has been a historic year - both for ABB as well as

the world at large. ABBdelivered solid perfor
mance in 2016, and we made steady progress in
transforming the company into a leaner, more
customer-focused, digital technology leader.

There were many rewarding moments, and ABB

earned its share of success.

On the macroeconomic front, extraordinary ceopo-
litical forces emerged, challenging established
orders and throwing the world's post-World War II

economic architecture into turmoil. In the aftermath

of this turbulence we recognize that the journey
forward for a large, multinational organization such
as ABBdemands deliberate, thoughtful navic ation.

At the same time, we can clearly see the value of

a bold vision as we invest in new ways to do more

or our customers, partners and employees - and

continue to support the growth of economies and

ABB's communities around the world.

To maintain leadership, technology companies

must pay constant attention to the changes

in the technological landscape and adapt 15 take

advantage of the latest trends - it is often said

they must see the future first. As a company with

a heritage of more than 125 years, ABB ha;

successfully learned to stay abreast of the latest

technologies. Today ABB sees two simultaneous

developments that will guide our strategy

going forward - the Energy Revolution anc the

Fourth Industrial Revolution.

The Energy Revolution

The economics of electricity generation, trans
mission, distribution and consumption have

changed dramatically in the past two decades,

primarily due to the rise of economically viable

renewable energy sources, such as solar and wind

power. What used to be a simple, linear process of

electricity generation-transmission-const mption

has become an exponentially more complcated
system. In the old framework, electricity n

the form of alternating current was generated by

a turbine using fossil fuels or hydropower

That electricity was typically transmitted over

a distance of a few dozen kilometers thro jgh

power lines, usually after having been steoped up

to a higher voltage to avoid losses. Finally, near

the point of consumption, the electricity was
stepped down through transformers for use in

homes and industry.

Today the situation is much more complex.

Electricity is generated not only by large conven
tional power plants but also by distributed solar
panels and windmills. Many houses have solar

panels with battery storage and have become, in
effect, mini-power plants. On sunny days, they
generate more than enough electricity for their

own use, and feed energy back into the local

grid. In countries like Germany, we see on some
days negative pricing when the sun is shining -

a development few could have predicted five
years ago.

The other issue with electricity from renewables

is that it is often generated in large fields far from

where it is consumed. For instance, wind farms

in the North Sea and solar panels in the Atacama

Desert send power to European and South

American cities, respectively. High-voltage direct

current (HVDC), pioneered by ABB, can transmit

this distributed energy at scale with low rates of

loss. With its software and digital technology, the

company is now a leader in HVDC, enabling and

optimizing national grids in the Americas, Europe

and Asia.

Afew ABB Energy Revolution highlights from 2016:

• We are working with our customers to bring the

benefits of electricity to everyone on the planet,

as more than 1.2 billion people remain in the

dark today, according to the World Bank. During

the last month of 2016 alone, ABB received

orders worth more than $840 million to bring

HVDCpower to hundreds of millions of people

in India and Brazil. Our microgrid technology -

which can provide standalone power in remote

areas or integrate such renewables as solar,

wind, and hydropower into existing power grids

-is accelerating human progress in sub-Saharan

Africa and Asia, among other regions.
• The high-efficiency ventilation and electrifica

tion systems that ABBsupplied for the new
Gotthard Base Tunnel under the Alps, the world's

longest railway tunnel, defined the current state
of the art for major infrastructure projects.

• ABB's partnership with Solar Impulse 2, which
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completed the first round-the-world, sola r-

powered aircraft flight last July, symbolizes our

commitment to stretching the limits whei it

comes to providing enough reliable, efficient

energy to run the world without consuming
the earth.

• In another small example, our flash-chare ing
technology is allowing zero-pollution electric

buses connecting Geneva's airport to the city's
suburbs to recharge their batteries in just
15-20 seconds.

With our strong heritage in power technologies
and global market penetration, it is accurate

to say that anywhere there is electricity, AB5 has
likely been at work. Today, ABBis making smarter,
greener grids possible for the world as a whole,

e.nd is a key player in major energy infrastructure
buildouts globally. We will continue to invest in

this market and related technologies.

The Fourth Industrial Revolution

Digital technology and connectivity has changed
the world. Manufacturing is being transformed

as digitalization and connectivity transform
machines and factories worldwide. This me shing

of the digital world with machines as the Internet
meets production is what we call the Fourt i

ndustrial Revolution.

The mindset and business model that manufac

turers will need to succeed in the future will be

different. For one thing, there will be a greater

need for the type of industrial digital services ABB

is building today. By the end of t his decade, more

than 20 billion devices will be connected tc the

Internet-and this number does not include com

puters or smartphones. The stream of data these

connected devices will generate will be a rich
source of business intelligence. There is enormous

opportunity in analyzing that data and then

feeding the resulting digital insights back into
machines and systems to make them more

efficient, powerful and reliable.

Automation, robotics, artificial intelligence and

machine learning have resurrected fears o^ job

losses. We see a significant need for respc nsible

leadership today from the private sector, politi

cians and academics - and at ABB, we are working

to do our part. Our viewpoint is that the world

of jobs will fundamentally change due to digital

technologies - but we will never be short of

work. In the future, in particular, there will be an

increased need for software-differentiated

services.

ABB started moving its business focus from

selling pure hardware to providing digital services

and software a number of years ago. A gcod
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example of successful transformation is our

robotics business. In the past we simply sold

individual robots - robots by the kilogram, if
you will. Today, our robots are designed to solve

business problems. It is a solution-oriented

approach, delivering what customers need. Each

robot a customer buys can be networked, and

send data to a central monitoring system. Pooling

data from thousands of robots allows us to develop

best practices for such things as the most effi

cient and productive arm movement, for instance.

We can then share the learning with all connected

robots through networked software.

A few Fourth Industrial Revolution highlights

from 2016:

• In 2016, ABB launched its smart sensor, which

can be attached to the hundreds of millions of

electric motors now in use globally, connecting

the motors to the Internet of Things through

cloud-based software to enable transcontinental

industrial digitalization. ABB's new sensor cuts

motor downtime by 70 percent, extends life

spans by 30 percent, and reduces energy con

sumption by up to 10 percent - potentially
saving energy equivalent to the output of 100

large power plants.

• We are leading the industry in "co-bots," colla

borative robots that work with - rather than

replace - humans, to improve safety, boost pro

ductivity and free people from dirty, dangerous

work in mines and factories while allowing

them to do more valuable, rewarding jobs. Our

Our accelerating
transformation

through 2016 and into
the new year makes
us confident that ABB

has the portfolio of
businesses and the

leadership team to
create superior value
for our customers,
shareholders

and employees.



robots use machine learning and artificial intel

ligence and can perform tasks, such as solving

Rubik's cube in seconds. In 2016, ABB's YuMi

collaborative robot won the Invention and

Entrepreneurship in Robotics and Automation

Award at Automatica, the leading tradeshow

for robotics and automation.

To take advantage of the latest developments

in the market and to better serve its customers,

ABB has changed its divisional structure into

four market-leading divisions: Electrification

Products, Robotics and Motion, Industrial

Automation and Power Grids. The divisions are

being empowered as entrepreneurial units

within ABB, and benefit from sales collaboration

orchestrated by regions and countries as well

as from the group-wide digital offering; ABB's

leading G&A structure; common supply chain

management; and corporate research. ABB will

continue to strengthen its divisions through

active portfolio management. This includes

INTRODUCTION

pursuing strategic additions, transforming

business models and pruning non-core businesses

as well as business partnerships.

Financial highlights

ABB performed satisfactorily in 2016. The

company finished the year in a solid financial

position, having delivered consistent margin

improvements and further strengthened its ability

to generate cash.

Financial highlights for the full year 2016:

• Orders were down at $33.4 billion

• Revenues on a comparable basis were stable at

$33.8 billion

• Operational EBITA margin increased by 50 basis

points

• Basic earnings per share increased 2 percent

and operational earnings per share was 4 per

cent higher (constant currency)

• Free cash flow increased to $3.1 billion,

161 percent of net income



The management has focused on running the
company with discipline and has maintained its

commitment to generating shareholder value.

Sustained geopolitical and macroeconomic uncer

tainty in the U.S. and E.U. through 2016 prompted

customers to adopt a wait-and-see approach to
investing in large-scale infrastructure projects.
V/hile working to sharpen and focus our offerings
across industries, ABB used this period of g obal

uncertainty to strengthen operational excel ence.

Our white-collar productivity program outper
formed expectations, allowing the company to
increase its cost-reduction target by 30 percent,
saving SI.3 billion.

ABB's regular efficiency programs continued to
achieve savings equivalent to 3-5 percent or the

cost of sales each year, and its 1,000-day working
capital program is on course to free up approxi
mately $2 billion by the end of 2017. The company's

focus on operational excellence will continue in

2017. Our ambition is to move from initiative-

driven optimization, which was necessary ever

i he past two years, to an industry-leading
operating model.

During 2016, we completed an extensive st ategic
oortfolio review for the Power Grids division.

We listened carefully to all stakeholders and con

sidered all views on how to create maximum value

;or ABB shareholders. In October we announced

the Power Grids division would continue its trans

formation under ABB's ownership and, through
that, this business can unlock the most val je for

shareholders, customers and employees. The

The mindset and

business model that

manufacturers will

need to succeed

in the future will be

different. For one

thing, there will be
a greater need for
the type of industrial
digital services ABB
is building today.
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outlook for the utilities industry is improving.
India and China are making big investments in
energy infrastructure and Power Grids will benefit

from that spending. In addition, the changes
brought about by the Energy and Fourth Industrial

Revolutions are good for Power Grids as there

is more demand created for HVDC and other ABB

products, such as the software-enabled system
for utilities that monitors the health of their

assets digitally.

We have raised ABB's operational EBITA target
margin corridor for Power Grids by 200 basis

points to 10 to 14 percent, effective 2018, reflect

ing management's confidence in the future of the

division. For ABB as a whole, we reaffirmed our

2015-2020 financial targets.

Given ABB's strong financial position, the compa

ny plans to return more cash to you with a new

share buyback program of up to $3 billion from

2017 through 2019.

In addition, the Board of Directors is proposing

to raise the dividend to CHF 0.76 a share at

the 2017 annual general meeting. This is in line

with the dividend policy of a steadily rising

dividend that ABB's management has outlined as

part of its Next Level Strategy for the company.

Over the last three years, ABB has returned

$8.7 billion to its shareholders in the form of

dividends and share buybacks.

One very unfortunate development was that

ABB uncovered a sophisticated criminal

scheme involving significant embezzlement and

misappropriation of funds in its South Korean

subsidiary. The company immediately launched

a thorough investigation, involving internal

and external parties, which is progressing well.

The company has checked and reconfirmed

the balances of its global bank accounts and

can confirm that this situation is limited to

South Korea. ABB has a zero-tolerance approach

to unethical behavior and maintains the highest

standards regarding integrity and ethical

business practices. We have started implementing

disciplinary consequences and will continue to

do so as appropriate. Due to the investigation,

ABB had to postpone the publication of its 2016

annual report.

ABB's digital focus

Both the Energy Revolution and the Fourth

Industrial Revolution are creating new business

opportunities, and with them, new business

models. These parallel revolutions are a good

platform for the company to strengthen its lead

in a competitive global marketplace through



software and services for our customers in ener

gy, utilities, transport and infrastructure.
The company is taking a quantum leap in digital
solutions with the launch of ABB Ability. ABB

Ability brings together our entire portfolio of
digital solutions and services, making them fully
accessible and adaptable to all our customers.

Interconnecting things, services and people digi
tally - the so-called Internet of Things, Services
and People - is the basis for data analysis, boosts
productivity and safety, enhances reliability, and
saves energy and costs. Given the size of ABB's
installed base in the Internet of Things, Services

and People-70 million connected devices
and 70,000 control systems across a range of
industries - we see the potential to strengthen
our position as a trusted partner to our
customers as the Energy and Fourth Industrial

Revolutions progress further, because they
already know us and trust us to deliver the right
technological solutions.

We have appointed an experienced Chief Digital
Officer and created a centralized, dedicated

digital organization to develop and deliver digital
solutions to all our marketplaces on a global
basis together with our businesses. The company
is in the process of integrating digital solutions
and technology into all of ABB's future products,

systems, services and business models (see
page 22).

Strengthening leadership

ABB strengthened its management team in 2016

to drive and support its ongoing transformation.
In addition to new leadership within the Discrete

Automation and Motion (DM) division and the

appointment of a new Chief Financial Officer, ABB's

Board of Directors added four new members

elected at the company's last annual general
meeting. These new members bring valuable
expertise in digitalization, software, finance,

R&D, technology and manufacturing. With these

additions, ABB's board is now comprised of
members from ten countries representing a broad
range of industries.

Outlook for the year ahead

Geopolitical uncertainties persist and the market
outlook for 2017 remains challenging. It is im
portant to note that when ABB identifies a market

opportunity by industry or geography, we commit
for the long term. The uncertainty of 2016 did not
deter us from continuing our company-wide
transformation or from initiating a vital new focus
on digital and customer-centricity. We are con
tinuing to invest heavily in research and develop
ment and innovation to maintain our technological
leadership. With growing momentum across
ABB's four streamlined entrepreneurial businesses
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the company will address customer needs in the
Energy and Fourth Industrial Revolutions in
a focused and agile way, with digital solutions,
services and products that truly solve customer

problems.

Summary

The worldwide marketplace is demanding, but at
the same time rich with promise and opportunity
as the Energy Revolution and Fourth Industrial
Revolution continue to accelerate global change.
Our accelerating transformation through 2016
and into the new year makes us confident that
ABB has the portfolio of businesses and the
leadership team to create superior value for our
customers, shareholders and employees. ABB

would not exist without its dedicated and tire

less employees, and their commitment and hard
work remain instrumental to its success. We

would like to thank them for their commitment

and many accomplishments in the past year.
Similarly, the ongoing support of ABB's customers
and partners makes all the company's achieve
ments possible. Finally, the continued trust that
you, ABB's shareholders, have bestowed on
the company is the foundation upon which this
enterprise has been built.

We are honored to lead this company, and know
there is continued exciting and hard work to do to

realize ABB's full potential. Today's ABBis ener
gized and focused on the opportunities that lie
ahead for its customers and partners. Let's write

the future. Together.

Sincerely,

ku
Peter Voser

Chairman of the Board

of Directors

March 10,2017

Ulrich Spiesshofer

Chief Executive Officer
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Highlights 2016

Increased operational EBITA

margin by 50 basis points to

12.4 percent in a continued

challenging market environment

Basic earnings per share

increased 2 percent(1) and

operational earnings per

share(2) was 4 percent(3) higher

Accelerating momentum in

operational excellence through

successful savings programs

and strong net working capital

management

Delivered strong cash

performance, with free cash

flow demonstrating ABB's

consistent cash generation

throughout the year

Key Figures 2016
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Returned $2.9 billion in cash to

shareholders through dividend

payment and share repurchase.

Board proposes eighth

consecutive dividend increase

Launched stage 3 of Next

Level strategy to build on

successful transformation as

well as strengthening position

as pioneering technology leader

and digital champion

Successful launch of ABB

Ability™ combining ABB's

portfolio of digital solutions

across all customer segments

therwise indii FY 2016
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The future starts today

Take a look around. Wherever you see modern technology, reliable
power supplies, efficient road transport, and remarkable rail
solutions, you're likely to be looking at ABB technology. Not that
it is always visible. Most of it is at work inside buildings and
vehicles, where it drives progress. The future we envisage is already
reality in many projects and places. It makes our cities more
livable and our transport more attractive, and it strikes a better
balance between what people want and the needs of a sustainably
developed environment.

;*«^

THE GOTTHARD BASE TUNNEL is the world's

longest railway tunnel. The latest energy-efficient
technologies from ABB provide the tunnel with

ventilation and power supply for its infrastructure

and for over 10,000 orientation lights. Our company

helps in many other ways to ensure that Switzer

land, a country famous for its railways, keeps set

ting international standards. That includes

locomotives as well as infrastructure, and encom

passes maintenance, upgrades and retrofitting.

The EC250 high-speed train, which is due to launch
in 2019, will be yet another railway pioneer, and will

incorporate ABB converters.
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FIFTEEN SECONDS is all the TOSA fully

electric bus needs to replenish its batteries.

It can recharge using pivoting contacts

on its roof during a regular stop. It drives

without emissions and without noise.

The TOSA can carry 133 passengers; it

connected Geneva Airport to the Palexpo

exhibition center from May 2013 to the

end of 2014 - to the delight of passengers

and operators. Geneva's Line 23 is now

being equipped with TOSA buses.

LIKE A JULES VERNE STORY

That was how Bertrand Piccard's idea sounded:

to fly around the world in a solar-powered plane
without a drop of fuel. He spent 12 years together

with a 60-man team of partners to prepare for

the 17-stage flight. To circle the globe he alternated

with Andre Borschberg as the pilot of Solar Impulse 2,

landing 505 days later in Abu Dhabi where he had

set out on the record flight. Four twin-bladed tractor

propellers were driven by solar power, which was

collected during the day by 11,628 photovoltaic

cells affixed mainly to the 63.4-meter-long wings.

This high-flying dream provides very real evidence

of what renewable energies can achieve when

used intelligently - by courageous people, it should

be added.

ABB AND THE INTERNET OF THINGS, SERVICES

AND PEOPLE

German Chancellor Angela Merkel and former

US President Barack Obama were the first to

experience ABB's groundbreaking new sensor

during their visit to the Hannover Fair in early 2016.

As guests of honor at the world's largest industrial

trade show, they were shown how ABB's smart

sensor allows electric motors for the first time to

report their condition and can reduce downtime by

up to 70 percent.
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Attractive markets

Driving today's technological
revolutions

ABB's customer markets are undergoing a paradigm shift as internet-
based technologies take hold in the industrial sector, revolutionizing
the production and supply of energy as well as of goods and services.

Our markets

As a pioneering technology leader serving the
utilities, industry, and transport &infrastructure
markets, ABB is at the heart of the energy and
fourth industrial revolutions. The rise of renew

able energy is dramatically increasing the com
plexity of the grid, as the number of feed-in

points from solar and wind sources multiply and
transmission distances lengthen thus driving the
energy revolution. As the contribution of renew

ables in the energy mix increases, supply becomes
less predictable, driving the need for more equip
ment and technology to balance demand and sup
ply in the grid. At the same time, the shift from
industrial to service-based economies is changing
consumption patterns, making them more prone
to peaks, and new consumer types, including
prosumers, and electric vehicles are already having
an impact on grid performance in some parts
of the world. These changes are increasing
complexity in the grid. At the same time, demand
for electricity is rising, driven by significant
increases in the volume of data and the accelerat

ing take-up of electric vehicles. The impact of
digitalization is accelerating as more and more
devices and systems are equipped with sensors
and connectors. With the substantial increase

in processing power, it is now possible to remotely
monitor the health of equipment, machines and
robots, and through state-of-the-art performance
modelling, to diagnose potential problems and to
intervene before an interruption of service.

Utilities Market

ABBfocuses on the changing needs of utility
customers with its complete offering for
transmission and distribution. The ongoing shift
in the electricity value chain such as the growth
in renewable power generation creates opportu
nities for companies that are able to deliver

intelligent solutions to the challenges customers

face with regard to increased grid complexity and
stability. Renewables are also making stand-alone
grids possible for remote, off-grid communities.
Currently, these must be equipped with back-up
(diesel) generators to cope with intermittent
supply, but innovations in power storage tech
nology promise to dramatically expand the
application of these micro-grids, which are another
key focus for ABB.

With the significant shift in the electricity value
chain, integration of renewables, micro-grids
and automation solutions to control the flow are

key growth drivers for the future. The grid of
tomorrow will increase in complexity as there will
be numerous feed-in points and a shift from uni

directional to bi-directional electricity flow.
At the same time, market de-regulation and re-
regulation continues. Generation, transmission

and distribution are being unbundled, long
standing monopolies now have competitors and

new entrants (e.g. pension funds, insurance

funds, project developers) are investing in the
sector. Many traditional utilities are being forced
to reinvent themselves; some are refocusing on
renewables while others on providing additional
services to the consumers they serve. These new
grid challenges provide numerous opportunities.

More than 30 percent of the market we operate

in are in these high-growth segments, such
as grid automation, high-voltage direct current
(HVDC),software and micro-grids. Our solutions
help utilities, which generally are public or
government-owned entities and tend to be more
consolidated in nature, address these challenges.

Utilities remained cautious in 2016 but continued

to make selective investments in infrastructure-

critical power transmission projects. For example,
ABBhas teamed up with India's national electricity
grid operator Power Grid Corporation of India



«»

01 STRATEGY

.• ••

.

Attractive customer dynamics

Utilities

iTff
~$7 trillion renewables

investment next 25

years

300 HVDC projects

planned

S5 bn microgrid

market 2025

-50% CAGR stationary

energy storage (GWh)

Industry

26 bn things connected

by 2020

18% annual growth

machine-to-machine

industry by 2020

2.6 mn industrial

robots by 2019 from

1.2 mn today

-30% CAGR cloud

computing infrastruc

ture and platforms

Transport &

Infrastructure

•
O O

/*=\

>63% urban popula

tion by 2050

Smart home market

to triple to ~$36 bn

in 2020

Energy management

market to more than

double to $44 bn by

2020

>50%of cars sold in

2030 will be electric
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Limited in a project with an order value over $640

Million for ABB to deliver a transmission link that

willhave the capacity to bring reliable electricity to
more than 80 million people. Furthermore, ABB

won $300 million of orders in China to supply
advanced converter transformers for two Icng-
clistance ultra-high-voltage direct current (UHVDC)
transmission links setting a new world record by

enabling 10 gigawatts (GW) of power to be trans
mitted at 800 kilovolts (kV). Additionally, in China

ABB won orders of more than $300 million io

(deliver key equipment for a 1,100 kV UHVDC power

link. ABB also won a $250 million order to de iver

.i 220 kVhigh-voltage submarine cable system to
Danish utility DONG Energy.

ndustry Market

On the industry side, we serve factories all around

the world from discrete to process industries.

Energy efficiency and productivity improvements
are the hallmarks of ABB's offerings in this cus

tomer segment. Industry customers are diverse

in nature and may be publicly traded or privately

held companies. Our energy efficient prod jets,

systems and services reduce consumption and

therefore electricity cost and carbon emissions,

while our automation systems increase productiv

ity, quality and efficiency, and keep workp aces

safe. Since industrial customers have increasingly

been focusing on enhancing energy efficiency

and asset productivity, our offering is a key value

proposition for them. Demand from industrial

customers in 2016 varied by sector and re gion.

However, low oil prices resulted in a contir ued

constraint in spending by oil and gas customers.

The need for cutting-edge solutions to inc rease

efficiency and to use renewable power generation

to lower the environmental impact contin Jed to

be important demand drivers. In this context, we

launched ABB's smart sensor solution for electric
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motors which can deliver downtime reductions

of up to 70 percent, extend the lifetime of the mo

tors by up to 30 percent, and reduce energy con
sumption by 10 percent. In addition, demand for

robotics solutions in general industry is growing
as there is an increased need for automated pro

cesses and productivity. YuMi, ABB's collaborative

robot, helps meet this need.

Transport & Infrastructure Market

Alongside ABB's offering for utilities and industry,

we provide solutions for transport &infrastructure

customers. As transport customers focus on

energy efficiency and reduced operating costs,

our offerings are key. Another key growth driver

for this customer segment is the move to increased

electric transportation as well as urbanization

and growth in data centers. Our expertise has

given us the edge when it comes to providing

clean and reliable power solutions for transport

networks and infrastructure.

Demand from the transport &infrastructure market

in 2016 was mixed, with continued demand for

energy efficient solutions, particularly in data

centers, rail and electric mobility. For example,

ABB continued its collaboration with Stadler Rail

to deliver its newest traction equipment for

reliable and energy-efficient trains and has

received an order to provide additional fast

chargers for hybrid electric buses in the city of
Luxembourg. Demand for specialty vessel

solutions remained strong and ABB won orders

to supply the complete power, propulsion

and automation package for a series of new

cruise vessels being built by MV WERFTEN.

ABB's proven Azipod propulsion solutions will

improve the safety and efficiency of the new

generation of ships.
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Delivered

Next Level strategy - stages 1 and 2

In 2014, ABB launched its Next Level strategy aimed at accelerating
sustainable value creation and laying the foundations for future
growth. At the time, the company was facing pressing operational
issues, and needed to develop a new growth mindset, simplify its
organization and strengthen its customer focus.

Three focus areas were defined to address these

challenges: profitable growth, relentless execu
tion and business-led collaboration, and for each

focus area, clear action plans were put in place.

Profitable growth

To drive a growth mindset, ABB adopted its "PIE"
formula of penetration, innovation and expansion,

with a focus on greater competitiveness, organic

growth, and reducing risks by aligning business

models more closely with ABB's core competencies.

Organic growth was complemented with strategic

acquisitions and partnerships with other leading

global companies, such as Philips, Hitachi and
most recently Microsoft. Today, ABB is well posi
tioned for growth, with four market-leading divi

sions and a world-class portfolio of solutions

and services.

Relentless execution

Akey objective of the Next Level strategy is to
achieve world-class operational excellence at all

levels of the company. In stages 1 and 2, the focus
was on turning around underperforming units,
improving white-collar productivity and cash
performance, and improving accountability and
performance of both teams and individuals.

By2016, Power Grids delivered and continued its
journey of transformation; the white-collar pro
ductivity savings program had outperformed
expectations, allowing its cost reduction target

to be increased by 30 percent to $1.3 billion; and

the working capital program was on course to

free up approximately $2 billion by the end of
2017. On top of that, ABB's regular cost-savings

programs continued to achieve savings equivalent

of 3-5 percent of cost of sales each year, and

a new performance-based compensation model
had been implemented for 70,000 of the company's

132,000 employees.

Business-led collaboration

Finally, over the past two years, ABB has dramati

cally simplified its organizational setup, reducing

the number of global regions from eight to three,

and the divisions from five to four. In addition,

many business units have been relocated closer to

their key markets and customers, leading to a far

more responsive, customer-focused organization.

The work is not over, but today ABB is a simpler,

faster and more agile company, positioned at the
heart of the energy and fourth industrial revolu

tions, and ready to take advantage of the exciting
growth opportunities that are emerging across
its markets.
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Committed to unlocking value
Next Level strategy - stage 3

On October 4,2016, ABB launched stage 3 of its Next Level strategy
to unlock additional value for shareholders and customers.

Buildingon the focus areas of profitable growth,
relentless execution and business-led collabora

tion, stage 3 consists of four actions:

1. Driving growth in four market-leading entre
preneurial divisions

2. Quantum leap in digital
3. Accelerating momentum in operational

excellence

4. Strengthening the global ABB brand

Driving growth in four market-leading
entrepreneurial divisions

Akey objective of ABB'sNext Levelstrategy is to
be #1 or #2 in all businesses, something the
company achieved with the focusing of its divisional
structure into four market-leading divisions
effective January 1,2017: Electrification Products,
Robotics and Motion, Industrial Automation

and Power Grids. With this structure, ABB's divisions

are positioned as partners of choice in their
respective markets.

In stage 3 of the Next Level strategy, the divi
sions will drive growth as entrepreneurial units
within ABB,in line with the company's values
of "ownership and performance" (see page 30).
This is reflected in an enhanced performance
and compensation model, which focuses on indi

vidual accountability and responsibility.

The divisions benefit from sales collaboration or

chestrated by ABB's regions and countries, as well
as from the group-wide digital offering; ABB's
leading G&Astructure; common supply chain
management; and corporate research centers.

ABBwill continue to strengthen its divisions
through active portfolio management. This includes
pursuing strategic additions, transforming
business models and pruning non-core businesses.

Electrification Products

As #2 in the market for the electrification of

consumption points, the Electrification Products
division brings together all electrification compo
nents in a one-stop shop for customers. The

division now includes the solar inverters, electric
vehicle chargers and power protection activities,
which were transferred from the former Discrete

Automation and Motion division.

Demand for electricity consumption is growing
faster than overall energy demand, as more
people gain access to electricity and the take-up
of electric vehicles accelerates. This presents
significant opportunities to digitalize and innovate
around our current offerings.

Robotics and Motion

The newly shaped Robotics and Motion division,
based on ABB's Discrete Automation and Motion

portfolio, is focused on the fast-growing robotics
segment, and on industrial motors and drives

where ABBis #1 globally.

ABB's robotics business, currently #2, has the
clear aim of becoming the market leader, while the
motors and drives businesses will focus on fast-

growing segments and moving into light industry
and emerging growth areas such as Asia.

Intelligent services and a leading digital offering
are already a strong pillar of the division's perfor
mance and open significant growth opportunities.
ABBwill strengthen divisional profitability
through continued focus on operational excel
lence and value chain optimization.

Industrial Automation

Formerly the Process Automation division,
Industrial Automation builds on ABB's #1 position

in control solutions for industry, and will drive
digitalization across industry sectors through
ABB's unique combination of domain expertise,

and software and services.

Byfocusing on growing segments and bringing
together maintenance, operation and control in
industries as diverse as pharmaceuticals, mining,
shipping and oil and gas, ABBwill drive penetra
tion of strongholds and create differentiation
for customers.



Finally,the transformation of the Power Grids divi
sion continues within ABB, with the focus on high-

growth segments and digitally enabled services and
software. As part of the ongoing transformation,

Power Grids will continue to de-risk the business

model while tapping growth opportunities through

strategic partnerships, such as those with leading

EPC (engineering, procurement and construction)
companies, Fluor and Aibel, announced last year. In

addition, ABB will continue portfolio pruning, as

with the sale of the high-voltage cables business to

NKT Cables. As a consequence of the transforma

tion, ABBis raising the operational EBITA margin

target corridor for the Power Grids division from
8-12 percent to 10-14 percent effective 2018.

Quantum leap in digital

As the world leader in control systems for indus

try, ABB has more than 70,000 installed systems

connecting over 70 million devices, making it

a "hidden" digital champion. In addition, more

than half of its sales come from software and

digitally enabled devices.

In stage 3 of its Next Level strategy, ABB will use

its profound knowledge of its customers' domains

to plan, build and operate a unique digital offer

ing to deliver true operational differentiation for

customers. The newly launched "ABB Ability"

offering combines ABB's portfolio of digital solu

tions and services across all customer segments

to deliver unprecedented improvements in up

time, speed and yield. With this digital offering,

ABB will cement its leading position in the fourth

industrial revolution and support the competi

tiveness of ABB's four entrepreneurial divisions.

To drive its quantum leap in digital, ABB has

entered a far-reaching strategic partnership with

Microsoft, the world's largest software company,
to develop next-generation digital solutions on an

integrated cloud platform. Customers will benefit

from the unique combination of ABB's deep domain

knowledge and extensive portfolio of industrial

solutions and Microsoft's Azure intelligent cloud

as well as B2B engineering competence. Together,
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the partners will drive digital transformation in

customer segments across ABB's businesses such

as robotics, marine and e-mobility.

ABB's digital transformation will be led by its

Chief Digital Officer, Guido Jouret, a pioneer in
the Internet of Things, who joined the company

on October 1, 2016, reporting to CEO Ulrich

Spiesshofer (see page 27).

Accelerating momentum in operational excellence
ABB continues to build on its existing momentum

and is further accelerating its operational excellence

by raising the cost reduction target of its 1,000 day
white-collar productivity program by 30 percent

to $1.3 billion. This will be achieved as planned by the

end 2017, with lower total restructuring and

implementation costs. The 1,000-day working

capital program, focused on improving inventory

management and optimizing other net working

capital measures, remains on course to free up
approximately $2 billion by the end of 2017.

Strengthening the global ABB brand

To communicate its quantum leap forward in digi

tal and to ensure it is perceived as a pioneering

technology leader at the forefront of the digital

revolution, ABB is transforming its global brand.

Over the next two years, all corporate brands will

be brought under the single master ABB brand.

This will make it easier for customers to under

stand what ABBdoes and to navigate its portfolio,

and to increase customer loyalty and purchase

probability as well as price premiums. In addition,

one master brand allows ABB to better present its

strategy to relevant stakeholders and emphasizes

its customer-first, digital-first thinking.

The unified ABB brand will have a new visual identi

ty that clearly communicates the company's digital

capabilities as well as its direction and unique

market position to customers, shareholders, em

ployees and all other stakeholders. ABB's heritage

as a pioneering technology leader and the three

focus areas of its Next Level strategy are reflected

in its new brand promise: "Let's write the future."

Let's write the future.

-• Profitable Growth

Relentless Execution

-• Business-led Collaboration
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ABB Ability™
Creating Value through Digitalization

mm

ABB Ability™ uses digitalization

to close the loop between tech

nology, services, and people,

and thereby unlock value while

building the framework for the

future.

We've been writing this future

with our clients for years, with

an installed base of 70 million

connected devices and 70,000

control systems. ABB Ability™

unifies our expertise and in

sights across multiple industry

sectors and technology

platforms.

The digitized application of that

expertise differs with each

project - we apply combinations

of our technology, services, and

the data know-how address our

clients' unique mission-critical

needs, and then innovate over

time - but our value proposition

is consistent: Let's write the

future.
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Enabling Transformative Change

Today's global economy demands that businesses find new, faster
ways to deliver productivity within the constraints of resources and
regulation, and ABB's digital solutions weave together the elements to
deliver it: Robotics. Remote monitoring and management. Predictive

maintenance. Collaborative operations. Next generation hardware.

Cloud-based software. Here are two examples of how we've partnered

with our clients to meet their needs, and then innovate solutions to

deliver future opportunities.
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THE NEED FOR SPEED

ABB &Norske Shell

When Norske Shell's Ormen Lange gas field
neared the start of operations in the summer of

2307, it was already the largest single develo sment
project in Norwegian industrial history. Prod jction
from its facilities in the North Sea could rea<:h

73 million standard cubic meters per day, enough

to supply up to 20 percent of the UK's demand

for gas.

Getting the project running quickly and reliably
v/as a textbook case in the benefits of speed.

Every additional day of uptime could mean millions,
literally, in gas pumped or revenues earned and
costs saved.

So that's when Shell turned to ABB.

We were already its trusted partner, having v/orked
with Aker Solutions, the engineering contrac tor for

the facility, to supply automation, electrification,

telecommunications and operator training systems.

"he size and complexity of the system cannot be

overstated: The distributed control system is an

ABB 800xA with six operator workplaces and

eight engineering stations, requiring 42 servers in
six cabinets for the process automation and infor

mation management system. The 15,000 l/Os are

mainly on HART and Profibus.

'Although Norske Shell was involved throughout

:he design phase, we did not feel we had sufi iciently

detailed expertise to optimize the system,' says

4rne Rosdal, Norske Shell's operations supoort

supervisor of Ormen Lange.

Commissioning & Tuning

When Shell asked ABB to speed up commissioning

of the control logic, as well as to increase \he up

time and efficiency of the equipment, we assem
bled a team with specialized expertise in process

and production optimization from a depa tment

v.-ithin ABB called Integrated Operations.

A founding project insight was to develop the

process control services simultaneously with

commissioning the automation system. Tiis
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would require close integration between Shell's
and ABB's teams.

Digital solutions would make that collaboration

possible.

ABB's services combined our deep industry sector
expertise with tailor-made tools and applications
to single out and identify a problem, adapt the
software or control strategy, as well as pinpoint
issues with the mechanical equipment or the

operational procedures.

"The first objective was to get the plant and

sub-systems up and running as quickly as possible.
We started by tackling any obvious problems and

then gradually moved on to loop tuning, control

logic improvement and operational support," says
Arne Rosdal.

Operational Excellence

The speed of operational insights that ABB provid

ed not only made it easier to identify problems

earlier and solve them permanently during the

startup phase, but also enabled ongoing perfor

mance improvements.

"For instance, condensate production has

increased, which helps increase revenues. The

ABB team has also helped reduce the amount of

heat transfer medium in the cooling processes,"

says Rosdal.

Additionally, the ABB team has identified oppor

tunities for energy savings of more than 3 MW.

Significant energy savings have been achieved by

optimizing control of the export compressor by

reducing the cooler temperature.

Improved plant up-time, less wear of equipment,

increased condensate production and reduced

energy use all mean maximized profit with safe
and robust operation, while maintaining quality

constraints and export requirements. The result

has been increased up-time by four to five days

per year.

Again, time means money.
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PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE ON ROBOTS

ABB & Pioneer Foods

Group
Pioneer Foods Group is a leading South African

food and beverage producer which exports its

products all over the world. Its Shakaskraal bakery

near Durban is its largest, and mainly serves

a Portugal-sized province of KwaZulu-Natal.

Its cutting edge technology ensures the highest

product quality, while also supporting sustainable
operations. Reflective white roof sheets reduce

the need for electrical lighting and internal cool

ing, while harvesting rain water for truck washing

and irrigation. It relies on renewable resource-
fired boilers and heat recovery on refrigeration

equipment for the pre-heating of water.

Ultimately, its performance depends on the

productivity of its workforce. So Pioneer Foods

turned to ABB in 2016 to help ensure that its

robots show up for work on time.

ABB supplied the company's first robots in 2008

to the Olifantsfontein bakery in South Africa, and

more robots were ordered on a steady basis

during the following years. With the latest four

ABB robots being commissioned last year, there

were 27 robots doing everything from pan handling,

bread de-panning, lidding, de-lidding and lid

storage.

This existing relationship served as the foundation

for an expanded relationship with ABB.

"They make sure we stay informed on current

technology, new updates and upgrades and help

us with critical spare parts onsite. We have high

expectations on ABB's service professionalism

and ABB always delivers," says Ivan Padayachee,

Engineering Manager at Pioneer Foods'

Shakaskraal bakery.

PIONEER FOODS GROUP

SHAKASKRAAL BAKERY. SOUTH AFRICA
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Condition Monitoring &

Diagnostics

Keeping Pioneer Foods' robot systems running

at optimal performance relies on ensuring faster

reaction time, higher efficiency, and better and

quicker service and support.

Doing so means utilizing the connectivity capability

built into every ABB robot, which allows for linking

them via wireless or hardwire and leveraging
actionable data. We implemented our Condition

Monitoring & Diagnostics digital solution, v/hich
not only closes the loop between robots and

operators, but operates securely and 24/7.

'ABB works closely with the Shakaskraal te.im to

make sure preventive maintenance is done on the

right robots and at the right times," explair ed

:3adayachee.

The results can all be measured in time sav ngs:

More efficient service prep, faster incident notifi
cation and reaction, and an iterative impro/ement

anticipating the most frequent failures.

This success is also a demonstration of the benefits

of ABB's digital solutions.

7^1
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Digital Solution Opportunities

Condition Monitoring & Diagnostics is one of five

services that our Connected Services can .ailor to

meet a client's unique needs; the others arc. Backup

Management, Remote Access, Fleet Asses ;ment,

and Asset Optimization.

We also enable this connectivity not only \ ia our

robots. Our smart sensor solution can cor nect

any low-voltage motor with the cloud, gatner and

analyze multiple parameters and call for action

whenever needed.
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With integrating each service come further

improvements in facility productivity, delivering
fewer incidents and reducing time, while increas

ing efficiency and extending equipment lifetime.

The digitalization of vital processes also yields

a learning relationship that makes system manage

ment more effective while informing it with new

issues and opportunities that need to be addressed.

"Pioneer Foods believe in being proactive, not

reactive," says Trevin Chetty, Service Engineer,

ABB Robotics, South Africa.

So does ABB.

';
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GUIDO JOURET

Unlocking value for
industrial customers

GuidoJouret, ABB's Chief

Digital Officer since October 2016,

explains how ABB can help cus

tomers realize the efficiency and

performance improvements that

digitalization delivers today.

ABB What does a Chief Digital Officer do?

GJ The CDO position is relatively new; not many

companies have one. It was created to help enter

prises digitalize their products and services. My

role at ABB is to see how the latest technologies,

such as sensors, data analytics and cloud-based

services, can be applied to the entire ABB portfolio

to unlock greater value for our customers, in terms

of uptime, speed and yield.

ABB How is ABB positioned in digital?

GJ To create value for industrial customers, you

need a large installed base. This is essential because

it is not enough simply to attach a sensor to a ma

chine or robot and transmit the data to the cloud

- plenty of companies can do that. The value lies

in what you do with the data - how you turn it into

actionable information to help customers derive

maximum value from digitalizing their assets.

ABB is very well positioned because it has some of

the largest installed bases in power grids, industrial

robotics, and control systems for industry. This

means we have the domain expertise - knowledge

of our customers' industries - to understand how

digital technologies can best be used.

ABB Tell us about "ABBAbility"
GJ With its installed base of more than 70 million

connected devices and 70,000 control systems,

ABB is a leader in digital systems and software.
What has been lacking is a common platform for
its digital assets; traditionally, these have been
locked up in its individual businesses rather than

shared across the entire group. With "ABBAbility"

we will bring together ABB's entire portfolio of

digital solutions and services, making them acces

sible to all our businesses and customers.

ABB How does ABB's partnership with Microsoft

fit into "ABB Ability"?
GJ As part of ABB's quantum leap in digital, we

formed a strategic partnership with Microsoft to

develop next-generation digital solutions on an

integrated cloud platform. Microsoft was the

natural choice because of its unrivalled ecosystem

of software developers. For ABB, this means we

can build our applications on Microsoft's Azure

platform, taking advantage of all of its capabili

ties, and add value with our domain-specific solu

tions. In effect, we are turning our decades of

industrial expertise into software offerings that

can be accessed through the world's largest and

most advanced digital platform.

ABB How "digital" is the industry at the moment?

GJ The digital transformation of the industry is

just beginning, in the grid, in factory automation

and in building automation - all of the markets

in which ABB is present. ABB is well positioned

because we are very early in that transformation

journey, we are respected by our customers,

we have world-class products and, in the future,

we will have a world-class digital environment.
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Shareholder Return and

Capital Allocation

ABB's capital allocation priorities remain un

changed: 1) funding organic growth, R&D and
capital expenditures at attractive cash returns;

2) paying a steadily rising, sustainable dividend;
3) investing in value-creating acquisitions;
and 4) returning additional cash to shareholders.

£BB's strong cash generation continued in 2016.

Free cash flow grew 2 percent compared to tl e
previous year and the return on invested capital
increased further to around 14 percent. The
strong cash generation allows for significani
ceployment of capital. From 2014 to 2016, AEB has

returned around $8.7 bn to shareholders in the

form of dividends and share buy backs. Capital
allocation including acquisitions as well as
investments for organic growth through capital
expenditures, Research & Development as wt;ll as

sales expense totaled around 27 bn from 2014 to

2016.

Cash Return to Shareholder 1

0.76

0.74

0.72

0.70

0.68

0.66

0.64

0.60

2012 2013

Dividend per share CHF (year paid)

Pay out %

2014

ABB announced in October 2016 its plans for

a new share buyback program of up to S3 bn from

2017 through 2019. This reflects the company's
confidence and the continued strength of ABB's
cash generation and financial position. On

September 30,2016, ABBannounced the comple

tion of its recent share buyback program in which
it returned $3.5bn to its shareholders. Active

portfolio management remains a key aspect of
ABB's operating pattern as demonstrated in the

recent portfolio pruning and bolt on acquisitions
as well as the announced cable business divesti

ture and business model changes in Power Grids.

2015 2016 2017'

85%

80%

75%

70%

65%

60%

55%

50%

45%
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Dividend USD (year paid)

Share buy back (USD)

Total
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2014 2015 2016

Cash Return on Invested Capital Capital Allocation

14.5

14

13.5

13

12.5

12

11.5

2014 2015

Free Cash Flow

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0 5

0

2012

Free Cash Flow

%of net income

2016

2013

14-16 IIJ

Sales Expense

Dividend USD (year paid)

R&D

Share buy back

Capex

Acquisitions

2014

2014-2016

~$27bn

2015 2016

29

160%

150%

140%

130%

120%

110%

100%

90%
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Living our values
to deliver on our Next Level

strategy

At ABB, how we execute our Next Level strategy is just as important as

delivering on our targets. To drive sustainable value creation for all our

stakeholders, we have five value pairs, which all of our employees are
expected to live every day.

Values drive our behavior

In today's competitive and fast-changing world,

the command and control structures of the: past
are no longer effective. Instead, our behavior,

working relationships and the way we do business

must be based on values that leave no room for

compromise when it comes to safety and integrity,
and that encourage a passion for custome- focus

and quality, while driving high performance,

accountability and collaboration.

Five value pairs

1. Safety and integrity

ABB strives every day to live these core val jes.

Though training, internal values campaigns, and

continuously communicating the need to uphold

high standards of safety and integrity, we seek

to instill a culture in which employees practice

safe and ethical behavior in all aspects of their

lives. Through our "Don't look the other way!"

approach, we encourage everyone to drav\ atten

tion to behavior and actions that might compro

mise others' health and wellbeing, or jeopardize

their careers or the reputation of the company.

2. Customer focus and quality

To prosper as a company, the customer has to be at

the center of all our activities, and we need t d deliver

the highest quality in everything we do. Knowing
our customers better, being perceived as laving

a clear focus on them, and providing high-q jality
offerings and services is what make us the partner
of choice in highly competitive markets.

3. Innovation and speed

Innovation is not only the job of R&D, it is it the

core of our value proposition and is therefore

everyone's job at ABB. Digitalization is opening

a world of new possibilities and transforming

industry at the same time, and we need to drive

that transformation, otherwise we will be left

trying to catch up. In today's fast-paced world,

speed is essential - we must be fast without

being hasty in order to master new technologies

and stay ahead of the competition.

4. Ownership and performance

Strengthening lines of responsibility and account

ability across our organization is a key part of
our Next Level strategy. Focused, well-articulated

responsibilities for our businesses, country

organizations and functions are paramount to

drive performance to the next level. Our new

organization reflects these principles and is
built around them. Institutional and individual

performance are key to continue to succeed

in a demanding world. Performance is what is

expected from all of us every day - not only

continuing what we are doing, but also taking

a step forward.

5. Collaboration and trust

With our Next Level strategy, we have defined

actions to unlock further value for our stake

holders. But knowing what we have to do is not

enough, we need to drive a culture of collabora

tion at all levels across the company and build

trust. In stage 3 of our Next Level strategy, our

four market-leading divisions are empowered

as entrepreneurial units to drive sustainable

value creation, supported by our regions and
the group's digital offering and leading G&A

cost level. Successful collaboration builds trust,

which in turn strengthens collaboration,
enabling us to write the future with all of our

stakeholders.
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CEO ULRICH SPIESSHOFER

At ABB; we seek to instill
a culture in which everyone
practices safe and ethical
behavior in all aspects of
their lives.
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Executive Committee

Together, we drive progress

SAMI ATIYA

ROBOTICS

AND MOTION

DIVISION

FRANK DUGGAN

ASIA,

MIDDLE EAST

AND AFRICA (AMEA)

REGION

DIANE DE

SAINT VICTOR

GENERAL

COUNSEL

PETER TERWIESCH

INDUSTRIAL

AUTOMATION

DIVISION

GREG SCHEU

AMERICAS
REGION

JEAN-CHRISTOPHE

DESLARZES

CHIEF

HUMAN RESOURCES

OFFICER



CLAUDIO FACCHIN

POWER GRIDS

DIVISION

ULRICH SPIESSHOFER

CHIEF

EXECUTIVE

OFFICER
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ERIC ELZVIK

CHIEF

FINANCIAL

OFFICER

TARAK MEHTA
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Chairman's letter

Dear shareholder,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased

to present ABB's corporate governance report.
In 2016, we strengthened the Board with four

new members, worked closely with the CEO and
Executive Committee on Stage 3 of ABB's Ne::t
Level strategy, and took a close and critical Icok at

ABB's portfolio to ensure it is optimized to create
sjstainable value.

2016 was a special year for ABB. The company cele
brated 125 yearsof servingthe worldwith pioreering
technology from Switzerland, a heritage we are all
t emendously proud of. It brings home the \a eight
cf responsibility on the Board and the manage
ment to continue steering ABB successfully now
and for future generations.

Mandate

In common with other publicly listed companies in

Switzerland, the ABB Board of Directors is respon
sible for reviewing and approving the company
strategy. The Board is also responsible for ensuring
that ABB has the best leadership team in pla:e to

execute the strategy, optimize performance and
maintain our high ethical standards.

"wo factors are key to the Board's ability to perform
these duties successfully. First, it is crucial that,

collectively, the directors have a diverse and deep
tange of complementary skills and experience

that match the needs of ABB'sstrategy. In today's
rapidly changing world, where technology is
advancing at an even faster pace, this is more

important than ever. Second, it is essential to

ensure that the directors develop an excellent

jnderstanding of ABB's operations and markets,

so that they are fully equipped to take informed

decisions about the company's future.

In 2016, we strengthened the board with four new

members. Robyn Denholm and David Meline bring

expertise in digitalization and software, as well as

extensive leadership experience in financial roles

at large and successful companies. And Frederico

Fleury Curado and Satish Pai have experierce

leading flagship companies in important emerging

markets, bringing vast and valuable knowledge in

research and development, technology and manu

facturing to ABB.Unfortunately. Robyn will not be

standing for re-election, as she has taken on a new

executive role.
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Our new directors undertook an intensive "on-

boarding" program in 2016, during which they had
the opportunity to see ABBoperations in different

parts of the world, and to meet with members of

the ECand other senior managers.

With our new members, all of whom were elected

with overwhelming support at the annual general
meeting, the ABB Board is more diverse than

ever. It comprises directors of ten nationalities

from a wide variety of industries. Furthermore,
almost two-thirds of the directors have joined
the Board within the past three years, ensuring
a balance between new members who bring fresh
perspectives and longer-serving ones whose
experience ensures continuity and stability.

Priorities in 2016

Part of the Board's strategic oversight responsibili
ty is active portfolio management to ensure that

ABB focuses on the right markets and that its core

businesses are properly positioned in its target
markets. In 2016, an important focus of our work

was the Power Grids division, which we put through
a comprehensive strategic portfolio review to

determine the maximum value creation potential
for ABB shareholders.

The review included an internal analysis as well as

independent assessments performed by external
advisors and experts. Every aspect of the division's

portfolio was closely examined, including its

market attractiveness today and in the future, the

offering as well as the business models of its
various units and the best ownership structure to

fulfil its potential.

Following a careful assessment of all the options

together with the EC, the Board concluded that

shareholders' best interests were served by the

continued transformation of Power Grids under

ABB's ownership. The unanimous decision was

announced in October 2016.

Alongside the strategic portfolio review of Power
Grids, the Board in 2016 evaluated the company's

strategic direction and approved changes to

further enhance sustainable value creation. Further,

the Board conducted regular financial and business

reviews, set Group performance targets and the

personal objectives of the CEO,and reviewed
capital allocation including investments and trans
actions, as well as the approval and progress of



major projects. The Board also approved the annual
report and the general meeting agenda.

The Board held 5 private meetings, meetings with
out ABBexecutives and experts, during which we
conducted a Board self-evaluation, a performance

assessment of senior management and a review

of succession planning.

Chairman's role

As an independent, non-executive chairman, my
role is to provide direction to the Board and ensure
that we have an efficient, collaborative relationship

with the CEO and the members of the EC, who have

full and undiluted responsibility for the execution
of the strategy and the operational management
of the company.

As chairman, Isee my role as ensuring that our
committees work effectively, providing expert
advice and guidance for important decisions and
leading by example.

I have a strong and open relationship with the CEO,
characterized by mutual respect, and Iseek to pro
vide support and offer a different perspective as a
sounding board and a source of advice.

Dialogue with shareholders

Ultimately, my priority as chairman is you, the
shareholders of our company. It is your interests

that the Board represents and it is imperative that
we have a collaborative and open dialogue. I was

honored by the warmth with which Iwas received
at the AGM in 2016, and at the level of support for

our Board members.

It is a privilege to serve your interests in such a

great company as ABB and to represent so many

shareholders who obviously care deeply about its

long-term success.

Sincerely yours,

'Jfc> i^*xJ

Peter R. Voser

Chairman of the Board

March 10,2017
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Summary of corporate
governance approach

General Meeting of Shareholders

Board of Directors

Executive Committee

External

Auditor

Corporate Governance-

General principles

ABBis committed to the highest international
standards of corporate governance and this is
reinforced in its structure, processes and rules as
outlined in this corporate governance report. In
linewith this, ABBcomplies with the general
principles as set forth in the Swiss Code of Best

Practice for Corporate Governance, as well as those
of the capital markets where its shares are listed

and traded. In addition to the provisions of the
Swiss Code of Obligations, ABB's key principles and
rules on corporate governance are laid down in

ABB's Articles of Incorporation, the ABB Ltd Board
Regulations &Corporate Governance Guidelines

(which includes the regulations of ABB's Board
committees and the ABBLtd Related Party
Transaction Policy), and the ABB Code of Conduct
and the Addendum to the ABB Code of Conduct

for Members of the Board of Directors and the

Executive Committee (EC). It is the duty of ABB's
Board of Directors (the Board) to review and

amend or propose amendments to those docu
ments from time to time to reflect the most

recent developments and practices, as well as to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

Compensation Governance and

Board and EC compensation

Information about ABB's Compensation Gover
nance as well as Board and ECcompensation and
shareholdings can be found in the Compensation
report contained in this Annual Report.

Board of Directors

Board and Board Committees (2016-2017 Board Term)

Board of Directors

Chairman: Peter R. Voser

Vice Chairman: Jacob Wallenberg
Matti Alahuhta Robyn Denholm Satish Pai
David Constable Louis R. Hughes Michel de Rosen
Frederico Fleury Curado David Meline Ying Yeh

Finance, Audit and Compliance
Committee

Governance and Nomination Compensation Committee
Committee

Louis R. Hughes (chairman)
Robyn Denholm
David Meline

Satish Pai

Peter R. Voser (chairman) Michel de Rosen (chairman)
Matti Alahuhta David Constable

Jacob Wallenberg Frederico Fleury Curado
Ying Yeh



Board governance

The Board

The Board defines the ultimate direction of the

business of ABBand issues the necessary instruc
tions. It determines the organization of the ABB
Group and appoints, removes and supervises the
persons entrusted with the executive management
and representation of ABB. The internal organiza
tional structure and the definition of the areas of

responsibility of the Board, as well as the informa
tion and control instruments vis-a-vis the Executive

Committee, are set forth in the ABB Ltd Board Reg

ulations &Corporate Governance Guidelines.

The Board takes decisions as a whole, support

ed by its three committees: the Finance, Audit and
Compliance Committee (FACC), the Governance and
Nomination Committee (GNC), and the Compensa

tion Committee (CC). These committees assist the

Board in its tasks and report regularly to the Board.
The members of the Board committees either are

required to be independent or are elected directly

by the shareholders. The Board and its committees
meet regularly throughout the year. Any Board Mem
ber may request a Board or committee meeting and
the inclusion of an agenda item. Before meetings,
Board Members receive materials to help them pre

pare for the discussions and decision making.

The directors and officers of a Swiss corporation

are bound, as specified in the Swiss Code of Obli
gations, to perform their duties with all due care, to
safeguard the interests of the corporation in good
faith and to extend equal treatment to sharehold

ers in like circumstances.

The Swiss Code of Obligations does not specify

what standard of due care is required of the direc
tors of a corporate board. However, it is generally
held by Swiss legal scholars and jurisprudence that
the directors must have the requisite capability
and skill to fulfill their function, and must devote

the necessary time to the discharge of their duties.
Moreover, the directors must exercise all due care

that a prudent and diligent director would have tak
en in like circumstances. Finally, the directors are
required to take actions in the best interests of the

corporation and may not take any actions that may
be harmful to the corporation.

Chairman of the Board

The Chairman is elected by the shareholders to
represent their interests in creating sustainable
value through effective governance. In addition,
the Chairman (l) takes provisional decisions on
behalf of the Board on urgent matters where a reg
ular Board decision cannot be obtained (2) calls for

Board meetings and sets the related agendas, (3)
interacts with the CEO and other EC members on
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a more frequent basis outside of Board meetings
and (4) represents the Board internally and in the
public sphere.

Vice-Chairman of the Board

The Vice-Chairman is elected by the Board and

handles the responsibilities of the Chairman to the
extent the Chairman is unable to do so or would

have a conflict of interest in doing so. He also acts
as counselor/advisor to the Chairman on any

matters that are Company or Board relevant and as
appropriate or as the Chairman may require and
with a particular focus on strategic aspects related
to the Company and its business in general. In
addition, the Vice-Chairman takes such other

actions as may be decided by the Board or request
ed by the Chairman.

Finance, Audit and Compliance Committee
The FACC is responsible for overseeing (1) the in
tegrity of ABB'sfinancial statements, (2)ABB's
compliance with legal, tax and regulatory require
ments, (3) the independent auditors' qualifications
and independence, (4) the performance of ABB's
internal audit function and external auditors, and

(5) ABB's capital structure, funding requirements
and financial risk and policies.

The FACCmust comprise three or more indepen

dent directors who have a thorough understand
ing of finance and accounting. The Chairman of
the Board and, upon invitation by the committee's
chairman, the CEO or other members of the Exec

utive Committee may participate in the committee

meetings, provided that any potential conflict of in
terest is avoided and confidentiality of the discus
sions is maintained. In addition, the Chief Integrity
Officer, the Head of Internal Audit and the external

auditors participate in the meetings as appropriate.

As required by the U.S. Securities and Exchange

Commission (SEC) at least one member of the FACC

has to be an audit committee financial expert. The

Board has determined that each member of the FACC

is an audit committee financial expert.

Governance and Nomination Committee

The GNCis responsible for (1) overseeing corporate
governance practices within ABB, (2) nominating

candidates for the Board, the role of CEO and other

positions on the Executive Committee, and (3) suc

cession planning and employment matters relating
to the Board and the Executive Committee. The GNC

is also responsible for maintaining an orientation
program for new Board members and an ongoing
education program for existing Board members.

The GNC must comprise three or more indepen
dent directors. The Chairman of the Board (unless

he is already a member) and, upon invitation by the
committee's chairman, the CEO or other members
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Members of the Board (2016-2017 Board Term)

Year First election End of Non-

N.ime Nationality of Birth atAGM current term Executive Independent
Peter R. Voser CH 1958 2015 2017 Yes Yes

J; cob Wallenberg SE 1956 1999 2017 Yes Yes

Matti Alahuhta Fl 1952 2014 2017 Yes Yes

D.ivid Constable CA 1961 2015 2017 Yes Yes

Frederico Fleury Curado BR 1961 2016 2017 Yes Yes

Robyn Denholm US/AU 1963 2016 2017 Yes Yes

Louis R. Hughes US 1949 2003 2017 Yes Yes

David Meline CH/US 1957 2016 2017 Yes Yes

Satish Pai IN 1961 2016 2017 Yes Yes

Michel de Rosen FR 1951 2002 2017 Yes Yes

1 ik: Yeh CN 1948 2011 2017 Yes Yes

of the Executive Committee may participate n the
committee meetings, provided that any potential

conflict of interest is avoided and confidentiality of
the discussions is maintained.

Compensation Committee

The CC is responsible for compensation mat- ers

relating to the Board and the Executive Committee.

The CC must comprise three or more directo-s who

are elected by the shareholders. The Chairman of

the Board and, upon invitation by the committee's

chairman, the CEO or other members of the Exec

utive Committee may participate in the committee

meetings, provided that any potential conflict of
interest is avoided and confidentiality of the dis
cussions is maintained.

Board Membership

Board Composition

in proposing individuals to be elected to the Board,

:.he Board seeks to align the composition and skills

of the Board with the company's strategic needs,

ousiness portfolio, geographic reach and culture.

The Board must be diverse in all aspects inc uding

gender, nationalities, geographic/regional experi

ence and business experience. In addition, the av

erage tenure of the members of the Board should

be well balanced. The Board also considers t he

number of other mandates of each Board member

to ensure that he/she will have sufficient time to

dedicate to his/her role as an ABB board member.

Elections and Term of Office

The members of the Board of Directors and the

Chairman of the Board as well as the members

of the Compensation Committee are elected

by shareholders at the General Meeting of Share

holders for a term of office extending unti
completion of the next Ordinary General Meeting

of Shareholders. Members whose terms of office

have expired shall be immediately eligible f >r

re-election. Our Articles of Incorporation do not

provide for the retirement of directors based

on their age. However, an age limit for members of
the Board is set forth in the ABB Ltd Board Regula
tions &Corporate Governance Guidelines (although
waivers are possible and subject to Board discre
tion). If the office of the Chairman of the Board of

Directors or any position on the Compensation
Committee becomes vacant during a Board term,
the Board of Directors may appoint (shall appoint

in the case of the Chairman of the Board) another

individual from among its members to that position
for the remainder of that term. The Board of

Directors shall consist of no less than 7 and no

more than 13 members.

Members of the Board (2016-2017 Board Term)

td. Peter R.Voser has been a member
and chairman of ABB's Board of

^t«^^ Directors since April 2015. He is
a member of the boards of directors

of Roche Holdings Ltd (Switzerland), IBMCorpora

tion (U.S.) and Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited

(Singapore). He is also the chairman of the board

of Catalyst (U.S.), a non-profit organization. He was

the chief executive officer of Royal Dutch Shell pic

(The Netherlands) from 2009 until 2013. Mr. Voser

was born in 1958 and is a Swiss citizen.

. - Jacob Wallenberg has been a mem-

"j ber of ABB's Board of Directors since
Dune 1999 and Vice-Chairman since

^l ^ April 2015. He is the chairman of the
* board of InvestorAB (Sweden).He is

vice chairman of the boards of Telefonaktiebolaget

LM Ericsson AB, SAS AB, FAM AB and Patricia

Industries AB (all Sweden). He is also a member

of the boards of directors of the Knut and Alice

Wallenberg Foundation and the Stockholm School
of Economics (both Sweden) and vice-chairman

of the Swedish-American Chamber of Commerce

(U.S.). Mr.Wallenberg was born in 1956 and is

a Swedish citizen.
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Matti Alahuhta has been a mem

ber of ABB's Board of Directors

since April 2014. He is the chairman

of the boards of Outotec Corpo

ration and of DevCo Partners Oy
(both Finland). He is also a member of the boards

of directors of KONE Corporation (Finland) and

Volvo AB (Sweden). He was president and CEO of

KONE Corporation from 2006 until March 2014 and

in addition he served as its president in 2005. He

joined KONE Corporation after 26 years with Nokia

Corporation (Finland). Mr. Alahuhta was born in

1952 and is a Finnish citizen.

David Constable has been a

member of ABB's Board of Directors

since April 2015. He was the chief

executive officer of Sasol Limited

(South Africa) from 2011 until

Dune 2016 and in addition he was the president

from 2014 until June 2016. He joined Sasol
after more than 29 years with Fluor Corporation

(U.S.). He is a member of the boards of

directors of Rio Tinto pic (U.K.), Rio Tinto

Limited (Australia) and Anadarko Petroleum

Corporation (U.S.). Mr. Constable was born in

1961 and is a Canadian citizen.

Frederico Fleury Curado has

been a member of ABB's Board

of Directors since April 2016.

He is a member of the boards of

directors of lochpe-Maxion S.A.

(Brazil) and Transocean Ltd. (Switzerland). He was

the CEO of Embraer S.A. (Brazil) from 2007 until

Dune 2016. Mr. Curado was born in 1961 and is

a Brazilian citizen.

frm^ Robyn Denholm has been a mem-
ff» «.B ber of ABB's Board of Directors

since April 2016. As of Danuary 2017,

^', J^ she isthechief operations offi-
'^^ cer of Telstra Corporation Limited

(Australia). Previously, she was the chief finan

cial officer of Duniper Networks (U.S.) from 2007

to March 2016 and in addition she was the chief

operating officer from 2013 to March 2016. She is

a member of the board of directors of Tesla, Inc.

(U.S.). Ms. Denholm was born in 1963 and is a U.S.

and Australian citizen.

Louis R. Hughes has been a member

of ABB's Board of Directors since

May 2003. He is the chairman of the

board of InZero Systems (formerly

GBS Laboratories LLC) (U.S.). He is

also a member of the supervisory board of Akzo

Nobel N.V. (The Netherlands) and a member of the

board of directors of Nokia Corporation (Finland).

Mr. Hughes was born in 1949 and is a U.S. citizen.
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*B^ David Meline has been a member
\~ ~\ of ABB's Board of Directors since

April 2016. He is the chief finan-

•^A.,. *^ cial officer ofAmgen Inc. (U.S.). He
was the chief financial officer of

3M Company (U.S.) from 2008 to 2014. Prior to join

ing 3M, Mr. Meline worked for more than 20 years

for General Motors Company (U.S.). Mr. Meline was

born in 1957 and is a Swiss and U.S. citizen.

Satish Pai has been a member of

ABB's Board of Directors since April

2016. He is the managing director

and member of the board of di

rectors of Hindalco Industries Ltd.

(India). He joined Hindalco in 2013 after 28 years

with Schlumberger Limited (U.S.). Mr. Pai was born

in 1961 and is an Indian citizen.

Michel de Rosen has been a member

of ABB's Board of Directors since

March 2002. He is the chairman of

the board of Eutelsat Communica

tions (France) and until March 2016

was also the chief executive officer. He is a mem

ber of the boards of directors of Pharnext SAS and

Faurecia SARL (both France). Mr. de Rosen was

born in 1951 and is a French citizen.

Ying Yeh has been a member of ABB's

Board of Directors since April 2011.

She is a member of the board of

directors of Samsonite International

S.A. (Luxembourg). Ms. Yeh was born

in 1948 and is a Chinese citizen.

As of December 31, 2016, all Board members were

non-executive and independent directors and none

of ABB's Board members held any official functions

or political posts. Further information on ABB's

Board members can be found by clicking on the

ABB Board of Directors CV link which can be found

at www.abb.com/about/corporate-governance

4*

Board Meetings

The Board meets as frequently as needed but at least

four times per annual Board term. The Board has

meetings with Executive Committee members as

well as private meetings without them. Board meet

ings are convened by the chairman or upon request

by a director or the CEO. Documentation covering the

various items of the agenda for each Board meeting

is sent out in advance to each Board member in order

to allow each member time to study the covered mat

ters prior to the meetings. Further, Board members

are entitled to information concerning ABB's busi

ness and affairs. Decisions made at the Board meet

ings are recorded in written minutes of the meetings.
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2016

Pre Annual General Meeting 2016 Post Annual General Meeting 2016

Board

Conf.

Board

Conf.

Meetings and attendance Mtg. Call FACC GNC CC Mtg. Call FACC GNC CC

Average duration (hours) 7.5 1.0 3.7 1.5 1.5 8.0 1.0 3.5 1.0 1.5

Number of meetings 2 1 3 4 3 5 1 6 3 3

Meetings attended:

Peter R. Voser 2 I
— 4 — 5 1 — 3 —

Jacob Wallenberg 2 1 — 4 — 5 1 — 3 —

Roger Agnelli(1> 1 I 2 — — — — — — —

MattiAlahuhta 2 1 3 4 — 5 1 — 3 —

David Constable 2 1 — — 3 5 1 — — 3

Frederico FleuryCuradou) — — — — — 5 1 — — 3

Robyn Denholm'*' — — — — — 5 1 6 — —

Louis R. Hughes 2 1 3 — — 5 1 6 — —

David Me!ineH) — — — — — 5 1 6 — —

Satish Pa«BI — — — — — 5 1 6 — —

Michel de Rosen 2 1 — — 3 5 1 — — 3

Ying Yeh(J> 2 1 1
— 3 5 1

— — 3

Meetings and attendance

The table above shows the number of meetings
held during 2016 by the Board and its committees,
their average duration, as well as the attendance

of the individual Board members. The Board meet

ings shown include a strategic retreat attended by
the members of the Board and the EC.

Mandates of Board members

outside the ABB Group

No member of the Board may hold more than
ten additional mandates of which no more than

four may be in listed companies. Certain types
of mandates, such as those in our subsidiaries,

those in the same group of companies and those
in non-profit and charitable institutions, are

not subject to those limits. Additional details

can be found in Article 38 of ABB's Articles

of Incorporation.

Business Relationships between

ABB and its Board members

This section describes important business rela
tionships between ABB and its Board members, or

companies and organizations represented by them.
This determination has been made based on ABB

Ltd's Related PartyTransaction Policy. This policy is
contained in the ABB Ltd Board Regulations &Cor
porate Governance Guidelines.

Sasol Ltd (Sasol) is an important customer of ABB.

ABB supplies Sasol primarily with modular systems

through its Electrification Products division.

David Constable was president and chief executive

officer of Sasol and a member of its board of

directors through June 2016.

IBMCorporation (IBM) is an important supplier to

ABB. IBMsupplies ABB primarily with IT-related

hardware, software and services. Peter Voser is a

director of IBM.

ABB has an unsecured syndicated $2-billion revolv
ing credit facility. As of December 31,2016, SEB

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) (SEB) had
committed to approximately $74 million out of the
$2-billion total. Inaddition, ABB has regular bank
ing business with SEB. Jacob Wallenberg was the
vice chairman of SEB until March 2014.

After reviewing the level of ABB's business with

Sasol and the level of purchases from IBM, and
after reviewing the banking commitments of SEB,

the Board has determined that ABB's business

relationships with those companies are not unusual
in their nature or conditions and do not constitute

material business relationships. As a result, the
Board concluded that all members of the Board

are considered to be independent directors. This

determination was made in accordance with ABB

Ltd's Related Party Transaction Policy which was
prepared based on the Swiss Code of Best Practice

for Corporate Governance and the independence
criteria set forth in the corporate governance rules
of the New York Stock Exchange.
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Executive Committee

Composition of the Executive Committee

Ulrich Spiesshofer

CORPORATE OFFICERS

Eric Elzvik

Jean-Christophe Deslarzes
: i

Diane de Saint Victor

DIVISION PRESIDENTS

Tarak Mehta

Sami Atiya

Peter Terwiesch

Claudio Facchin

REGION PRESIDENTS

Bernhard Jucker

Frank Duggan
Asia. Middle East 8 Africa

Greg Scheu

Executive Committee

Responsibilities and

organization

The Board has delegated the executive manage

ment of ABB to the CEO. The CEO and under

his direction the other members of the Executive

Committee are responsible for ABB's overall

business and affairs and day-to-day management.

The CEO reports to the Board regularly, and

whenever extraordinary circumstances so require,

on the course of ABB's business and financial

performance and on all organizational and person

nel matters, transactions and other issues relevant

to the Group. Each member of the Executive

Committee is appointed and discharged by

the Board.

Members of the

Executive Committee

(at December 31, 2016)

Ulrich Spiesshofer was appointed

Chief Executive Officer in Septem

ber 2013 and has been a member of

the Executive Committee since

2005. From January 2010 to Septem

ber 2013, Mr. Spiesshofer was the Executive

Committee member responsible for the Discrete

Automation and Motion division. He joined ABB in

November 2005, as the Executive Committee

member responsible for Corporate Development.

From 2002 until he joined ABB, he was senior

partner and global head of operations practice at

Roland Berger AG (Switzerland). From 1991 to 2002,

he held various management positions with AT.

Kearney Ltd. and its affiliates. Mr. Spiesshofer was
born in 1964 and is a Swiss and German citizen.

I
Eric Elzvik was appointed Chief

Financial Officer and member of the

Executive Committee in February

W- 2013. From 2010 to 2013, Mr. Elzvik
was the Chief Financial Officer of

ABB's Discrete Automation and Motion division. He

joined ABB in 1984 and has held a variety of other
leadership roles in Sweden, Singapore and Switzer

land, including head of Corporate Development,

and head of Mergers &Acquisitions and New

Ventures. Mr. Elzvik was born in 1960 and is a Swiss

and Swedish citizen.

t Jean-Christophe Deslarzes was

appointed Chief Human Resources

Officer and member of the Execu-

^^ tive Committee in November 2013.
In April 2015, he was elected to the

board of directors of the Adecco Group (Switzer

land). From 2010 through 2013, he was the Chief

Human Resources and Organization Officer of the

Carrefour Group (France). From 2008 to 2010 he

was President and CEO of the Downstream

Aluminum Businesses of Rio Tinto (Canada). He

was Senior Vice President Human Resources of

Alcan Inc. (Canada) from 2006 to 2008 and in

addition he co-led the integration of Rio Tinto and

Alcan from 2007 to 2008. From 1994 to 2006, he

held various human resources and management
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roles with Alcan Inc. Mr. Deslarzes was born in 1963

and is a Swiss citizen.

Diane de Saint Victor was ap Doint-

ed General Counsel, Company

Secretary and member of the

Executive Committee in January

2007. In March 2013, she was

appointed as a non-executive director of Bai clays

pic and Barclays Bank pic (both U.K.). From i!004

to 2006, she was general counsel of the Airbus

Group (France/Germany). From 2003 to 2004, she

was general counsel of SCA Hygiene Products

(Germany). From 1993 to 2003, she held various

legal positions with Honeywell Internationa!
(France/Belgium). From 1988 to 1993, she held

various legal positions with General Electric

(U.S.). Ms. de Saint Victor was born in 1955 and is

a French citizen.

Tarak Mehta was appointed

President of the Electrification

Products division effective January

2016 and has been a member

of the Executive Committee since

October 2010. From October 2010 through

December 2015, he was President of the Low

Voltage Products division. From 2007 to 2010,

ie was head of ABB's transformers business.

Between 1998 and 2006, he held several manage

ment positions with ABB. Mr. Mehta was born in

1966 and is a U.S. citizen.

Sami Atiya was appointed President

of the Robotics and Motion Division

a member of the Executive Commit

tee since June 2016. From June to

December 2016 he was President of the Discrete

Automation and Motion division. Prior to jo ning
ABB, Mr. Atiya held senior roles at Siemens in

Germany from 1997 to 2015, including CEO of the
Mobility and Logistics division in the Infrasi ructure

and Cities Sector from 2011. Mr. Atiya was born in

1964 and is a German citizen.

Peter Terwiesch was appoin.ed

President of the Industrial Automa

tion division effective Januay 2017

and has been a member of the

Executive Committee since :anuary

2015. He is a member of the board of direciors

of Metall Zug AG (Switzerland). He was the

President of the Process Automation division from

2015 to 2016. From 2011 to 2014. he was the head

of ABB's Central Europe region. He was ABEi's
Chief Technology Officer from 2005 to 201:. From

1994 to 2005, he held several positions with ABB.

Mr. Terwiesch was born in 1966 and is a Swss and

German citizen.
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Claudio Facchin was appointed

L _ I President of the Power Grids
| division effective January 2016 and

'̂*—' ^ has been a member oftheExecutive
Committee since December 2013.

From December 2013 through December 2015, he

was President of the Power Systems division. From

2010 to 2013, Mr. Facchin was head of ABB's North

Asia region. From 2004 to 2009, Mr. Facchin was

the head of ABB's substations global business unit

and from 1995 to 2004, he held various manage

ment roles with ABB. Mr. Facchin was born in 1965

and is an Italian citizen.

Bernhard Jucker was appointed

President of the Europe region and

Chairman of Divisional Transfor-

^ mation Team effective January 2016
and has been a member of the

Executive Committee since January 2006. He is a

member of the Board of directors of Rieter Holding
Ltd. (Switzerland). From 2006 through 2015, he was

President of the Power Products division. From

2003 to 2005, he was ABB's country manager for

Germany. From 1980 to 2003, he held various

positions in ABB. Mr. Jucker was born in 1954 and is

a Swiss citizen.

Frank Duggan was appointed

President of the Asia, Middle East

and Africa region in January 2015

^h andhasbeena member of the
Executive Committee since 2011.

From 2011 to 2014, Mr. Duggan was the head of

Global Markets. From 2008 to 2014, he was also

ABB's region manager for India, Middle East and

Africa. From 2008 to 2011, he was ABB's country
manager for the United Arab Emirates. Between

1986 and 2008, he held several management

positions with ABB. Mr. Duggan was born in 1959

and is an Irish citizen.

P
Greg Scheu was appointed Presi

dent of the Americas region as well

as Head of Group Service and

w Business Integration in January 2015

and has been a member of the

Executive Committee since 2012. From 2013 to

2014, he was Head of Business Integration, Group

Service and North America. From 2012 to 2013, he

was Head of Marketing and Customer Solutions.

Mr. Scheu, a former executive of Rockwell Interna

tional, joined ABB in 2001 and was responsible for

the integration of both Baldor Electric Co. and of

Thomas & Betts into ABB. Mr. Scheu was born in

1961 and is a U.S. citizen.

In October 2016, it was announced that Mr. Elzvik

will leave ABBin 2017 after facilitating the hando

ver to his successor Timo lhamuotila who will be



joining ABB from Nokia Corporation as CFO effec

tive April 1, 2017.

Further information about the members of the

Executive Committee can be found by clicking on

the Executive Committee CV link at www.abb.com/

about/corporate-governance

Mandates of EC members

outside the ABB Group

No member of the EC may hold more than five

additional mandates of which no more than one

may be in a listed company. Certain types of

mandates, such as those in our subsidiaries, those

in the same group of companies and those in

non-profit and charitable institutions, are not
subject to those limits. Additional details can be

found in Article 38 of ABB's Articles of Incorporation.

Business Relationships between

ABB and its EC members

This section describes important business

relationships between ABB and its EC members, or

companies and organizations represented by

Shares

Share capital of ABB

At December 31, 2016, ABB's ordinary share cap

ital (including treasury shares) as registered

with the Commercial Register amounted to

CHF 265,769,191.68, divided into 2,214,743,264

fully paid registered shares with a par value of

CHF 0.12 per share.

ABB Ltd's shares are listed on the SIX Swiss

Exchange, the NASDAQ OMX Stockholm Exchange

and the New York Stock Exchange (where its

shares are traded in the form of American depos

itary shares (ADS) - each ADS representing one

registered ABB share). At December 31, 2016, ABB

Ltd had a market capitalization based on outstand

ing shares (total number of outstanding shares:

2,138,706,835) was approximately CHF 46 billion

($45 billion, SEK 410 billion). The only consolidated

subsidiary in the ABB Group with listed shares is
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them. This determination has been made based

on ABB Ltd's Related Party Transaction Policy. This

policy is contained in the ABB Ltd Board Regula

tions & Corporate Governance Guidelines.

Adecco S.A. (Adecco) is an important supplier to

ABB. Adecco primarily supplies ABB with tempo

rary personnel services. Jean-Christophe Deslarzes

is a director of Adecco.

ABB has an unsecured syndicated $2-billion

revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2016,

Barclays Bank pic (Barclays Bank) had committed
to approximately $74 million out of the $2-billion

total. In addition, ABB has regular banking business

with Barclays. Diane de Saint Victor is a director of

Barclays Bank and Barclays pic.

After reviewing the level of purchases from Adecco,

and after reviewing the banking commitments of

Barclays, the Board has determined that ABB's

business relationships with those companies are

not unusual in their nature or conditions and do

not constitute material business relationships. This

determination was made in accordance with ABB

Ltd's Related Party Transaction Policy which was

prepared based on the Swiss Code of Best Practice

for Corporate Governance and the independence

criteria set forth in the corporate governance rules

of the New York Stock Exchange.

ABB India Limited, Bangalore, India, which is listed

on the BSE Ltd. (Bombay Stock Exchange) and the

National Stock Exchange of India. On December

31, 2016, ABB Ltd, Switzerland, directly or indirectly

owned 75 percent of ABB India Limited, Bangalore,

India, which at that time had a market capitaliza

tion of approximately INR 220 billion.

Share repurchases

and cancellation

Under the share buyback program announced

in September 2014, ABB repurchased a total of

146,595,000 shares for cancellation. At ABB's

General Meeting of Shareholders in 2016, the

shareholders approved the cancellation of

100 million shares. This was completed in July

2016 after the required waiting period. As a result
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Stock exchange listings (At December 31,2016)

Stock exchange Security Ticker symbol ISIN code

SIX Swiss Exchange

NASDAQ OMX Stockholm Exchange

New York Stock Exchange

BSE Ltd. (Bombay Stock Exchange)

National Stock Exchange of India

ABB Ltd, Zurich, share ABBN CH0012221716

ABB Ltd, Zurich, share ABB CH0012221716

ABB Ltd, Zurich, ADS ABB US0003752047

ABB India Limited, Bangalore, share ABB* INE117A01022

ABB India Limited, Bangalore, share ABB INE117A01022

of the cancellation, the total number of ABB

Ltd's issued shares is 2,214,743,264. ABB intends

to ask the shareholders at the General Meeting
of Shareholders in 2017 to approve the cancellation
of the remaining 46,595,000 shares that were
repurchased. Further information can be found at

www.abb.com/investorrelations

Changes to the ordinary

share capital

In 2016, ABBpaid its dividend relating to the year
2015 by way of a nominal value reduction in the

par value of its shares from CHF 0.86 to CHF 0.12.

Corresponding adjustments were made to the par
value of ABB's contingent and authorized shares.
In 2015, ABBpaid a portion of its dividend relating
to the year 2014 by way of a nominal value reduc
tion in the par value of its shares from CHF 1.03 to

CHF 0.86. Corresponding adjustments were made
to the par value of ABB's contingent and autho
rized shares. Except as described above, there

were no changes to ABB's ordinary share capital
during 2016,2015 and 2014.

Convertible bonds and options

ABB does not have any bonds outstanding that are
convertible into ABB shares. For information about

options on shares issued by ABB, please refer to
"Note 19 Stockholders' equity" to ABB'sConsolidated
Financial Statements contained in the "Financial re

view of the ABBGroup" section of this Annual Report.

Contingent share capital

At December 31,2016, ABB's share capital
may be increased by an amount not to exceed
CHF 24,000,000 through the issuance of up
to 200,000,000 fullypaid registered shares with
a par value of CHF0.12 per share through
the exercise of conversion rights and/or warrants
granted in connection with the issuance on

national or international capital markets of
newly or already issued bonds or other financial

market instruments.

At December 31,2016, ABB's share capital may be
increased by an amount not to exceed CHF1,200,000
through the issuance of up to 10,000,000 fully paid

registered shares with a par value of CHF 0.12 per
share through the exercise of warrant rights granted
to its shareholders. The Board may grant warrant
rights not taken up by shareholders for other
purposes in the interest of ABB.

The pre-emptive rights of the shareholders are
excluded in connection with the issuance of con

vertible or warrant-bearing bonds or other finan
cial market instruments or the grant of warrant

rights. The then current owners of conversion rights

and/or warrants will be entitled to subscribe for

new shares. The conditions of the conversion rights

and/or warrants will be determined by the Board.

The acquisition of shares through the exercise
of warrants and each subsequent transfer of the

shares will be subject to the restrictions of ABB's
Articles of Incorporation (see "Limitations on

transferability of shares and nominee registration"
in "Shareholders" section below).

In connection with the issuance of convertible

or warrant-bearing bonds or other financial market

instruments, the Board is authorized to restrict

or deny the advance subscription rights of share
holders if such bonds or other financial market

instruments are for the purpose of financing or
refinancing the acquisition of an enterprise, parts
of an enterprise, participations or new investments

or an issuance on national or international capital

markets. If the Board denies advance subscription

rights, the convertible or warrant-bearing bonds

or other financial market instruments will be issued

at the relevant market conditions and the new

shares will be issued pursuant to the relevant market

conditions taking into account the share price
and/or other comparable instruments having
a market price. Conversion rights may be exercised
during a maximum ten-year period, and warrants
may be exercised during a maximum seven-year
period, in each case from the date of the respective

issuance. The advance subscription rights of the
shareholders may be granted indirectly.

At December 31,2016, ABB'sshare capital may be
increased by an amount not to exceed CHF11,284,656



through the issuance of up to 94,038,800 fully paid
shares with a par value of CHF 0.12 per share to

employees. The pre-emptive and advance subscrip

tion rights of ABB's shareholders are excluded. The

shares or rights to subscribe for shares will be is

sued to employees pursuant to one or more regula

tions to be issued by the Board, taking into account

performance, functions, level of responsibility and

profitability criteria. ABB may issue shares or sub

scription rights to employees at a price lower than

that quoted on a stock exchange. The acquisition of

shares within the context of employee share own

ership and each subsequent transfer of the shares

will be subject to the restrictions of ABB's Articles of
Incorporation (see "Limitations on transferability of

shares and nominee registration" in "Shareholders"

section below).

Authorized share capital

At December 31, 2016, ABB had an authorized share

capital in the amount of up to CHF 24,000,000

through the issuance of up to 200,000,000 fully

paid registered shares with a par value of CHF 0.12

each, which is valid through April 29, 2017. The

Board is authorized to determine the date of issue

of new shares, the issue price, the type of payment,

the conditions for the exercise of pre-emptive

rights and the beginning date for dividend

entitlement. In this regard, the Board may issue

new shares by means of a firm underwriting

through a banking institution, a syndicate or

another third party with a subsequent offer of

these shares to the shareholders. The Board may

permit pre-emptive rights that have not been

exercised by shareholders to expire or it may place

these rights and/or shares as to which pre-emptive

rights have been granted but not exercised at

market conditions or use them for other purposes

in the interest of the company. Furthermore, the

Board is authorized to restrict or deny the

pre-emptive rights of shareholders and allocate

such rights to third parties if the shares are used

Zurich
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(1) for the acquisition of an enterprise, parts of an

enterprise, or participations, or for new invest

ments, or in case of a share placement, for the

financing or refinancing of such transactions; or (2)

for the purpose of broadening the shareholder

constituency in connection with a listing of shares

on domestic or foreign stock exchanges. The

subscription and the acquisition of the new shares,

as well as each subsequent transfer of the shares,

will be subject to the restrictions of ABB's Articles

of Incorporation.

Share Developments

ABB Ltd share price trend during 2016

During 2016, the price of ABB Ltd shares listed on

the SIX Swiss Exchange increased 20 percent, while

the Swiss Performance Index decreased 1 percent.

The price of ABB Ltd shares on NASDAQ OMX

Stockholm increased 26 percent, compared to the

OMX 30 Index, which increased 5 percent. The price

of ABB Ltd American Depositary Shares traded on

the New York Stock Exchange increased 19 percent

compared to the Dow Jones Industrial Index, which

increased 13 percent.

CHF
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SIX Swiss Exchange
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22.49
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22.88

16.06

21.07
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Dividends

With respect to the year ended December 3:., 2016,

ABB Ltd's Board of Directors has proposed Io dis

tribute a dividend to shareholders in the arrount

of CHF 0.76 per share. This is subject to ape roval

by shareholders at ABB Ltd's 2017 Annual General

Meeting. The proposal is in line with the company's

dividend policy to pay a steadily rising, sustainable

dividend overtime.

Key data

Dividend per share (CHF)

Par value per share (CHF)

Votes per share

Basic earnings per share (USD)'*'

Total ABBstockholders' equity per share (USD)1"

Cash flow from operations per share (USD)"'

Dividend payout ratio (%)'•"

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding (in millions)

2016

0.76"»

0.12

1

0.88

6.26

1.79

84%

2,151

2015 2014

0.74 0.72

0.86 1.03

1 1

0.87 1.13

6.61 7.20

1.72 1.68

85% 64%

2,226 2,288



Shareholders

Shareholder structure

As of December 31,2016, the total number of

shareholders directly registered with ABB Ltd

was approximately 142,000 and another 198,000

shareholders held shares indirectly through

nominees. In total as of that date, ABBhad approxi

mately 340,000 shareholders.

Significant shareholders

Investor AB, Sweden, held 232,165,142 ABB shares

as of December 31,2016. This holding represents

approximately 10.48 percent of ABB's total share

capital and voting rights as registered in the

Commercial Register on December 31,2016. The
number of shares held by Investor ABdoes not

include shares held by Jacob Wallenberg, the

chairman of Investor AB and a director of ABB,

in his individual capacity.

Cevian Capital IIGP Limited, Channel Islands, dis

closed that as per February 23,2017, on behalf of
its general partners, it held 115,868,333 ABBshares.
This holding represents approximately 5.23 percent

of ABB's total share capital and voting rights as

registered in the Commercial Register on Decem

ber 31,2016.

BlackRock Inc., New York, U.S., disclosed that as

per July 25,2011, it, together with its direct and
indirect subsidiaries, held 69,702,100 ABB shares.

This holding represents 3.15 percent of ABB's total
share capital and voting rights as registered in

the Commercial Register on December 31,2016.

To the best of ABB's knowledge, no other share
holder held 3 percent or more of ABB's total share
capital and voting rights as registered in the Com

mercial Register on December 31,2016.

ABB Ltd has no cross shareholdings in excess

of 5 percent of capital, or voting rights with any

other company.

Under ABB's Articles of Incorporation, each regis

tered share represents one vote. Significant share
holders do not have different voting rights. To our

knowledge, we are not directly or indirectly owned
or controlled by any government or by any other
corporation or person.
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Shareholders' rights

Shareholders have the right to receive dividends,

to vote and to execute such other rights as granted

under Swiss law and ABB's Articles of Incorporation.

Right to vote

ABBhas one class of shares and each registered

share carries one vote at the general meeting.

Voting rights may be exercised only after a share
holder has been registered in the share register of
ABBas a shareholder with the right to vote, or with
Euroclear Sweden AB (Euroclear), which maintains

a subregister of the share register of ABB.

A shareholder may be represented at the Annual
General Meeting by its legal representative, by
another shareholder with the right to vote or the

independent proxy elected by the shareholders
(unabhangiger Stimmrechtsvertreter). If the

Company does not have an independent proxy,
the Board of Directors shall appoint the indepen

dent proxy for the next General Meeting of Share
holders. Allshares held by one shareholder may
be represented by one representative only.

For practical reasons shareholders must be regis
tered in the share register no later than 6 busi
ness days before the general meeting in order to
be entitled to vote. Except for the cases described

under section "Limitations on transferability of
shares and nominee registration" below, there
are no voting rights restrictions limiting ABB's
shareholders' rights.

Powers of General Meetings

The Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders shall
be held each year within six months after the close
of the fiscal year of the Company; the business re
port, the compensation report and the Auditors' re
ports must be made available for inspection by the
shareholders at the place of incorporation of the
Company by no later than twenty days prior to the
meeting. Each shareholder is entitled to request
immediate delivery of a copy of these documents.

The following powers must be vested exclusively in
the General Meeting of Shareholders:
• Adoption and amendment of the Articles of

Incorporation

• Election of the members of the Board of Direc

tors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the

members of the Compensation Committee, the
Auditors and the independent proxy
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• Approval of the annual management report and
consolidated financial statements

• Approval of the annual financial statements and

decision on the allocation of profits shown on

the balance sheet, in particular with regard to
dividends

• Approval of the maximum compensation of

the Board of Directors and of the Executive

Committee pursuant to Article 34 of the Articles

of Incorporation

- Granting discharge to the members of the
Board of Directors and the persons entrusted
with management

• Passing resolutions as to all matters reserved to

the authority of the General Meeting by law or
under the Articles of Incorporation or that are

submitted to the General Meeting by the Board
of Directors, subject to article 716a of the Swiss
Code of Obligations.

Resolutions and elections at General Meetings
Shareholders' resolutions at general meetings are
approved with an absolute majority of the votes
represented at the meeting, except for those mat

ters described in article 704 of the Swiss Code of

Obligations and for resolutions with respect to
restrictions on the exercise of the right to vote and
the removal of such restrictions, which all require
the approval of two-thirds of the votes represented
at the meeting.

At December 31,2016, shareholders representing
shares of a par value totaling at least CHF 48,000
may require items to be included in the agenda
of a general meeting. Any such request must be
made in writing at least 40 days prior to the date
of the general meeting and specify the items and
the motions of such shareholder(s).

ABB's Articles of Incorporation do not contain pro
visions on the convocation of the general meeting
of shareholders that differ from the applicable
legal provisions.

Shareholders' dividend rights

The unconsolidated statutory financial statements
of ABBLtd are prepared in accordance with Swiss
law. Based on these financial statements, divi

dends may be paid only if ABBLtd has sufficient
distributable profits from previous years or
sufficient free reserves to allow the distribution of

a dividend. Swiss law requires that ABBLtd retain
at least 5 percent of its annual net profits as legal
reserves until these reserves amount to at least

20 percent of ABB Ltd's share capital. Anynet
profits remaining in excess of those reserves are
at the disposal of the shareholders' meeting.

Under Swiss law, ABBLtd may only pay out a divi
dend if it has been proposed by a shareholder or
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the Board of Directors and approved at a general

meeting of shareholders, and the auditors con
firm that the dividend conforms to statutory law
and ABB's Articles of Incorporation. In practice, the

shareholders' meeting usually approves dividends
as proposed by the Board of Directors, if the Board

of Directors' proposal is confirmed by the statutory
auditors as compliant with Swiss law and ABB's
Articles of Incorporation.

Dividends are usually due and payable no earlier
than two trading days after the shareholders' res

olution and the ex-date for dividends is normally
two trading days after the shareholders' resolution
approving the dividend. Dividends are paid out to

the holders that are registered on the record date.
Euroclear administers the payment of those shares
registered with it. Under Swiss law, dividends

not collected within five years after the due date
accrue to ABB Ltd and are allocated to its other

reserves. As ABB Ltd pays cash dividends, if any, in

Swiss francs (subject to the exception for certain
shareholders in Sweden described below), ex

change rate fluctuations will affect the U.S. dollar
amounts received by holders of ADSs upon conver
sion of those cash dividends by Citibank, N.A., the
depositary, in accordance with the Amended and

Restated Deposit Agreement dated May 7,2001.

For shareholders who are residents of Sweden, ABB

has established a dividend access facility (for up
to 600,004,716 shares). With respect to any annual

dividend payment for which this facility is made
available, shareholders who register with Euroclear
may elect to receive the dividend from ABB Norden

Holding ABin Swedish krona (in an amount equiv

alent to the dividend paid in Swiss francs) without
deduction of Swiss withholding tax. For further
information on the dividend access facility, see ABB
Ltd's Articles of Incorporation.

Limitations on transferability of shares and

nominee registration

ABB may decline a registration with voting rights if
a shareholder does not declare that it has acquired

the shares in its own name and for its own account.

If the shareholder refuses to make such declara

tion, it will be registered as a shareholder without
voting rights. A person failing to expressly declare
in its registration/application that it holds the

shares for its own account (a nominee), will be en

tered in the share register with voting rights, pro
vided that such nominee has entered into an agree
ment with ABBconcerning its status, and further
provided that the nominee is subject to recognized
bank or financial market supervision. In special
cases the Board may grant exemptions. There were
no exemptions granted in 2016. The limitation on
the transferability of shares may be removed by an

amendment of ABB's Articles of Incorporation by



a shareholders' resolution requiring two-thirds of

the votes represented at the meeting.

No restriction on trading of shares

No restrictions are imposed on the transferability

of ABB shares. The registration of shareholders in

the ABBShare register, Euroclear and the ADS reg

ister kept by Citibank does not affect transferabil

ity of ABBshares or ADSs. Registered ABBshare
holders or ADR holders may therefore purchase or

sell their ABB shares or ADRs at any time, including
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before a General Meeting regardless of the record
date. The record date serves only to determine the

right to vote at a General Meeting.

Duty to make a public tender offer

ABB's Articles of Incorporation do not contain any

provisions raising the threshold (opting up) or
waiving the duty (opting out) to make a public ten
der offer pursuant to article 32 of the Swiss Stock

Exchange and Securities Trading Act.

Independent External Auditors

Duration of the mandate and

term of office of the auditor

Ernst &Young are the auditors of ABB's statuto
ry and consolidated financial statements. Ernst
&Young assumed the sole auditing mandate of

the consolidated financial statements of the ABB

Group beginning in the year ended December 31,

2001 (having previously been joint auditors since
1994). The auditor in charge and responsible for
the mandate, Leslie Clifford, began serving in this

function in respect of the financial year ended

December 31, 2013. Pursuant to the Articles of In

corporation, the term of office of ABB's auditors is

one year.

Information to the

Board and the Audit and

Compliance Committee

Supervisory and control instruments

vis-a-vis the auditors

The FACCprepares proposals to the Board for

the appointment and removal of the auditors. The

FACCis also responsible for supervising the

auditors to ensure their qualifications, indepen

dence and performance. It meets regularly with

the auditors, at least four times each calendar year,

to obtain reports about the results of their audit

procedures. The FACCreports the material elements

of its supervision of the auditors to the Board.

Audit and additional fees

paid to the auditor

The audit fees charged by Ernst &Young for the
legally prescribed audit amounted to $24.9 million
in 2016. Audit services are defined as the standard

audit work performed each fiscal year necessary

to allow the auditors to issue an opinion on the

consolidated financial statements of ABB and to

issue an opinion on the local statutory financial

statements.

This classification may also include services that

can be provided only by the auditors, such as

pre-issuance reviews of quarterly financial results
and comfort letters delivered to underwriters in

connection with debt and equity offerings.

In addition, Ernst &Young charged $4.6 million for
non-audit services performed during 2016. Non-
audit services include primarily accounting consul
tations, audits of pension and benefit plans,

accounting advisory services, other attest services

related to financial reporting that are not required

by statute or regulation, income tax and indirect
tax compliance services and tax advisory services.
In accordance with the requirements of the U.S.
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and rules issued by
the SEC, ABBhas, on a global basis, a process for
the review and pre-approval of audit and non-
audit services to be performed by Ernst &Young.
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Other governance information

ABB Group organizational

structure

ABB Ltd is the ultimate parent company of the ABB
Group. Its sole shareholding is in ABB Asea Brown

Boveri Ltd which directly or indirectly owns the
other companies in the ABB Group. The table in the

appendix to this Corporate governance report

sets forth, as of December 31,2016, the name,

place of incorporation, ownership interest and

share capital of the significant direct and indirect
subsidiaries of ABB Ltd, Switzerland. ABB's

operational group structure is described in the

"Financial review of ABB Group" section of this

Annual Report under "Operating and financial

review and prospects - Organizational structure".

Management contracts

There are no management contracts between ABB

and companies or natural persons not belonging
to the ABB Group.

Change of control clauses

Board members, Executive Committee mem

bers, and other members of senior management

do not receive any special benefits in the event

of a change of control. However, the conditional
grants under the Long Term Incentive Plan and

the Management Incentive Plan may be subject
to accelerated vesting in the event of a change
of control.

Employee participation

programs

In order to align its employees' interests with
the business goals and financial results of

the company, ABB operates a number of incentive

plans, linked to ABB's shares, such as the

Employee Share Acquisition Plan, the Manage
ment Incentive Plan and the Long Term Incentive

Plan. For a more detailed description of these
incentive plans, please refer to "Note 18 Share-

based payment arrangements" to ABB's Consoli

dated Financial Statements contained in the

"Financial review of ABB Group" section of this
Annual Report.

ABB's policy on tax

ABB acts as a responsible global corporate

tax citizen in compliance with applicable tax law

and regulations. It is ABB's policy to provide
transparent and comprehensive information to tax

administrations in order to facilitate their under

standing of the tax-related decisions taken by ABB.

Further information regarding our tax policy can

be accessed at www.abb.com/sustainability

Governance differences

from NYSE Standards

According to the New York Stock Exchange's cor

porate governance standards (the Standards), ABB

is required to disclose significant ways in which
its corporate governance practices differ from the

Standards. ABB has reviewed the Standards and

concluded that its corporate governance practices

are generally consistent with the Standards, with

the following significant exceptions:
• Swiss law requires that the external auditors be

elected by the shareholders at the Annual General

Meeting rather than by the audit committee or

the board of directors.

• The Standards require that all equity compen

sation plans and material revisions thereto
be approved by the shareholders. Consistent
with Swiss law such matters are decided by our

Board. However, the shareholders decide about

the creation of new share capital that can be

used in connection with equity compensation

plans.

• Swiss law requires that the members of the com

pensation committee are elected by the share

holders rather than appointed by our Board.

• Swiss law requires shareholders to approve the

maximum aggregate Board compensation and
the maximum aggregate Executive Committee
compensation.

Information policy

ABB, as a publicly traded company, is committed

to communicating in a timely and consistent way
to shareholders, potential investors, financial

analysts, customers, suppliers, the media and

other interested parties. ABB is required to
disseminate material information pertaining to its
businesses in a manner that complies with its



obligations under the rules of the stock exchanges
where its shares are listed and traded.

ABB publishes an annual report that provides

audited financial statements and information

about ABB including our business results, strategy,

products and services, corporate governance and

executive compensation. ABBalso submits an
annual report on Form 20-F to the SEC. In addition,
ABBpublishes its results on a quarterly basis as

press releases, distributed pursuant to the rules

and regulations of the stock exchanges on which
its shares are listed and traded. Press releases

relating to financial results and material events
are also filed with the SEC on Form 6-K. An archive

containing Annual Reports, Form 20-F reports,

quarterly results releases and related presentations
can be found in the "Financial results and presenta

tions" section at www.abb.com/investorrelations.

The quarterly results press releases contain

unaudited financial information prepared in accor

dance with or reconciled to U.S. GAAP. To subscribe

to important press releases, please click on the

"Contacts and Services" and choose "Subscribe to

updates" at www.abb.com/investorrelations. Ad

hoc notices can also be found in the press releases

section at www.abb.com/news

ABB's official means of communication is the Swiss

Official Gazette of Commerce (www.shab.ch). The

invitation to the company's Annual General

Meeting is sent to registered shareholders by mail.

Inquiries may also be made to ABB Investor

Relations:

Affolternstrasse 44

CH-8050 Zurich, Switzerland

Telephone: +4143 317 7111

Fax: +4144 3119817

E-mail: investorrelations@ch.abb.com

ABB's website is: www.abb.com

Further information on

corporate governance

The list below contains references to additional

information concerning the corporate governance
of ABB, which can be accessed at www.abb.com/

about/corporate-governance

• Articles of Incorporation

• ABB Ltd Board Regulations & Corporate

Governance Guidelines

• Regulations of the Finance, Audit and
Compliance Committee

• Regulations of the Governance and Nomination

Committee

• Regulations of the Compensation Committee
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Related Party Transaction Policy

ABB Code of Conduct

Addendum to the ABB Code of Conduct for

Members of the Board of Directors and the

Executive Committee

Comparison of ABB's corporate governance

practices to the New York Stock Exchange rules

Summary of differences of shareholder rights
under Swedish and Swiss Law applicable to ABB

CVs of the Board members

CVs of the Executive Committee members
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Appendix - ABB Ltd's significant subsidiaries

Company name/location

SARPI - Societe Algerienne pour la realisation de projets indu-
striels, Alger

ABB S.A., Buenos Aires

ABB Australia Pty Limited, Moorebank, NSW

ABB Group Investment Management Pty. Ltd., Moorebank, NSW

ABB N.V., Zaventem

ABB Ltda., Osasco

ABB Bulgaria E000, Sofia

ABB Canada Holding Limited Partnership, Saint-Laurent, Quebec

ABB Inc., Saint-Laurent, Quebec

Thomas & Betts Limited, Saint-Jean-sur-Richelieu, Quebec

ABB Beijing Drive Systems Co. Ltd., Beijing

ABB (China) Ltd., Beijing

ABB Engineering (Shanghai) Ltd., Shanghai

ABB High Voltage Switchgear Co. Ltd., Beijing

ABB Xiamen Low Voltage Equipment Co. Ltd., Xiamen

ABB Xiamen Switchgear Co. Ltd., Xiamen

ABB Xinhui Low Voltage Switchgear Co. Ltd., Xinhui

ABB s.r.o., Prague

ABBA/S.Skovlunde

ABB for Electrical Industries (ABB ARAB) S.A.E., Cairo

Asea Brown Boveri S.A.E., Cairo

ABBAS, Juri

ABB Oy, Helsinki

ABB France, Cergy Pontoise

ABB S.A., Cergy Pontoise

ABB AG, Mannheim

ABB Automation GmbH, Mannheim

ABB Automation Products GmbH, Ladenburg

ABB Beteiligungs- und Verwaltungsges. mbH, Mannheim

ABB Stotz-Kontakt GmbH, Heidelberg

BuschOaeger Elektro GmbH, Ludenscheid

ABB Holding Ltd., Hong Kong

ABB (Hong Kong) Ltd., Hong Kong

ABB Global Industries and Services Private Limited, Bangalore

ABB India Limited, Bangalore

ABB S.p.A.. Milan

Power-One Italy S.p.A., Terranuova Bracciolini (AR)

ABB K.K.,Tokyo

ABB Ltd., Seoul

ABB Holdings Sdn. Bhd., Subang Jaya

ABB Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Subang Jaya

ABB Mexico S.A. de C.V., San Luis Potosi SLP

Asea Brown Boveri S.A. de C.V., San Luis Potosi SLP

ABB BY. Rotterdam

ABB Capital B.V., Rotterdam

ABB Finance B.V., Rotterdam

ABB Holdings B.V., Rotterdam

ABB Investments B.V., Rotterdam

ABBAS, Billingstad

ABB Holding AS, Billingstad

ABB Sp. z o.o., Warsaw

ABB Ltd., Moscow

ABB Contracting Company Ltd., Riyadh

ABB Electrical Industries Ltd., Riyadh

ABB Holdings Pte. Ltd., Singapore

ABB interest Share capital
Country % in thousands Currency

Algeria 50.00 814,500 DZD

Argentina 100.00 278,860 ARS

Australia 100.00 131,218 AUD

Australia 100.00 355,312 AUD

Belgium 100.00 13.290 EUR

Brazil 100.00 689,793 BRL

Bulgaria 100.00 65,110 BGN

Canada 100.00 — CAD

Canada 100.00 (i) CAD

Canada 100.00 (i) CAD

China 90.00 5,000 USD

China 100.00 310,000 USD

China 100.00 40,000 USD

China 60.00 11,400 USD

China 100.00 15,800 USD

China 64.30 23,500 USD

China 90.00 6,200 USD

Czech Republic 100.00 400,000 CZK

Denmark 100.00 100,000 DKK

Egypt 100.00 353,479 EGP

Egypt 100.00 166,000 USD

Estonia 100.00 1,663 EUR

Finland 100.00 10,003 EUR

France 99.83 25,778 EUR

France 100.00 45,921 EUR

Germany 100.00 167500 EUR

Germany 100.00 15,000 EUR

Germany 100.00 10,620 EUR

Germany 100.00 61,355 EUR

Germany 100.00 7,500 EUR

Germany 100.00 1,535 EUR

Hong Kong 100.00 27,887 HKD

Hong Kong 100.00 20,000 HKD

India 100.00 408,930 INR

India 75.00 423,817 INR

Italy 100.00 110,000 EUR

Italy 100.00 22,000 EUR

Japan 100.00 1,000,000 3PY

Korea, Republic of 100.00 18,670,000 KRW

Malaysia 100.00 4,490 MYR

Malaysia 100.00 3,500 MYR

Mexico 100.00 633,368 MXN

Mexico 100.00 667,686 MXN

Netherlands 100.00 9,200 EUR

Netherlands 100.00 1,000 USD

Netherlands 100.00 20 EUR

Netherlands 100.00 119 EUR

Netherlands 100.00 100 EUR

Norway 100.00 250,000 NOK

Norway 100.00 240,000 NOK

Poland 99.92 350,656 PLN

Russian Federation 100.00 5,686 RUB

Saudi Arabia 65.00 40,000 SAR

Saudi Arabia 65.00 168,750 SAR

Singapore 100.00 32,797 SGD



Company name/location

ABB Pte. Ltd., Singapore

ABB Holdings (Pty) Ltd., Longmeadow

ABB South Africa (Pty) Ltd., Longmeadow

Asea Brown Boveri S.A., Madrid

ABBAB.Vasteras

ABB Norden Holding AB, vasteras

ABB Asea Brown Boveri Ltd, Zurich

ABB Information Systems Ltd., Zurich

ABB Investment Holding GmbH, Zurich

ABB Management Services Ltd., Zurich

ABB Schweiz AG, Baden

ABB Turbo Systems AG, Baden

ABB LIMITED.Bangkok

ABB Elektrik Sanayi A.S., Istanbul

ABB Industries (L.L.C.), Dubai

ABB Holdings Limited, Warrington

ABB Limited, Warrington

ABB Finance (USA) Inc., Wilmington, DE

ABB Holdings Inc. Cary, NC

ABB Inc., Cary, NC

ABB Treasury Center (USA), Inc., Wilmington, DE

Baldor Electric Company, Fort Smith, AR

Edison Holding Corporation, Wilmington, DE

Thomas & Betts Corporation, Knoxville, TN

Verdi Holding Corporation, Wilmington, DE
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Country
ABB interest

%

Share capital
in thousands
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Currency

Singapore 100.00 28,842 SGD

South Africa 100.00 4,050 ZAR

South Africa 74.91 1 ZAR

Spain 100.00 33,318 EUR

Sweden 100.00 400,000 SEK

Sweden 100.00 2,344,783 SEK

Switzerland 100.00 2,768,000 CHF

Switzerland 100.00 500 CHF

Switzerland 100.00 92,054 CHF

Switzerland 100.00 571 CHF

Switzerland 100.00 55,000 CHF

Switzerland 100.00 10,000 CHF

Thailand 100.00 1,034,000 THB

Turkey 99.95 13,410 TRY

United Arab Emirates 49.00W) 5,000 AED

United Kingdom 100.00 226,014 GBP

United Kingdom 100.00 120,000 GBP

United States 100.00 1 USD

United States 100.00 2 USD

United States 100.00 1 USD

United States 100.00 1 USD

United States 100.00 - USD

United States 100.00 10 USD

United States 100.00 1 USD

United States 100.00 - USD









CLAIRE, CORPORATE RESEARCH, VASTERAS, SWEDEN,

WORKS WITH HER TEAM TO DEVELOP PIONEERING

ENERGY-RELATED MATERIALS

Every member
of the team has a

different way of
thinking and a dif
ferent personality,
but they are all so
committed.
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Letter from the Chairman of the

Compensation Committee

Dear shareholder,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (Board and the

Compensation Committee (CC), I am pleas ed to

present the Compensation report for 2016.

Following the election of the CC at the 201(1 Annual

General Meeting (AGM), we welcomed Frederico

Fleury Curado as a new member of the Board and

the CC, to which he brings his extensive interna

tional experience and expertise.

In 2016, ABB continued with the implementation of

the Next Level Strategy and the launch of Scage 3.

The successful execution of the Next Level Strategy

has led to significant improvements of the com

pany's performance and to a stronger external fo

cus. The Compensation report explains how these

results impacted the variable incentive pay Tients

made to the Executive Committee (EC) members

under the various compensation components.

For the 2015-2016 term of office, aggregate Board
compensation increased by 25 percent corr pared

with the previous year, due to the expansion of the

Board from 8 to 11 members.

Aggregate EC compensation was lower in 2016

than in 2015, principally due to a reduction n the

number of EC members as part of the orga ii-
zational realignment under Stage 2 of the Next

Level Strategy.

During the reporting year, the CC continuec to

review ABB's compensation programs in order to

ensure their alignment with Stage 3 of the Next

Level Strategy. In this context, we further improved

the focus on performance in our short-terrr and

long-term variable compensation plans, effec

tive for 2017. Furthermore, the CC performed its

regular activities throughout the year such as the

performance goal setting at the beginning 3f the
year and the performance assessment folio/ving

the year-end, the determination of the com .sensa

tion of the Board and the EC members, as veil as

the preparation of the Compensation report and

of the "say-on-pay" vote at the AGM. You wi I find
further information on our activities and on ABB's

compensation system and gover nance in the fol

lowing pages.

This Compensation report will be submitted to a

non-binding, consultative vote by shareholders at

the AGM in April 2017. You will also be asked to vote

on the maximum aggregate compensation amount

of the Board for the 2017-2018 Board term and on

the maximum aggregate EC compensation for 2018.

Looking ahead, we will continue to assess and re

view our compensation programs to ensure that

they are still fulfilling their purpose and are aligned

with the interests of our shareholders. We encour

age and pursue an open and regular dialogue with

our stakeholders. Your feedback is highly valued

and appreciated as we continue to evolve the com

pensation system. On behalf of ABBand the CC, as

well as the Board, I would like to thank you for your

continued trust in ABB and for your consistently

constructive and supportive feedback regarding

our compensation framework.

Michel de Rosen

Chairman of the Compensation Committee

Zurich, March 10, 2017
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Compensation report

Exhibit 1: Overview of total compensation (in CHF)

Board of Directors

Number of members

Total compensation

Maximum aggregate compensation amount approved at AGM

Executive Committee

Number of members

Total compensation

Maximum aggregate compensation amount approved at AGM

Compensation governance

Shareholders' engagement

Shareholders have been given a greater say on

compensation matters in recent years. They ap

prove the Articles of Incorporation that outline the

principles of compensation, including the require

ment for shareholders each year to approve the
maximum aggregate compensation amounts of
the Board and the EC. The provisions of the Articles

of Incorporation on compensation can be found
on ABB's Corporate governance website www.abb.
com/about/corporate-governance and are summa

rized below:

• Compensation Committee (Articles 28 to 31):

The CC is composed of a minimum of three
members who are elected individually by the
shareholders at the AGM for a period of one

year. The CC supports the Board in establishing
and reviewing the compensation strategy, prin

ciples and programs, in preparing the proposals
to the AGM on compensation matters and in

determining the compensation of the Board
and of the EC. The responsibilities of the CC

are defined in more detail in the ABB Ltd Board

Regulations &Corporate Governance Guidelines,

which are available on ABB's Corporate gover

nance website.

• Compensation principles (Article 33): Compen

sation of the members of the Board consists

of fixed compensation only. Compensation of

the members of the EC consists of fixed and

variable compensation. Variable compensa

tion may comprise short-term and long-term
elements. Compensation may be paid in cash,

shares or other benefits.

• "Say-on-pay" votes (Article 34): Shareholders
approve the maximum aggregate amount of
compensation of the Board for the following

Board term

2016-2017 2015-2016

11 members 8 members

4,670,000 3,730,000

4,700,000 4,500.000

Calendar year

2016

11 members

44,200,719

52,000,000

2015

12 members

45,521,908

not subject to
shareholders' vote

Board term and of the EC for the following

financial year.

• Supplementary amount for new EC members
(Article 35): If the maximum approved aggre

gate compensation amount is not sufficient
to also cover the compensation of newly

promoted/hired EC members, up to 30 percent

of the last approved maximum aggregate

amount shall be available as a supplementary

amount to cover the compensation of such new

EC members.

• Credits (Article 37): Credits may not be granted

to members of the Board or of the EC.

Shareholders also have a consultative vote on the

prior year's Compensation report at the AGM.The
Compensation report describes the compensation
principles and programs as well as the governance
framework related to the compensation of the

Board and EC.The report also provides details of
the compensation awarded to the members of the
Board and of the EC in the prior calendar year.

The Compensation report is written in accordance
with the Ordinance against Excessive Remunera

tion in Stock Listed Corporations (Ordinance), the
standard relating to information on Corporate Gov

ernance of the SIXSwiss Exchange, the rules of the
stock markets of Sweden and the United States

where ABB's shares are also listed, and the princi

ples of the Swiss Code of Best Practice for Corpo
rate Governance of economiesuisse.

Authority levels in compensation matters

The CCacts in an advisory capacity while the Board
retains the decision authority on compensation
matters, except for the maximum aggregate com

pensation amounts of the Board and of the EC,
which are subject to the approval of shareholders at
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Exhibit 2: Authority levels in compensation matters

Compensation policy including incentive plans

Maximum aggregate compensation arrount EC

CEO compensation

Individual compensation EC members

Performance target setting and assessment CEO

Performance target setting and assessment EC

Shareholding requirements CEO and EC

Maximum aggregate compensation amount Board

Individual compensation of Board members

Compensation report

Proposal • Recommendation • Approval
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C Board

Consultative vote

the AGM. The authority levels of the differen". bodies

on compensation matters are detailed in Exf ibit 2.

their own compensation and/or performance are

being discussed.

Activities of the CC in 2016

The CC meets as often as business requires but

at least four times a year. In 2016, the CC he d six

meetings and performed the activities desc ribed
in Exhibit 3. Details on meeting attendance of the

individual CC members are provided in the Corpo
rate governance report on page 44.

The Chairman of the CC reports to the full Board

after each CC meeting. The minutes of the

meetings are available to the members of 1he

Board. As a general rule, the CEO, the Chiel

Human Resources Officer (CHRO) and the Head of

Compensation and Benefits attend the CC

meetings in an advisory capacity. The Chairman of

the CC may decide to invite other executives as

appropriate. Executives do not attend the

meetings or the parts of the meetings in which

Exhibit 3: CC activities during 2016

The CC may decide to consult an external advi

sor for compensation matters. In 2016, Hostettler

&Company (HCM) and PricewaterhouseCoopers

(PwC) were mandated to provide services related

to executive compensation matters. HCM has no

other mandate with ABB. Apart from its CC advi

sory role, PwC also provides human resources, tax

and advisory services to ABB. In addition, support

and expertise are provided to the CC by internal

compensation experts such as the CHRO and the

Head of Compensation and Benefits.

Board compensation

Compensation principles

The compensation system for the members

of the Board is designed to attract and retain

Performance: items relating to past performance cycle

Individual performance assessment of CEO and EC members

Performance assessment for short-term variabl 3compensation

Look-back assessment of ABB's performance o\ er past three years

Payout of long-term variable compensation

Performance: items relating to upcoming performance cycle

Setting of performance targets for short-terrn variable compensation

Setting of performance targets for long-term variable compensation

Quarterly updates on status of var ious performance plans

EC compensation review and planning

Review of EC compensation (incentive structure, levels and mix) relative to external benchmarks

Recommendation of individual compensation o EC members

Review of pensions and benefits

Review of shareholding level of each EC membe'

Board compensation

Comparison of compensation levels against ext >rnal benchmarks

Recommendation of individual compensation o Board members

Compliance and regulatory

Preparation of Compensation report for publication

Preparation of maximum aggregate compensat on amount of ECto be submitted to AGM vote

Preparation of maximum aggregate compensat on amount of Board to be submitted to AGM vote



experienced people on the Board. Compensation

of Board members takes into account the responsi

bilities, time and effort required to fulfill their roles

on the Board and its committees. From time to

time the levels and mix of compensation of Board

members are compared against the compensa

tion of non-executive board members of publicly

traded companies in Switzerland that are part of

the Swiss Market Index.

The compensation of Board members is fixed. They
do not receive variable compensation or pension

benefits, underscoring their focus on corporate

strategy, supervision and governance. In accor

dance with Swiss law, Board members may not re

ceive golden parachutes or other special benefits

in the event of a change of control. Board members
are paid for their service over a 12-month period

that starts with their election at the AGM. Payment

is made in semi-annual installments in arrears.

In order to further align the interests of Board
members with those of ABB's shareholders, half

of their total compensation has to be paid in

ABBshares, although Board members may choose
to receive all of their compensation in shares.

The number of shares delivered is calculated prior

to each semi-annual payment by dividing the

monetary amount to which the Board members
are entitled by the average closing price of the
ABB share over a predefined 30-day period.
The shares are subject to a three-year restriction
period during which they cannot be sold,

transferred or pledged. Any restricted shares

are unblocked when the Board member leaves

the Board.

Structure of Board compensation

The structure of Board compensation for the term

of office from AGM to AGM is described in Exhibit 4.

The compensation amounts paid to the Board
members for the calendar year 2016 and for
the term of office from the 2016 AGM to the 2017

Exhibit 4: Structure of Board compensation

Board term fee (CHF)

1,200,000

450,000

290,000

Chairman of the Board'0

Vice-chairman of the Board'1'

Member of the Board

Additional committee fees:

Chairman of FACC'2'

Chairman of GNC and CC"'

Member of FACC*"

Member of GNC and CC'*'

110,000

60,000

40,000

30,000
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AGM are disclosed in Exhibits 19 and 20, respec

tively, in the section "Compensation and share

ownership tables".

Executive Committee

compensation

Compensation principles

ABB's compensation system reflects the commit

ment to attract, motivate and retain people with

the talent necessary to strengthen ABB's position
as a pioneering technology leader for utility, indus
try, and transport &infrastructure customers.

The compensation system is designed to pro

vide competitive compensation and to encourage
executives and employees to deliver outstanding
results and create sustainable shareholder value

without taking excessive risks. The compensation

system balances:
• fixed and variable compensation elements;

• short-term and long-term incentives;

• the recognition of Group and individual
performance.

The compensation system has been refined in recent
years in line with ABB's Next LevelStrategy, so that it
rewards the achievement of financial and operational

objectives and drives the leadership behaviors re
quired for the long-term and sustainable success of
ABB. The compensation system is based on the fol
lowing principles (Exhibit 5).

Exhibit 5:Principles of EC compensation

Compensation is directly linked to the
Next Level Strategy through ambitious

Strategic performance objectives and robust
alignment performance monitoring.

Ambitious goals are set in ABB's planning
processes and variable pay is aimed

Performance at the upper quartile level when these
orientation objectives are met.

Comprehensive
and balanced KPIs

Performance metrics support the
development of earnings per share and
cash return on invested capital. They
also include measures of operational and
behavioral performance that are critical
in the current change process of the Next
Level Strategy. Performance metrics are
well-balanced as they reflect both Group
and individual performance, as well as
short-term and long-term results.

Compensation mix and levels are re
viewed annually against benchmarks that
include relevant peer companies in the
markets in which ABB operates. Annual
base salaries of EC members are set

between the market median and upper
Competitiveness quartile in order to attract suitable talent.
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Exhibit 6 Annual review of the business and performance cycle

Review of ABB performance

AR*

Annual compensation
planning

Setting of objectives
for short-term variable

compensation for
current year

Short-term variable

compensation payout
for previous year

Annual performance development
appraisal of individuals

Mid-year performance review

3 year look-back
assessment and

setting of objectives
for LTIP

Annual grant

of LTIP awards

To effectively align strategy, performance and compe isation, the target setting and review processes are directly linked to the
•inancial and budget processes.

Alignment with ABB's business strategy

The Board defines the strategic direction of the
company and regularly reviews the progress made

on the strategy. Based on these reviews, the Board

sets performance targets and annual budgets, and

ensures that the company's compensation

orograms support the implementation of the

strategy by appropriately rewarding perfornance

^see Exhibit 6).

The Board designs the overall EC compensa:ion so

that it is aligned with our Next Level Strategy. In

addition, short-term targets are aligned with our
external targets (including revenues, operational

EBITA, cash generation, and earnings growth).

Market competitiveness and benchmarks

AllEC and other senior positions at ABB have been

evaluated using the job evaluation methodclogy
of the Hay Group, which is used by more the n
10,000 companies around the world. This approach

provides a meaningful, transparent and consistent
basis for evaluating roles and for comparing com
pensation levels with those of equivalent jobs at

other companies.

The General Pan-European Market data of Hay's an

nual survey Top Executive Compensation in Europe

is primarily used to benchmark EC compensation,

which is targeted to be above the median values

for the market. Other references include Hay's data

on the Swiss and European industry markets and

on US peers (see Exhibit 7).

Components of EC Compensation

The compensation of EC members consists of

an annual base salary, benefits, a short-term

variable component based on annual perfor

mance objectives and a long-term variable

Exhibit 7: Compensation benchmarks

REFERENCE COMPOSITION RATIONALE

Main benchmark

General Pan-

European Markc

360 largest
European

companies of
the FT Europe
500 listing

Continuity and
stability of data
points

References to stress-test main benchmark

Global Industry
Group

Swiss market

Peer companies
selected based on

business,

geographic
presence and size

SMIandSMIM

companies that are
included in Hay's
General Pan-

European Market

data

US peers of similar
size and industry

Specific peer

group to
benchmark

compensation

design

Comparison

with other

multinational

Swiss companies

Comparison with

other multinational

US companies
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component based on long-term performance

(see Exhibit 8).

The Board considers several factors when review

ing and setting the individual target compensation

of each EC member:

• Market value of the role (external benchmark);

• Individual profile of the incumbent in terms of

experience and skillset;

• Individual performance and potential; and

• Affordability for the company.

The compensation that is effectively paid depends

on the performance of the Group and of the

individual members of the EC. Exhibit 9 illustrates

Exhibit 8: Structure of EC compensation

Base salary and benefits

Compensation

Long-term

Performance

component 1 (PI) 50%

Performance

component 2 (P2) 50%

Purpose

Performance

measures

ig amoui

allocation

Performance

.if for ting payou

Compensates EC members for
the role. Based on the scope

of responsibilities, individual
experience and skillset

When considering changes in
base salary, the executive's
performance during the preceding
year against individual objectives
is taken into account

Rewards annual Encourages creation of long-term, sustainable
performance value for the shareholders

ABB's performance
(preceding three years);
Individual performance

n.a. (preceding year)" n.a.

Group and individual Net income threshold Cumulative EPS target
objectives in the in the financial year over the 3-year vesting
relevant financial year prior to vesting' period

Shares (70%) and cash (30%)
Cash Beneficiaries can elect to receive 100% in sharesCash and benefits in kind

The main components of EC compensation are directly linked to performance.

Exhibit 9: Compensation components under various scenarios

.5 o

Base salary
and benefits

Short-term

variable

compensa

tion payout

Minimum Target Maximum

100% 100%

100%

o;/

100%

f

150%

112.5%

s.
E

E 3
01 CI
V si Conditional
en m
c -c grant
o pa ,
-> > allocation*

100% ^ '

8'

I

.5%

[PI. 37.5%
P2. 50%

1

PI. 50%

1

P2. 50%

PI. 62.5%

1

P2. 50%

Note the gro! ; Aj vesting the payout can vary from zero lo 150%

IP arc met

150%

Base salary and benefits are generally stable.

There will be no payout of this component if
performance is below threshold in all performance
criteria. When performance exceeds targets, this
component is capped at 150% of the targeted
amount.

The reference grant size of half of the LTIP
(performance component 1) may be increased or
decreased by 25% depending on ABB's performance
in the preceding three years. Consequently, the total
fair value at grant of ABB's LTIPmay vary from
87,5% to 112.5% of the fair value of the unadjusted
reference grant size. However, the ultimate payout
on vesting depends on meeting the performance
criteria of the plan.

i formance criteria

4

100%

p
There will be no payout if performance is below the
threshold in both the PI and P2 components. The
maximum payout is 100% for PI and 200% for P2.
As the two components are equally weighted, the

Payout maximum total payout for the LTIP is 150% of the
of the LTIP 0% conditional grant allocation.
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the relative proportions of the components of EC
compensation under the scenarios of minimum

performance, target (expected) performance and
maximum performance.

Fixed compensation - annual base salary

and benefits

The fixed compensation of EC members includes

the fixed annual base salary and benefits.
Benefits consist mainly of retirement, insurance
and healthcare plans that are designed to provide
a reasonable level of income for the employees
and their dependents in case of retirement,
disability or death. Benefits plans vary in line with
the local competitive and legal environment and
are, at a minimum, in accordance with the legal
requirements of the respective country.

ECmembers are also provided with certain fringe
benefits such as a company car according to
competitive local market practice. Tax equalization
is provided for EC members resident outside

Switzerland to the extent that they are not able
to claim a tax credit in their country of residence
for income taxes they paid in Switzerland. The
monetary value of these benefits is disclosed in

Exhibits 21 and 22.

Short-term variable compensation

The short-term variable compensation is designed
to reward EC members for the Group's results and
their individual performance over a time horizon of

one year. It allows the EC members to participate
in the company's success while being rewarded for
their individual contributions.

Group objectives are aligned with the strategic tar
gets of ABB's Next LevelStrategy that have been
communicated to shareholders and have a weight
ing of 80 percent for the CEO and 65 percent for
the other ECmembers. For 2016, the Group objec
tives included revenues, operational EBITA margin,
operational net income, operating cash flow, cost
savings and Net Promoter Score (NPS).

Individual objectives are set as part of the annual
performance management process and support
the implementation of the Next LevelStrategy in
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the respective area of responsibility of each EC
member. They include metrics that help the

management to assess whether the results are

achieved in a sustainable way in four different
categories: financial performance, operational
performance, strategic initiatives and leadership
performance. Individual objectives have a weight
ing of 20 percent for the CEO and 35 percent for

other EC members (see Exhibit 10).

For each performance objective, a target is set
corresponding to the expected level of perfor
mance that will generate a 100 percent payout.
In order to strengthen the company's market
position and to continuously strive for superior
performance, stretch targets are determined
in line with the company's ambitious financial
plan and with the Next LevelStrategy. Further,
a minimum level of performance, below which

there is no payout (threshold) and a maximum

level of performance, above which the payout is
capped at 150 percent of target (cap), are also
defined. The payout percentages for achievements
between the threshold, the target and the cap are
determined by linear interpolations.

Fullyachieving all the objectives (target perfor
mance) results in a payout equivalent to 150 per

cent of the annual base salary for the CEO and
100 percent of the annual base salary for other
EC members.

Long-term variable compensation

The long-term variable compensation for EC
members consists of an annual conditional share

grant under the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP),

which is aimed at driving long-term shareholder
value creation in a sustainable manner. It rewards

the achievement of predefined performance goals
over a three-year vesting period.

The LTIPis split in two performance components:
• a PI component which is tied to ABB's achieve

ment of a threshold net income in the financial

year prior to the end of the vesting period, and
• a P2 component which is tied to the achieved

weighted cumulative earnings-per-share (EPS)
over the vesting period.

Exhibit 10:Short-term variablecompensation objectives and weighting in 2016

Gioup oojcctives

individual objectives
(tailored to function and

area of responsibilities)

Explanation

Six financial and non-financial parameters: revenues,
operational EBITA margin, operational net income, operating
cash flow, cost savings and Net Promoter Score

Include:

-Additional financial objectives
- Operational execution metrics
- Strategic goals
- Leadershipobjectives

Weighting

CEO Other EC members"

80% 65%

20% 35%



The PI and P2 components are equally weighted in

terms of the target fair value at grant.

The number of shares conditionally granted under

the LTIP is determined as follows:

• A reference value for the LTIP is first established

as a multiple of the annual base salary. In 2016,

the multiples were 200 percent for the CEO and

107 percent for the other EC members. As the

PI and P2 components are equally weighted,

the reference value of these components for

the CEO and the other EC members for the 2016

LTIP were as follows:

PI component P2 component Total

CEO 100% 100% 200%

EC 53.5% 53.5% 107%

• The reference value for the grant size of the PI

component for the CEO as an individual and the

other EC members as a pool may be increased

or decreased by the Board by up to 25 percent.

The increase or decrease is based on the

Board's assessment of ABB's performance over

the three financial years preceding the grant,

both in absolute terms and relative to a peer

group comprising Alstom, Eaton, Emerson, GE,

Honeywell, Legrand, Schneider and Siemens.

The allocation from the pool to each individual

EC member is determined by the Board

based on an assessment of the individual's

performance.

• The reference value of the P2 component is not

subject to any adjustment.

• The number of shares conditionally granted un

der PI and P2 to each EC member is determined

by dividing the respective grant value by the

average closing prices of ABB shares over the 20

trading days following the Board's decision to

launch an LTIP grant.

ination of payout at vesting

To vest at the end of the three-year vesting period,

the following performance conditions must be met:

• For the PI component, ABB has to achieve

the threshold net income level set by the Board

at the beginning of the vesting period. The

component will not vest if this threshold is not

achieved and will vest at 100 percent if this

threshold is met or exceeded. Therefore there

is either no payout or 100 percent payout.

• For the P2 component, the percentage of shares

that may vest (the payout percentage) is based

on ABB's EPS performance against an EPS

objective set by the Board at the beginning of

the vesting period. This EPS objective is based
on an outside-in view, taking into account the

growth expectations, risk profile, investment

levels and profitability levels that are typical for
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the industry. This outside-in approach in setting

EPS objectives for the LTIP assumes that

investors expect a risk-adjusted return on their

investment, which is based on market value

(and not book value) and translates such

expected returns over a three-year period into

EPS targets. The weighted cumulative EPS

result is calculated as the addition of the EPS in

the first financial year (weighted at 33 percent)

plus the EPS in the second financial year

(weighted at 67 percent) plus the EPS in the

third financial year (weighted at 100 percent).

This formula gives more weight to the EPS

achieved in the later years of the vesting period.

There is no payout if the lower EPS threshold is

not reached and the payout is capped at 200

percent if EPS performance exceeds the

pre-defined payout cap. The payout formula

is shown in Exhibit 11.

Exhibit 11:Payout formula for P2 (EPS performance)

Payout % of reference number of shares
under the P2 performance component

Lower On-target Cap
threshold (100% (200%
(no payout) payout) payout)

Weighted
cumulative

earnings
per share

The LTIP rewards participants for increasing EPS over a
three-year period. The payout of the P2 component is based
on ABB's weighted cumulative EPS performance against
predefined objectives.

To further strengthen the alignment of EC mem
bers' interests with those of shareholders, both PI

and P2 components are settled in shares (70 per

cent) and cash (30 percent), although participants

can elect to receive 100 percent in shares.

Key contractual provisions

Share ownciship requirements

The Board aims to align EC members' interests

with those of shareholders. To maintain focus on

the long-term success of the company, EC mem

bers are required to build up a holding of ABB
shares that is equivalent to a multiple of their

annual base salary (see Exhibit 12).

Exhibit 12: Share ownership requirements for EC members

Chief Executive Officer

Other EC members

5 x annual base salary

4 x annual base salary
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Only shares owned by an EC member and the mem
ber's spouse are included in the share ownership

calculation. Vested and unvested stock options are

not considered for this purpose.

The CC reviews the status of EC share owne ship on
an annual basis. It also reviews the required share

holding amounts annually, based on salary and ex

pected share price developments. As the level of the

shareholding requirement is high relative to market

practice, the Board has determined that members

of the EC should generally aim to reach thes 2multi

ples within five years of their appointment.

Notice period, severance provisions

and non-competition clauses

Employment contracts for EC members inc ude a

notice period of 12 months, during which tr ey are
entitled to their base salary, benefits and short-

term variable compensation. In accordance with

Swiss law and ABB's Articles of incorporation, the

contracts for EC members do not allow for any
severance payment.

Non-compete agreements have been agreed with

EC members for a period of 12 months af te- their

employment. Compensation for such agreements,

if any, may not exceed the EC member's las" total
annual compensation.

Malus ind clawback

Any long-term incentive compensation awa ded

to members of the EC is subject to malus and

clawback rules if a plan participant has bee 1

involved in any illegal activity. This means tr at

the Board of Directors may decide not to pay any
unpaid or unvested incentive compensation
(malus), or may seek to recover incentive compen

sation that has been paid in the past (clawtack).

Compensation awarded to

Board and EC in 2016

Compensation of the Board in 2016

Board members received a total compensation of

CHF 4.2 million in 2016 compared with CHF 3.68

million in 2015, as presented in Exhibit 19 on page 75.
The change in compensation is primarily due to

the increase in the number of Board members from

8 to 11.

At the 2015 AGM, the shareholders approved a

maximum aggregate compensation amoun". of
CHF 4.5 million for the Board for the term 0": office

2015-2016. The compensation paid for that Deriod

amounts to CHF 3.73 million as presented ir

Exhibit 20 on page 76 and is therefore within the
approved amount.
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At the 2016 AGM, the shareholders approved a

maximum aggregate compensation amount of

CHF 4.7 million for the Board for the term of office

2016-2017. The compensation for that period

amounts to CHF 4.67 million as presented in

Exhibit 20 on page 76 and is therefore within the

approved amount.

Compensation of the EC in 2016

As described on page 65, the compensation of the

EC is aligned with the strategic targets of ABB's

Next Level strategy set as performance objectives.

The ratio of fixed to variable compensation com

ponents in any given year depends on the per

formance of the company and of the individuals

against these predefined performance objectives.

In 2016, as shown in Exhibit 13, the variable com

pensation represented 67 percent of the CEO's

compensation (previous year: 69 percent) and an

average of 53 percent for the other EC members

(previous year: 55 percent). This again illustrates

the significant emphasis placed on perfor

mance-related compensation.

EC members received total compensation of

CHF 44.2 million in 2016 compared with

CHF 45.5 million in 2015, as presented in Exhibit 14.

The lower total compensation in 2016 is principal

lydue to a reduction in the number of EC mem

bers from 12 to 11, partially offset by an increase in

costs due to pension arrangements and an overlap

period between Pekka Tiitinen and Sami Atiya.

Pension benefits increased as a result of adjust

ments that were decided in 2015 based on the

benchmarking analysis conducted by Towers

Watson. This review highlighted that the retire

ment benefits of EC members were below the

median of 50 peer companies (part of Hay Group

General Pan-European Market). As a result, the

pension benefits of certain EC members were

increased during 2016.

Exhibit 13: Ratios of fixed and variable compensation compo
nents of EC members in 2016

CEO

Other EC

members

Fixed

33% 28%

Fixed

Variable

39%

Variable

25% 28%

Fixed compensation
Short-term variable compensation (actual payout)
Long-term variable compensation (fair value at
grant)



Exhibit 14: Total compensation of EC members
(in CHF million)

Base salaries

Pension benefits

Other benefits

2016

10.2

4.1

5.2

2015

10.5

3.5

5.3

Total fixed compensation 19.5 19.3

Short-term variable compensation

Long-term variable compensation

11.4

13.3

11.8

14.4

Total variable compensation 24.7 26.2

Total compensation 44.2 45.5

For an overview of compensation by individual and
component, please refer to Exhibit 21 on page 76 and
Exhibit 22 on page 77.

At the 2015 AGM, the shareholders approved

a maximum aggregate compensation amount

of CHF 52 million for the EC for the year 2016.

The EC compensation for 2016 amounts to

CHF 44.2 million and is therefore within the

approved amount.

Short-term variable compensation

2016 has been a strong year for ABB as highlighted

in Exhibit 15. The company exceeded the Group-

wide objectives for cost savings and customer

satisfaction (as measured by the use of the Net

Promoter Score). On the other objectives (reve

nues, operational EBITAmargin, operational net

income and operating cash flow), the Group's per

formance, while not achieving the set targets, was

considerably above threshold. This resulted in an

overall achievement of 101.8 percent for the Group

component of the short-term variable compensa

tion (previous year: 101.3 percent).

For 2016, there is an 11 percentage point difference

between the highest and lowest payout of the
short-term variable compensation of the EC mem

bers (previous year: 16 percentage points). This re

flects the performance of each EC member against

their individual objectives.

Long-term variable compensation

In 2016, the estimated value of the share-based

grants to EC members under the LTIP was

CHF 13.3 million compared with CHF 14.4 million

in 2015. This difference was mainly due to the

decrease in the number of EC members from

12 to 11.

To determine the size of the PI component granted

in 2016, the Board assessed ABB's 2013-2015 per

formance based on: revenue growth, cash return on

invested capital, operational EBITDAmargin, share

price development, share price to earnings ratio,

NPS development, integrity and safety performance.

This resulted in an aggregate increase of 3 percent

in the reference grant size of the PI component for
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Exhibit 15: Group-wide 2016 objectives, weighting
and performance for short-term variable compensation

71

Objective'" Weighting Performance

Revenues 20% •

Operational EBITA margin'^ 15% •

Operational net income'" 10% •

Operating cash flow"1 30% •

Cost savings 15%

Net Promoter Score'5' 10% i

On or above target
• Above threshold and below tarqet
• Below threshold

•

•

I

•

EC members as a pool. This compares to the 6 per

cent increase in 2015 versus 2014.

The payout for the performance component of the

2013 LTIP that vested in 2016 was 43 percent (previ

ous year: 51 percent for the 2012 LTIP). The payout

was based on the EPS achieved during the plan's

three-year vesting period.

Other compensation

Members of the EC are eligible to participate in the

Employee Share Acquisition Plan (ESAP), a savings

plan based on stock options, which is open to em

ployees around the world. Seven members of the

ECparticipated in the 13lhannual launch of the plan
in 2016. EC members who participated will, upon

vesting, each be entitled to acquire up to 500 ABB
shares at CHF 20.12 per share, the market share

price at the start of that launch.

For a more detailed description of ESAP, please

refer to "Note 18 Share-based payment arrange

ments" to ABB's Consolidated Financial State

ments contained in the Financial review of ABB

Group section of this Annual Report.

In 2016, ABBdid not pay any fees or compensation

to the members of the Board or the EC for ser

vices rendered to ABB other than those disclosed

in this report. Except as disclosed in the sections

"Business relationships between ABBand its Board
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members" and "Business relations between ABB

and its EC members" of the Corporate governance
report, ABB did not pay any additional fees or com

pensation in 2016 to persons closely linked to a

member of the Board or a member of the EC for

services rendered to ABB.

Compensation of former Board and EC members

In 2016, no payment was made to any former

Board member. One former EC member received

contractual compensation for the period after
leaving the EC,as shown in Exhibit 21 on page 76.

Shareholdings of Board

and EC members as of

December 31,2016

The members of the Board and EC owned less than

1 percent of ABB's total shares outstanding as of
December 31,2016.

Exhibit 25 on page 79 shows the number of ABB
shares held by each Board member as of Decem

ber 31,2016 and 2015. Except as described in this
exhibit, no member of the Board and no person
closely linked to a member of the Board held any
shares of ABB or options in ABB shares.

As of December 31,2016, members of the EC held

ABB shares, conditional rights to receive shares
under the LTIP, options (either vested or unvested

as indicated) under the Management Incentive Plan

(MIP),and unvested shares in respect of other
compensation arrangements, as shown in Exhibit
26 on page 80. Their holdings as of December 31,
2015, are shown in Exhibit 27 on page 81.

Members of the ECcannot participate in the MIP.
Any MIPinstruments held by EC members were
awarded to them as part of the compensation

they received in earlier roles they held at ABB. For
a more detailed description of MIP, please refer to

"Note 18 Share-based payment arrangements" to

ABB's Consolidated Financial Statements con

tained in the Financial review of ABB Group section
of this Annual Report.

Furthermore, as of December 31,2016, members of

the EC held conditionally granted ABB shares un

der the performance component of the LTIP2014,

which at the time of vesting will be settled in cash,
as shown in Exhibit 28 on page 81. Their equiva
lent holdings as of December 31,2015, are shown in
Exhibit 29 on page 82.

Except as described in Exhibits 26-29, no member

of the ECand no person closely linked to a member
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of the EC held any shares of ABB or options on ABB
shares as of December 31,2016 and 2015.

Outlook: changes to

compensation system for 2017

In reviewing the EC compensation system and

taking into account the feedback received by

shareholders and other stakeholders, the Board

decided to make a number of changes that will be

implemented for 2017.

The successful implementation of Stage 3 of
the Next Level Strategy will depend to a large
extent on the leadership capabilities of our

executives. Driving the culture of ownership and
entrepreneurship throughout the organization

is critical, and to support this goal the Board has

decided to strengthen the link between individual
performance and variable compensation. A

stronger emphasis will be put on the individual

performance in the short-term variable compen
sation as of 2017, while the LTIP will continue to

depend fully on Group performance. The combina
tion of Group objectives in the LTIPand of
individual and Group objectives in the short-term
variable compensation provides a balance

designed to generate and reward optimal perfor

mance of both the Group and the individual

EC members.

Short-term variable compensation

The short-term variable compensation will reward

Group performance (between 35 and 50 percent
weight) and individual performance (between 50

and 65 percent weight) as described in Exhibit 16.

The individual performance includes regional

objectives for the Region Presidents, divisional ob
jectives for the Division Presidents and functional

objectives for the Corporate Officers, i.e. the CFO,

CHRO and General Counsel:

Exhibit 16:Weight of Group and individual objectives
forEC members

Division Corporate Officers
CEO and region (CFO, CHRO,

(no change) presidents General Counsel)

Group
objectives 80% 35%

65% (divisional/

50%

regional and 50% (functional
Individual personal and personal
objectives 20% objectives) objectives)

The other parameters of the short-term variable

compensation, such as the target setting and the
maximum payout factor, remain unchanged.
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half on the achievement of the net income target

measured over the three-year vesting period.

73

Long-term variable compensation

The LTIP will continue to be built around two per

formance components. While P2 (cumulated EPS)

remains unchanged, PI will be modified as follows:

• The net income threshold will be replaced by

a payout curve in order to remove the binary

character of the payout. A net income target will

be determined, corresponding to a 100 percent

payout, as well as a threshold amount below

which there is no payout, and an amount above

which the payout is capped at 150 percent.

Achievement levels between the threshold, the

target and the cap will be calculated by linear

interpolations. Net income performance will be

measured as an average of each year's perfor

mance over the three-year vesting period.

• To further reinforce the forward looking

performance nature of the above modification,

the Board will no longer conduct an assessment

of ABB's past performance (over the three

financial years preceding the grant) in order to

determine an adjustment to the grant size pool.

The Board, however, based on the recommenda

tions of the CEO for the EC members and its

own assessment of the CEO, may still vary the

grant size of individual EC members to reflect

their individual performance and contributions

to the company.

Votes on compensation

at the 2017 AGM

As illustrated in Exhibit 17, the Board's proposals to

shareholders at the 2017 AGM will relate to maxi

mum aggregate Board compensation for the 2017-

2018 term of office and maximum aggregate EC

compensation for the calendar year 2018. There will

also be a non-binding vote on the 2016 Compensa

tion report.

In summary, half of the fair value at grant of the LTIP
will be based on the achievement of the cumulative

EPS target over the three-year vesting period and

Exhibit 17: Shareholders will have three separate votes on compensation at the 2017 AGM

S E

2016

April AGM

Compensation period Date of vote

• H

Binding vote on
maximum aggregate
Board compensation in
2017- 2018 term of office

Binding vote on
maximum aggregate
EC compensation
for 2018

Non-binding vote on
2016 Compensation

report

April AGM April AGM

At the 2017AGM there will be separate binding votes on maximum aggregate Board and ECcompensation, and a non-binding
vote on the 2016 Compensation report.
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Exhibit 18: Overview of key factors affecting the d£termination of maximum aggregate EC compensation

Aggregate EC compensation
in CHF (millions)

2016

14 43

I 1

2017 2018'"

52 50

Maximum

(approved at

Maximum

(approved at
Assumptions Actual "arget 2015 AGM) 2016 AGM) at 201

Short-term variable compensation

payout percentage"1 300% 150% 150% 150%

Adjustment of LTIP performance
component 1 (PI)"' 0% +25% +25% +25%

Number of EC members 13 12 11 11

Maximum

(to be requested

The Board's proposal for maximum aggregate ECcc mpensation for 2018 will incorporate assumptions for a normal increase.

In determining the proposed maximum aggregate
EC compensation, the Board takes into cor sider-

ation the criteria mentioned in Exhibit 18. Given

the variable nature of some of the compen nation

components, the proposed maximum aggregate

EC compensation will almost always be higher

than the actual payout, as it must cover the

potential maximum value of each component

of compensation.
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Compensation and share ownership tables

Exhibit 19: Board compensation in 2016 and 2015 (audited)

Name

Paid in 2016

November

Board term

2016-2017

CHF

«> Z•-
•S °%

a e sO 3 £

May

Board term

2015-2016

CHF

8 g

0) 3 jj
(Acs:

£5

.0 c

CHF

Paid in 2015

November

Board term

2015-2016

oi v Ja >
«3 *3 c *B
V « 5 8

CHF

May

Board term

2014-2015

5 E'g

CHF

75

oi
a

« 2*J IM

CHF

Peter Voser,

Chairman 2015-2017'4' 25,960 ^ 30,618 1,200,000 32,559 600,000

Hubertus

von Grunberg,
Chairman 2014-2015(5) 18,686 600,000

Jacob Wallenberg"' 112,500 3,915 112,500 4,616 450,000 112,500 4,911 82,500 3,040 390,000

Roger Agnelli'7'
- -

80,834 2,804 161,667 82,500 3,333 82,500 2,816 330,000

Matti Alahuhta'" 80,000 2,784 90,000 3,693 340,000 90,000 3,929 80,000 2,947 340,000

David Constable"1 80,000 2,784 80,000 3,282 320,000 80,000 3,229
— -

160,000

Frederico Curado"0' 80,000 2,573 — — 160,000
— - — - -

Robyn Denholm'11' 82,500 2,871
— —

165,000
- - - — -

Louis R. Hughes"" 100,000 3,480 100,000 4,103 400,000 100,000 4,365 100,000 3,455 400,000

David Meline'"' 82,500 2,871 — — 165,000 — — — - -

Satish Pai"" 82,500 2,871
— -

165,000 — - - - -

Michel de Rosen"" 87,500 3,045 87,500 3,590 350,000 87,500 3.820 87,500 3.224 350,000

Michael Treschow"6' — — — — — — — 95,000 3,336 190,000

YingYeh"7' 80.000 2,616 81,666 3,145 323,333 80,000 3,281 80,000 2,765 320,000

Total 867,500 55,770 632,500 55,851 4,200,000 632,500 59,427 607,500 40,269 3,680,000
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Exhibit 20: Board compensation in the Board terms 2016-2017 and 2015-2016

Name Specific Board Roles
Board term

2016-2017

Board term

2015-2016

CHF CHF

Peter Voser

Jacob Wallenberg

Roger Agnelli"'

Matti Alahuhta

David Constable

Frederico Curado**'

Robyn Denholm'"

Louis R. Hughes

David Meline'*1

Satish Pai'*'

Michel de Rosen

Ying Yeh"'

Total

Chairman of the Board and Chairman of GNC

Vice-Chairman of the Board and GNC member

FACC member 2015-2016

GNC member 2016-2017: GNC and FACC member 2015-2016

CC member

CC member 2016-2017

FACC member 2016-2017

Chairman of FACC

FACC member 2016-2017

FACC member 2016-2017

Chairman of CC

CC member

1,200,000 1.200.000

450,000 450,000

— 330,000

320,000 360,000

320,000 320,000

320,000 —

330,000 —

400,000 400,000

330,000 —

330,000
—

350.000 350,000

320,000 320,000

4,670,000 3,730,000

Exhibit 21: EC compensation in i'016 (audited)

Name

(0
in

«

(0
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«

s

I 8
*f 01
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«/> 8

%
e
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c
0)
a.
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«
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0)
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O

JL

3 a

ii
(M U

Estimatedvalueof share-basedgrants undertheLTIPin 2016'"

2016Total(ind. conditionalshare- basedgrants)'"CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF

Ulrich Spiesshofer"' 1.641,669 2.583,900 613,799 791,109 5,630,477 3,654,137 9,284,614

Eric Elzvik 850,007 827,050 274,835 332,831 2.284,723 843,920 3,128,643

Jean-Christophe Deslarzes'7' 911,677 971,520 261,986 572,775 2,717,958 1,169,063 3,887,021

Diane de Saint Victor"' 1,000,001 1,062,000 295,325 300,410 2,657,736 992,853 3,650,589

Frank Duggan"' 686,042 715,540 342,359 613,772 2.357,713 997,526 3,355,239

Greg Scheu"0' 837,507 791,840 248,397 128,055 2,005,799 896.680 2.902,479

Sami Atiya (EC member as of
June 14,2016)"' 387,122 373,858 213,242 292,415 1,266,637 745,453 2,012,090

Tarak Mehta'" 852,672 876,340 461,050 550,482 2,740,544 948,223 3,688,767

Bemhard Jucker'" 1,015,008 1.099,560 549,075 511.451 3.175,094 1,124,633 4.299,727

Claudio Facchin"' 770,837 771,540 442,172 507,909 2,492,458 991,170 3.483,628

Peter Terwiesch 729,175 748,965 243,558 179,954 1,901,652 933,992 2,835,644

Pekka Tiitinen (EC member until
September 30,2016) 543,759 543,750 179,184 405,585 1,672,278 — 1,672,278

Total Executive

Committee members 10.225.476 11,365,863 4,124,982 5,186,748 30,903,069 13,297,650 44,200.719
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Exhibit 22: ECcompensation in 2015 (audited)
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Estimatedvalueof share-basedgrants undertheLTIPin 2015'4'
2015Total(incl. conditionalshare- basedgrants)'"

CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF CHF

UlrichSpiesshofer'*' 1,600,004 2,544,000 408,448 780,735 5333,187 3,765,554 9,098,741

Eric Elzvik 850,007 856,800 270,335 349,021 2,326,163 974,264 3,300,427

Jean-Christophe Deslarzes 866,669 995,280 257,319 377,786 2,497,054 1,122,174 3,619,228

Diane de Saint Victor 1,000,001 1,002,000 293,177 674,074 2,969,252 1,005,044 3,974,296

Frank Duggan"' 664,632 708,890 336,122 591,990 2,301,634 1,012,539 3,314,173

Greg Scheu'" 808,012 823,352 360,922 598,259 2.590,545 1,001,756 3,592,301

Pekka Tiitinen 720,844 720,650 234,266 218,550 1,894,310 935,163 2,829,473

Tarak Mehta 813,345 831,504 242,003 446,628 2,333,480 935,304 3,268,784

Veli-Matti Reinikkala 782.507 787,355 281,522 338,704 2,190,088 788,953 2,979,041

Bernhard Jucker 986,505 1,056,330 295,325 392,338 2,730,498 1,134,740 3,865,238

Claudio Facchin 720,844 783.725 243,266 336,543 2,084,378 935,163 3,019,541

Peter Terwiesch 700,001 692,300 238,037 227,994 1,858,332 802,333 2,660,665

Total Executive

Comittee members 10,513,371 11,802,186 3,460.742 5,332,622 31,108,921 14,412,987 45,521,908
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Exhibit 23: LTIPgrants in 2016 (audited)

ofsharesunder omponentPIof theLTIP'1'
lueofshare- rtheperfor- Plofthe2016 D.W>.(4)

ofsharesunder omponentP2of theLTIP'"
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Totalesti basedgra manceco launchof

Reference theperfo the20161
Totalesti basedgra manceco launchof
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CHF CHF CHF

Ulrich Spiesshofer'" 94,076 1,945,492 81,805 1,708,645 175,881 3,654,137

Eric Elzvik 18,037 373,006 22,546 470,914 40,583 843,920

Jean-Christophe Deslarzes'" 31,884 659,362 24,403 509,701 56,287 1,169,063

Diane de Saint Victor'" 21,220 438,830 26,525 554,023 47,745 992,853

FrankDuggan'" 27,206 562,621 20,822 434,905 48,028 997,526

Greg Scheu 21,572 446,109 21,572 450,571 43,144 896,680

Sami Atiya (EC member
as of June 14,2016) 19,125 376,380 18,568 369,073 37,693 745,453

Tarak Mehta'" 22,812 471,753 22,812 476,470 45,624 948,223

Bernhard Jucker'" 27,056 559,519 27,056 565,114 54,112 1,124,633

Claudio Facchin 27,032 559,022 20,690 432.148 47,722 991,170

Peter Terwiesch'" 25.473 526,782 19,496 407,210 44,969 933,992

Total Executive Committee

members as of December 31,2016 335,493 6,918,876 306,295 6,378,774 641,788 13,297,650
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Exhibit 24: LTIPgrants in 2015 (audited)
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CHF CHF CHF

UlrichSpiesshofer*" 94,072 2,026,311 78,393 1,739,243 172,465 3,765,554

Eric Elzvik'" 22.281 479,933 22.281 494,331 44,562 974,264

Jean-Christophe Deslarzes'" 28,608 616,217 22,805 505,957 51,413 1,122,174

Diane de Saint Victor'" 19.660 423.477 26.213 581,567 45,873 1,005,044

Frank Duggan 25.813 556.013 20.577 456,526 46,390 1,012339

Greg Scheu 25,538 550,089 20,358 451,667 45,896 1,001,756

Pekka Tiitinen'" 23,840 513.514 19.005 421,649 42,845 935,163

Tarak Mehta'" 21,390 460,741 21,390 474,563 42,780 935,304

Veli-Matti Reinikkala 15,433 332,427 20,577 456,526 36,010 788,953

Bernhard Jucker'" 25,951 558,985 25.951 575,755 51,902 1,134,740

Claudio Facchin 23,840 513,514 19,005 421,649 42,845 935,163

Peter Terwiesch 18.349 395,238 18,349 407,095 36,698 802,333

Total Executive Committee

members as of December 31,2015 344,775 7.426,459 314,904 6,986,528 659,679 14,412,987

Exhibit 25: Board ownership of ABB shares (audited)

Total number of shares held

Name

Peter Voser'"

Jacob Wallenberg'2'

Roger Agnelli

Matti Alahuhta

David Constable

Frederico Curado'"

Robyn Denholm'"

Louis R. Hughes

David Meline'" '*'

Satish Pai«"

Michel de Rosen

Ying Yen

Total

December 31,2016

102,137

202.190

31,265

9,295

2,573

2,871

53,145

6.021

2,871

79,443

30,518

522,329

December 31,2015

45,559

193,659

176,820

24,788

3.229

80.562

146,646

25,016

696,279
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Exhibit26:EC ownership of ABBshares and options as of December31,2016(audited)
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Retentionsharesdeli underthe2014reten componentoftheLTI Referencenumberof deliverableunderthe performancecompor (PIandP2)oftheLTI Referencenumberof deliverableunderthe performancecompor (PIandP2)oftheLTI Replacementsharegi foregonebenefitsfro formeremployer"'

Name (vesting 2017) (vesting 2018)

93,846 172,465

(vesting 2019)

175,881

(vesting 2018)
Ulrich Spiesshofer 344,454 — —

Eric Elzvik 71,369 408,875 30,549 44,562 40,583 —

Jean-Christophe Deslarzes 74,767
— 30,549 51,413 56,287 65,819

Diane de Saint Victor 507,824
— 35,940 45,873 47,745 —

Frank Duggan 158.528
— 27,548 46,390 48,028 —

Greg Scheu 101.250 221,375 26,159 45,896 43,144

Sami Atiya (EC member
as of June 14,2016)

— — — — 37,693 —

Tarak Mehta 134,449 — 34,677 42,780 45,624 —

Bernhard Jucker 293.771
— 40,750 51,902 54,112 —

Claudio Facchin 63,795 — 31,083 42,845 47,722 —

Peter Terwiesch 46.312 — 16,457 36,698 44,969 —

Total Executive

Committee members

as of December 31,2016 1,796319 630,250 367.558 580,824 641,788 65,819
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Exhibit 27:ECownership of ABBshares and options as of December 31,2015 (audited)
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(vesting 2016

Name (vesting 2016) (vesting 2017) (vesting 2018) and 2018)

Ulrich Spiesshofer 289,048 —
78,395 93,846 172,465 —

Eric Elzvik 23,768 710.125 27,071 30,549 44,562
—

Jean-Christophe Deslarzes — -

27,071 30,549 51,413 144,802

Diane de Saint Victor 475,446 -
31,848 35,940 45,873 —

Frank Duggan 132.896
-

25.632 27,548 46,390
—

Greg Scheu 83,901 221,375 24,830 26,159 45,896
—

Pekka Tiitinen 21.000 221,375 22.294 25,158 42,845
—

Tarak Mehta 115,977 —
25.632 34,677 42,780

—

Veli-Matti Reinikkala 202,175 —
9,810 27,674 36,010

—

Bernhard Jucker 267,848 —
37,033 40,750 51,902

—

Claudio Facchin 41,501 -
22,294 31.083 42.845

—

Peter Terwiesch 30,393 250,000 15,919 16,457 36,698
—

Total Executive

Committee members

as of December 31,2015 1,683,953 1,402,875 347,829 420.390 659,679 144,802

Exhibit 28: ECownership of WARs and conditionally granted ABBshares (allcash-settled) as of December 31,2016 (audited)

Vested at December 31,2016 Unvested at December 31,2016

Name

Ulrich Spiesshofer

Eric Elzvik

Jean-Christophe Deslarzes

Diane de Saint Victor

Frank Duggan

Greg Scheu

Sami Atiya (EC member as of June 14,2016)

Tarak Mehta

Bernhard Jucker

Claudio Facchin

Peter Terwiesch

Total Executive Committee

members as of December 31,2016

Reference number of shares under the

Number of fully vested performance component of the 2014
WARs heldunderthe MIP launch of the LTIP

(vesting 2017)

51,489

17,147

17,147

20,173

15,463

14,684

16,139

19.548

14,122

10,292

196,204
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Exhibit 29: EC ownership of WARs andconditionally granted ABB shares (all cash-settled) as of December 31,2015 (audited)

Name

Ulrich Spiesshofer

Eric Elzvik

Jeane-Christophe Deslarzes

Diane de Saint Victor

Frank Duggan

Greg Scheu

Pekka Tiitinen

Tarak Mehta

Veli-Matti Reinikkalla

Bernhard Jucker

Claudio Facchin

Peter Terwiesch

Total Executive Committee

members as of December 31,2015

Vested at

December 31.2015

Number of fully vested WARs
held under the M1P

287,500

287,500

Unvested at December 31,2015

Reference number

of shares under

the performance
component of the 2013

launch of the LTIP

(vesting 2016)

50,024

16,659

16,659

19,599

15,023

14,553

13,720

15,023

15,091

18,992

13,720

10,007

219,070

Reference number

of shares under

the performance
component of the 2014

launch of the LTIP

(vesting 2017)

51.489

17,147

17,147

20,173

15.463

14,684

14,122

16,139

15.534

19,548

14,122

10,292

225,860
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Report of the statutory auditor
on the Compensation report

To the General Meeting

of ABB Ltd, Zurich

We have audited the accompanying Compensation
report of ABB Ltd for the year ended December 31,
2016. The audit was limited to the information

according to articles 14-16 of the Ordinance against
Excessive Compensation in Stock Exchange
Listed Companies (Ordinance) contained in the
tables labeled "audited" on pages 75 to 82 of
the Compensation report.

Board of Directors' responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation and overall fair presentation of the
Compensation report in accordance with Swiss
law and the Ordinance. The Board of Directors is

also responsible for designing the compensation
system and defining individual compensation

packages.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
accompanying Compensation report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Swiss Auditing Stan

dards. Those standards require that we comply

with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the Compensation report complies with

Swiss law and articles 14-16 of the Ordinance.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence on the disclosures made in the

Compensation report with regard to compensation,

loans and credits in accordance with articles 14-16

of the Ordinance. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assess

ment of the risks of material misstatements in

the Compensation report, whether due to fraud or
error. This audit also includes evaluating the
reasonableness of the methods applied to value

components of compensation, as well as assessing
the overall presentation of the Compensation report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Opinion

Inour opinion, the Compensation report for the
year ended December 31,2016 of ABB Ltd complies
with Swiss law and articles 14-16 of the Ordinance.

Ernst &Young AG

Leslie Clifford

Licensed audit expert

(Auditor in charge)

Zurich, Switzerland

March 10,2017

Robin Enrico

Licensed audit expert
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We have to look ahead and

do things differently.

Because one thing is clear:
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About ABB

ABB is a pioneering technology leader in electrifi
cation products, robotics and motion, industrial
automation and power grids serving customers in
utilities, industry and transport &infrastructure
globally. For more than four decades, ABB has been
part of the industrial digitalization. With more than
70 million devices connected through its installed

04 FINANCIAL REVIEW OF ABB GROUP

base of more than 70,000 control systems across

all customer segments it serves, ABB is well-
positioned to benefit from the Energyand Fourth
Industrial Revolution. With a heritage of more

than 130 years, ABB operates in more than 100
countries with about 132,000 employees.

History of the ABB Group
The ABB Group was formed in 1988 through
a merger between Asea ABand BBC Brown

Boveri AG. Initially founded in 1883, Asea AB was

a major participant in the introduction of electricity
into Swedish homes and businesses and in the

development of Sweden's railway network. In the
1940s and 1950s, Asea AB expanded into the power,

mining and steel industries. Brown Boveri and Cie.

(later renamed BBC Brown Boveri AG) was formed in

Switzerland in 1891 and initially specialized in power

generation and turbines. In the early to mid-1900s,

it expanded its operations throughout Europe and
broadened its business operations to include a wide

range of electrical engineering activities.

In January 1988, Asea AB and BBC Brown Boveri AG

each contributed almost all of their businesses to

the newly formed ABBAsea Brown Boveri Ltd, of

which they each owned 50 percent. In 1996, Asea

AB was renamed ABB AB and BBC Brown Boveri AG

was renamed ABB AG. In February 1999, the ABB

Group announced a group reconfiguration de
signed to establish a single parent holding company
and a single class of shares. ABB Ltd was incorpo

rated on March 5,1999, under the laws of

Switzerland. In June 1999, ABB Ltd became the

holding company for the entire ABB Group. This

was accomplished by having ABB Ltd issue shares

to the shareholders of ABB AG and ABB AB, the

two companies that formerly owned the ABB

Group. The ABB Ltd shares were exchanged for the

shares of those two companies, which, as a result

of the share exchange and certain related transac

tions, became wholly-owned subsidiaries of

ABB Ltd. ABB Ltd shares are currently listed on the

SIXSwiss Exchange, the NASDAQOMX Stockholm

Exchange and the New York Stock Exchange (in the

form of American Depositary Shares).

Organizational structure
Our business is international in scope and we

generate revenues in numerous currencies. We are

headquartered in Zurich, Switzerland.

We manage our business based on a divisional

structure, which until December 31, 2016, com

prised of four divisions: Electrification Products,

Discrete Automation and Motion, Process

Automation and Power Grids. For a breakdown of

our consolidated revenues (i) by operating division

and (ii) derived from each geographic region in
which we operate, see "Analysis of Results of
Operations - Revenues".

Effective January 1, 2017, ABBoperates in a

streamlined set-up of four divisions: Electrification

Products, Robotics and Motion, Industrial

Automation and Power Grids. The divisions will be
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empowered as entrepreneurial units within ABB,
reflected in an enhancement of their performance
and compensation model focusing on individual
accountability and responsibility. The divisions
benefit from sales collaboration orchestrated by
regions and countries as wellas from the group-
wide digital offering, ABB's low-cost centralized
administrative structure, common supply chain
management and corporate research centers. ABB
intends to continue to strengthen its divisions
through active portfolio management. This
includes pursuing strategic additions, transform
ing business models and pruning non-core
businesses. Electrification Products strives to be
the partner of choice for electrification across

numerous consumption points, Robotics and

Motion strives to be the partner of choice for
robotics and intelligent motion solutions,
Industrial Automation strives to be the partner of
choice for industrial automation and Power Grids

strives to be the partner of choice for stronger,
smarter and greener grids. See "Business Divisions
- Division realignment" for additional information
related to the realignment of certain business
divisions.
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Except where the context otherwise requires or
where otherwise indicated, the information below
is presented to reflect our business prior to this
realignment to be consistent with the basis used in
preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements.

We operate in approximately 100 countries across
three regions: Europe, the Americas, and Asia,
Middle East and Africa (AMEA). A breakdown of our
employees by geographic region is as follows:

December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Europe

The Americas

Asia, Middle East and

Africa

61,400

29,000

41,900

61,600

30,900

43,300

63,000

32,200

45,200

Total 132,300 135,800 140,400

The proportion of our employees that are repre
sented by labor unions or are the subject of
collective bargaining agreements varies based
on the labor practices of each country in which
we operate.

Business Divisions

Electrification Products Division

Overview

The Electrification Products division provides
solutions across the full electrical value chain

from the substation to the point of consumption.
The innovations from this business enable

a safer and more reliable electrical flow, with

a full range of low- and medium-voltage products
and solutions for intelligent protection and
connection as well as pre-engineered packaged
solutions and services tailored to customers'

needs. The portfolio - within increasingly digital

and connected solutions -includes modular

substation packages, distribution automation
products, switchgear, circuit breakers, measuring

and sensing devices, control products, wiring
accessories, and enclosures and cabling systems,

including KNX systems (global standard
for home and building control) designed to
integrate and automate a building's lighting,
heating and ventilation, and security and data
communication networks.

Most of the division's revenue is derived from

sales through distributors, wholesalers, original
equipment manufacturers (OEMs), system
integrators, utilities and panel builders, with

some direct sales to end-users, utilities and other

ABB divisions.

The Electrification Products division had approxi

mately 40,600 employees as of December 31,2016,
and generated $9.3 billion of revenues in 2016.

Customers

The Electrification Products division serves

a wide range of customers who are connecting,
protecting and controlling electricity from
a number of industry segments including buildings,
data centers, rail, wind and solar, food and

beverage, marine and oil and gas.

Products and Services

The businesses of the Electrification Products

division are more fully described below.



The Protection and Connection business offers

products that protect, control and connect
people, plants and systems. ABB offers solutions
to restore power rapidly in case of a fault and
helps provide optimum protection for people
and electrical installations. The product offering

ranges from miniature circuit breakers to
high-capacity molded-case and air-circuit
breakers and includes safety switches used for
power distribution in factories and buildings,
switchgear systems for short circuitand overload
protection as well as cabling and connection
components. In addition, the business offers
terminal blocks, a range of contactors, soft
starters, starters, proximity sensors, safety
products for industrial protection, limit switches
and manual motor starters, along with electronic
relays and overload relays.

The Building Products business provides smart
home and intelligent building control systems, also
known as KNX protocol, to optimize efficiency,
safety and comfort through the automated
management of lighting, shutters and security. In
addition, the business supplies conventional wiring
accessories, industrial plugs and sockets, and
enclosures ideal for single family homes, multiple
dwellings, commercial buildings, infrastructure and
industrial applications.

The Installation Products business offers products

for low-voltage wire and cable management,
making the task of fastening, protecting, insulating
and connecting wires easier and quicker for
industrial applications, construction, communica
tions, utility and OEM professionals, as well
as do-it-yourself specialists. The business offers
emergency lighting and lighting for explosive

environments, as well as lightning protection and
earth grounding apparatus.

The Medium Voltage Products business helps
utility, industry and transport &infrastructure
customers to improve power quality and control,

reduce outage time and enhance operational

reliability and efficiency. The business offers
products and services that largely serve the power
distribution sector, often providing the link
between high-voltage transmission systems and
low-voltage users. Its comprehensive offering
includes medium-voltage equipment (1 to 50
kilovolts), indoor and outdoor circuit breakers,

reclosers, fuses, contactors, relays, instrument
transformers, sensors, motor control centers, ring
main units for primary and secondary distribution,
as well as a range of air- and gas-insulated
switchgear. It also produces indoor and outdoor

modular systems and other solutions to facilitate

efficient and reliable power distribution.
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The Electrification Solutions business offers systems

solutions to customers across low- and medium-

voltage applications, integrating the entire offering
from the division into complete solutions for
customers, adding value through design, engineering,
project management and service.

In addition, the service offerings of the
Electrification Products division span the entire
value chain, from the moment a customer makes

the first inquiry to disposal and recycling of the
product. Throughout the value chain, ABB provides
training, technical support and customized
contracts. Allof this is supported by an extensive
global sales and service network.

Sales and Marketing

Sales are primarily made through indirect sales
channels such as distributors and wholesalers to

end customers including installers and system
integrators. Directcustomers includeutilities,panel
builders and machine builders, as well as other ABB

divisions. The proportion of direct sales compared
to channel partner sales varies among the different
industries, product technologies and geographic
markets. The business is focused on creating

demand to support its channel sales, with a range
of promotional activities and support services
including configuration and other digital solutions.

Competition

The Electrification Products division's principal

competitors vary by product line, but they include
Eaton Corporation, Legrand, Schneider, Siemens,
Hubbell, Leviton, Rittal and Chint Electrical.

Capital Expenditures
The Electrification Products division's capital

expenditures for property, plant and equipment

totaled $200 million in 2016, compared to
$210 million and $248 million in 2015 and 2014,

respectively. Investments in 2016 were primarily
related to footprint changes, equipment replace

ment and upgrades. Geographically, in 2016,

Europe represented 52 percent of the capital
expenditures, followed by the Americas (32 percent)
and AMEA(16 percent).

Discrete Automation and

Motion Division

Overview

The Discrete Automation and Motion division

provides products, solutions and related services

that increase industrial productivity and energy
efficiency. Our key products such as motors,
generators, drives, power electronics and robotics

provide power, motion and control for a wide
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range of automation applications. The leading
position in wind generators and a growing
offering in solar complement the industrial focus,
leveraging joint technology, channels and opera
tions platforms.

Revenues are generated both from direct sales to
end-users as well as from indirect sales through
distributors, machine builders, system integrators,
and panel builders.

The Discrete Automation and Motion division had

approximately 29,100 employees as of December 31,
2016, and generated $8.7 billion of revenues in 2016.

Products and Services

The businesses of the Discrete Automation and

Motion division are more fully described below.

The Robotics business offers robots, controllers,
software systems, as well as complete robot
automation solutions and a comprehensive range
of advanced services for automotive and Tier

One OEMs as well as for the general industry.
These improve flexibility, quality, productivity and
connectivity, as part of the factory of the future.
Robots are also used in activities or environments

which may be hazardous to employee health
and safety, such as repetitive or strenuous lifting,
dusty, hot or cold rooms, or painting booths.
In the automotive industry, robot products and
systems are used in such areas as press shop,

body shop, paint shop, power train assembly, trim
and final assembly. General industry segments
in which robotics solutions are used range from
metal fabrication, foundry, plastics, food
and beverage, chemicals and pharmaceuticals,
and electronics. Typical robotic applications in
general industry include welding, material handling,
machine tending, painting, picking, packing,
palletizing and small parts assembly automation.

The Motors and Generators business supplies

a comprehensive range of electrical motors,
generators, and mechanical power transmission

products. The range of electrical motors includes
high efficiency motors that conform to leading
environmental and Minimum Energy Performance

Standards (MEPS). Efficiency is an important
selection criterion for customers, because electric

motors account for nearly two-thirds of the
electricity consumed by industrial plants. The
business unit manufactures synchronous motors
for the most demanding applications and a full
range of low- and high-voltage induction motors,
for both IEC (International Electrotechnical

Commission) and NEMA(National Electrical
Manufacturers Association) standards. The

business unit has recently launched a new condi
tion monitoring solution for low voltage (LV)
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motors that monitors and provides vital motor
performance intelligence to help improve uptime,
extend motor lifetimes, and increase machine

performance and productivity. It connects motors
with the Internet of Things (loT).

The Drives and Controls business provides
low-voltage and medium-voltage drives and
systems for industrial, commercial and residential

applications. Drives provide speed, torque and
motion control for equipment such as fans,
pumps, compressors, conveyors, centrifuges,
mixers, hoists, cranes, extruders, printing
and textile machines. They are used in industries
such as building automation, marine, power,
transportation, food and beverage, metals, mining,
oil and gas.

The Power Conversion business produces exci
tation and synchronizing systems that provide
stability for power stations and high power
rectifiers that convert alternating current (AC) to
direct current (DC)for high-current applications
such as electric arc furnaces and aluminum

smelters. It also manufactures solar inverters, wind
turbine converters, uninterruptible power supply
systems and converters for power protection, as
well as rail traction converters, DC wayside power
solutions and a range of solutions for charging of
electric vehicles.

The division also offers services that complement
its products, including design and project manage
ment, engineering, installation, training and
life-cycle care, energy efficiency appraisals and
preventive maintenance.

Customers

The Discrete Automation and Motion division serves

a wide range of customers. Customers include
machinery manufacturers, process industries such

as pulp and paper, oil and gas, and metals and
mining companies, hybrid and batch manufacturers
such as food and beverage companies, rail equip
ment manufacturers, discrete manufacturing
companies such as '3C (computer, communication
and consumer electronic), utilities and renewable

energy suppliers, particularly in the wind and solar
sectors, as well as customers in the automotive

industry and electric vehicle charging networks.

Sales and Marketing

Sales are made both through direct sales forces
as well as through third-party channel partners,
such as distributors, wholesalers, installers,

machine builders and OEMs, system integrators,
and panel builders. The proportion of direct sales
compared to channel partner sales varies among
the different industries, product technologies and
geographic markets.



Competition

The Discrete Automation and Motion division's

principal competitors vary by product line but
include Fanuc Robotics, Kuka Robot Group, Rockwell

Automation, Schneider, Siemens, Yaskawa, SMA

and WEG Industries.

Capital Expenditures
The Discrete Automation and Motion division's

capital expenditures for property, plant and
equipment totaled $128million in 2016,compared
to $145 million and $192 million in 2015 and in 2014,

respectively. Principal investments in 2016 were
primarily related to equipment replacement and
upgrades. Geographically, in 2016, Europe repre
sented 47 percent of the capital expenditures,
followed by the Americas (30 percent) and AMEA
(23 percent).

Process Automation Division

Overview

The Process Automation division offers customers

solutions that are designed to optimize the
productivity, energy efficiency and safety of their
industrial processes by combining the division's
integrated control products, systems and service
offerings with deep domain and process expertise
of each end market. Solutions include turnkey

engineering, control systems, measurement

products, life cycle services, outsourced mainte
nance and industry-specific products such as
electric propulsion for ships, Azipods, mine hoists,

turbochargers and pulp and paper quality control

equipment. The systems can link various processes

and information flows which allows customers to

manage their entire manufacturing and business
process based on real-time access to plant informa

tion. Additionally, the systems allow customers to

increase production efficiency, optimize their
assets and reduce environmental waste. Some of

the products from the Discrete Automation and

Motion, Power Grids and Electrification Products

divisions are integrated into the process control
and electrification solutions offered by the Process
Automation division.

The Process Automation division offerings are
available as separately sold products or as part of
a total automation, electrification and/or instru

mentation system. The division's technologies are
sold primarily through direct sales forces as well as
third-party channels.

The division had approximately 23,600 employees
as of December 31,2016, and generated revenues
of $6.6 billion in 2016.
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Customers

The Process Automation division's end customers

are primarily companies in the oil and gas, minerals
and mining, metals, pulp and paper, chemicals and
pharmaceuticals, food and beverage, power
generation and marine industries. These custom
ers are looking for complete automation, instru
mentation, and electrification solutions that

deliver value mainly through lower capital costs,
increased plant availability,lower life cycle costs
and reduced project costs.

Products and Services

The businesses of the Process Automation division

are described in more detail below; solutions by

end market as well as the stand alone products and

solutions offerings.

The Oil, Gas and Chemicals business provides
solutions across the entire hydrocarbon value
chain, from exploration and production to supply,
transport and distribution, as well as refining,
chemicals and petrochemicals. ABB specializes in
mastering the control loop and transforming client
operations through actionable insights that
optimize performance in real time. From the well
head to the refinery, ABBtechnologies connect
people with data to optimize performance,
improve reliability, enhance efficiency and mini
mize environmental impact from project start-up

throughout the entire plant life cycle.

Other Process Industry markets served include
mining, minerals processing, metals, pharmaceuti

cals and pulp and paper as well as their associated
service industries. The business' added value is

deep industry expertise coupled with the ability to
integrate both automation and electronics,
resulting in faster start-up times, increased plant

productivity and reduced overall capital and
operating costs for customers. For mining, metals

and cement industries, solutions include special

ized products and services, as well as total

production systems. The business designs, plans,
engineers, supplies, erects and commissions

electric equipment, drives, motors and equipment

for automation and supervisory control within
a variety of areas including mineral handling,

mining operations, aluminum smelting, hot and
cold steel applications and cement production. In
the pharmaceuticals and fine chemicals areas, the

business offers applications to support manufac
turing, packaging, quality control and compliance
with regulatory agencies. The offering for the pulp
and paper industries includes quality control
systems, control systems, drive systems, on-line
sensors, actuators and field instruments.

ABB serves the Power Generation market with

leading automation solutions for all types of power
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generation such as coal, gas, combined-cycle,
waste-to-energy as well as renewable sources such

as hydro,solar, wind and biomass. Withan offering
that includes instrumentation and control systems,
ABB technologies help optimize performance,
improve reliability,enhance efficiency and mini
mize environmental impact throughout the plant
life cycle. The business also serves the water

industry,includingapplications such as pumping
stations and desalination plants.

ABB services the Marine and Ports business

through its leading solutions for specialty vessels,
container and bulk cargo handling. For the
shipping industry, ABB offers an extensive
portfolio of integrated marine systems and
solutions that improve the flexibility, reliability
and energy efficiency of vessels. Bycoupling
power, automation and marine software, proven
fuel-efficient technologies and services that
ensure maximum vessel uptime, ABBis in the

position to improve the profitability of a custom
er's business throughout the entire life cycle of
a fleet. ABB designs, engineers, builds, supplies
and commissions automation and electrical

systems for marine power generation, power
distribution and electric propulsion, as well as
turbochargers to improve efficiency. With ABB's
integrated operations centers around the world
and marine software solutions, owners and

operators can run their fleets at lower fuel and

maintenance cost, while improving crew, passen
ger, and cargo safety and overall productivity of
their operations. In addition, ABB delivers auto

mation and electrical systems for container and

bulk cargo handling -from ship to gate. The
systems and services help terminal operators

meet the challenge of larger ships, taller cranes
and bigger volumes per call, and make terminal
operations safer, greener and more productive.

ABBoffers an extensive portfolio of products and
software from stand-alone basic control to

integrated collaborative systems for complex or

critical processes. One of the solutions, System
800xA, provides a scalable extended automation

system for process and production control, safety,
and production monitoring. Freelance, another
solution, is a full-fledged, easy-to-use distributed
control system for small to medium size applica
tions. The PLCAutomation portfolio offers
a scalable range for small, middle and high-end
applications. Components for basic automation
solutions, process and safety controllers, field
interfaces, panels, process recorders and Human
Machine Interfaces are available through our

Compact Product Suite offering. The product
portfolio is complemented by Automation Sentinel,
a subscription-based life cycle management
program that provides services to maintain and
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continually advance and enhance ABBcontrol
systems (e.g. cyber security patches) and thus
allows it to manage a customer's life cycle costs.
The Advanced Services offering provides individual
software-based services to continuously improve
automation and processes. ABBalso offers
Manufacturing Execution Systems that create
agility and transparency for production processes
by synchronizing and orchestrating a flow across
individual automation islands. An interactive

software platform, Decathlon Software, combines
plant operations data from control systems,
enterprise resource planning (ERP)and other data
sources into actionable information for decision

makers creates additional customer value. ABB

focuses strongly on the human factor and thus
offers operator interfaces from panels to holistic
control room solutions with ergonomic furniture
and control centers to drive productivity, quality
and safety to new levels.

The offerings of the Measurement and Analytics
business are designed to measure product proper
ties, such as weight, thickness, color, brightness,
moisture content and additive content. Actuators

allow the customer to make automatic adjustments
during the production process to improve the
quality and consistency of the product. Field
instruments measure properties of the process,
such as flow rate, chemical content and tempera
ture. The business also offers a full line of instru

mentation and analytical products to analyze,
measure and record industrial and power processes.

ABBmanufactures and maintains turbochargers
for diesel and gas engines having power levels
ranging from 500 kilowatts to over 80 megawatts.

The business provides engine builders and
application operators with advanced turbocharging

solutions for efficient and flexible application

operations and in compliance with the most

stringent environmental requirements.

In addition, ABB offers a complete range of life
cycle services across all customer segments to help
customers optimize their assets. Demand for
process automation services is driven by custom
ers seeking to increase productivity by improving
the performance of existing equipment.

Sales and Marketing

The Process Automation division primarily uses its
direct sales force as well as third-party channel
partners, such as distributors, system integrators
and OEMs.The majority of revenues are derived
through the division's own direct sales channels.

Competition
The Process Automation division's principal

competitors vary by industry or product line.



Competitors include Emerson, Honeywell,Metso
Automation, Rockwell Automation, Schneider,

Siemens, Voith, and Yokogawa Electric Corporation.

Capital Expenditures
The Process Automation division's capital expendi

tures for property, plant and equipment totaled
$51 million in 2016, compared to $56 million and
$47 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively. Principal
investments in 2016 were in turbocharging and the

measurement products businesses. Geographically,
in 2016, Europe represented 57 percent of the
capital expenditures, followed by AMEA (23 per
cent) and Americas (20 percent).

Power Grids Division

Overview

The Power Grids division is a global leader in power
and automation technologies that help balance
the growing need for electricity with minimum
environmental impact, by enabling a stronger,

smarter and greener grid. The Power Grids division
provides electrical and automation product, system,
software and service solutions across the power

value chain. These solutions support utility, industry
and transport &infrastructure customers to plan,
build, operate and maintain their power infrastruc
ture. They are designed to facilitate the safe, reliable
and efficient integration, transmission and distribu
tion of bulk and distributed energy generated from
conventional and renewable sources.

Around three quarters of the division's revenues

come from utility customers but a significant
portion is generated from industrial and transport &
infrastructure customers. Power Grids has a world

wide customer base, with a wide spread of revenues

from a regional perspective across the Americas,

Europe and AMEA. The division also has a globally
diversified and well balanced manufacturing and
engineering footprint. Direct sales account for

a significant part of the division's total revenues
and external channel partners such as wholesalers,
distributors and OEMs account for the rest.

The division had approximately 37,000 employees
as of December 31,2016, and generated $11.0 bil
lion of revenues in 2016.

Customers

The Power Grids division's principal customers
include utilities, transmission and distribution

owners and operators as well as industrial,

transportation and infrastructure customers.

Products and Services

The businesses of the Power Grids division are

more fully described below.
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The GridSystems business is the world's largest
provider of HVDC systems. These systems use
Line Commutated Converter (HVDC Classic)

technology or Voltage Sourced Converter (HVDC
Light) technology.The portfolio also encompassed
high-voltage AC and DCcables, mainlyused for
subsea or underground applications and HVDC
links. It also includes a range of high power semi
conductors, a core technology for power electronics
deployed in HVDC, FlexibleAlternating Current
Transmission Systems (FACTS) and railapplications.

The Grid Integration business is one of the world's
leading providers of transmission and distribution
substations and associated life-cycle services.
The substations are provided either as engineered
solutions (system integration) or on a turnkey,
engineering, procurement, construction (EPC)
basis, for utility and non-utility applications
including renewables, rail, data-centers, industry,
battery energy storage and shore-to-ship power
supply. This business is also the leading global
provider of FACTS, which includes Static Var
Compensation (SVC)and static compensator
(STATCOM) technology. These systems stabilize

voltages, minimize losses, and keep power
quality in accordance with grid codes.

The Transformers business supplies transformers
that are an integral component found across the
power value chain, enabling the efficient and safe
conversion of electricity to different voltages. ABB
is the world's largest maker of transformers. The
product range is designed for reliability, durability

and efficiency with a portfolio that includes power
transformers, dry- and liquid-distribution trans

formers, traction transformers for rail applications,

and special application transformers and related

components such as insulation kits, bushings and

other transformer accessories. In addition, ABB's

power transformers are pushing the voltage
barrier to unprecedented levels of 1100 kV DC and

1200 kVAC,facilitating more power to be trans
ported longer distances with minimum losses.
Other technology developments include grid-

resilient transformers designed to withstand
physical attack, eco-efficient transformers using
biodegradable oil and innovative sensor-based as

well as software-leveraging solutions for remote
maintenance and asset optimization.

The High Voltage products business is a global
leader in high-voltage switchgear with a portfolio
spanning air-insulated, gas-insulated and hybrid
technologies. It also manufactures generator
circuit breakers, a key product for integrating large
power plants into the grid. The portfolio also
includes a broad range of capacitors and filters
that facilitate power quality as well as instrument
transformers and other substation components.
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The Grid Automation business is at the forefront

of grid automation and digitalization. It supplies
substation automation products, systems and
services. It also provides Supervisory Control and
Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems for transmission
and distribution networks as wellas a range of
wireless, fiber optic and power line carrier based
telecommunication technologies for mission critical
applications. Thisbusinessalso offers microgrid
solutionsthat are beingincreasingly deployed for
remote and partially grid connected applications.
Alsoincluded in this business is the enterprise
softwareportfolio - a provider ofan industry-leading
suite of software solutions that help utilities and
other asset-intensiveindustries (e.g.rail, mining)
manage, maintain and optimize their assets.

Thedivision also providesserviceswhichrepresent
an increasing part of each business and which are
a growing focus area for the division with its

significant installed product base. The portfolio of
services offered includes spare parts, installation,
commissioning, condition monitoring and mainte
nance services, on- and off-site repairs as well as
retrofits and upgrades. Increasinglymore advanced
software-based monitoring and advisory services
are being added to the portfolio to support the
development of the digitalization of the grids.

Competition

On a global basis, the Power Grids division faces
worldwide competition across its portfolio mainly
from Siemens and General Electric (GE Alstom). It
also competes in specific geographies and in parts
of the business with companies such as Hyundai,
Hyosung, Crompton Greaves, TBEA and NARI.The

breadth of its portfolio, technology and innovation,
a global footprint and a vast installed base enable
the division to maintain its leading position in the
power sector.

Capital Expenditures

The Power Grids division's capital expenditures for

property, plant and equipment totaled $203 million

in 2016, compared to $191 million and $242 million
in 2015 and 2014, respectively. Principal investments

in 2016 were related to capacity expansion as well as
the replacement of existing equipment, particularly
in Sweden, the U.S. and Switzerland. Geographically,

in 2016, Europe represented 68 percent of the
capital expenditures, followed by the Americas
(19 percent) and AMEA(13 percent).

Corporate and Other

Corporate and Other includes headquarters, central
research and development, our real estate activities,

Group Treasury Operations and other minor
business activities. In addition, we have classified
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the historical business activities of significant
divested businesses in Corporate and Other.

Corporate headquarters and stewardship activities
include the operations of our corporate headquar
ters in Zurich, Switzerland, as wellas corporate-
related activities in various countries. These

activities cover staff functions with group-wide
responsibilities, such as accounting and financial
reporting, corporate finance and taxes, planning
and controlling, internalaudit, legaland integrity,
compliance, risk management and insurance,
corporate communications, information systems,
investor relations and human resources.

Corporate research and development primarily
covers our research activities, as our development
activities are organized under the four business
divisions. Wehave two global research laboratories,
one focused on power technologies and the other
focused on automation technologies, which both
work on technologies relevant to the future of our
four business divisions.Eachlaboratory works on
new and emerging technologies and collaborates
with universities and other external partners to
support our divisions in advancing relevant technol
ogies and in developing cross-divisional technology
platforms. We have corporate research centers in
seven countries (China, India, Germany, Poland,

Sweden, Switzerland and the U.S.).

Corporate and Other had approximately 2,000
employees at December 31,2016.

Division realignment

On October 4,2016, we announced a planned

change in the composition of the business
portfolio of our four divisions. Effective January 1,
2017, the scope of the Electrification Products

division has been expanded to include the electric

vehicle charging, solar, and power quality

businesses from the Discrete Automation and

Motion division.

In addition, the Discrete Automation and Motion

division has been renamed the Robotics and

Motion division while the Process Automation

division has been renamed the Industrial

Automation division.
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Capital expenditures
Total capital expenditures for property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets (excluding

intangibles acquired through business combina

tions) amounted to $831 million, $876 million,

$1,026 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

In 2016, 2015 and 2014, capital expenditures were

27 percent, 24 percent and 21 percent lower,

respectively, than depreciation and amortization

(excluding acquisition-related amortization, capital

expenditures were 3 percent lower and 3 percent

and 11 percent higher, respectively, than deprecia

tion and amortization).

Capital expenditures in 2016 remained at a signifi

cant level in mature markets, reflecting the
geographic distribution of our existing production

facilities. Capital expenditures in Europe and

North America in 2016 were driven primarily by

upgrades and maintenance of existing production

facilities, mainly in the U.S., Sweden, Switzerland

and Germany. Capital expenditures in emerging

markets were highest in China, Poland, India, and

Turkey. Capital expenditures in emerging markets

were made primarily to increase production

capacity by investment in new or expanded
facilities. The share of emerging markets capital

expenditures as a percentage of total capital

expenditures in 2016, 2015 and 2014 was 35 per

cent, 31 percent and 29 percent, respectively.

At December 31, 2016, construction in progress for

property, plant and equipment was $515 million,

mainly in the U.S., China, Sweden, Switzerland
and Germany. At December 31, 2015, construction

in progress for property, plant and equipment
was $559 million, mainly in Sweden, the U.S.,

China, Switzerland and Germany, while at
December 31, 2014, construction in progress for

property, plant and equipment was $653 million

mainly in Sweden, the U.S., Switzerland, Saudi

Arabia and China.

Our capital expenditures relate primarily to

property, plant and equipment. For 2017, we

estimate the expenditures for property, plant and

equipment will be higher than our annual depreci

ation and amortization charge (excluding acquisi

tion-related amortization).

Supplies and raw materials
We purchase a variety of raw materials and

products which contain raw materials for use in our

production and project execution processes. The

primary materials used in our products, by weight,

are copper, aluminum, carbon steel, mineral oil and

various plastics. We also purchase a wide variety of

fabricated products and electronic components.

We operate a worldwide supply chain management

network with employees dedicated to this function

in our businesses and key countries. Our supply

chain management network consists of a number

of teams, each focusing on different product

categories. These category teams, on global,

divisional and/or regional level, take advantage of

opportunities to leverage the scale of ABB and to

optimize the efficiency of our supply networks, in

a sustainable manner.

Our supply chain management organization's

activities have continued to expand in recent

years, to:

• pool and leverage procurement of materials

and services,

• provide transparency of ABB's global spending

through a comprehensive performance and

reporting system linked to our ERP systems,

• strengthen ABB's supply chain network by

implementing an effective product category

management structure and extensive competency-

based training, and

• monitor and develop our supply base to ensure

sustainability, both in terms of materials and

processes used.

We buy many categories of products which contain

steel, copper, aluminum, crude oil and other

commodities. Continuing global economic growth

in many emerging economies, coupled with the

volatility in foreign currency exchange rates, has

led to significant fluctuations in these raw material

costs over the last few years. While we expect

global commodity prices to remain highly volatile,



we expect to offset some market volatility through
the use of long-term contracts and global soi rcing.

V/e seek to mitigate the majority of our exposure
to commodity price risk by entering into hed ges.
For example, we manage copper and aluminum

price risk using principally swap contracts based on
prices for these commodities quoted on leading
exchanges. ABB's hedging policy is designed Io
safeguard margins by minimizing price volatility and
providing a stable cost base during order execution.

Inaddition to using hedging to reduce our exposure
to fluctuations in raw materials prices, in some
cases we can reduce this risk by incorporating

changes in raw materials prices into the prices of

our products (through price escalation clauses).

Overall, during 2016 supply chain management

personnel in our businesses, and in the countries in
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which we operate, along with the global category

teams, continued to focus on value chain optimiza

tion efforts in all areas, while maintaining and
improving quality and delivery performance.

In August 2012, the United States Securities and

Exchange Commission (SEC) issued its final rules

regarding "Conflict Minerals", as required by
section 1502 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform

and Consumer Protection Act. We initiated conflict

minerals processes in 2013 and have continuously
improved and tailored the processes to our value
chain. We continue to work with our suppliers and

customers, to enable us to comply with the rules

and disclosure obligations. Further information on

ABB's Conflict Minerals policy and supplier require

ments can be found under "Material Compliance"

at new.abb.com/about/supplying

Management overview
n 2016. we continued our Next Level transforma

tion aimed at accelerating sustainable value

creation and achieved significant results in our
three focus areas: profitable growth, relentl ?ss

execution and business-led collaboration.

Profitable growth

To drive a growth mindset, we adopted our "PIE"

formula of penetration, innovation and expansion,

with a focus on greater competitiveness, organic
growth, and reducing risks by aligning business

models more closely with our core competencies.

In 2016, the PIE initiatives helped mitigate market

headwinds resulting in a stable revenue de\elop-

ment in local currencies (however, in U.S. dollars

revenues declined 5 percent). There was po iitive

demand in strategic growth areas such as food

and beverage and robotics, while demand from

other areas such as process markets remained

subdued. Improving growth momentum resulted

in order growth in the fourth quarter of 20]6,

supported by strong growth in key market; such

as the U.S. and China.

At our Capital Markets Day in October 2016, we

announced our decision related to the stra.egic

portfolio review of our Power Grids division. We

intend to continue the Power Gr ids transformation

under ABB's ownership, with the focus on

high-growth segments and digitally enabled

services and software. As part of the ongoing
transformation, we intend to continue to de-risk

the Power Grids business model while tapping

growth opportunities through strategic partner

ships, such as those with two leading EPC compa

nies, Fluor and Aibel, announced in 2016. The Power

Grids division won large orders in the fourth
quarter of 2016 reflecting customer trust in ABB's

portfolio. These large orders included a $640 mil
lion UHVDC systems order for Raigarh-Pugalur in

India and a $100 million order for the upgrade of

the Sylmar converter station of the Pacific Intertie

high-voltage direct current power link in the U.S.

We laid the groundwork for future growth with

our quantum leap in digital - around ABB Ability™

-which we launched at our Capital Markets Day

in October 2016. ABBAbility™ combines ABB's

portfolio of digital solutions and services across

all customer segments, cementing our leading

position in the Fourth Industrial Revolution and

support the competiveness of our four entrepre

neurial divisions. We entered into a far-reaching

strategic partnership with Microsoft to develop

next-generation digital solutions on an integrated

cloud platform. We believe that our customers

will benefit from the unique combination of our

deep domain knowledge and extensive portfolio of

industrial solutions and Microsoft's Azure intelli

gent cloud, as well as B2B engineering



competence. Together, we believe the partners
will drive digital transformation in customer
segments across ABB's businesses such as robotics,
marine and e-mobility. Our digital transformation
willbe led by our Chief Digital Officer, Guido
Jouret, a pioneer in the Internet of Things, who
joined ABB on October 1,2016, reporting to our
CEO, Ulrich Spiesshofer.

As of 2017,ABB is driving growth in four market-
leading entrepreneurial divisions: Electrification
Products, Robotics and Motion, Industrial
Automation and Power Grids. The new division

structure was effective January 1,2017, and is now
fullyoperational. The divisions are expected to
drive growth as entrepreneurial units within ABB,
in line with one of our core values - "ownership

and performance". This is reflected in an enhanced
performance and compensation model, which
focuses on individual accountability and responsi
bility.The divisions benefit from sales collabora
tion orchestrated by ABB'sregions and countries
as well as from the group-wide digital offering,
a low-cost centralized administrative structure,

common supply chain management and corporate
research centers. We plan to continue to strength
en our divisions through active portfolio manage
ment. This includes pursuing strategic additions,
transforming business models and pruning
non-core businesses.

Relentless execution

The transformation of Power Grids continues. In

2016, the division increased Operational EBITA

by 16 percent, mainly driven by improved productivity,
solid project execution and continued cost savings.
These results reflect the success of the previously

announced "step change" program to date. Going
forward, the division is expected to continue to drive

further transformation and value creation through
its previously announced "Power Up" program. In
light of this strong operational excellence perfor

mance, ABB increased the profitability targets for
this division effective January 1,2018.

A key objective of the Next Level strategy is to
achieve world-class operational excellence at all

levels of the company. The White Collar Productivity
savings program has outperformed expectations
since its launch in 2015. As a result we increased

the program's cost reduction target by 30 percent
to $1.3billion.In2016,the White CollarProductivity
savings program amounted to $0.6 billion. We
also continued to deliver on our regular cost-savings
program of achieving savings equivalent to an
expected 3-5 percent of cost of sales each year.
We continued to execute our Net Working Capital
program, which aims to free-up approximately
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$2 billion from 2015-2017. In 2016, we reduced
working capital by around $550 million bringing
the total reduction to $900 million for the first

two years of the program.

In addition, we continued to align and drive our
new performance-based compensation model,
which has been implemented for 70,000 of our
132,000 employees.

Business-led collaboration

Weare adopting a single corporate brand,
consolidating all our brands around the world
under one umbrella. Our portfolio of companies
is being unified, showcasing the full breadth
and depth of ABB'sglobal offering under one
master brand. The unified brand plays a key part

in realizing the value potential of our digital
offering, as we expect it will increase brand
loyalty, price premiums and purchase probability.
The brand features design elements intended to
clearly articulate ABB's vision, direction and
unique market position to customers, sharehold
ers, employees and all other stakeholders. Our
heritage as a pioneering technology leader and
the three focus areas of our Next Level strategy

are reflected in our new brand promise: "Let's
write the future."™

Over the past two years, we have simplified
our organizational setup, reducing the number
of global regions from eight to three, and the
divisions from five to four. In addition, many

business units have been relocated closer to their

key markets and customers, leading to a more
responsive, customer-focused organization. The
work is not over, but today ABBis a simpler,

faster and more agile company, positioned at

the heart of the Energy and Fourth Industrial
Revolutions, and ready to take advantage of the

exciting growth opportunities that are emerging

across its markets.

Next Level strategy - stage 3

On October 4,2016, we launched stage 3 of our

Next Level strategy to unlock additional value

for shareholders and customers. Building on the
focus areas of profitable growth, relentless
execution and business-led collaboration, stage 3
consists of four actions:

• Driving growth in four market-leading entrepre
neurial divisions,

• Quantum leap in digital,

• Accelerating momentum in operational
excellence, and

• Strengthening the global ABB brand.
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Drivinggrowth in four market-leading,
entrepreneurial units

Weare driving growth in four market leading
entrepreneurial divisions: Electrification Products,
Robotics and Motion, Industrial Automation and

Power Grids. The new division structure was effective

January l, 2017, and is now fully operational.

A quantum leap in digital with ABB Ability™
The ABB Ability™ offering combines our portfolio
of digital solutions and services across all customer
segments, cementing our leading position in
the Fourth Industrial Revolution and supporting
the competitiveness of our four entrepreneurial
divisions. With ABB Ability™, we see an annual
addressable market of up to $20 billion.

Accelerating momentum in operational excellence
The WhiteCollarProductivitysavings program
is on track to deliver the increased cost reduction

target of $1.3 billion (run rate end of 2017).We
intend to achieve these additional savings within
the initiallyannounced timeframe and for approxi
mately $200 million lower of total combined
restructuring program costs and implementation
costs than initially announced in 2015. We are
continuing our regular cost-savings programs
to achieve savings equivalent to an expected
3-5 percent of cost of sales each year.

Wecontinue to deliver on our Net Working Capital
program which plans to free-up a total of $2 billion
by the end of 2017. In the first two years of the
program, we have freed up approximately
$900 million.

Strengthening ABB's brand

We are adopting a single corporate brand, consoli
dating all our brands around the world under one

umbrella. Our portfolio of companies is being
unified, showcasing the full breadth and depth of
our global offering under one master brand. The
unified brand plays a key part in realizing the value
potential of our digital offering, as we expect it

will increase brand loyalty, price premiums and
purchase probability.

Capital allocation

Our shareholders are expected to benefit from our

expected strong cash generation and financial
position through a new share buyback program of
up to $3 billion from 2017 through 2019. In addition,
the Board of Directors is proposing an eighth

consecutive increase in the dividend to 0.76 Swiss

francs per share at the 2017 AGM.
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ABB's capital allocation priorities remain
unchanged:

• funding organic growth, research and develop
ment, and capital expenditures at attractive
cash returns,

• paying a steadily rising, sustainable dividend,
• investing in value-creating acquisitions, and
• returning additional cash to shareholders.

As a pioneering technology leader, committed to
unlockingvalue,we believewe are wellpositioned
to capture growth opportunities as the Energy
and Fourth Industrial Revolutions unfold. We have

a clear transformation plan to drive earnings per
share and cash return on invested capital, as well
as an efficient balance sheet to generate attractive
returns for shareholders.

Outlook

Macroeconomic and geopolitical developments
are signaling a mixed picture with continued
uncertainty. Some macroeconomic signs in the
U.S. remain positive and growth in China is
expected to continue. The overall global market
remains impacted by modest growth and increased
uncertainties, such as the United Kingdom's
potential withdrawal from the European Union and
geopolitical tensions in various parts of the world.
Oil prices and foreign exchange translation effects
are expected to continue to influence our results.

With this and the ongoing transformation of ABB,
we expect 2017 to be a transitional year.

The attractive long-term demand outlook in our

three major customer sectors - utilities, industry
and transport &infrastructure - is driven by the
Energy and Fourth Industrial Revolutions.

We believe we are well positioned to tap into these
opportunities for long-term profitable growth with

our strong market presence, broad geographic and
business scope, technology leadership and
financial strength.



04 FINANCIAL REVIEW OF ABB GROUP 101

Application of critical accounting
policies

General

We prepare our Consolidated Financial Statements
in accordance with U.S. GAAPand present these in

U.S. dollars unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of our financial statements
requires us to make assumptions and estimates
that affect the reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, revenues and expenses and the related

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We
evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis,

including, but not limited to, those related to:
gross profit margins on long-term construction-
type contracts; costs of product guarantees and
warranties; provisions for bad debts; recoverabili-

ty of inventories, investments, fixed assets,
goodwill and other intangible assets; the fair
values of assets and liabilities assumed in

business combinations; income tax expenses and

provisions related to uncertain tax positions;

pensions and other postretirement benefit

assumptions; and legal and other contingencies.

Where appropriate, we base our estimates on

historical experience and on various other

assumptions that we believe to be reasonable

under the circumstances, the results of which

form the basis for making judgments about

the carrying values of assets and liabilities that

are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from our estimates

and assumptions.

We deem an accounting policy to be critical

if it requires an accounting estimate to be made

based on assumptions about matters that

are highly uncertain at the time the estimate

is made and if different estimates that reasonably
could have been used, or if changes in the

accounting estimates that are reasonably likely
to occur periodically, could materially impact

our Consolidated Financial Statements. We also

deem an accounting policy to be critical

when the application of such policy is essential

to our ongoing operations. We believe the

following critical accounting policies require us
to make difficult and subjective judgments,
often as a result of the need to make estimates

regarding matters that are inherently uncertain.
These policies should be considered when

reading our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue recognition

Wegenerally recognize revenues for the sale of
goods when persuasive evidence of an arrange
ment exists, delivery has occurred, the price is
fixed or determinable, and collectability is reason

ably assured. With regard to the sale of products,
delivery is not considered to have occurred, and
therefore no revenues are recognized, until the

customer has taken title to the products and

assumed the risks and rewards of ownership of

the products specified in the purchase order or
sales agreement. Generally, the transfer of title and
risks and rewards of ownership are governed by

the contractually-defined shipping terms. We use
various International Commercial shipping terms

(as promulgated by the International Chamber of
Commerce) such as Ex Works (EXW), Free Carrier

(FCA) and Delivered Duty Paid (DDP). Subsequent

to delivery of the products, we generally have no
further contractual performance obligations that

would preclude revenue recognition.

Revenues under long-term construction-type

contracts are generally recognized using the

percentage-of-completion method of accounting.

We use the cost-to-cost method to measure

progress towards completion on contracts. Under

this method, progress of contracts is measured

by actual costs incurred in relation to management's

best estimate of total estimated costs, which

are reviewed and updated routinely for contracts

in progress. The cumulative effect of any change

in estimate is recorded in the period in which the

change in estimate is determined.

The percentage-of-completion method of

accounting involves the use of assumptions and

projections, principally relating to future material,

labor and project-related overhead costs. As

a consequence, there is a risk that total contract

costs will exceed those we originally estimated

and the margin will decrease or the long-term

construction-type contract may become unprofit

able. This risk increases if the duration of

a contract increases because there is a higher

probability that the circumstances upon which

we originally developed estimates will change,
resulting in increased costs that we may
not recover. Factors that could cause costs to

increase include:
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• unanticipated technical problems with equip
ment supplied or developed by us which may
require us to incur additional costs to remedy,

• changes in the cost of components, materials or
labor,

• difficulties in obtaining required governmental
permits or approvals,

• project modifications creating unanticipated
costs,

• suppliers' or subcontractors' failure to perform,
and

• delays caused by unexpected conditions or
events.

Changes in our initial assumptions, which we review
on a regular basis between balance sheet dates,
may result in revisions to estimated costs, current
earnings and anticipated earnings. Werecognize
these changes in the period inwhichthe changes in
estimates are determined. By recognizing changes
in estimates cumulatively, recorded revenue and
costs to date reflect the current estimates of the

stage of completionof each project.Additionally,
losses on long-term contracts are recognizedin the
period when they are identified and are based upon
the anticipated excess of contract costs over the
related contract revenues.

Short-term construction-type contracts, or
long-term construction-type contracts for which
reasonably dependable estimates cannot be
made or for which inherent hazards make esti

mates difficult, are accounted for under the

completed-contract method. Revenues under

the completed-contract method are recognized
upon substantial completion -that is: acceptance
by the customer, compliance with performance
specifications demonstrated in a factory accep
tance test or similar event.

For non construction-type contracts that contain

customer acceptance provisions, revenue is

deferred until customer acceptance occurs or we
have demonstrated the customer-specified
objective criteria have been met or the contractual
acceptance period has lapsed.

Revenues from service transactions are recognized
as services are performed. For long-term service
contracts, revenues are recognized on a straight-line

basis over the term of the contract or, if the

performance pattern is other than straight-line, as

the services are provided. Service revenues reflect
revenues earned from our activities in providing

services to customers primarily subsequent to the
sale and delivery of a product or complete system.
Such revenues consist of maintenance-type

contracts, field service activities that include

personnel and accompanying spare parts,
and installation and commissioning of products
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as a stand-alone service or as part of a service
contract.

Revenuesfor software license fees are recognized
when persuasive evidence of a non-cancelable

license agreement exists, delivery has occurred,
the license fee is fixed or determinable, and
collection is probable. In software arrangements
that include rights to multiple software products
and/or services, the total arrangement fee is
allocated using the residual method, under which
revenue is allocated to the undelivered elements

based on vendor-specific objective evidence
(VSOE) of fair value of such undelivered elements

and the residual amounts of revenue are allocated

to the delivered elements. Elements included in

multiple element arrangements may consist of
software licenses, maintenance (which includes
customer support services and unspecified
upgrades), hosting, and consulting services. VSOE
is based on the price generally charged when an
element is sold separately or, in the case of an
element not yet sold separately, the price estab
lished by authorized management, if it is probable
that the price, once established, willnot change
once the element is sold separately. If VSOE does
not exist for an undelivered element, the total

arrangement fee will be recognized as revenue
over the life of the contract or upon delivery of the
undelivered element.

Weoffer multiple element arrangements to meet
our customers' needs. These arrangements may
involve the delivery of multiple products and/or
performance of services (such as installation and

training) and the delivery and/or performance
may occur at different points in time or over

different periods of time. Deliverables of such

multiple element arrangements are evaluated to

determine the unit of accounting and if certain
criteria are met, we allocate revenues to each unit

of accounting based on its relative selling price.
A hierarchy of selling prices is used to determine
the selling price of each specific deliverable that

includes VSOE (if available), third-party evidence
(if VSOEis not available), or estimated selling
price if neither of the first two is available. The

estimated selling price reflects our best estimate
of what the selling prices of elements would be if
the elements were sold on a stand-alone basis.

Revenue is allocated between the elements of an

arrangement consideration at the inception of
the arrangement. Such arrangements generally
include industry-specific performance and
termination provisions, such as in the event of
substantial delays or non-delivery.

Revenues are reported net of customer rebates
and similar incentives. Taxes assessed by a govern
mental authority that are directly imposed on



revenue-producing transactions between us and
our customers, such as sales, use, value-added and
some excise taxes, are excluded from revenues.

These revenue recognition methods require the
collectability of the revenues recognized to be
reasonably assured. When recording the respec
tive accounts receivable, allowances are calculated

to estimate those receivables that will not be

collected. These reserves assume a level of

default based on historical information, as well

as knowledge about specific invoices and
customers. The risk remains that actual defaults

will vary in number and amount from those
originally estimated. As such, the amount of
revenues recognized might exceed or fall below
the amount which will be collected, resulting in

a change in earnings in the future. The risk of
deterioration is likely to increase during periods
of significant negative industry, economic or
political trends.

As a result of the above policies, judgment in the
selection and application of revenue recognition

methods must be made.

Contingencies

As more fully described in "Note 15 Commitments
and contingencies" to our Consolidated Financial
Statements, we are subject to proceedings,
litigation or threatened litigation and other claims
and inquiries related to environmental, labor,

product, regulatory, tax (other than income tax)
and other matters. We are required to assess the

likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes
to these matters, as well as potential ranges of

probable losses. A determination of the provision

required, if any, for these contingencies is made

after analysis of each individual issue, often with
assistance from both internal and external legal
counsel and technical experts. The required

amount of a provision for a contingency of any
type may change in the future due to new develop

ments in the particular matter, including changes
in the approach to its resolution.

We record provisions for our contingent obliga
tions when it is probable that a loss will be incurred

and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Any
such provision is generally recognized on an
undiscounted basis using our best estimate of the
amount of loss or at the lower end of an estimated

range when a single best estimate is not determin
able. In some cases, we may be able to recover
a portion of the costs relating to these obligations
from insurers or other third parties; however, we
record such amounts only when it is probable that
they will be collected.
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We provide for anticipated costs for warranties
when we recognize revenues on the related
products or contracts. Warranty costs include
calculated costs arising from imperfections in
design, material and workmanship in our products.
We generally make individual assessments on
contracts with risks resulting from order-specific
conditions or guarantees and assessments on an
overall, statistical basis for similar products sold
in larger quantities. There is a risk that actual
warranty costs may exceed the amounts provided
for, which would result in a deterioration of
earnings in the future when these actual costs
are determined.

Pension and other

postretirement benefits

As more fully described in "Note 17Employee
benefits" to our Consolidated Financial Statements,

we have a number of defined benefit pension and
other postretirement plans and recognize an asset
for a plan's overf unded status or a liability for
a plan's underfunded status in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets. We measure such a plan's assets

and obligations that determine its funded status
as of the end of the year.

Significant differences between assumptions
and actual experience, or significant changes in
assumptions, may materially affect the pension
obligations. The effects of actual results differing
from assumptions and the changing of assump
tions are included in net actuarial loss within

"Accumulated other comprehensive loss".

We recognize actuarial gains and losses gradually
over time. Any cumulative unrecognized actuarial
gain or loss that exceeds 10 percent of the greater
of the present value of the projected benefit
obligation (PBO) and the fair value of plan assets

is recognized in earnings over the expected

average remaining working lives of the employees
participating in the plan, or the expected average
remaining lifetime of the inactive plan partici

pants if the plan is comprised of all or almost all

inactive participants. Otherwise, the actuarial

gain or loss is not recognized in the Consolidated
Income Statements.

We use actuarial valuations to determine our

pension and postretirement benefit costs and

credits. The amounts calculated depend on
a variety of key assumptions, including discount
rates, mortality rates and expected return on
plan assets. Under U.S.GAAP, we are required to
consider current market conditions in making
these assumptions. In particular, the discount rates
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are reviewed annually based on changes in
long-term, highly-rated corporate bond yields.
Decreases in the discount rates result in

an increase in the PBO and in pension costs.
Conversely, an increase in the discount rates

results in a decrease in the PBOand in pension
costs. The mortality assumptions are reviewed
annually by management. Decreases in mortality
rates result in an increase in the PBO and in

pension costs. Conversely, an increase in mortality
rates results in a decrease in the PBO and in

pension costs.

Holding all other assumptions constant, a
0.25-percentage point decrease in the discount
rate would have increased the PBO related to our

defined benefit pension plans by $394 millionwhile
a 0.25-percentage point increase in the discount
rate would have decreased the PBO related to our

defined benefit pension plans by $362 million.

The expected return on plan assets is reviewed
regularlyand considered for adjustment annually
based upon the target asset allocations and
represents the long-term return expected to be
achieved. Decreases in the expected return on
plan assets result in an increase to pension costs.
Holding all other assumptions constant, an
increase or decrease of 0.25 percentage points in
the expected long-term rate of asset return would
have decreased or increased, respectively, the net
periodic benefit cost in 2016 by $24 million.

The funded status, which can increase or decrease

based on the performance of the financial markets
or changes in our assumptions, does not represent
a mandatory short-term cash obligation. Instead,
the funded status of a defined benefit pension plan
is the difference between the PBO and the fair

value of the plan assets. At December 31,2016, our

defined benefit pension plans were $1,403 million
underfunded compared to an underfunding of
$1,481 million at December 31,2015. Our other
postretirement plans were underfunded by
$147 million and $178 million at December 31,2016

and 2015, respectively.

We have multiple non-pension postretirement

benefit plans. Our health care plans are generally
contributory with participants' contributions
adjusted annually. For purposes of estimating our
health care costs, we have assumed health care

cost increases to be 7.33 percent per annum for
2017,gradually declining to 5.00 percent per annum
by 2028 and to remain at that level thereafter.
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Income taxes

In preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements,
we are required to estimate income taxes in each

of the jurisdictions in which we operate. Tax
expense from continuing operations is reconciled
from the weighted-average global tax rate (rather
than from the Swiss domestic statutory tax rate)
as the parent company of the ABB Group, ABB Ltd,
is domiciled in Switzerland. Income which has been

generated in jurisdictions outside of Switzerland
(hereafter "foreignjurisdictions") and has already
been subject to corporate income tax in those
foreign jurisdictions is, to a large extent, tax
exempt in Switzerland. Therefore, generally no or
only limited Swiss income tax has to be provided
for on the repatriated earnings of foreign subsid
iaries. There is no requirement in Switzerland for
a parent company of a group to file a tax return of

the group determining domestic and foreign
pre-tax income and as our consolidated income

from continuing operations is predominantly
earned outside of Switzerland, corporate income
tax in foreign jurisdictions largely determines our
global weighted-average tax rate.

We account for deferred taxes by using the asset
and liability method. Under this method, we
determine deferred tax assets and liabilities based

on temporary differences between the financial

reporting and the tax bases of assets and liabili

ties. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are mea

sured using the enacted tax rates and laws that are

expected to be in effect when the differences are

expected to reverse. We recognize a deferred tax
asset when it is more likely than not that the asset
will be realized. We regularly review our deferred
tax assets for recoverability and establish a valua
tion allowance based upon historical losses,

projected future taxable income and the expected
timing of the reversals of existing temporary

differences. To the extent we increase or decrease

this allowance in a period, we recognize the change

in the allowance within "Provision for taxes" in

the Consolidated Income Statements unless the

change relates to discontinued operations,

in which case the change is recorded in "Income
(loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax".
Unforeseen changes in tax rates and tax laws, as
well as differences in the projected taxable income
as compared to the actual taxable income, may

affect these estimates.

Certain countries levy withholding taxes, dividend
distribution taxes or additional corporate income
taxes (hereafter "withholding taxes") on dividend
distributions. Such taxes cannot always be fully
reclaimed by the shareholder, although they have
to be declared and withheld by the subsidiary.
Switzerland has concluded double taxation



treaties with many countries in which we operate.
These treaties either eliminate or reduce such

withholding taxes on dividend distributions.
It is our policy to distribute retained earnings of
subsidiaries, insofar as such earnings are not
permanently reinvested or no other reasons exist
that would prevent the subsidiary from dis
tributing them. No deferred tax liability is set up,
if retained earnings are considered as permanent
ly reinvested, and used for financing current
operations as well as business growth through
working capital and capital expenditure in those
countries.

We operate in numerous tax jurisdictions and,
as a result, are regularly subject to audit by tax
authorities. We provide for tax contingencies
whenever it is deemed more likely than not that
a tax asset has been impaired or a tax liability has
been incurred for events such as tax claims or

changes in tax laws. Contingency provisions are
recorded based on the technical merits of our filing
position, considering the applicable tax laws and
OECD guidelines and are based on our evaluations
of the facts and circumstances as of the end of

each reporting period. Changes in the facts and
circumstances could result in a material change to
the tax accruals. Although we believe that our tax
estimates are reasonable and that appropriate tax
reserves have been made, the final determination

of tax audits and any related litigation could be
different than that which is reflected in our income

tax provisions and accruals.

An estimated loss from a tax contingency must be

accrued as a charge to income if it is more likely
than not that a tax asset has been impaired or

a tax liability has been incurred and the amount of

the loss can be reasonably estimated. We apply

a two-step approach to recognize and measure

uncertainty in income taxes. The first step is to

evaluate the tax position for recognition by
determining if the weight of available evidence
indicates that it is more likely than not that the

position will be sustained on audit, including
resolution of related appeals or litigation process
es, if any. The second step is to measure the tax
benefit as the largest amount which is more than
50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate
settlement. The required amount of provisions for
contingencies of any type may change in the future
due to new developments.

Goodwill and other intangible
assets

We review goodwill for impairment annually as of
October 1, or more frequently if events or
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circumstances indicate the carrying value may not

be recoverable. We use either a qualitative or

quantitative assessment method for each report
ing unit. The qualitative assessment involves
determining, based on an evaluation of qualitative
factors, whether it is more likely than not that the

fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount. If, based on this qualitative
assessment, it is determined to be more likely than
not that the reporting unit's fair value is less than
its carrying value, the two-step quantitative
impairment test is performed. Ifwe elect not to
perform the qualitative assessment for a reporting
unit, then we perform the two-step impairment
test.

Our reporting units are the same as our business
divisions for Electrification Products, Discrete

Automation and Motion, and Power Grids. For the

Process Automation division, we determined the

reporting units to be one level below the division,
as the different products produced or services
provided by this division do not share sufficiently
similar economic characteristics to permit testing

of goodwill on a total division level.

When performing the qualitative assessment, we
first determine, for a reporting unit, factors which

would affect the fair value of the reporting unit

including: (i) macroeconomic conditions related to
the business, (ii) industry and market trends, and
(iii) the overall future financial performance and
future opportunities in the markets in which the
business operates. We then consider how these
factors would impact the most recent quantitative

analysis of the reporting unit's fair value. Key
assumptions in determining the value of the
reporting unit include the projected level of
business operations, the weighted-average cost
of capital, the income tax rate and the terminal

growth rate.

If,after performing the qualitative assessment, we

conclude that events or circumstances have

occurred which would indicate that it is more likely
than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is
less than its carrying value, or if we have elected not

to perform a qualitative assessment, the two-step
quantitative impairment test is performed. In the

first step, we calculate the fair value of the reporting
unit (using an income approach whereby the fair
value is calculated based on the present value of
future cash flows applying a discount rate that
represents our weighted-average cost of capital)
and compare it to the reporting unit's carrying
value. Where the fair value of the reporting unit
exceeds the carrying value of the net assets
assigned to that unit, goodwill is not impaired and
no further testing is performed. However, if the
carrying value of the net assets assigned to the
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reporting unit is equal to or exceeds the reporting
unit's fair value, we would perform the second
step of the impairment test. Inthe second step, we
would determine the implied fair value of the
reporting unit's goodwill and compare it to the
carrying valueof the reporting unit's goodwill.
Ifthe carryingvalueof a reporting unit's goodwill
were to exceed its implied fair value, then we would

record an impairment loss equal to the difference.
Anygoodwill impairment losses would be recorded
as a separate line item in the income statement

in continuing operations, unless related to a discon
tinued operation, in which case the losses would be
recorded in "Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of tax".

In2016, we performed the two-step quantitative
impairment test for allof our reporting units to
reflect newassumptionsand forecasts resulting
from our newly-developed strategic plan for
the period 2017to 2020. The quantitative test
concluded that the estimated fair values for each

of our reporting units exceeded their respective
carrying values by more than 100 percent and as
no reporting unit had a zero or negative carrying
value,we concluded that none of the reporting
units was "at risk" of failing the goodwill impair
ment test. Consequently, the second step of the
impairment test was not performed.

The projected future cash flows used in the 2016

fair value calculation were based on approved
business plans for the reporting units which
covered a period of four years f&lus a calculated
terminal value. The projected future cash flows
required significant judgments and estimates
involving variables such as future sales volumes,
sales prices, awards of large orders, production
and other operating costs, capital expenditures,
net working capital requirements and other

economic factors. The after-tax weighted-average
cost of capital of 8 percent was based on variables

such as the risk free rate derived from the yield
of 10-year U.S. treasury bonds as well as an
ABB-specific risk premium. The terminal value

growth rate was assumed to be l percent. The
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mid-term tax rate used in the test was 27 percent.
Webased our fair value estimates on assumptions
we believed to be reasonable, but which were

inherently uncertain. Consequently, actual future
results may differ from those estimates.

We assessed the reasonableness of the fair value

calculations of our reporting units by reconciling
the sum of the fairvaluesfor allour reporting units
to our total market capitalization. The assumptions
used in the fair valuecalculationwere challenged
each year (through the use of sensitivity analysis)
to determine the impact on the fair value of the
reporting units. Our sensitivity analysis in 2016
showed that, holding allother assumptions
constant, a 1-percentage point increase in the

discount rate would have reduced the calculated

fair value by approximately 12.9 percent, while
a 1-percentage point decrease in the terminal value

growth rate would have reduced the calculated fair

value by approximately 9.7 percent.

For 2015, our reporting units were the same as our
former business divisions (Discrete Automation
and Motion, Low Voltage Products, Power Products
and Power Systems) with the exception of Process
Automation, where they were determined to be
one level below. In2015, we performed a qualitative
assessment and determined that it was not more

likely than not that the fair value for each of these
reporting units was below the carrying value. As
a result, we concluded that it was not necessary to
perform the two-step quantitative impairment test.

Intangible assets are reviewed for recoverability
upon the occurrence of certain triggering events
(such as a decision to divest a business or project
ed losses of an entity) or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. We record

impairment charges in "Other income (expense),

net", in our Consolidated Income Statements,

unless they relate to a discontinued operation, in
which case the charges are recorded in "Income
(loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax".

New accounting pronouncements
For a description of accounting changes and recent
accounting pronouncements, including the
expected dates of adoption and estimated effects,
if any, on our Consolidated Financial Statements,

see "Note 2 Significant accounting policies" to our
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Research and development
Each year, we invest significantly in research and
development. Our research and development

focuses on developing and commercializing the
technologies of our businesses that are of
strategic importance to our future growth. In2016,
2015, and 2014, we invested $1,300 million,

$1,406 million and $1,499 million, respectively, or

approximately 3.8 percent, 4.0 percent and
3.8 percent, respectively, of our annual consolidated
revenues on research and development activities.

We also had expenditures of $155 million,
$271 million and $310 million, respectively, or

approximately 0.5 percent, 0.8 percent and
0.8 percent, respectively, of our annual consolidated
revenues in 2016,2015 and 2014, on order-related

development activities. These are customer- and
project-specific development efforts that we
undertake to develop or adapt equipment and

systems to the unique needs of our customers in
connection with specific orders or projects.

Order-related development amounts are initially

recorded in inventories as part of the work in

process of a contract and then are reflected in cost

of sales at the time revenue is recognized in

accordance with our accounting policies.

In addition to continuous product development,

and order-related engineering work, we develop

platforms for technology applications in our

automation and power businesses in our research

and development laboratories, which operate

on a global basis. Through active management of

our investment in research and development,

we seek to maintain a balance between short-term

and long-term research and development

programs and optimize our return on investment.

Universities are incubators of future technology,

and a central task of our research and development

team is to transform university research into

industry-ready technology platforms. We collaborate

with a number of universities and research institu

tions to build research networks and foster new

technologies. We believe these collaborations
shorten the amount of time required to turn basic

ideas into viable products, and they additionally
help us recruit and train new personnel. We have
built numerous university collaborations in the U.S.,
Europe and Asia,including long-term, strategic
relationships with the Carnegie MellonUniversity,
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, North

Carolina State University, ETH Zurich, EPFL

Lausanne, Royal Institute of Technology (KTH)
Stockholm, Cambridge University, Imperial
College London, Huazhong University of Science
and Technology (HUST) and Xi'an Jiaotong
University (XJTU). Our collaborative projects include
research on materials, sensors, micro-engineered

mechanical systems, robotics, controls, manufac
turing, distributed power and communication.
Common platforms for power and automation

technologies are developed around advanced
materials, efficient manufacturing, information

technology and data communication, as well as
sensor and actuator technology.

Common applications of basic power and

automation technologies can also be found in
power electronics, electrical insulation, and

control and optimization. Our power technologies,

including our insulation technologies, current

interruption and limitation devices, power elec

tronics, flow control and power protection

processes, apply as much to large, reliable,

blackout-free transmission systems as they do

to everyday household needs. Our automation

technologies, including our control and optimiza

tion processes, power electronics, sensors

and microelectronics, mechatronics and wireless

communication processes, are designed to

improve efficiency in plants and factories around

the world, including our own.

Acquisitions and divestments
Divestments and Assets held for sale

There were no significant divestments in 2016

and 2015.

During 2014, ABB divested several businesses

which were primarily its Full Service business, the

Meyer Steel Structures business of Thomas &

Betts, the heating, ventilation and air conditioning
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(HVAC) business of Thomas & Bet ts and the Fower

Solutions business of Power-One. Total cash

proceeds from all business divestments durirg
2014 amounted to $1,090 million, net of tran; ac

tion costs and cash disposed.

InSeptember 2016, ABB announced an agreement
to divest its high-voltage cable system business
(Cables business). The assets and liabilities of this

Exchange rates
V/e report our financial results in U.S. dollars. Due

to our global operations, a significant amour t of
our revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are

denominated in other currencies. As a conse-

cuence, movements in exchange lates between

currencies may affect: (i) our profitability, (ii) the
comparability of our results between period;., and
(;ii) the reported carrying value of our assets
and liabilities.

We translate non-USD denominated results

of operations, assets and liabilities to USD ir

our Consolidated Financial Statements. Bala ice

sheet items are translated to USD using year-
end currency exchange rates. Income statement
and cash flow items are translated to USD

using the relevant monthly average currency
exchange rate.

Increases and decreases in the value of the USD

against other currencies will affect the repoi ted

results of operations in our Consolidated Income

Statements and the value of certain of our assets

and liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets,

even if our results of operations or the valua of

.hose assets and liabilities have not changed in

:heir original currency. As foreign exchange -ates

impact our reported results of operations a id

the reported value of our assets and liabilities,

changes in foreign exchange rates could signifi

cantly affect the comparability of our repor.ed

results of operations between periods and lesult in

significant changes to the reported value ol our

assets, liabilities and stockholders' equity.

While we operate globally and report our financial

results in USD, exchange rate movements between

the USD and both the EUR and the CHF are of

particular importance to us due to (i) the location

of our significant operations and (ii) our co-porate

headquarters being in Switzerland.
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business are shown as assets and liabilities held

for sale in our Consolidated Balance Sheet as at

December 31,2016. The divestment was completed
on March 1, 2017.

For more information on our divestments, see

"Note 3 Acquisitions and business divestments" to

our Consolidated Financial Statements.

The exchange rates between the USD and the EUR

and the USDand the CHF at December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014, were as follows:

Exchange rates into S

EUR 1.00

CHF 1.00

2016

1.05

0.98

2015 2014

1.09

1.01

1.22

1.01

The average exchange rates between the USD and

the EUR and the USD and the CHFfor the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, were as

follows:

Exchange rates into S

EUR 1.00

CHF 1.00

1.10

1.01

2015 2014

Lll

1.04

1.33

1.09

When we incur expenses that are not denominated

in the same currency as the related revenues,

foreign exchange rate fluctuations could affect our
profitability. To mitigate the impact of exchange

rate movements on our profitability, it is our policy

to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts

to manage the foreign exchange transaction risk of

our operations.

In 2016, approximately 80 percent of our consoli

dated revenues were reported in currencies other

than the USD. The following percentages of

consolidated revenues were reported in the

following currencies:

• Euro, approximately 20 percent,

• Chinese renminbi, approximately 13 percent, and

• Swedish krona, approximately 5 percent.

In 2016, approximately 79 percent of our cost of
sales and selling, general and administrative

expenses were reported in currencies other than the
USD. The following percentages of consolidated



cost of sales and selling, general and administrative
expenses were reported in the followingcurrencies:
• Euro, approximately 19 percent,
• Chinese renminbi, approximately 11percent, and
• Canadian Dollar, approximately 5 percent.

We also incur expenses other than cost of sales
and selling, general and administrative expenses in
various currencies.

The results of operations and financial position
of many of our subsidiaries outside of the United
States are reported in the currencies of the
countries in which those subsidiaries are located.

We refer to these currencies as "local currencies".

Local currency financial information is then
translated into USD at applicable exchange rates
for inclusion in our Consolidated Financial

Statements.

The discussion of our results of operations below
provides certain information with respect to
orders, revenues, income from operations and
other measures as reported in USD (as well as in
local currencies). We measure period-to-period
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variations in local currency results by using
a constant foreign exchange rate for all periods
under comparison. Differencesin our results of
operations in localcurrencies as compared to our
results of operations in USD are caused exclusively
by changes in currency exchange rates.

While we consider our results of operations as

measured in local currencies to be a significant
indicator of business performance, local currency
information should not be relied upon to the

exclusion of U.S. GAAPfinancial measures. Instead,

local currencies reflect an additional measure

of comparability and provide a means of viewing
aspects of our operations that, when viewed
together with the U.S. GAAP results, provide
a more complete understanding of factors and
trends affecting the business. As local currency
information is not standardized, it may not be

possible to compare our localcurrency information
to other companies' financial measures that have
the same or a similar title. We encourage investors
to review our financial statements and publicly-filed

reports in their entirety and not to rely on any
single financial measure.

Transactions with affiliates

and associates

In the normal course of our business, we purchase the normal course of our business, we engage in
products from, sell products to and engage in

other transactions with entities in which we hold

an equity interest. The amounts involved in these

transactions are not material to ABB Ltd. Also, in

Orders

Our policy is to book and report an order when

a binding contractual agreement has been
concluded with a customer covering, at a mini
mum, the price and scope of products or services
to be supplied, the delivery schedule and the
payment terms. The reported value of an order

corresponds to the undiscounted value of

transactions with businesses that we have

divested. We believe that the terms of the transac

tions we conduct with these companies are

negotiated on an arm's length basis.

revenues that we expect to recognize following
delivery of the goods or services subject to the
order, less any trade discounts and excluding any
value added or sales tax. The value of orders

received during a given period of time represents
the sum of the value of all orders received during
the period, adjusted to reflect the aggregate
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value of any changes to the value of orders
received during the period and orders existing at
the beginning of the period. These adjustments,
which may in the aggregate increase or decrease
the orders reported during the period, may
include changes in the estimated order price up
to the date of contractual performance, changes
in the scope of products or services ordered
and cancellations of orders.

The undiscounted value of revenues we expect to
generate from our orders at any point in time is
represented by our order backlog. Approximately
13 percent of the value of total orders we recorded

in 2016 were "large orders", which we define as
orders from third parties involvinga value of at
least $15 million for products or services.
Approximately78 percent of the total value of large
orders in 2016 were recorded by our Power Grids
division and approximately 14 percent in our
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Process Automation division. The other divisions

accounted for the remainder of the total large
orders recorded during 2016.The remaining
portion of total orders recorded in 2016 was "base

orders", which we define as orders from third

parties with a value of less than $15 million for

products or services.

The levelof orders fluctuates from year to year.
Portions of our business involveorders for long-
term projects that can take months or years to
complete and many large orders result in revenues
in periods after the order is booked. Consequently,
the levelof large orders and orders generally
cannot be used to accurately predict future
revenues or operating performance. Orders that
have been placed can be cancelled, delayed or
modified by the customer. These actions can

reduce or delay any future revenues from the order
or may result in the elimination of the order.

Performance measures

We evaluate the performance of our divisions

based on orders received, revenues and

Operational EBITA.

In 2016, the Company modified the definition of
Operational EBITA to also exclude non-operational
pension cost and changes in estimates relating to

opening balance sheets of acquired businesses
(changes in pre-acquisition estimates). After these

revisions, Operational EBITA represents income

from operations excluding (i) amortization expense
on intangibles arising upon acquisitions (acquisition-

related amortization), (ii) restructuring and

restructuring-related expenses, (iii) non-operational

pension cost, (iv) changes in pre-acquisition

estimates, (v) gains and losses from sale of
businesses, acquisition-related expenses and
certain other non-operational items, as well as

(vi) foreign exchange (FX)/commodity timing
differences in income from operations consisting
of: (a) unrealized gains and losses on derivatives
(foreign exchange, commodities, embedded
derivatives), (b) realized gains and losses on
derivatives where the underlying hedged transac

tion has not yet been realized, and (c) unrealized
foreign exchange movements on receivables/
payables (and related assets/liabilities).

See "Note 23 Operating segment and geographic
data" to our Consolidated Financial Statements for

a reconciliation of the total consolidated

Operational EBITA to income from continuing
operations before taxes.
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Analysis of results of operations
Our consolidated results from operations were as

follows:

(S in millions, except per share

data in S) 2016 2015 2014

Orders 33,379 36,429 41.515

Order backlog at December 31. 22,981 24,121 24,900

Revenues 33,828 35,481 39,830

Cost of sales (24,081) (25,347) (28,615)

Gross profit

Selling, general and
administrative expenses

Non-order related research

and development expenses

Other income (expense), net

9,747 10,134 11,215

(5,349) (5,574) (6,067)

(1,300)

(111)

(1.406)

(105)

(1,499)

529

Income from operations 2,987 3,049 4,178

Net interest and other

finance expense

Provision for taxes

(188)

(781)

(209)

(788)

(282)

(1,202)

Income from continuing
operations, net of tax 2,018 2,052 2,694

Income from discontinued

operations, net of tax 16 3 24

Net income 2,034 2,055 2,718

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interests (135) (122) (124)

Net income attributable to ABB 1,899 1,933 2,594

Income from continuing
operations, net of tax 1,883 1,930 2,570

Net income 1,899 1,933 2,594

•

Income from continuing
operations, net of tax 0.88 0.87 1.12

Net income 0.88 0.87 1.13

: • ' •

Income from continuing
operations, net of tax 0.87 0.87 1.12

Net income 0.88 0.87 1.13

A more detailed discussion of the orders, revenues,

Operational EBITAand income from operations for

our divisions follows in the sections of "Divisional

analysis" below entitled "Electrification Products",

"Discrete Automation and Motion", "Process

Automation", "Power Grids" and "Corporate and
Other". Orders and revenues of our divisions

include interdivisional transactions which are

eliminated in the "Corporate and Other" line
in the tables below.

Orders

(S in millions)

Electrification

Products

Discrete

Automation

and Motion

Process

Automation

Power Grids

% Change

2016 2015 2014 2016 2015

9,158 9.833 10,861 (7)% (9)%

8,654 9,222 10,559 (6)% (13)%

5,866 7,347 9,213 (20)% (20)%

11.232 12,205 12,768 (8)% (4)%

Operating

divisions 34,910 38,607 43,401 (10) % (11)%

Corporate

and Other111 (1.531) (2,178) (1,886) n.a. n.a.

Total 33,379 36,429 41,515 (8)% (12)%

In 2016, total orders declined 8 percent (5 percent

in local currencies) with orders decreasing in all

divisions. The decline reflects ongoing macro-

economic and geopolitical uncertainties and
challenges in many markets. The low demand from
both the onshore and offshore oil segments

negatively impacted many businesses, particularly
the Process Automation division. This also contrib

uted to the negative order development in the

Discrete Automation and Motion division, despite

the strong demand from various industries for
robotics. Weak market conditions impacted the

orders in Electrification Products and in Power Grids.

In 2016, base orders declined 5 percent (2 percent

in local currencies) with negative impacts across

all divisions. The decline of base orders reflects the

uncertain global economic conditions across our

key markets. Large orders decreased 27 percent

(25 percent in local currencies), impacted by

considerable investment delays. For additional

information about divisional order performance,

please refer to the relevant sections of "Divisional

analysis" below.

In 2015, total orders declined 12 percent (2 percent

in local currencies) and decreased in all divisions.

The decline in reported orders was driven both by
lower base orders and lower large orders. The
order development reflected ongoing macro-

economic uncertainties and challenges in many

markets as well as negative impacts from foreign
exchange rate movements.

In 2015, orders decreased 9 percent in the

Electrification Products division (steady in local
currencies) as order growth in the Protection
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and Connection business was offset by decreases
in orders in the Building Products and the
Electrification Solutions businesses. Orders in

the Discrete Automation and Motion division

declined 13 percent (5 percent in local currencies)
on lower orders in all businesses, except Robotics,
where orders increased in local currencies. Orders
in the Process Automation division declined

20 percent (9 percent in localcurrencies) mainly
due to lower capital and operating expenditures
in the oiland gas sectors compared to the previous
year. Orders declined 4 percent (increased 8 percent
in local currencies) in the Power Grids division.

Theincreasein local currencies was driven primarily
by the receipt of several large orders in the Grid
Systems business.

During2015,base orders declined 14 percent
(5 percent in localcurrencies) reflecting the global
economic conditions which remained mixed across

our keymarkets. Largeorders decreased 5 percent
(increased 10 percent in local currencies) but were
higher in localcurrencies than the strong large
order intake in 2014. Large orders increased in the
Power Grids division where several large projects
were awarded in 2015.

Wedetermine the geographic distribution of our
orders based on the location of the ultimate destina

tion of the products' end use, if known, or the
location of the customer. The geographic distribu
tion of our consolidated orders was as follows:

($ in millions)

Europe

The Americas

Asia, Middle East

% Change

2016 2015 2014 2016 2015

11,213 12,568 14,319 (11) % (12)%

9,351 10,505 11,966 (11) % (12)%

and Africa 12,815 13,356 15,230 (4)% (12)%

Total 33,379 36,429 41315 (8)% (12)%

Orders in 2016 declined in all regions, although we
achieved growth within some divisions in Europe

and Asia, Middle East and Africa. Orders in Europe
decreased 11 percent (9 percent in local currencies)

due primarily to lower large orders compared to
2015. Orders in Europe for the Electrification
Products and the Discrete Automation and Motion

divisions grew in local currencies but were offset
by decreases in the other divisions. In local
currencies, orders were lower in Germany, the

United Kingdom, Norway, Switzerland, Russia,
France, Finland, Turkey and the Netherlands
while orders increased in Italy, Sweden and Spain.
In the Americas orders declined 11 percent

(9 percent in local currencies) on lower base and
large orders. In local currencies, orders decreased
in the U.S. (mainly due to lower large orders),
Canada, Brazil, Chile and Argentina while orders
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increased in Mexico. In Asia, Middle East and Africa,
orders decreased 4 percent (flat in local currencies)
as lower base orders were offset by strong
demand for our power offering and higher large
orders. Orders in Chinaand Indiaincreased mainly
due to investment activities in the HVDC power
transmission technology while orders declined in
Saudi Arabia, South Korea, the United Arab

Emirates, Australia, Japan, South Africa and Qatar.

Orders in 2015declined in all regions on lower
orders in all divisions. Orders in Europe decreased
12 percent (increased 5 percent in local currencies).
Orders in Europe were higher in local currencies
due to the receipt of large orders for HVDC
interconnections. In local currencies, orders were
lower in the United Kingdom, Sweden, Finland,
Switzerland,France,Spain and Russia,offset by
higher orders in Germany, Norway, Italy, Turkeyand
the Netherlands. Orders declined 12 percent
(6 percent in local currencies) in the Americas on
lower base and large orders. In local currencies,
orders decreased in the U.S., Canada and Brazil but
were higher in Mexico,Chile and Argentina. In Asia,
MiddleEast and Africa,orders decreased 12 per
cent (7 percent in local currencies) on lower base

and large orders. In local currencies, orders

declined in China, Saudi Arabia, South Korea,
Australia and Japan while orders were higher in
India, the United Arab Emirates, South Africa
and Qatar.

Order backlog

($ in millions)

Electrification

Products

Discrete

Automation

and Motion

Process

December 31, % Change

2016 2015 2014 2016 2015

2,612 2,872 2,798 (9)%

4,078 4,232 4,385 (4)% (3)%

Automation

Power Grids

5,258

12,437

6,036 6,515

12,502 12,619

(13)%

(1)%

(7)%

(D%

Operating
divisions 24,385 25,642 26,317 (5)% (3)%

Corporate
and Other'11 (1,404) (1,521) (1,417) n.a. n.a.

Total 22,981 24,121 24,900 (5)% (3)%

As at December 31,2016, the consolidated order

backlog declined 5 percent (2 percent in local
currencies) and was lower in all divisions. The

decline in the Electrification Products division was

driven by the Medium Voltage Products and
Building Products businesses. In the Discrete
Automation and Motion division, the backlog was

flat in local currencies as the increase in the

Robotics and Power Conversion businesses were



offset by declines in the other businesses. In
the Process Automation division, order backlog

declined and was lower across all businesses,

except for in the Measurement and Analytics
business. In the Power Grids division, local currency

order backlog increased, driven by the Transformers
and Grid System businesses.

As at December 31,2015, the consolidated order

backlog decreased 3 percent (increased 5 percent
in local currencies). Order backlog in all divisions
was impacted by the effects of changes in foreign
currency rates as the U.S. dollar strengthened
against all major currencies during 2015.In local
currencies, order backlog increased in all divisions.
The increase in the Electrification Products division

was driven by the Medium Voltage Products
business. In the Discrete Automation and Motion

division, the increase was driven by the Robotics
and Power Conversion businesses. In the Process

Automation division, orders were lower but order

backlog increased due to the receipt of higher
large orders near the end of 2015. In the Power
Grids division, order backlog increased in the High
Voltage and Transformers businesses and also
benefitted from higher large orders received in the
Grid Systems business during the year.

Revenues

($ in millions)

Electrification

Products

Discrete

Automation

and Motion

Process

% Change

2016 2015 2014 2016 2015

9,292 9,547 10,572 (3)% (10)%

8,714 9,127 10,142 (5)% (10)%

Automation

Power Grids

6,598

10,975

7,224 8,618

11,621 12,518

(9)%

(6)%

(16)%

(7)%

Operating
divisions 35,579 37,519 41,850 (5)% (10)%

Corporate
and Other'1' (1.751) (2,038) (2,020) n.a. n.a.

Total 33,828 35,481 39,830 (5)% (U) %

Revenues in 2016, decreased 5 percent (2 percent
in local currencies) and declined in all divisions.

Revenues were lower due to declining orders
during the year and a lower opening order backlog
compared to the beginning of 2015. In the Process
Automation division, a continued low level of

orders from the oil and gas industry, as well as
from mining and metals, negatively impacted
revenues. Revenues in the Power Grids division

were impacted by weaker order intake, the exit
from certain businesses as well as lower pull-
through revenues from other divisions. Revenues
were positively impacted by growth in the
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Robotics business, despite market challenges
while revenues in the Electrification Products

division slightly increased in local currencies. For
additional information about the divisional

revenues performance, please refer to "Divisional
analysis" below.

In2015, revenues decreased 11percent (1 percent in
local currencies) and declined in all divisions. The
decrease was due primarily to the impacts of the
lower orders and lower opening order backlog in
the Power Grids and Process Automation divisions

compared to the beginning of 2014.Inaddition,
the decrease was also due to the impacts of
divestments made in 2014 and negative impacts

from foreign exchange rate movements.

On a divisional basis, revenues in the Electrification
Products division decreased 10 percent (steady in
local currencies) and were lower in most business
es. Revenues declined 10 percent (2 percent in local
currencies) in the Discrete Automation and Motion
division on lower order intake in the short-cycle

businesses such as low voltage motors and drives
offset partly by local currency revenue increases in
the Robotics and Power Conversion businesses. In

the Process Automation division revenues de

creased 16 percent (5 percent in local currencies)
and were lower in local currencies in most busi

nesses. Revenues were impacted primarily by
decreases in the systems businesses such as the
Marine and Ports and the Oil, Gas and Chemicals

businesses but also by the divestment of the Full
Service business at the end of 2014. Revenues in

the Power Grids division decreased 7 percent

(increased 3 percent in local currencies). In local
currencies revenues grew, driven by service
revenues and by steady execution of the order

backlog.

We determine the geographic distribution of our
revenues based on the location of the ultimate

destination of the products' end use, if known, or the
location of the customer. The geographic distribu

tion of our consolidated revenues was as follows:

2016 2015 2014

% Change

($ in millions) 2016 2015

Europe

The Americas

Asia, Middle East

and Africa

11,315

9,741

12,772

11,602 13,745

10,554 11,490

13,325 14,595

(2)% (16)%

(8) % (8) %

(4)% (9)%

Total 33,828 35,481 39,830 (5)% (11)%

In 2016, revenues decreased across all regions,
although we achieved regional growth within some
divisions. In Europe, revenues declined 2 percent
(flat in local currencies) due to growth in the Electri
fication Products division and steady revenues
in the Process Automation division. In local
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currencies, revenues declined in Sweden, Norway,
Switzerland, Germany and France, while revenues
increased in Russia, the United Kingdom, Italyand
Spain. Revenues from the Americas decreased

8 percent (5 percent in local currencies). In local
currencies, revenues decreased in the U.S. and

Brazilwhile revenues were higher in Canada,
Mexico, Argentina and Chile. In Asia, Middle East
and Africa, revenues decreased by 4 percent
(l percent in localcurrencies), supported bystrong
demand for our power offering. Inlocal currencies,
revenues declined in South Africa,Australia, Japan,
Saudi Arabia and Singapore while revenues
increased in China, Indiaand Egypt.

In2015,revenues declined in all regions. InEurope,
revenues decreased 16 percent (increased 1 percent
in local currencies). In local currencies, revenues
declined in Norway, France, Switzerland, Spain and
Russia. Revenues were flat in Italy,while revenues
increased in Germany, the United Kingdom,
Sweden and Finland. Revenues from the Americas

declined 8 percent (2 percent in local currencies).
In local currencies, revenues decreased in the

U.S., Canada and Brazilbut were higher in Mexico,
Chile and Peru. In Asia, Middle East and Africa

revenues decreased 9 percent (2 percent in local
currencies). In local currencies, revenues declined in

China, South Korea,Australia and Singapore while
revenues increased in Saudi Arabia, India, the

United Arab Emirates, Japan and South Africa.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales consists primarily of labor, raw
materials and component costs but also includes

indirect production costs, expenses for warran
ties, contract and project charges, as well as
order-related development expenses incurred in
connection with projects for which corresponding
revenues have been recognized.

In 2016, cost of sales decreased 5 percent (2 per
cent in local currencies) to $24,081 million. As

a percentage of revenues, cost of sales decreased

from 71.4 percent in 2015 to 71.2 percent in 2016. In
particular, the Process Automation and Power

Grids divisions had a reduction in cost of sales as

a percentage of revenues, resulting from improve
ment in project margins and savings from supply
chain and operational excellence cost take-out
programs. In 2016, cost of sales was negatively
impacted by approximately 0.5 percent due to the
charges recorded for a change in previously
estimated warranty liabilities for certain solar
inverters sold by Power-One in the Discrete
Automation and Motion division.
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In 2015, cost of sales decreased 11percent (2 per
cent in local currencies) to $25,347 million. As

a percentage of revenues, cost of sales decreased

from 71.8 percent in 2014 to 71.4 percent in 2015.
Cost of sales as a percentage of revenues de
creased as benefits from higher cost savings and
benefits from ongoing measures taken in the
former Power Systems division's 'step change'
program more than offset the impact from price
erosion in the market and impacts from restructur
ing and related costs for the White Collar
Productivity program.

Selling, general and

administrative expenses

The components of selling, general and adminis
trative expenses were as follows:

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Selling expenses

Selling expenses
as a percentage of orders received 10.4% 10.2% 9.8%

General and

administrative expenses 1,869 1,845 2,013

General and administrative

expenses as a percentage

of revenues 5.5% 5.2 % 5.1 %
Total selling, general
and administrative expenses 5,349 5,574 6,067

Total selling, general
and administrative expenses
as a percentage of revenues 15.8% 15.7% 15.2%

Total selling, general
and administrative expenses as
a percentage of the average
of orders received and revenues 15.9% 15.5% 14.9%

3,480 3,729 4,054

In 2016, general and administrative expenses

increased 1 percent compared to 2015 (4 percent in

local currencies). As a percentage of revenues,
general and administrative expenses increased from
5.2 percent to 5.5 percent. General and administra

tive expenses were impacted by approximately
$183 millionof restructuring and restructuring-related
expenses for the White Collar Productivity program.

Restructuring-related expenses include the addi
tional costs of running parallel operations during
the relocation and transition phase, advisory costs

for external consultants, expenses associated with
our internal restructuring program implementation

teams and costs for hiring and training personnel

at new locations.

In 2015, general and administrative expenses
decreased 8 percent (increased 4 percent in local
currencies) compared to 2014. As a percentage of
revenues, general and administrative expenses
increased from 5.1 percent to 5.2 percent. General
and administrative expenses included



approximately $121million from costs for the
White Collar Productivity program and restructur
ing-related expenses of approximately $18million.

In 2016, selling expenses decreased 7 percent
compared to 2015 (decreased 4 percent in local
currencies) primarily driven by lower restructuring
expenses related to the White CollarProductivity
program. Selling expenses as a percentage of
orders received increased from 10.2 percent to

10.4 percent on lower orders. Selling expenses were
impacted by approximately $34 millionfrom costs
for the White Collar Productivity program.

In 2015, selling expenses have decreased 8 percent
(increased 3 percent in local currencies) compared
to 2014. Selling expenses as a percentage of orders
have increased from 9.8 percent to 10.2 percent.

Selling expenses were impacted by approximately
$89 million from costs for the White Collar

Productivity program.

In 2016, selling, general and administrative
expenses decreased 4 percent compared to 2015
(2 percent in local currencies) and as a percentage
of the average of orders and revenues, selling,
general and administrative expenses increased
from 15.5 percent to 15.9 percent mainly impacted
by lower orders and revenues.

In 2015, selling, general and administrative
expenses decreased 8 percent (increased 3 percent

in local currencies) compared to 2014 and as

a percentage of the average orders and revenues,
selling, general and administrative expenses
increased from 14.9 percent to 15.5 percent on

both lower revenues and orders and higher costs.

Non-order related research

and development expenses

In 2016, non-order related research and develop

ment expenses decreased 8 percent (6 percent in
local currencies) compared to 2015 and reflects the

savings realized by reducing the number of
employees. In 2015, non-order related research and

development expenses decreased 6 percent

(increased 6 percent in local currencies) compared
to 2014. Non-order related research and develop
ment expenses as a percentage of revenues
decreased in 2016 to 3.8 percent, after increasing
to 4.0 percent in 2015 from 3.8 percent in 2014.
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Other income (expense), net

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Restructuring and
restructuring-relatedexpenses'" (49) (67) (37)

Net gain from sale of property,
plant and equipment 38 26 17

Asset impairments (61) (33) (34)

Net gain (loss) from sale of
businesses (10) (20) 543

Misappropriation loss, net (73)
— —

Income from equity-accounted
companies and other income
(expense) 44 (11) 40

Total (111) (105) 529

"Other income (expense), net" primarily includes
certain restructuring and restructuring-related
expenses, gains and losses from sale of businesses
and sale of property, plant and equipment, recog
nized asset impairments, as wellas our share of
income or loss from equity-accounted companies.

In 2016, "Other income (expense), net" was an

expense of $111million compared to an expense of
$105 million in 2015. In 2016, we recorded lower

restructuring costs (see "Note 22 Restructuring
and related expenses"), higher gains on sale of
property, plant and equipment, and lower losses
from sale of businesses. Higher asset impairments

also negatively impacted Other income (expense),
net. We also recorded a loss of $73 million, net of

expected insurance recoveries, for the misappro
priation of cash by the treasurer of our subsidiary
in South Korea. In addition, in 2016, other income

included gains on certain foreign currency deriva

tives entered into in connection with the planned

sale of the Cables business.

In 2015, "Other income (expense), net" was an

expense of $105 million, compared with an income
of $529 million in 2014, and changed primarily due
to higher restructuring costs and lower gains from
sale of businesses.
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Income from operations

% Charge'"

(S in millions) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015
Electrification

Products

Discrete

Automation

and Motion

Process

Automation

Power Grids

Operating
divisions

Corporate

and Other

1,335 1,356 1.562 (2)% (13)%

831 991 1.422 (16)% (30)%

696 685 931 2% (26)%

888 613 257 45% 139%

3,750 3,645 4.1.72 3% (13)%

(767) (609) (5) n.a. n.a.

Intersegment
elimination 4 13 11 n.a. n.a.

Total 2,987 3,049 4,178 (2) % (27) %

In 2016 and 2015, changes in income from opera

tions were a result of the factors discussed above

and in the divisional analysis below.

Net interest and other

finance expense

Net interest and other finance expense consists of

"Interest and dividend income" offset by "Interest
and other finance expense".

"Interest and other finance expense" includes

interest expense on our debt, the amortization of

upfront transaction costs associated with long-

term debt and committed credit facilities, commit

ment fees on credit facilities, foreign exchange

gains and losses on financial items and gain; and

losses on marketable securities.

(S in millions) 2016 201E 2014

Interest and dividend income

Interest and other finance expense

73

(261)

77

(286!

80

(362)

Net interest and other

finance expense (188) (209: (282)

n 2016. "Interest and other finance expense'

decreased compared to 2015. Interest exper se on

oonds and other debt was lower and interest

charges for uncertain tax positions were lov/er in

2016 compared to 2015. This was partially offset by

higher foreign exchange losses.

In 2015, "Interest and other finance expense"

decreased compared to 2014, mainly due to

a reduction in foreign exchange losses and ower

interest expense on debt. Interest expense Dn

debt was lower due to lower effective interest rates
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and lower foreign currency exchange rates. In
addition, interest charges for uncertain tax

positions were lower in 2015 compared to 2014.

Provision for taxes

(S in millions)

Income from continuing operations
before taxes

Provision for taxes

Effective tax rate for the year

2016 2015 2014

2,799 2,840 3,896

(781) (788) (1,202)

27.9% 27.7% 30.9%

In 2016, the effective tax rate increased to 27.9

percent from 27.7 percent. The distribution of

income within the group resulted in a lower

weighted-average global tax rate. Changes in the
valuation allowance in 2016 compared to 2015

lowered the effective tax rate, as did the impact of
the interpretation of tax law and double tax treaty
agreements by competent tax authorities.

However, these were offset by the negative

impacts of changes in enacted tax rates and lower

benefits arising from research and development
activities.

In 2015, the effective tax rate of 27.7 percent

included a net increase in valuation allowance of

deferred taxes of $57 million, as we determined

it was not more likely than not that such deferred

tax assets would be realized. In addition, we

recorded a benefit of $50 million relating to tax

credits arising from research and development

activities and a charge of $74 million relating to the

interpretation of tax law and double tax treaty

agreements by competent tax authorities.

In 2014, the effective tax rate of 30.9 percent

included the effects of taxes on net gains on sale

of businesses. Included in the provision for taxes

of $1,202 million were taxes of $279 million relating

to $543 million of gains on sale of businesses.

These divestment transactions increased the

effective tax rate as gains were realized primarily in

higher-tax jurisdictions and the goodwill allocated

to the divested businesses was not deductible

for tax purposes. Excluding the effects of these

divestment transactions, the effective tax rate

for 2014 would have been 27.5 percent.

The provision for taxes in 2014 included a net

increase of valuation allowance on deferred taxes

of $52 million, as we determined it was not more

likelythan not that such deferred tax assets would

be realized. This amount included an expense of
$31 million related to certain of our operations in

South America.



The provision for taxes in 2014 also included tax

credits, arising in foreign jurisdictions, for which the

technical merits did not allow a benefit to be taken.

Income from continuing

operations, net of tax

As a result of the factors discussed above, income

from continuing operations, net of tax, decreased
by $34 million to $2,018 million in 2016 compared
to 2015, and decreased $642 million to $2,052

million in 2015 compared to 2014.

Income from discontinued

operations, net of tax

The income from discontinued operations, net of

tax, for 2016,2015 and 2014, was not significant.

Net income attributable to ABB

As a result of the factors discussed above, net

income attributable to ABBdecreased by
$34 million to $1,899 million in 2016 compared
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to 2015, and decreased $661 million to $1,933

million in 2015 compared to 2014.

Earnings per share attributable

to ABB shareholders

(in$)

Basic

Diluted

Basic

Diluted

2016 2015 2014

0.88 0.87 1.12

0.87 0.87 1.12

0.88 0.87 1.13

0.88 0.87 1.13

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
income by the weighted-average number of shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per
share is calculated by dividing income by the
weighted-average number of shares outstanding
during the year, assuming that all potentially
dilutive securities were exercised, if dilutive.

Potentially dilutive securities comprise: outstanding
written call options and outstanding options and

shares granted subject to certain conditions under

our share-based payment arrangements. See

"Note 20 Earnings per share" to our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Divisional analysis

Electrification Products

The financial results of our Electrification Products

division were as follows:

2016 2015 2014

% Change

($ in millions) 2016 2015

Orders 9,158 9,833 10,861 (7)% (9)%

Order backlog at
December 31, 2,612 2,872 2,798 (9)% 3%

Revenues 9,292 9,547 10,572 (3)% (10)%

Income from

operations 1,335 1,356 1,562 (2)% (13) %

Operational EBITA 1,528 1,561 1,739 (2)% (10)%

Orders

In 2016, orders decreased 7 percent (4 percent in

local currencies). In the Medium Voltage Products
and the Electrification Solutions businesses

demand was lower due to weak market conditions

and lower orders from EPC projects. Orders also
decreased in the Installation Products business

on weaker orders from the distributor and end-

customer channels. Orders were higher in the

Building Products business largely due to higher
orders from distributors, but partially offset by
lower demand from our direct end-customers.

Orders were stable in the Protection and

Connection business with growth in OEMorders
offset by weaker order intake from the distributor
and end-customers channels.

In 2015, orders decreased 9 percent (steady in

local currencies). Local currency order growth
in the Protection and Connection business was

offset by decreases in orders in the Building
Products and the Electrification Solutions
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businesses while orders in local currencies were

steady in the Medium Voltage Products business.

The geographic distribution of orders for our

Electrification Products division was as follows:

(in%) 2016 2015 2014

Europe 37 35 36

The Americas 27 26 24

Asia, Middle East and Africa 36 39 40

Total 100 100 100

In 2016, the share of orders in Europe increased
driven by growth in several countries, especially
Germany. In the Americas, while orders declined in

local currencies, the region was able to slightly
increase its share of orders relative to the larger
decrease in the Asia, Middle East and Africa region.
In Asia, Middle East and Africa the share of orders

decreased primarily due to lower orders in China
and Saudi Arabia compared to 2015.

In 2015, the share of orders in Europe decreased
primarily due to the strong U.S. dollar. The order
development in the Americas was steady, resulting
in an increase in the share of orders compared to
the other two geographies. The share of orders in

Asia, Middle East and Africa decreased due to

a slowdown of markets in China, the Middle East

and Australia. The share of orders in that region
compared to 2014 was also partially affected by
the strong U.S. dollar.

Order backlog

In 2016, order backlog decreased by 9 percent
(decrease of 5 percent in local currencies), primari
lyon decreased backlog in the Medium Voltage
Products business on higher order execution for
modular systems and primary switchgear.

In 2015, order backlog increased by 3 percent
(increased by 11 percent in local currencies), driven

mainly by higher backlog in the Medium Voltage
Products business.

Revenues

In 2016, revenues decreased by 3 percent compared

to 2015 (increased 1 percent in local currencies). In
local currencies, revenues increased in the Medium

Voltage Products business unit, which was

primarily driven by sales for modular systems and
which was partly offset by lower revenues from
primary switchgear. Our Building Products
business also showed an increase in revenues with

growth driven through the distribution and panel
builder channels, which was slightly offset by lower
revenues from direct end-customers. Revenues

were lower in all other business units on lower

demand from the distribution and OEM channels,
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although this was partly offset by increases in
the panel builder channel.

In 2015, revenues decreased by 10 percent

(steady in local currencies). In local currencies,

revenues were higher in the Medium Voltage

Products, Protection and Connection and

Installation Products businesses and were lower

in the Building Products and Electrification

Solutions businesses.

The geographic distribution of revenues for our
Electrification Products division was as follows:

(in%) 2016 2015 2014

Europe 37 34 37

The Americas 26 26 25

Asia, Middle East and Africa 37 40 38

Total 100 100 100

In 2016, the share of revenues in Europe increased

due to growth across several European countries,

especially Germany. Revenues in the Americas

decreased slightly, maintaining a steady overall
share of revenues. The share of revenues in Asia,

Middle East and Africa decreased primarily due to
lower revenues in China and the Middle East.

In 2015, the share of revenues in Europe decreased
primarily due to the strong U.S. dollar, as the

region otherwise showed solid local currency
growth. The revenues development in the Americas

was steady, resulting in an increase in the share of
revenues compared to the other two geographies.

The share of revenues in Asia, Middle East and

Africa increased slightly, however in local curren
cies the region revenues were lower compared to
2014 due to a slowdown of markets in China, the

Middle East and Australia.

Income from operations

In 2016, income from operations decreased
2 percent primarily due to lower revenues and

lower gross margins compared to 2015. Reductions
in selling, general and administrative expenses
resulting from ongoing restructuring and cost
savings programs, as well as lower restructuring
and restructuring-related expenses partly offset
the impact of lower gross margins. In addition
changes in foreign currencies, including the
impacts from FX/commodity timing differences
summarized in the table below, negatively impact
ed income from operations by 4 percent.

In 2015, income from operations decreased

13 percent. The decrease is primarily due to lower
revenues as well as higher restructuring charges in
connection with the company-wide White Collar
Productivity program which negatively impacted



income from operations. In addition changes in
foreign currencies, including the impacts from
FX/commodity timing differences summarized in
the table below, negatively impacted income from
operations by 8 percent.

Operational EBITA
The reconciliation of income from operations to

Operational EBITA for the Electrification Products
division was as follows:

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Income from operations 1,335 1,356 1,562

Acquisition-related amortization 95 100 113

Restructuring and
restructuring-related expenses'" 73 124 49

Non-operational pension cost 3 (3) (2)

Gains and losses on sale of

businesses, acquisition-related
expenses and certain
non-operational items 8 4 C/)

FX/commodity timing differences
in income from operations 14 (20) 24

Operational EBITA 1,528 1,561 1,739

In 2016, Operational EBITA decreased 2 percent
(steady when excluding the impacts from changes
in foreign currencies) compared to 2015, as
declines in Installation Products and Protection

and Connection businesses were offset by im

provements across all other businesses.

In 2015, Operational EBITA decreased 10 percent

(steady when excluding the impacts from changes
in foreign currencies) compared to 2014, as

declines in Installation Products business were

offset by other businesses.

Discrete Automation and Motion

The financial results of our Discrete Automation

and Motion division were as follows:

% Change

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015

Orders 8,654 9,222 10,559 (6)% (13)%

Order backlog at
December 31,

Revenues

Income from

operations

4,078 4,232 4,385 (4)% (3)%

8,714 9,127 10,142 (5)% (10)%

831 991 1,422 (16)% (30)%

Operational EBITA 1,195 1,295 1,595 (8)% (19)%

Orders

Orders in 2016 were 6 percent lower (4 percent in
local currencies). Strong order intake in the Robotics
business and higher orders from light industries,
such as the food and beverage industry, were more

04 FINANCIAL REVIEW OF ABB GROUP 119

than offset by lower orders in the Motors and
Generators and the Drives and Controls businesses,

primarilydue to declining orders from the oiland
gas sector. Orders in the PowerConversion business
were also lower due to a decrease in orders from

customers in the solar industry.

Orders in 2015 decreased 13 percent (5 percent in
local currencies) due to weaker markets in most of
our businesses. Declining oil prices and slower
growth in China affected the order intake nega
tively, especially in the Motorsand Generatorsand
the Drives and Controls businesses. Orders in the

Robotics business increased in local currencies,

supported by strong demand for services. Orders
in the Power Conversion business were lower and

were impacted by lower large orders from the
rail segment.

The geographic distribution of orders for our
Discrete Automation and Motion division was

as follows:

(in%) 2016 2015 2014

Europe 36 34 39

The Americas 33 35 32

Asia, Middle East and Africa 31 31 29

Total 100 100 100

In 2016, the share of orders in Europe increased

mainly due to strong demand in Germany and
Finland, respectively driven by the Robotics
business and the Drives and Controls business. The

share of orders from the Americas decreased

mainly due to lower orders in the Motors and
Generators business and lower orders in the Drives

and Controls business.

In 2015, the geographical distribution of our
orders changed primarily due to the impact of the
large rail orders from Europe in 2014. In addition,

orders from the Americas and Asia, Middle East

and Africa benefitted from strong orders in the

Robotics business.

Order backlog

Order backlog in 2016 decreased 4 percent. In local

currencies, order backlog was flat as lower order

backlog in the Drives and Controls business and

Motors and Generators business was offset by
increases in the backlog for the Robotics and
Power Conversion businesses.

Order backlog in 2015 decreased 3 percent (in

creased 3 percent in local currencies) compared to
2014. In local currencies, order backlog increased
as lower order backlog in the Motors and Generators
business was offset by increases in the backlog for
the Robotics and Power Conversion businesses.
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Revenues

In 2016, revenues decreased 5 percent (2 percent in
local currencies) due to lower revenues in the

Motors and Generators, the Drives and Controls

and the Power Conversion businesses. Revenues

were higher in the Robotics business as we
executed on the strong orders received and the
strong order backlog.

In2015,revenues were 10 percent lower (2 percent
in local currencies). Revenues were weaker, as
growth in the Robotics and Power Conversion

businesses, supported by strong order backlog,
was offset byweaker revenues resulting from
the lowerorder intake in the short-cycle businesses
such as low voltage motors and drives.

The geographic distribution of revenues for our

Discrete Automation and Motion division was

as follows:

(in%) 2016 2015 2014

Europe 36 35 37

The Americas 34 35 33

Asia, Middle East and Africa 30 30 30

Total 100 100 100

In 2016, the geographical distribution of revenues
was similar to 2015. The share of revenues in

Europe slightly increased due to the execution of

a strong order backlog, while the share of revenues
in the Americas decreased due to lower volume in

the solar market. The share of revenues from Asia,

Middle East and Africa remained flat as higher
revenues in the Robotics business offset the

decline in the Drives and Controls and the Motors

and Generators businesses.

In 2015, revenues declined in all regions. The share
of revenue from Europe was lower than in 2014 due
to the weak markets for motors and drives. The

share of revenues from the Americas increased,

especially due to the revenue development in the
Robotics business. As a result the share of reve

nues from Asia, Middle East and Africa remained

flat as higher revenues in the Robotics business
somewhat compensated the decline in the Drives

and Controls business.

Income from operations

In 2016, income from operations was 16 percent
lower compared to 2015 mainly due to the impact
of costs recorded for a change in estimated
warranty liabilities for certain solar inverters
designed and sold by Power-One. During 2016,
we recorded $151 million as a charge to cost of
sales to recognize a change in the estimated
warranty liabilityfor these products, the majority of
which were delivered to customers by Power-One
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prior to the acquisition date in 2013.Of this charge,
$131 million related to the products sold by
Power-One prior to the acquisition and has been
included as an adjustment, in the table below,
to determine the segment profit for the division.
Additionally, lower revenues and lowcapacity
utilization further reduced the income from

operations. Restructuring and restructuring-
related expenses in 2016 were lower than 2015.

Incomefrom operations benefitted from a strong
performance of the Robotics business but was

offset bydeclines in the other businesses. Changes
in foreign currencies, including the impacts from
FX/commodity timing differences summarized
in the table below, negatively impacted income
from operations by 2 percent.

In 2015, income from operations decreased
30 percent compared to 2014 due to lower revenues
and lower capacity utilization. Steady income in the
Robotics business could not compensate for the
profit deterioration realized in other businesses.

The Drivesand Controls business was negatively
affected by the weaker business climate in China
while the Motors and Generators business suffered

from low oil prices and weak demand leading to
lower factory utilization. Income from operations in
the Power Conversion business was flat despite
both continued price erosion and higher warranty
costs in the solar business. The division's income

from operations was also negatively affected by the
impact of the higher restructuring charges incurred
in connection with capacity adjustments and the
company-wide White Collar Productivity program.
Changes in foreign currencies, including the
impacts from FX/commodity timing differences
summarized in the table below, negatively impacted
income from operations by 7 percent.

Operational EBITA

The reconciliation of income from operations to

Operational EBITA for the Discrete Automation and

Motion division was as follows:

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Income from operations 831 991 1,422

Acquisition-related amortization 120 128 138

Restructuring and
restructuring-related expenses'" 88 125 25

Non-operational pension cost 2 3 6

Changes in pre-acquisition
estimates 131 21

—

Gains and losses on sale of

businesses, acquisition-related
expenses and certain
non-operational items 18 26

—

FX/commodity timing differences
in income from operations 5 1 4

Operational EBITA 1,195 1,295 1,595



In 2016, Operational EBITA decreased 8 percent
(6 percent excluding the impacts from changes in
foreign currencies) primarily due to the reasons
described under "Income from operations",

excluding the explanations related to the reconcil
ing items in the table above.

In 2015, Operational EBITA decreased 20 percent
(11 percent excluding the impacts from changes in
foreign currencies) compared to 2014, primarily
due to the reasons described under "Income from

operations", excluding the explanations related to
the reconciling items in the table above.

Process Automation

The financial results of our Process Automation

division were as follows:

2016 2015 2014

% Change

($ in millions) 2016 2015

Orders 5,866 7,347 9,213 (20)% (20) %

Order backlog at
December 31, 5,258 6,036 6,515 (13) % (7)%

Revenues 6,598 7,224 8,618 (9)% (16)%

Income from

operations 696 685 931 2% (26)%

Operational EBITA 824 863 1,045 (5)% (17)%

Orders

Orders in 2016 declined 20 percent (18 percent

in local currencies) compared with the previous

year, mainly due to continued low or decreased
levels of capital expenditure in both the onshore

and offshore oil segments. Orders were lower in

most Process Automation businesses, but mainly

in the Oil, Gas and Chemicals business, Marine

and Ports and Process Industries. The Process

Industries business continued to be affected by

low commodity prices leading to weak demand

from the mining and metals industries, where

spending overall, both capital expenditure and

operational expenditure, was cut.

Orders in 2015 declined 20 percent (9 percent in

local currencies), mainly due to the impacts of
a reduction in capital and operating expenditures
in the oil and gas sector resulting from continued

low oil prices. This negatively impacted the Oil,
Gas and Chemicals business. The continued low

oil prices adversely impacted the marine sector
and in particular the offshore drilling vessels
segment. This development negatively impacted
the Marine and Ports business. The Process

Industries business was also adversely affected
as the mining sector remained at a low level as

customers in this segment either continued to
delay or postpone investments due to low
commodity prices.
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The geographic distribution of orders for our
Process Automation division was as follows:
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(in%) 2016 2015 2014

Europe 42 38 34

The Americas 21 22 22

Asia, Middle East and Africa 37 40 44

Total 100 100 100

In 2016, orders declined in all regions. Orders in
Europe declined less than other regions, thus
increasing the geographic share of orders from
Europe. The volume in Europe was supported by
orders from marine industries, specifically for
specialty vessels likecruise ships and ice-going
vessels. The share of orders from the Americas fell

slightlywith order declines especially in Canada,
the U.S. and Chile, where the Process Industries

business was affected by low capital expenditure
in mining due to low demand from China for raw
materials. In the Asia, Middle East and Africa

region, orders were lower especially in the Marine
and Ports business due to weak demand for oil and

gas related vessels and the lack of infrastructure
projects from the ports business. Inaddition, the
Oil, Gas and Chemical business as well as the

Process Industries business suffered from the lack

of large orders in this geographic area.

In 2015, orders declined in all regions. The share
of orders from Asia, Middle East and Africa

declined due to large orders received from the
Marine and Ports business in 2014. In addition,

the region was impacted by weak domestic
demand in China. Orders in the Americas declined

by a lower percentage than the division as a whole,
resulting in a steady share of the orders from the
Americas. Declines included the impacts of lower

mining investments in South America, as well as
slowing demand in the U.S. from the upstream oil
and gas sector. As most major industrial econo

mies in Europe were either steady or contracting

only slightly, the geographic share of orders from

Europe increased.

Order backlog

Order backlog at December 31,2016 was 13 percent

lower (10 percent in local currencies) than at

December 31,2015. The lower backlog was a result
of the lower order intake during the year and the
continued execution from the existing backlog.

Order backlog at December 31,2015, was 7 percent
lower (3 percent higher in local currencies) than
at December 31,2014. Order backlog in most
businesses was lower due to the impacts of lower
orders during the year. The increase in order

backlog in local currencies was due to the receipt
of higher large orders near the end of 2015.
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Revenues

In 2016, revenues declined 9 percent (6 percent in
local currencies) compared with the previous year.
The largest decline was in the Process Industries
business due to the loweropening order backlog
and the continued lowlevelof order activity from
the mining and metals sector. Acontinued lack of
orders from the oil and gas industry negatively
impacted revenues in the Oil, Gas and Chemicals

business. The overall decrease in revenues was

mitigated by steady revenues in the Marine and
Ports business which was supported bythe strong
opening order backlog for ice-going and cruise
vessels. Revenues were also steady in the Power
Generation business due to solid execution from

the order backlog. Of the product businesses,
Control Technologies had revenue levels similar to
the previous year, but the Measurement and
Analytics and the Turbocharging businesses were
slightly lower due to lower order intake.

In2015, revenues decreased 16 percent (5 percent
in local currencies). Revenues in the Oil, Gas
and Chemicals business declined, reflecting
the lower opening order backlog as well as
reduced opportunities from slower customer
order tendering, especially in the service busi
ness. The Marine and Ports business also re

corded lower revenues, reflecting lower activity
in the offshore oil and gas industry and large
project delays. The Process Industries business,
which includes mining and metals, also declined.
Revenues in the Measurement and Analytics
business declined, largely due to lower demand
in the upstream oil and gas segment. In local
currencies, the Turbocharging and the Power
Generation businesses were flat while the Control

Technologies business had higher revenues.

The geographic distribution of revenues for our
Process Automation division was as follows:

(in%) 2016 2015 2014

Europe 37 34 36

The Americas 21 23 23

Asia, Middle East and Africa 42 43 41

Total 100 100 100

In 2016, revenues continued to decline in the

Americas and in Asia, Middle East and Africa, while

Europe was stable. This resulted in an increase

in the share of revenues from Europe. Except for
the Marine and Ports business, revenues in the

Americas declined in all businesses, especially the

Oil, Gas and Chemicals, Process Industries and

the product businesses. Revenues in Asia, Middle
East and Africa were especially impacted by the
weak demand from the Process Industries busi

ness, particularly mining.
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The regional distribution of revenues in 2015
remained steady compared to 2014 as a downturn
in the oil and gas and commodities sectors
affected all of the geographies. The share of
revenues from Europe declined, reflecting lower oil
and gas and marine activities in Norway. Revenues
in the Americas decreased proportionally. The
larger proportional revenue decrease in Europe
and a steady share of revenues in the Americas
resulted in a redistribution of the share to Asia,
Middle East and Africa.

Income from operations

In 2016, income from operations increased
2 percent compared with 2015, despite
decreasing revenues as restructuring charges
relating to the ongoing White CollarProductivity
program and other restructuring activities were
lower. Operating margins were maintained
as we reduced overhead costs by removing
organizational costs at the local division level

and downsizing operations in areas with low order
backlog and low market demand. Keyactions
included closing warehouses and consolidating
operations to fewer locations, but mainly included
reducing the number of personnel. Restructuring
programs were implemented in all businesses due

to a continued weak market outlook. Overall, the

number of employees in the Process Automation
division was reduced by approximately 1,200
during 2016. In addition, changes in foreign curren
cies, including the impacts from FX/commodity
timing differences summarized in the table below,

negatively impacted income from operations by
4 percent.

In 2015, income from operations declined 26 per
cent compared to 2014, mainly from higher

restructuring charges due to the implementation

of the company-wide White Collar Productivity
program as well as the decrease in revenues

explained above. Changes in foreign currencies,

including the impacts from FX/commodity timing
differences summarized in the table below,

negatively impacted income from operations by
8 percent.



Operational EBITA

The reconciliation of income from operations to

Operational EBITA for the Process Automation
division was as follows:

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Income from operations 696 685 931

Acquisition-related amortization 11 12 18

Restructuring and
restructuring-relatedexpenses'" 79 130 36

Non-operational pension cost 2 6 17

Gains and losses on sale of

businesses, acquisition-related
expenses and certain
non-operational items 9 14 32

FX/commodity timing differences
in income from operations 27 16 11

Operational EBITA 824 863 1,045

In 2016, Operational EBITA decreased by 5 percent
(2 percent excluding the impacts from changes in
foreign currencies) compared to 2015, primarily
due to the reasons described under "Income from

operations", excluding the explanations related to
the reconciling items in the table above.

In 2015, Operational EBITA decreased 17 percent
(9 percent excluding the impacts from changes in
foreign currencies) compared to 2014, primarily
due to the reasons described under "Income from

operations", excluding the explanations related to
the reconciling items in the table above.

Power Grids

The financial results of our Power Grids division

were as follows:

2016 2015 2014

% Change

($ in millions) 2016 2015

Orders 11,232 12,205 12,768 (8)% (4)%

Order backlog at
December 31, 12,437 12,502 12,619 (D% (1)%

Revenues 10,975 11,621 12,518 (6)% (7)%

Income from

operations 888 613 257 45% 139%

Operational EBITA 1,021 877 607 16% 44%

Orders

In 2016, orders decreased 8 percent (5 percent in
local currencies) compared with 2015. The decrease
partly reflected a lower level of large orders, which
was primarily caused by the timing of order
awards. Base orders were also lower, reflecting
general macroeconomic uncertainty and sluggish
ness in some geographic markets such as Saudi
Arabia and the U.S. The lower pull-through of
orders from other ABB divisions, primarily the
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Process Automation division, reduced orders by

3 percent. Third-party base orders decreased
3 percent (steady in local currencies) with order
growth in the GridSystems, HighVoltage Products
and Grid Automation businesses offset by

market-driven base order weakness in the Trans

formers business. Large orders in 2016 included
a $640 million UHVDCtransmission link in India,
two UHVDC orders for China (each worth more

than $300 million), and a $250 million high-voltage
cable system to connect the Hornsea offshore
wind farm in the North Sea to the United Kingdom
mainland grid. The general market remains
competitive with macroeconomic and geopolitical
challenges.

In 2015, orders decreased 4 percent (increased
8 percent in local currencies) compared with 2014.
The growth in localcurrencies mainlyresulted from
a higher levelof large orders. Large orders in the
Grid Systems business included an HVDC order
awarded to connect the Norwegian and German
power grids and a $450 million HVDC order for an
interconnection between Norway and the United
Kingdom. Large orders were also supported by the
continued selective investments in large transmis

sion projects in the U.S.and China. In local curren
cies, base orders were lower, mainly due to the
challenging macroeconomic conditions. The
markets remained competitive with continued
pricing pressure.

The geographic distribution of orders for our
Power Grids division was as follows:

(in%) 2016 2015 2014

Europe 27 37 34

The Americas 27 27 31

Asia, Middle East and Africa 46 36 35

Total 100 100 100

In the Power Grids division, the change in the

geographic share of orders often reflects changes
in the geographical location of large orders. In
2016, the share of orders from Asia, Middle East

and Africa increased from 36 percent to 46 percent,
helped by strong order intake in China and India.
Although the share of orders from the Americas

was steady, orders from the Americas were lower,

resulting from market challenges particularly in the
U.S. and Brazil. The share of orders from Europe
decreased to 27 percent, compared with 37 percent
in 2015, mainly due to the high amount of large
orders received from Europe in 2015.

In 2015, Europe benefited from a higher level of
large orders compared with 2014, supported by the
large HVDC awards. The share of orders from Asia,
Middle East and Africa increased to 36 percent,
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supported by large orders. Orders in the Americas
were significantly lower, partly due to a significant
large HVDCorder received in Canada in 2014.

Order backlog

Order backlog at December 31,2016, decreased
1 percent (increased 3 percent in local currencies).
The local currency increase in order backlog was
mainly driven by the Transformers business,
resulting from a significantlyhigher share of large
orders with long leadtimes.

Order backlog at December 31,2015, decreased
1 percent (increased 7 percent in local currencies)
compared with December 31,2014. The local

currency increase in order backlog reflects the
impact of the high levelsof large orders, which
typicallyhave execution times stretching over
several years.

Revenues

Revenues in 2016 decreased 6 percent (3 percent
in local currencies) compared with 2015. The
revenue volume in 2016 mainly reflected the
scheduled execution of the order backlog. The
revenue decrease was mainly attributable to
the Grid Systems business as the offshore wind

projects which contributed strongly to the
revenues in 2015 were either finalized or nearing
completion. A lower level of revenues in the

Transformers business primarily resulted from
order weakness in the U.S. whereas revenues in

the Grid Integration business were negatively
impacted by the exit from the EPC Solar business
and the wind-down of the plant electrification
business.

Revenues in 2015 decreased 7 percent (increased
3 percent in local currencies) compared with
2014. The increase in local currencies was mainly
driven by steady execution of the order backlog,
led by growth in the Grid Systems business,
supported by the execution of offshore wind
projects. In local currencies, revenues were also

higher in the business units Grid Automation,

Transformers and High Voltage Products. These
positives more than offset a lower level of

revenues in the Grid Integration business, which

was partly caused by our exit from the EPC Solar

business in 2014.

The geographic distribution of revenues for our
Power Grids division was as follows:

(in%) 2016 2015 2014

Europe 30 32 34

The Americas 29 30 28

Asia, Middle East and Africa 41 38 38

Total 100 100 100
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The regional distribution of revenues partly reflects
the geographical end-user markets of the projects
executed during the year, and consequently varies
over time. In2016, the share of revenues from Asia,
Middle East and Africa increased to 41 percent,
supported by significantly higher revenues from
the Transformer business in China. The share of

revenues from Europe decreased to 30 percent,
mainly due to a lower level of revenues from the

Grid Systems business, related to lower revenues in
the offshore wind projects described above. The
share of revenues from the Americas was lower,
mainly driven by lower revenue volumes from the
U.S. and Brazil.

In2015,revenues decreased in all regions. In Europe
the share of revenuesdecreased due mainlyto lower
revenues in the Transformers and HighVoltage
businesses. The steady execution in the Americas
resulted in a proportional increase of revenues from
that region, while the revenues in Asia, Middle East
and Africadecreased proportionally, mainlydue to
the Grid Integration business.

Income from operations

In2016,income from operations increased by
$275 millionto $888 million compared with $613 mil
lion in 2015. The impact from lower revenues was
more than offset by a higher gross margin, driven by
solid project execution, improved productivity and
continued cost savings. Restructuring and restruc
turing-related expenses in 2016 of $101 million were
$59 million lower than in 2015 and included addition

al charges for the White Collar Productivity program,
as well as initiatives to align the cost structure and
footprint of certain operations to reflect changing
market conditions. We had lower research and

development expenses and lower acquisition-related
amortization in 2016 compared to 2015. In addition,

changes in foreign currencies, including the changes
in FX/commodity timing differences in income from
operations decreased the division's income from

operations by 2 percent compared to 2015.

In2015, income from operations increased by
$356 million to $613 million compared with
$257 millionin 2014, mainly due to benefits from the
ongoing measures taken in the 'step change'

program (implemented in the former Power Systems
division) and continued cost reduction initiatives.

Restructuring-related expenses in 2015 of $160 mil
lion were higher than in 2014 and included charges
for the new company-wide White Collar Productivity
program and ongoing costs for the previously-
announced initiatives to align the cost structure of
certain operations to reflect changing market
conditions. Continued cost savings, primarily related
to supply chain management and operational
excellence, helped to mitigate higher research and
development spending as well as the negative



effects from price pressures. Acquisition-related
amortization also decreased in 2015 compared to

2014. Inaddition, changes in the amount of FX/
commodity timing differences in incomefrom
operations increased the division'sincomefrom
operations by $124 million compared to 2014.

Operational EBITA
The reconciliation of income from operations to

Operational EBITA for the Power Grids division was
as follows:

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Income from operations 888 613 257

Acquisition-related amortization 35 52 89

Restructuring and
restructuring-relatedexpenses'" 101 160 106

Non-operational pension cost (2) 3 12

Gains and losses on sale of

businesses, acquisition-related
expenses

and certain non-operational items (2) 39 9

FX/commodity timing differences
in income from operations 1 10 134

Operational EBITA 1,021 877 607

In 2016, Operational EBITA increased by 16 percent
(19 percent excluding the impacts from changes in
foreign currencies) compared to 2015, primarily
due to the reasons described under "Income from

operations", excluding the explanations related to
the reconciling items in the table above.

In2015, Operational EBITA increased by $270 million.
This was primarily driven by the reasons described
under "Income from operations", excluding the
explanations related to the reconciling items in the

table above.

Corporate and Other

Income (loss) from operations for Corporate and

Other was as follows:

($ in millions)

Corporate headquarters
and stewardship

Corporate research
and development

Corporate real estate

White Collar Productivity
program costs

Divested businesses

Misappropriation loss

Other

Total Corporate and Other

2016 2015 2014

(380) (355) (343)

(133) (144) (174)

47 50 44

(199) (130) —

— 2 547

(73) - -

(29) (32) (79)

(767) (609) (5)
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In 2016, Corporate headquarters and stewardship
costs increased due to the launch of the new ABB

brand and other costs related to the implementa
tion of the Next Level Strategy program. In 2015,
Corporate headquarters and stewardship costs
were effectively at the same level of the prior year.

Corporate real estate primarily includes the
income from property rentals and gains from the
sale of real estate properties. In 2016,2015 and
2014, income from operations in Corporate real
estate included gains of $33 million, $26 million
and $17million, respectively, from the sales of real
estate property in various countries.

In 2016, ABBrecorded a total of $199 million in
"Corporate and Other" for both restructuring
and related expenses as well as program imple
mentation costs for the White Collar Productivity

program. These costs relate mainlyto employee
severance costs and both external and internal

costs relating to the execution of the program.
In 2015, costs incurred in connection to the

White Collar Productivity program amounted to
$130 million. For further information on the White

Collar Productivity program see "Restructuring
and other cost savings initiatives" below.

The historical results of operations for certain
divested businesses have been presented in

"Corporate and Other". In 2014, the amount
primarily represents gains recorded on the
divestments of these businesses of $543 million.

In 2016, we recorded a loss of $73 million, net of

expected insurance recoveries, for the misappro
priation of cash by the treasurer of our subsidiary

in South Korea.

"Other" consists of operational costs of our Global
Treasury Operations, operating income or loss in
other non-core businesses and certain other

charges such as costs and penalties associated
with legal cases, environmental expenses and
impairment charges related to investments.
In 2016, "Other" included the impact of a reduction

in certain insurance-related provisions for
self-insured risks offset by amounts recorded for
certain pension curtailment costs. In 2015, "Other"

declined primarily due to a reduction of insurance-

related provisions for self-insured risks. In 2014,

"Other" included primarily lower charges in
connection with legal compliance cases and lower

environmental expenses compared to 2013.
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Restructuring and other cost
savings initiatives

White Collar Productivity
program

lr September 2015, we announced a two-year
p-ogram aimed at making ABB leaner, faster and

more customer-focused. Productivity improve
ments include the rapid expansion and use c f

regional shared service centers as well as the

streamlining of global operations and head office

functions, with business units moving closer to
their respective key markets. In the course of this

P'cgram, we are implementing and executing
various restructuring initiatives across all opeiating
segments and regions.

The program was originally expected to generate
cost savings of approximately $1.0 billion and
be realized from 2016 and increasing through the
end of 2017. During 2016, we re-assessed the
expected amount of cost savings and increased
tie expected total annual rate of cost savings

from the program by 30 percent to approximately
$1.3 billion. During 2016, cost savings of appioxi-

niately $0.6 billion were realized. These savings are
primarily being realized as reductions in cost of

sales, selling, general and administrative expanses
and non-order related research and development

expenses.

The following table outlines the costs incurred in

2016, the cumulative amount of costs incurred

to date and the total amount of costs expected to
be incurred under the program.

Cumulative
Costs incurred in costs

incurred up to Total

December 31. (xpected

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2016 costs'"

f lectrification

Products 14 73 87 89

Discrete

automation

and Motion 27 45 72 74

Process

Automation 36 96 132 134

Power Grids 33 70 103 105

Corporate
•ind Other 30 86 116 118

Total 140 370 510 520

Total expected program costs were originally
estimated to be $852 million.During 2016, the total
expected program restructuring costs were
reduced by $332million. This was primarilydue
to the realization of significantly higher than
originally expected attrition and internal

re-deployment rates. The reductions were made
across all operating divisions as well as for

corporate functions. In addition, we reduced the

expected average severance costs per person as
more precise cost estimates were available after

determining the specific country locations of
affected employees.

In 2016 and 2015, restructuring costs of

$140 million and $370 million, respectively, were
recorded based on the anticipated number of
personnel to be impacted by the program and

a country-specific average severance cost per
person. Various functions including marketing and
sales, supply chain management, research and

development, engineering, service, and certain
other support functions were impacted in various

phases commencing in 2015 and continuing in 2016.

In 2016, we experienced a significantly higher

than expected rate of attrition and re-deployment

and a lower than expected severance cost per

employee for the employee groups affected by the
restructuring programs initiated in 2015 and 2016.

As a result, in 2016, we adjusted the amount of

our estimated liability for restructuring which

was recorded in 2015. This change in estimate

of $103 million for the twelve months ended

December 31, 2016 resulted in a reduction primarily

in cost of sales of $49 million and in selling, general

and administrative expenses of $38 million for

the twelve months ended December 31, 2016. The

expense recorded for the restructuring initiated

in 2016 includes the impacts of the attrition and

re-deployments realized in 2016. Due to the signifi
cant subjectivity of our estimate of future attrition

and internal re-deployment rates, the amount

reported for restructuring liabilities at December

31, 2016 will change based on actual attrition and

re-deployment rates realized in 2017.

To complete the remaining planned restructuring

activities, we estimate that additional restructuring

costs of approximately $10 million will be recorded

in 2017.



The majority of the remaining cash outlays, primarily
for employee severance benefits, are expected to
occur in 2017.We expect that our cash flow from
operating activities will be sufficient to cover any
obligations under this restructuring program.

For details of the nature of the costs incurred

and their impact on the Consolidated Financial
Statements, see "Note 22 Restructuring and

related expenses" to our Consolidated Financial

Statements.
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Other restructuring-

related activities and cost

savings initiatives

In 2016, 2015 and 2014, we also executed other

restructuring-related and cost saving measures to
sustainably reduce our costs and protect our
profitability. Costs associated with these other
measures amounted to $171 million, $256 million

and $235 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014,

respectively.

Liquidity and capital resources

Principal sources of funding

We meet our liquidity needs principally using cash
from operations, proceeds from the issuance of
debt instruments (bonds and commercial paper),

and short-term bank borrowings.

During 2016, 2015 and 2014, our financial position

was strengthened by the positive cash flow from
operating activities of $3,843 million, $3,818 mil
lion and $3,845 million, respectively.

Our net debt is shown in the table below:

December 31.

(S in millions) 2016 2015

Short-term debt and current

maturities of long-term debt

Long-term debt

Cash and equivalents

Marketable securities

and short-term investments

Net debt

(defined as the sum of the above lines)

1,003 1.454

5,800 5,985

(3,644) (4,565)

(1,953) (1,633)

1,206 1,241

Net debt at December 31, 2016, decreased

$35 million compared to December 31, 2015, as

cash flows from operating activities during

2016 of $3,843 million exceeded cash outflows for

the payment to our shareholders of the nominal

value reduction ($1,610 million), net purchases of

property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets ($770 million) and amounts paid to purchase
treasury stock ($1,299 million). Other significant

transactions affecting our liquidity included the

issuance of treasury shares for $192 million and
payments of dividends to noncontrolling

shareholders of $122 million. Movements in foreign

exchange rates increased net debt by approximate
ly $50 million. See "Financial Position", "Investing
activities" and "Financing activities" for further

details.

Our Group Treasury Operations is responsible

for providing a range of treasury management
services to our group companies, including

investing cash in excess of current business
requirements. At December 31, 2016 and 2015,

the proportion of our aggregate "Cash and

equivalents" and "Marketable securities and

short-term investments" managed by our Group

Treasury Operations amounted to approximately

57 percent and 55 percent, respectively.

Throughout 2016 and 2015, the investment strategy

for cash (in excess of current business require

ments) has generally been to invest in short-term

time deposits with maturities of less than 3 months,

supplemented at times by investments in corporate

commercial paper, money market funds, and in

some cases, government securities. During 2016

and 2015, we also continued to place limited

funds in connection with reverse repurchase

agreements. We actively monitor credit risk in our

investment portfolio and hedging activities. Credit

risk exposures are controlled in accordance with

policies approved by our senior management to

identify, measure, monitor and control credit risks.

We closely monitor developments in the credit

markets and make appropriate changes to our

investment policy as deemed necessary. The rating
criteria we require for our counterparts have

remained unchanged during 2016 (compared to

2015) as follows: a minimum rating of A/A2 for our
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banking counterparts, while the minimum required
rating for investments in short-term corporate
commercial paper is A-l/P-1. Inaddition to rating
criteria, we have specific investment parameters
and approved instruments as well as restrictions on
the types of investments we make. These parame
ters are closely monitored on an ongoing basis and
amended as we consider necessary.

Our cash is held in various currencies around the

world. Approximately 28 percent of our cash and
cash equivalents held at December 31,2016, was in
U.S.dollars, while other significant amounts were
held in the Chinese renminbi (22 percent), the euro
(approximately 12 percent), the Canadian dollar
(approximately 8 percent), the Norwegian krone
(7 percent) and the Indian rupee (5 percent).

We believe the cash flows generated from our
business, supplemented, when necessary, through
access to the capital markets (including short-term
commercial paper) and our credit facilities are

sufficient to support business operations, capital
expenditures, business acquisitions, the payment
of dividends to shareholders and contributions

to pension plans. Consequently, we believe that our
ability to obtain funding from these sources will
continue to provide the cash flows necessary to
satisfy our working capital and capital expenditure
requirements, as well as meet our debt repayments
and other financial commitments for the next

12 months. See "Disclosures about contractual

obligations and commitments".

Due to the nature of our operations, our cash flow
from operations generally tends to be weaker in
the first half of the year than in the second half of
the year.

Debt and interest rates

Total outstanding debt was as follows:

December 31,

($ in millions)

Short-term debt and current

maturities of long-term debt

: o iq-term debt

Bonds

Other long-term debt

Total debt

2016 2015

1,003 1,454

5,653 5,811

147 174

6,803 7,439

The decrease in short-term debt in 2016 was due

to the repayment at maturity of both our USD
600 million 2.5% Notes and our CHF 500 million

1.25% Bonds. This was partially offset by the
reclassification of our USD 500 million 1.625%

Notes and our AUD 400 million 4.25% Notes, both
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due in 2017, from long-term to short-term. In
addition, we decreased the amount of issued

commercial paper ($57 millionoutstanding at
December 31,2016, compared to $132 million
outstanding at December 31,2015).

Our debt has been obtained in a range of curren
cies and maturities and on various interest rate

terms. For certain of our debt obligations, we use
derivatives to manage the fixed interest rate
exposure. For example, we use interest rate swaps
to effectively convert fixed rate debt into floating
rate liabilities. After considering the effects of
interest rate swaps, the effective average interest
rate on our floating rate long-term debt (including
current maturities) of $1,745 million and our

fixed rate long-term debt (including current
maturities) of $4,923 million was 1.3 percent and
2.9 percent, respectively. This compares with
an effective rate of 0.8 percent for floating rate
long-term debt of $2,285 million and 3.2 percent
for fixed rate long-term debt of $4,876 million
at December 31,2015.

For a discussion of our use of derivatives to modify
the interest characteristics of certain of our

individual bond issuances, see "Note 12 Debt" to

our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Credit facility

During 2016 we exercised our second and final

option to extend the maturity of our $2 billion
multicurrency revolving credit facility from
2020 to 2021.

No amount was drawn under the credit facility at
December 31,2016 and 2015. The facility is for
general corporate purposes. The facility contains

cross-default clauses whereby an event of default
would occur if we were to default on indebted

ness, as defined in the facility, at or above
a specified threshold.

The credit facility does not contain financial
covenants that would restrict our ability to pay
dividends or raise additional funds in the capital

markets. For further details of the credit facility,
see "Note 12 Debt" to our Consolidated Financial

Statements.

Commercial paper

At December 31,2016, we had two commercial

paper programs in place:
• a $2 billion commercial paper program for the

private placement of U.S.dollar denominated
commercial paper in the United States, and



. a $2 billion Euro-commercial paper program for
the issuance of commercial paper in a variety of

currencies.

At December 31,2016, $57 million was outstanding

under the $2 billion program in the United States,

compared to $132 million outstanding at
December 31,2015.

No amount was outstanding under the $2 billion
Euro-commercial paper program at December 31,

2016 and 2015.

European program for the

issuance of debt

The European program for the issuance of debt
allows the issuance of up to (the equivalent of)
$8 billion in certain debt instruments. The terms of

the program do not obligate any third-party to
extend credit to us and the terms and possibility of

issuing any debt under the program are deter
mined with respect to, and as of the date of
issuance of, each debt instrument. During 2016, we

issued EUR 700 million 0.625% Notes, due 2023,

under the program. At December 31,2016, two
bonds (principal amount of EUR1,250 million, due
in 2019, and principal amount of EUR700 million,

due in 2023) having a combined carrying amount of
$2,043 million were outstanding under the

program. At December 31,2015, one bond (princi
pal amount of EUR1,250 million and due in 2019)

having a carrying amount of $1,363 million was
outstanding under the program. As of March 1,

2017, it was more than 12 months since the

program had been updated. New bonds could be
issued under the program but could not be listed

without us formally updating the program.

Australian program for the

issuance of debt

During 2012, we set up a program for the issuance

of up to AUD1 billion (equivalent to $722 million,

using December 31,2016, exchange rates) of
medium-term notes and other debt instruments.

The terms of the program do not obligate any
third-party to extend credit to us and the terms

and possibility of issuing any debt under the
program are determined with respect to, and as of

the date of issuance of, each debt instrument. At

both December 31,2016 and 2015, one bond,

having a principal amount of AUD400 million and
maturing in 2017,was outstanding under the
program. The carrying amount of the bond at
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December 31,2016 and 2015, was $291 million and

$297 million, respectively.

Credit ratings

Credit ratings are assessments by the rating
agencies of the credit risk associated with ABB
and are based on information provided by us or

other sources that the rating agencies consider
reliable. Higher ratings generally result in lower
borrowing costs and increased access to capital
markets. Our ratings are of "investment grade"
which is defined as Baa3 (or above) from Moody's

and BBB- (or above) from Standard &Poor's.

At both December 31,2016 and 2015, our long-term

debt was rated A2by Moody's and A by Standard &
Poor's.

Limitations on transfers of funds

Currency and other local regulatory limitations
related to the transfer of funds exist in a number

of countries where we operate, including: Algeria,
China, Egypt, India, Indonesia, Kazakhstan,
Malaysia, Peru, Russian Federation, South Africa,
Taiwan, Thailand, Turkey and Viet Nam. Funds,
other than regular dividends, fees or loan repay
ments, cannot be readily transferred offshore from
these countries and are therefore deposited and

used for working capital needs in those countries.
In addition, there are certain countries where, for

tax reasons, it is not considered optimal to

transfer the cash offshore. As a consequence,

these funds are not available within our Group

Treasury Operations to meet short-term cash
obligations outside the relevant country. The above
described funds are reported as cash in our

Consolidated Balance Sheets, but we do not

consider these funds immediately available for the

repayment of debt outside the respective coun
tries where the cash is situated, including those
described above. At December 31,2016 and 2015,

the balance of "Cash and equivalents" and

"Marketable securities and other short-term

investments" under such limitations (either

regulatory or sub-optimal from a tax perspective)
totaled approximately $1,737 million and
$1,402 million, respectively.

During 2016 we continued to direct our

subsidiaries in countries with restrictions to place
such cash with our core banks or investment

grade banks, in order to minimize credit risk on
such cash positions. We continue to closely
monitor the situation to ensure bank counterparty
risks are minimized.
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Financial position

Balance sheets

($ in millions)

Current assets

Cash and equivalents

Marketable securities and short-

term investments

Receivables, net

Inventories, net

Prepaid expenses

Deferred taxes

Other current assets

Assets held for sale

Total current assets

December 31, „,
%

2016 2015 Change

3,644 4,565 (20)%

1,953 1,633 20 %

9,696 10,061 (4) %

4,347 4,757 (9) %

176 225 (22)%

888 881 1 %

688 638 8%

548 — n.a.

21,940 22,760 (4) %

For a discussion on cash and equivalents, see
sections "Liquidity and Capital Resources -
Principal sources of funding" and "Cash flows"
for further details.

Marketable securities and short-term investments

increased in 2016 due primarily to higher amounts
deposited with banks with fixed deposit terms
over three months partially offset by lower
investments in commercial paper (see "Cash
flows - Investing activities", below, and "Note 4
Cash and equivalents, marketable securities and

short-term investments").

Receivables decreased 4 percent (1 percent in local
currencies). The decrease was due partly to lower
revenue levels in 2016 compared to 2015 but was

mostly offset by the impact of a small increase in
days sales outstanding (DSO). The change in DSO
was due primarily to the geographic mix of reve
nues with a higher proportion of revenues coming

from locations where there are longer customary
payment terms. For details on the components of

Receivables, see "Note 7 Receivables, net".

($ in millions)

Current liabilities

Accounts payable, trade

Billings in excess of sales

Short-term debt and current

maturities of long-term debt

Advances from customers

Deferred taxes

Provisions for warranties

Other provisions

Other current liabilities

Liabilities held for sale

Total current liabilities

December 31, %

2016 2015 Change

4,446 4,342 2%

1,241 1,375 (10)%

1,003 1,454 (31)%

1,398 1,598 (13)%

258 249 4%

1,142 1,089 5%

1,765 1,920 (8)%

3,936 3,817 3%

218 — n.a.

15,407 15,844 (3) %

Accounts Payable increased 6 percent in local
currencies due primarily to an increase in the
number of days of payables outstanding which
was achieved through focused efforts to extend
payment terms with suppliers.

Billings in excess of sales decreased 7 percent in
local currencies primarily due to the reclassifica
tion of amounts to Liabilities held for sale.

The decrease in Short-term debt and current

maturities of long-term debt was primarily due to
the repayment during the year of the USD600 mil
lion Notes and the CHF 500 million Bonds offset

partially by the reclassification to short-term debt

of the USD 500 million and AUD 400 million Notes,

both due in 2017.

Advances from customers decreased 10 percent in
local currencies due to the impacts of lower orders,

especially from the larger orders for capital
expenditures from the oil and gas sector. In

addition, market conditions have placed pressure

on contract payment terms, reducing the amount

of advances we have received.

Inventories decreased 9 percent (4 percent in local Provisions for warranties increased 9 percent in

currencies) primarily due to lower business
volumes. In addition, inventory was lower due to

positive results from the Company's 1,000-day
program focusing on inventory optimization.

local currencies due primarily to an increase in
the warranty liability in the solar business of the
Discrete Automation and Motion division. This

increase was required to cover costs associated
with higher than expected product failure rates of
certain solar inverters manufactured by Power-One

and sold to customers primarily before being
acquired by the Company in 2013.

The decrease in Other provisions (5 percent in local
currencies) was primarily due a reduction in the
liabilityfor self-insurance and lower provisions for



contract losses as the large offshore wind projects

are completed.

December 31, „,

($ in millions) 2016 2015 iChange

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net 4,743 5,276 (10)%

Goodwill 9,501 9,671 (2)%

Other intangible assets, net 1,996 2,337 (15)%

Prepaid pension and other
employee benefits 90 68 32%

Investments

in equity-accounted companies 170 178 (4)%

Deferred taxes 527 423 25%

Other non-current assets 532 643 (17)%

Total non-current assets 17,559 18,596 (6) %

In 2016, Property, plant and equipment, net,
decreased 7 percent in local currencies due
primarily to the reclassification of amounts to
Assets held for sale.

Other intangible assets decreased primarily due
to the amortization during the year. For additional
information on intangible assets see "Note U

Goodwill and other intangible assets" to our

Consolidated Financial Statements.

($ in millions)

December 31, %

2016 2015 Change

Non-current liabilities

Long-term debt 5,800 5,985 (3)%

Pension and other employee
benefits 1,834 1,924 (5)%

Deferred taxes 957 965 (D%

Other non-current liabilities 1,604 1,650 (3)%

Total non-current liabilities 10,195 10,524 (3)%

Long-term debt decreased 3 percent of which
2 percentage points were due to movements in

foreign exchange rates. The remaining change was
due primarily to the issue of the EUR700 million

Notes in May 2016, offset by the reclassification to
current of the USD 500 million Notes and the AUD

400 million Notes. See "Liquidity and Capital

Resources - Debt and interest rates" for informa

tion on long-term debt.

The decrease in Pension and other employee
benefits was primarily due to foreign exchange
rate movement. For additional information, see

"Note 17 Employee benefits" to our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

For a breakdown of other noncurrent liabilities,

see "Note 13 Other provisions, other current

liabilities and other non-current liabilities" to our

Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Cash flows

In the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows,

the effects of discontinued operations are not

segregated.

The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows can

be summarized as follows:

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Net cash provided by operating
activities 3,843 3,818 3,845

Net cash used in investing activities (1,305) (974) (1,121)

Net cash used in financing activities (3,355) (3,380) (3,024)

Effects of exchange rate changes on
cashandequivalents (104) (342) (278)

Net change in cash and
equivalents - continuing operations

Operating activities

(921) (878) (578)

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Net income 2,034 2,055 2,718

Depreciation and amortization 1,135 1,160 1,305

Total adjustments to reconcile net
income to net cash provided by
operating activities (excluding
depreciation and amortization) 1 (55) (200)

Total changes in operating assets
and liabilities 673 658 22

Net cash provided by operating
activities 3,843 3.818 3,845

Operating activities in 2016 provided net cash of
$3,843 million, an increase from 2015 of 1 percent

as Net income was steady and net working capital
improvements continued to contribute to positive

cash flows. Net working capital management

improvements included a reduction of inventories

and a significant increase in trade payables,

resulting from focused efforts to extend payment

terms with suppliers. The timing of income tax

payments also improved cash provided by operat

ing activities. These benefits were offset by
impacts from lower advances from customers. In

addition, cash flows from operating activities
was negatively impacted by the misappropriation
of $103 million in cash by the treasurer of our
subsidiary in South Korea.

Operating activities in 2015 provided net cash of

$3,818 million, a decrease from 2014 of 1 percent.
The decrease was driven by lower net income,

partly offset by improvements in net working
capital. Provisions, net, increased by $330 million
reflecting the timing differences for cash payments
on restructuring programs. Although net income

in 2015 included restructuring and related expens
es of $370 million in relation to the White Collar

Productivity program, cash payments during 2015
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amounted to $35 million. Net working capital
also improved due to stronger collections from
customers as we decreased our trade receivables

but also increased our advances from customers

and billings in excess of sales. Improvements
in inventory were offset by similar reductions in
trade payables.

Investing activities

($ in millions)

Purchases of marketable securities

(available-for-sale)

Purchases of short-term

investments

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Acquisition of businesses
(net of cash acquired) and
increases in cost- and equity-
accounted companies

Proceeds from sales of marketable

securities (available-for-sale)

Proceeds from maturity of
marketable securities (available-
for-sale)

Proceeds from short-term

investments

Proceeds from sales of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from sales of businesses

(net of transaction costs
and cash disposed) and cost- and
equity-accounted companies

Net cash from settlement of foreign
currency derivatives

Other investing activities

2016 2015 2014

(1,214) (1.925) (1,430)

(3,092) (614) (1,465)

(831) (876) (1,026)

(26) (56) (70)

1,057 434 361

539 1,022 523

2,241 653 1,011

61 68 33

(1) 69 1,110

(57)

18

231 (179)

20 11

Net cash used in investing activities (1,305) (974) (1,121)

Net cash used in investing activities in 2016 was
$1,305 million, compared to $974 million in 2015.
The change was primarily due to the change in the
cash impacts from derivative cash flows classified

as investing activities as in 2016 we had net

outflows of $57 million, compared to inflows of
$231 million in 2015, on settlement of foreign

currency derivatives relating to investing activities.

These cash flows primarily result from the maturity

and settlement of derivatives in place to hedge
foreign currency exposures on internal subsidiary
funding and the amount of the settlement results
from movements in foreign currency exchange

rates throughout the year.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2015

was $974 million, compared to $1,121 million in
2014. Significantly lower proceeds from sales

of businesses were partially offset by a reduction
in the net amount invested in marketable

securities and other short-term investments as

well as lower purchases of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. Net cash used in
investing activities was also lower in 2015
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compared to 2014 as we received $231 million in

net cash on settlement of foreign currency
derivatives relating to investing activities com
pared with net cash outflows in 2014 of

$179 million.

Total cash disbursements for the purchase of
property, plant and equipment and intangibles
were lower in 2016 compared to 2015 and lower in
2015 compared to 2014, primarily due to move
ments in foreign exchange rates and an increase in
the amount of unpaid purchases. In 2016, total
purchases of $831 million included $595 million for

construction in process (generally for construction
of buildings and other property facilities), $168 million
for the purchase of machinery and equipment,
$28 million for the purchase of land and buildings,
and $40 millionfor the purchase of intangible
assets. In 2015, total purchases of $876 million

included $568 million for construction in process
(generally for construction of buildings and other
property facilities), $200 million for the purchase
of machinery and equipment, $50 million for the
purchase of land and buildings, and $58 million for
the purchase of intangible assets. In 2014, total
purchases of $1,026 million included $724 million
for construction in progress, $188 million for the
purchase of machinery and equipment, $38 million
for the purchase of land and buildings, and
$76 million for the purchase of intangible assets.

In 2016 and 2015, we continued to increase the

amount of our excess liquidity invested in
marketable securities and short-term investments.

Amounts at December 31,2016, were placed

primarily in fixed-term deposits with banks and in
short-term money market funds. At December 31,

2015, amounts were placed primarily in short-term
money market funds and corporate commercial

paper. The increase in investments during 2016,2015

and 2014, resulted in a net outflow of $469 million,

$430 million and $1,000 million, respectively.

In 2016 and 2015, there were no significant
acquisitions or divestments of businesses. During
2014, we received net pre-tax proceeds from sales

of businesses and cost- and equity-accounted
companies of $1,110 million, primarily from the
divestment of the Full Service business, the Steel

Structures business of Thomas & Betts, the HVAC

business of Thomas & Betts and the Power

Solutions business of Power-One.



Financing activities

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Net changes in debt with maturities
of 90 days or less (152) 3 (103)

Increase in debt 912 68 150

Repayment of debt (1.249) (101) (90)

Delivery of shares 192 107 38

Purchase of treasury stock (1,299) (1.487) (1,003)

Dividends paid
-

(1.357) (1,841)

Reduction in nominal value of com

mon shares paid to shareholders (1,610) (392)

Dividends paid to noncontrolling
shareholders (122) (137) (132)

Other financing activities (27) (84) (43)

Net cash used in financing activities (3,355) (3,380) (3,024)

Our financing activities primarily include

debt transactions (both from the issuance of

debt securities and borrowings directly from
banks), share transactions and payments of
distributions to controlling and noncontrolling

shareholders.

In 2016, the net cash outflow for debt with matur

ities of 90 days or less related primarily to reduc
tion of $75 million in the amount outstanding

under our commercial paper program in the U.S.

and net repayments of short-term borrowings in
various countries. In 2014, the net cash outflow for

debt with maturities of 90 days or less related
primarily to repayments made of borrowings in
various countries offset by a small increase in the

amount outstanding under our commercial paper

program in the U.S.

In 2016, the increase in debt was due primarily to

the issuance of our EUR 700 million 0.625% Notes

due 2023 (equal to $807 million at date of issu
ance). In 2015 and 2014, increases in other debt

included cash flows from additional borrowings in

various countries.

During 2016, $1,249 million of debt was repaid,
reflecting primarily the repayment at maturity of
the USD 600 million 2.5% Notes and CHF 500 mil

lion 1.25% Bonds (in total equivalent to $1,106 mil
lion at dates of repayment). In 2015 and 2014

repayment of debt reflects repayments of borrow
ings in various countries.

In 2016 and 2015, "Purchase of treasury stock"

reflects the cash paid to purchase 65 million and
73 million, respectively, of our own shares in
connection with the share buyback program
announced in September 2014. In 2014, the amount
reflects cash paid to acquire 45 million of our own
shares of which 33 million shares were purchased

in connection with the share buyback program. For

additional information on the share buyback
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program see "Note 19 Stockholders' equity" to our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Disclosures about contractual

obligations and commitments

The contractual obligations presented in the table
below represent our estimates of future payments

under fixed contractual obligations and commit
ments. The amounts in the table may differ from
those reported in our Consolidated Balance Sheet at
December 31,2016. Changes in our business needs,
cancellation provisions and changes in interest

rates, as well as actions by third parties and other
factors, may cause these estimates to change.
Therefore, our actual payments in future periods
may vary from those presented in the table. The
following table summarizes certain of our contrac
tual obligations and principal and interest payments
under our debt instruments, leases and purchase

obligations at December 31,2016.

Less More

than 1-3 3-5 than

($ in millions) Total lyear years years 5 years

Long-term debt
obligations

Interest payments
related to

long-term debt
obligations

Operating lease
obligations

Capital lease
obligations'1'

Purchase

6,534 843 1,700 1,255 2,736

1,446 195

1,548 382

177 30

320

552

48

231 700

371 243

31 68

obligations 4,553 3,730 710 99 14

Total 14,258 5,180 3,330 1,987 3,761

In the table above, the long-term debt obligations
reflect the cash amounts to be repaid upon

maturity of those debt obligations. The cash
obligations above will differ from the long-term
debt balance reflected in "Note 12 Debt" to our

Consolidated Financial Statements due to the

impacts of fair value hedge accounting adjust
ments and premiums or discounts on certain debt.
In addition, capital lease obligations are shown
separately in the table above while they are
combined with Long-term debt amounts in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

We have determined the interest payments related

to long-term debt obligations by reference to the
payments due under the terms of our debt
obligations at the time such obligations were



incurred. However, we use interest rate swaps to

modify the interest characteristics of certain of our

debt obligations. The net effect of these swaps
may be to increase or decrease the actual amount

of our cash interest payment obligations, which
may differ from those stated in the above table.
For further details on our debt obligations and the
related hedges, see "Note 12 Debt" to our

Consolidated Financial Statements.

Of the total of $921 million unrecognized tax
benefits (net of deferred tax assets) at

December 31,2016, it is expected that $9 million will
be paid within less than a year. However, we cannot
make a reasonably reliable estimate as to the

related future payments for the remaining amount.

Off balance sheet arrangements

Commercial commitments

We disclose the maximum potential exposure of

certain guarantees, as well as possible recourse

provisions that may allow us to recover from
third-parties amounts paid out under such
guarantees.The maximum potential exposure does
not allow any discounting of our assessment of
actual exposure under the guarantees. The
information below reflects our maximum potential
exposure under the guarantees, which is higher
than our assessment of the expected exposure.

Guarantees

The following table provides quantitative data
regarding our third-party guarantees. The maximum
potential payments represent a worst-case scenario,
and do not reflect our expected outcomes.

December 31, Maximum potential payments

($ in millions) 2016 2015

Performance guarantees

Financial guarantees

Indemnification guarantees

193 209

69 77

71 50

Total 333 336

The carrying amounts of liabilities recorded in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets in respect of the
above guarantees were not significant at

December 31,2016 and 2015, and reflect our best

estimate of future payments, which we may incur
as part of fulfilling our guarantee obligations.

Inaddition, in the normal course of bidding for and
executing certain projects, we have entered into
standby letters of credit, bid/performance bonds
and surety bonds (collectively "performance
bonds") with various financial institutions.

Customers can draw on such performance bonds
in the event that the Company does not fulfill its
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contractual obligations. ABBwould then have an

obligation to reimburse the financial institution for

amounts paid under the performance bonds. At

December 31,2016 and 2015, the total outstanding
performance bonds aggregated to $7.9 billion and
$9.5 billion, respectively. There have been no
significant amounts reimbursed to financial
institutions under these types of arrangements in
2016,2015 and 2014.

For additional descriptions of our performance,

financial and indemnification guarantees see
"Note 15 Commitments and contingencies" to our

Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Report of management on internal
control over financial reporting
The Board of Directors and management of
ABB Ltd and its consolidated subsidiaries ("ABB")
are responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control

over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also,projections of any evalua
tion of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with ABB's policies and pro
cedures may deteriorate.

Management conducted an assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31,2016. Inmaking
this assessment, management used the criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(2013 framework).

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combina
tion of deficiencies, in internal control over

financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the
company's financial statements will not be

prevented or detected on a timely basis. ABBdid
not maintain adequate segregation of duties in the
treasury function in its South Korean subsidiary
and failed to identify certain inappropriate access
levels to the local enterprise resource planning
(ERP) system. In addition, ABBfailed to safeguard
physical access to the signature seals of the
subsidiary in South Korea and prevent the
Company from being bound to unauthorized
financial contracts, resulting in undetected
financial obligations. ABBalso failed to provide
adequate management oversight and review of the
local treasury activities. As a result, ABBdid not

maintain effective controls over the safeguarding
of cash and other treasury activities, including
controls relating to entering into financial contracts.
Management has concluded that these deficien

cies in the operation of ABB's internal controls
constituted a material weakness.

Based on this evaluation, management has

concluded that, as a result of the material weak

ness described above, ABB's internal control

over financial reporting was not effective as of
December 31,2016.

Ernst &Young AG, the independent registered
public accounting firm who audited the Company's
consolidated financial statements, has issued an
opinion on the effectiveness of ABB's internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2016, which is included on pages 142-143 of this
Annual Report.

Ulrich Spiesshofer

Chief Executive Officer

Zurich, March 10,2017

Eric Elzvik

Chief Financial Officer
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Report on the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

To the General Meeting

of ABB Ltd, Zurich

As statutory auditor, we have audited the consoli
dated financial statements of ABB Ltd, which

comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31,2016 and 2015, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in stockholders'
equity, and notes thereto (pages 144-205), for each
of the three years in the period ended December31,
2016.

Board of Directors' Responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of these consolidated financial state
ments in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles and the requirements of
Swiss law. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining an internal control
system relevant to the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Board of Directors is further responsible for
selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

consolidated financial statements based on our

audits. We conducted our audits in accordance

with Swiss law, Swiss Auditing Standards and the

standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance whether the

consolidated financial statements are free of

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures

in the consolidated financial statements. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor's

judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers the internal control system relevant to
the entity's preparation of the consolidated

financial statements in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circum
stances. An audit also includes evaluating the

appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

Inour opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of
ABB Ltd as of December 31,2016 and 2015, and

the consolidated results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31,2016, in accordance
with U.Sgenerally accepted accounting principles
and comply with Swiss law.

Report on Key Audit Matters

based on the circular 1/2015

of the Federal Audit Oversight

Authority

Keyaudit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial state

ments of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit

addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in

the Auditor's responsibility section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,

our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the consolidated

financial statements. The results of our audit

procedures, including the procedures performed to

address the matters below, provide the basis for

our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
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Revenue recognition on long-term projects
•

Tne Company derives a significant portion of its

revenues from long-term and fixed price projects.
S jch contracts involve key project milestones and
financial milestones including the bid price, risl con
tingencies, the execution, post-completion warranty
ooligations and ongoing uncertainties around
expected costs to complete. Therefore, the revenue,

cos: and gross profit realization can vary subst intial-
ly during the execution and reassessment of th ase

projects against the contracted financial milesiones.

Tne principal risks include:

• the potential manipulation of results to achieve

performance targets through management's
use of estimates and judgments in relation to
such projects;

• inappropriate or incorrect accounting for
percentage of completion, variation orders,

expected costs to complete, estimated project
margin and risk contingencies; and

• unrecorded liabilities for warranties, contractual

disputes or claims for liquidated damages.

We consider these the key judgmental areas

impacting the recognition of revenue and margins
in respect of long-term contracts.

See note 2 to these consolidated financial state

ments for ABB's description of the accounting
policy for Revenue Recognition.

Our audit response

We obtained an understanding of the process for

how management determines the percentage of
completion, evaluated the design of, and per

formed tests of controls in this area. We eval jated

tne judgments made by management regarding
tne expected costs to complete estimate, the

timing and recognition of variation orders, and the

assumptions made in calculating warranty piovi-
sions with underlying data.

We evaluated management's assessments around

the potential for liquidated damages for projects
behind contracted schedule and the contingency
provisions to mitigate contract-specific financial

risks. For those balances subject to claims, w<imade

inquiries of external and internal legal counsel.

We also assessed whether management's pc licies

5nd processes for making these estimates continue

to be applied consistently to all contracts of a

similar nature.

Legal and Compliance

Risk

"he illegal behavior by any employee or ager t that

has and may in the future violate the US Foreign
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Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, OECD (Organisation

for Economic Co-operation and Development)
legislation, anti-trust laws and other applicable

laws and regulations may significantly impact
the Company's reputation, its ability to do business
in certain jurisdictions and/or with certain

counterparties or may result in significant fines or
civil claims.

Determining the impact and likely outcome of
any litigation matter requires significant judgment.
Therefore, estimating litigation reserves and

contingent liabilities can involve highly judgmental
estimates.

The principal risks include:

• the judgments involved in determining the likely
outcome of legal cases, disputes or investiga
tions results in a risk that those legal provisions
may be incorrect; and

• failure to provide on a timely basis for claims

due to lack of understanding or awareness of
the claim.

See note 15 to these consolidated financial

statements for ABB'sdescrition of Contingencies
- Regulatory, Compliance and Legal

Our audit response

We assessed judgments and accounting

conclusions made by management arising from

violation of legislation, anti-trust laws and other
regulatory risks.

Our procedures included an evaluation of manage
ment's calculations and the related underlying

assumptions to verify that the relevant risks are
reflected in the provisions.

Our procedures included discussions with internal

legal counsel, and we also obtained and considered

legal letters from external legal counsel and other

supporting documentation.

Tax contingency reserves

Risk

The Company operates in multiple jurisdictions

and is therefore exposed to numerous tax laws

around the world. Risk provisions are held where it

is probable that a liability will materialize either

in relation to previous planning strategies or a tax

position taken in relation to submitted returns

subject to tax audit. The amount of such a provision

and whether it is probable that it will materialize are

both considered to be significant judgmental areas.

Given the volume and complexity of intracompany

transactions, including management fee recharges,

transfer pricing is an area of complexity and

judgment that is closely managed by ABB and



certain provisions are recorded to reflect areas of
uncertainty. These matters have come under
renewed focus with the current Base Erosion and

Profit Shifting project of the OECD.

The principal risks include:
• significant judgments involved in determining

the provision for tax liabilities that can result in
misstatement of provisions; and

• there are ranges of possible transfer prices,
therefore there is a risk of challenge by

the tax authorities, particularly with the

increased focus on tax and multinational

businesses.

See note 16 to these consolidated financial

statements foi ABB's description of Taxes.

Our audit response

We assessed tax exposures estimated by manage
ment and the risk analysis associated with these
exposures along with claims or assessments made
by tax authorities to date. We verified the compo
nents of the tax risk provision to ensure they reflect
the tax risks in the business and evaluated the

provisions.

We also reviewed documentation in relation to tax

audits to ensure that any exposures the tax

authorities are raising have been considered and
provided for where necessary.

We reviewed, with the involvement of transfer

pricing specialists, the significant transfer pricing
policies applied by ABBincluding the related
supporting documentation, and ensured that the
tax risk provision included such risks.

Goodwill impairment

Risk

The Company reviews the carrying amount of
its reporting units annually or more frequent

ly if impairment indicators are present. The

impairment assessment involves a comparison of
the estimated fair value of each reporting unit to
its carrying amount. This annual impairment test

was significant to our audit because the balance
of USD 9,501 million as of December 31,2016 is

significant to the financial statements representing
24% of the total assets. In addition, we note that

management's assessment process is assumption

based, complex and subject to highly judgmental

estimates.

The principal risks include:

• the incorrect determination of the reporting
units and subsequent allocation of goodwill
used for impairment assessments;

• inaccurate models are used to calculate the fair

value of the reporting units; and
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• the assumptions to support goodwill values
(e.g. discount rates and growth rates) are
inappropriate such as projected financial
information, which are affected by expected
future market or economic conditions.

S>->- note ii to these consolidated financial state

ments for ABB's description of Goodwill and other

intangible assets

Our audit response

Our procedures included a review of the valuations
prepared by management and related supporting
third-party evidence for the fair values of each
goodwill reporting unit. We performed audit
procedures on the integrity of the models and the
definition of the goodwill reporting units.

We involved valuation specialists to support our

evaluation of the assumptions used in respect of
the forecast growth rates and discount rates.
Our evaluation included a comparison to economic
and industry forecasts.

We compared the forecasts used in generating
the fair value to current business environment,

and evaluated management's assumptions
underpinning the forecasts.

We reviewed the forecasts by stress testing key
assumptions, assessing the impact on the sensitiv
ity analysis, and understanding the degree to which
assumptions would need to move before impair
ment would be triggered.

Warranty provision
Risk

During 2016, the Company determined that
the provision for warranties in its solar business,
acquired in 2013 as part of the purchase of Power-
One, was no longer sufficient to cover expected
warranty costs over the remaining warranty period.
Due to higher than originally expected product
failure rates for certain solar inverters designed

and manufactured by Power-One, the Company

reassessed its model to determine the expected

costs to cover future warranty claims.

The principal risks include:

• significant judgments involved in determining

the amount of the warranty provision; and
• precision of the inputs and model used to

calculate warranty provisions.

See note lb to these consolidated financial

M.iieiee'us for ABB's desc ription of Prociui t and

•:.<;ler related contingencies



liO

Our audit response

We obtained an understanding of the process to
determine the amount of solar inverter warranty
provisions. Our audit procedures included evaluat
ing management's methodology by understanding
the basis for the assumptions developed and used
in the calculation of the warranty provisions.

We also evaluated the validity of the data used for
the calculations within the model.

Our procedures further included discussions with

internal and external experts in regards to the
reasonableness of the assumptions used.

White CollarProductivity restructuring provision
Risk

On September 9,2015, the Company publically
announced a significant restructuring program,
in an effort to reduce costs under the White

Collar Productivity ("WCP") 1,000-day program. As
part of the WCP program, ABBcommitted to
reduce headcount globally across all divisions and
in most countries where ABB operates and will
provide postemployment benefits to the impacted
employees. At December 31,2016 the Company has
an outstanding provision of USD 334 million
related to this program. The restructuring provi
sions are material to the financial statements and

the recognition criteria and measurement depends
upon local country facts and circumstances.

The principal risks include:

• the judgments involved in the determination of
the assumptions used, such as the number of

individuals affected and the related severance

costs, to determining the required WCP related
restructuring provision; and

• failure to recognize WCPrestructuring provision
and reversals timely.

See note 22 to these consolidated financial state

ments for ABB's description on Rt-structurinci and

related expenses.

Our audit response

We assessed the process, controls and the result

ing WCP provisions estimated by management as
part of our year-end audit.

For the locations with material WCP expenses and

accruals, we obtained related supporting docu

mentation to evaluate the criteria to record the

WCP provision pursuant to ASC 712 or ASC 420,

which ever applicable, were met.

We reviewed the documentation related to the

provision expenses recorded in 2016 and the
completeness and the valuation of the provision

balance as of December 31,2016. This included an
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evaluation of the estimated future severance

payments that will be paid to employees terminat
ed under the WCP program and the change in
estimate recorded.

Weevaluated the presentation of the WCPexpenses
and accruals, ensuring these were recorded within
the appropriate balance sheet and income statement
line items, respectively.

We reviewed the restructuring disclosures, which
includes the WCPprovision, and ensured all required
disclosures were made.

Illegal act in South Korea
Risk

In February 2017, ABB uncovered criminal activity in
its South Korean subsidiary that is an adjusting
subsequent event for the financial statements as

of December 31,2016. The Company disclosed
these irregularities and the initial results on
February 22,2017. The Company immediately
launched an investigation in South Korealed byABB
and involvingindependent forensic and legal
specialists. These criminal activities impacted the
Company's net income by USD64 million, net of
probable insurance recoveries and income taxes as

of December 31,2016.

See section "Othei income (expense), net" in the

Company's analysis of results of operations within

the Financial Review of ABB Group in the

Company's annual report.

Our audit response

Once we become aware of this, we revisited our

audit approach. Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, understanding the nature of the
criminal act, the circumstances in which the acts

occurred, and understanding of other relevant
information to evaluate the impact on the financial
statements. We shadowed the ABBinvestigation
with the support of EYforensic specialists and
discussed on a number of occasions the investiga

tion with management and the Finance, Audit and
Compliance Committee (FACC) to evaluate the

approach and the corresponding findings, financial

and disclosure consequences and impact on

internal controls.

We further assessed the impact of these criminal

acts to our overall audit strategy and the

appropriateness of the planned and executed audit
procedures. Based on this re-assessment, we

performed additional control testing around cash
and the treasury function and expanded our cash
confirmation audit procedures, as well as the
procedures for outstanding loans and account
receivables factoring arrangements in South Korea.



We finally assessed the Company's financial
statement presentation and disclosures.

Report on other legal

requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on

licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act
(AOA) and independence (article 728 CO and article
11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances

incompatible with our independence.

In the course of our audit performed in accordance

with article 728a para. 1 item 3 CO and Swiss
Auditing Standard 890, we noted that an internal
control system for the preparation of the financial
statements was adequately designed and docu
mented according to the instructions of the Board
of Directors. However, segregation of duties,
inappropriate access to the local ERPsystem of the
treasury function in the South Korean subsidiary,

safeguarding access to the signature seals to avoid
unauthorized financial contracts, and adequate

management oversight and review of the local
treasury activities, all significant processes for the
South Korean entity, were not performed in all
material respects.

In our opinion, except for the matter described in

the preceding paragraph, an internal control
system for the preparation of consolidated

financial statements, designed in accordance with
the instructions of the Board of Directors, exists.

We recommend that the consolidated financial

statements submitted to you be approved.

We also have audited, in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board (United States), ABBLtd's internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31,

2016, based on criteria established in Internal

Control - Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (2013 framework)

(COSO), and our report dated March 10,2017

expressed an adverse opinion on the effectiveness

of ABBLtd's internal control over financial reporting.

Ernst & Young AG

Leslie Clifford Robin Errico

Licensed audit expert Licensed audit expert
(Auditor in charge)

Zurich, Switzerland

March 10,2017
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Report of the Independent Auditor
on internal control over financial

reporting

To the Board of Directors and

Stockholders of ABB Ltd

We have audited ABB Ltd's internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31,2016, based
on criteria established in Internal Control -

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria).

ABB Ltd's Board of Directors and management are
responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and management
is responsible for its assessment of the effective

ness of internal control over financial reporting
included in the accompanying Report of manage
ment on internal control over financial reporting.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
company's internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether

effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk, and

performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting

is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles.

Acompany's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of

the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance

that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control

over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combi
nation of deficiencies, in internal control over

financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the
company's annual financial statements will not
be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The
following material weakness has been identified
and included in management's assessment.

Management has identified a material weakness

in internal control in the treasury function in the
South Korean subsidiary related to inadequate

segregation of duties and inappropriate access
levels to the local enterprise resource planning

(ERP) system. Further, they failed to safeguard
physical access to the signature seals and prevent
the Company from being bound to unauthorized
financial contracts, resulting in undetected

financial obligations. Management also failed to
provide adequate management oversight and

review of the local treasury activities. We also
have audited, in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets

of ABB Ltd as of December 31,2016 and 2015, and

the related consolidated statements of income,

comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
stockholders' equity for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31,2016. This material



weakness was considered in determining the

nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in

our audit of the 2016 financial statements.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the mate
rial weakness described above on the achievement

of the objectives of the control criteria, ABBLtd
has not maintained effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31,2016, based
on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited in accordance with Swiss law,

Swiss auditing Standards and the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

(United States), the 2016 consolidated financial

statements of ABB Ltd and our report dated March

10,2017, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst &Young AG

Leslie Clifford Robin Errico

Licensed audit expert Licensed audit expert
(Auditor in charge)

Zurich, Switzerland

March 10,2017
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Consolidated Income Statements

Year ended December 31 ($ in millions, except per share data in $) 2016 2015 2014

Sales of products

Sales of services and software

27,816

6,012

29,477

6,004

33,279

6,551

Total revenues 33,828 35,481 39,830

Cost of sales of products

Cost of services and software

(20,431)

(3,650)

(21,694)

(3,653)

(24,506)

(4,109)

Total cost of sales (24,081) (25,347) (28,615)

Gross profit 9,747 10,134 11,215

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Non-order related research and development expenses

Other income (expense), net

(5,349)

(1,300)

(111)

(5,574)

(1,406)

(105)

(6,067)

(1,499)

529

Income from operations 2,987 3,049 4,178

Interest and dividend income

Interest and other finance expense

73

(261)

77

(286)

80

(362)

Income from continuing operations before taxes 2,799 2,840 3,896

Provision for taxes (781) (788) (1,202)

Income from continuing operations, net of tax 2,018 2,052 2,694

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 16 3 24

Net income 2,034 2,055 2,718

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests (135) (122) (124)

Net income attributable to ABB 1,899 1,933 2,594

Amounts attributable to ABB shareholders:

Income from continuing operations, net of tax

Net income

Basic earnings per share attributable to ABB shareho ders

Income from continuing operations, net of tax

Net income

Diluted earnings per share attributable to ABB shareholders:

Income from continuing operations, net of tax

Net income

Weighted-average number of shares omstanding (in nillions) used to compute:

Basic earnings per share attributable to ABB shareholders

Diluted earnings per share attributable to ABB shareholders

1,883 1,930 2.570

1,899 1,933 2,594

0.88 0.87 1.12

0.88 0.87 1.13

0.87 0.87 1.12

0.88 0.87 1.13

2,151 2,226 2,288

2,154 2,230 2,295
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Consolidated Statements

of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31 (S in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Net income

e income (loss) net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments

2,034

(474)

2,055

(1,058)

2.718

(1,680)

Net unrealized gains (losses) arising during the year

Reclassification adjustments for net (gains) losses included in net income

-
(7)

1

(9)

15

Unrealized gains (losses) on availablo-for-sale securities
-

(6) 6

Prior service (costs) credits arising during the year

Net actuarial gains (losses) arising during the year

Amortization of prior service cost included in net income

Amortization of net actuarial loss included in net income

Net losses from pension settlements included in net income

(40) 88 (3)

44 210 (614)

26 26 17

62 82 81

26 9 (2)

Pension and other postretirement plan adjustments 118 415 (521)

•

Net unrealized gains (losses) arising during the year

Reclassification adjustments for net (gains) losses included in net income

16

(6)

(20)

30

(52)

9

Unrealized gains (losses) of cash flow hedge derivatives 10 10 (43)

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (346) (639) (2,238)

Total comprehensive income, net of tax 1,688 1,416 480

Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests, net of tax (118) (100) (115)

Total comprehensive income, net of tax, attributable to ABB 1,570 1,316 365
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 ($ in millions, except share data)

Cash and equivalents

Marketable securities and short-term investments

Receivables, net

Inventories, net

Prepaid expenses

Deferred taxes

Other current assets

Assets held for sale

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Goodwill

Other intangible assets, net

Prepaid pension and other employee benefits

Investments in equity-accounted companies

Deferred taxes

Other non-current assets

Total assets

Accounts payable, trade

Billings in excess of sales

Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt

Advances from customers

Deferred taxes

Provisions for warranties

Other provisions

Other current liabilities

Liabilities held for sale

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Pension and other employee benefits

Deferred taxes

Other non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

2016

3,644

1,953

9,696

4,347

176

888

688

548

21,940

4,743

9,501

1,996

90

170

527

532

39,499

4,446

1,241

1.003

1,398

258

1,142

1,765

3,936

218

15,407

5,800

1,834

957

1,604

25,602

201S

4,565

1,633

10,061

4,757

225

881

638

22,760

5,276

9.671

2,337

68

178

423

643

41,356

4,342

1,375

1,454

1,598

249

1,089

1,920

3,817

15,844

5,985

1,924

965

1.650

26,368

216 1,444

19,925 20,476

(5,187) (4,858)

(1,559) (2.581)

Commitments and contingencies

Stc kholuers' equity-

Capital stock and additional paid-in capital
(2,214,743,264 and 2,314,743,264 issued shares at December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively)

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Treasury stock, at cost
(76,036,429 and 123,118,123shares at December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively)

Total ABB stockholders' equity 13,395 14,481

Noncontrolling interests 502 507

Total stockholders' equity 13.897 14,988

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 39,499 41,356
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Consolidated Statements

of Cash Flows

Year endedDecember 31($inmillions) 2016 2015 2014
Operating activities:

Net income 2,034 2,055 2,718

Adjustments to h'u»k lie nt-t int ome to net i ash ijio.-idec hv '->per atmq a' !ivines

Depreciation and amortization 1,135 1,160 1,305

Deferred taxes (147) (219) 65

Net loss from derivatives and foreign exchange 10 15 167

Net gain from sale of property, plant and equipment (38) (26) (17)

Net loss (gain) from sale of businesses 10 20 (543)

Share-based payment arrangements 54 61 73

Other 112 94 55

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Trade receivables, net 10 162 (12)

lnventories.net 115 105 (176)

Trade payables 340 (112) 257

Accrued liabilities 80 (24) 9

Billingsin excess of sales (25) 35 (118)

Provisions.net 14 330 (127)

Advances from customers (163) 106 39

Income taxes payable and receivable 125 (32) (13)

Other assetsandliabilities, net 177 88 163
Netcashprovided byoperating activities 3,843 3,818 3,845

Investing activities:

Purchases of marketable securities (available-for-sale) (1,214) (1,925) (1,430)

Purchases of short-term investments (3,092) (614) (1,465)

Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (831) (876) (1,026)

Acquisition of businesses (net of cash acquired) and increases
in cost-and equity-accounted companies (26) (56) (70)

Proceeds from sales of marketable securities (available-for-sale) 1,057 434 361

Proceeds from maturity of marketable securities (available-for-sale) 539 1,022 523

Proceeds from short-term investments 2,241 653 1,011

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 61 68 33

Proceeds from sales of businesses (net of transaction costs and cash disposed)
and cost-and equity-accounted companies (1) 69 1,110

Net cash from settlement of foreign currency derivatives (57) 231 (179)

Other investing activities 18 20 11
Net cashusedininvesting activities (1,305) (974) (1,121)

Financing activities:

Net changes in debt with maturities of 90 days or less (152) 3 (103)

increase in debt 912 68 150

Repaymentof debt (1,249) (101) (90)

Delivery of shares 192 107 38
Purchase of treasury stock (1,299) (1,487) (1,003)
Dividendspaid — (1.357) (1,841)
Reduction in nominal value of common shares paid to shareholders (1,610) (392) —

Dividends paid to noncontrolling shareholders

Other financing activities

(122)

(27)

(137)

(84)

(132)

(43)

Net cash used in financing activities (3.355) (3,380) (3,024)

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and equivalents (104) (342) (278)

Net change in cash and equivalents — continuing operations (921) (878) (578)

Cash and equivalents, beginning of period 4,565 5,443 6,021

Cash and equivalents, end of period 3,644 4,565 5,443

Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid

Taxes paid

213

814

221

1,043

259

1.155
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Consolidated Statements of

Changes in Stockholders' Equity

Capital stock
and additional Retained

Years endedDecember 31,2016,2015 and2014 ($inmillions) paid-in capital earnings
Balance at January 1,2014 1,750 19,186

Comprehensive income:

Net income 2,594

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax

Effect of change in fair value of available-for-sale securities, net of tax

Unrecognized income (expense) related to pensions and other postretirement plans, net of tax

Change in derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges, net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Changes in noncontrolling interests (34)

Dividends paid to noncontrolling shareholders

Dividends paid (1,841)

Share-based payment arrangements 73

Purchase of treasury stock

Delivery of shares (17)

Call options 5

Balance at December 31,2014 1,777 19,939
Comprehensive income:

Net income 1,933

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax

Effect of change in fair value of available-for-sale securities, net of tax

Unrecognized income (expense) related to pensions and other postretirement plans, net of tax

Change in derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges, net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Changes in noncontrolling interests (30) (25)

Dividends paid to noncontrolling shareholders

Dividends paid (1,317)

Reduction in nominal value of common shares paid to shareholders (349) (54)

Share-based payment arrangements 61

Purchase of treasury stock

Deliveryof shares (19)

Call options 4
Balance at December 31,2015 1,444 20,476
Comprehensive income:

Net income 1,899

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax

Effect of change in fair value of available-for-sale securities, net of tax

Unrecognized income (expense) related to pensions and other postretirement plans, net of tax

Change in derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges, net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Changes in noncontrolling interests

Dividends paid to noncontrolling shareholders

Reduction in nominal value of common shares paid to shareholders

Cancellation of treasury shares

Share-based payment arrangements

Purchase of treasury stock

Delivery of shares

Call options
Balance at December 31,2016 216 19,925

1.224) (402)

(40) (2.007)

54

(22) (41)

4
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Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Foreign Unrealized Pension and Unrealized gains Total accumu-
currency gains (losses) other post- (losses) of cash lated other Total ABB Total

translation on available-for- retirement plan flow hedge comprehensive stockholders' Noncontrolling stockholders'
adjustments sale securities adjustments derivatives loss Treasurystock equity interests equity

(431) (1.610) 22

(1.671)

(521)

(43)

(2,102) 13 (2,131) (21)

(1,033)

(6)

10

(3,135) 7 (1.719) (U)

(457)

118

10

(3.592) 7 (1.601) (1)

(2.012)

(1,671)

6

(521)

(43)

(4,241)

(1,033)

(6)

412

10

(4,858)

(457)

118

10

(5.187)

(246)

(1,015)

55

(1,206)

(1.501)

126

(2.581)

2,047

(1.280)

255

(1,559)

18,678

2,594

(1.671)

6

(521)

(43)

365

(34)

(1.841)

73

(1,015)

38

5

16,269

1,933

(1.033)

(6)

412

10

1,316

(55)

(1.317)

(403)

61

(1,501)

107

4

14,481

1,899

(457)

118

10

1,570

(1.626)

54

(1.280)

192

4_
13,395

530

124

(9)

33

(132)

546

122

(25)

100

(2)

(137)

507

135

(17)

118

(1)

(122)

502

19,208

2,718

(1,680)

6

(521)

(43)

480

(1)

(132)

(1.841)

73

(1,015)

38

5

16,815

2,055

(1,058)

(6)

415

10

1,416

(57)

(137)

(1.317)

(403)

61

(1.501)

107

4

14,988

2.034

(474)

118

10

1.688

(1)

(122)

(1.626)

54

(1.280)

192

4
13,897
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Notel

The Company

ABB Ltd and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Company) together form a pioneering technology leader in
electrification products, robotics and motion, industrial automation and power grids, serving customers
in utilities, industry and transport &infrastructure globally.

Note 2

Significant accounting policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Basis of presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with United States of America (United
States or U.S.)generally accepted accounting principles (U.S.GAAP) and are presented in United States
dollars ($ or USD) unless otherwise stated. The par value of capital stock is denominated in Swiss francs.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts reported for prior years in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying
Notes have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. These changes primarily relate
to the change in the definition of segment profit and the reorganization of the Company's operating
segments (see Note 23).

Scope of consolidation

The Consolidated FinancialStatements include the accounts of ABB Ltdand companies whichare directly
or indirectly controlled by ABB Ltd. Additionally, the Company consolidates variable interest entities if it
has determined that it is the primary beneficiary. Intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated,
investments in joint ventures and affiliated companies in which the Company has the ability to exercise
significant influence over operating and financial policies (generallythrough direct or indirect ownership
of 20 percent to 50 percent of the voting rights), are recorded in the Consolidated Financial Statements
using the equity method of accounting.

Operating cycle

Aportion of the Company's activities (primarilylong-term construction activities) has an operating cycle
that exceeds one year. For classification of current assets and liabilities related to such activities, the
Companyelected to use the duration of the individual contracts as its operating cycle.Accordingly, there
are accounts receivable, inventories and provisions related to these contracts which will not be realized
within one year that have been classified as current.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
assumptions and estimates that directly affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the accompanyingNotes.The most significant,difficultand subjectiveof such accounting
assumptions and estimates include:
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• estimates used to record expected costs for employee severance in connection with restructuring

programs,

• estimates used to record warranty obligations,
• assumptions and projections, principally related to future material, labor and project-related overhead

costs, used in determining the percentage-of-completion on projects,
• estimates of loss contingencies associated with litigation or threatened litigation and other claims and

inquiries, environmental damages, product warranties, self-insurance reserves, regulatory and other
proceedings,

• assumptions used in the calculation of pension and postretirement benefits and the fair value of
pension plan assets,

• estimates to determine valuation allowances for deferred tax assets and amounts recorded for

uncertain tax positions,

• growth rates, discount rates and other assumptions used to determine impairment of long-lived assets
and in testing goodwill for impairment,

• assumptions used in determining inventory obsolescence and net realizable value,
• estimates and assumptions used in determining the fair values of assets and liabilities assumed in

business combinations, and

• assessment of the allowance for doubtful accounts.

The actual results and outcomes may differ from the Company's estimates and assumptions.

Cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents include highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less at the date
of acquisition.

Currency and other local regulatory limitations related to the transfer of funds exist in a number of countries
where the Company operates. Funds, other than regular dividends, fees or loan repayments, cannot be
readily transferred abroad from these countries and are therefore deposited and used for working capital
needs locally.These funds are included in cash and equivalents as they are not considered restricted.

Marketable securities and short-term Investments

Management determines the appropriate classification of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities
at the time of purchase. At each reporting date, the appropriateness of the classification of the Company's
investments in debt and equity securities is reassessed. Debt securities are classified as held-to-maturity
when the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold the securities to maturity. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortized cost, adjusted for accretion of discounts or amortization of premiums
to maturity computed under the effective interest method. Such accretion or amortization is included in
"Interest and dividend income". Marketable debt securities not classified as held-to-maturity and equity

securities that have readily determinable fair values are classified as available-for-sale and reported at
fair value.

Unrealizedgains and losses on available-for-sale securities are excluded from the determination of
earnings and are instead recognized in the "Accumulated other comprehensive loss" component of
stockholders' equity, net of tax, until realized. Realizedgains and losses on available-for-sale securities are
computed based upon the historical cost of these securities, using the specific identification method.

Marketable debt securities are generally classified as either "Cash and equivalents" or "Marketable
securities and short-term investments" according to their maturity at the time of acquisition.

Marketableequity securities are generallyclassifiedas "Marketablesecurities and short-term investments",
however any marketable securities held as a long-term investment rather than as an investment of excess
liquidity, are classified as "Other non-current assets".

The Company performs a periodic reviewof its debt and equity securities to determine whether an
other-than-temporary impairment has occurred. Generally, when an individualsecurity has been in an
unrealized loss position for an extended period of time, the Company evaluates whether an impairment
has occurred. The evaluation is based on specific facts and circumstances at the time of assessment,
which include general market conditions, and the duration and extent to which the fair valueis belowcost.
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If the fair value of a debt security is less than its amortized cost, then an other-than-temporary impair
ment for the difference is recognized if (i) the Company has the intent to sell the security, (ii) it is more
likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost
base or (iii) a credit loss exists insofar as the Company does not expect to recover the entire recognized
amortized cost of the security. Such impairment charges are generally recognized in "Interest and other
finance expense". If the impairment is due to factors other than credit losses, and the Company does not
intend to sell the security and it is not more likely than not that it will be required to sell the security
before recovery of the security's amortized cost, such impairment charges are recorded in "Accumulated
other comprehensive loss".

In addition, for equity securities, the Company assesses whether the cost value will recover within the
near-term and whether the Company has the intent and ability to hold that equity security until such
recovery occurs. If an other-than-temporary impairment is identified, the security is written down to its
fair value and the related losses are recognized in "Interest and other finance expense", unless the
impairment relates to equity securities classified as "Other non-current assets", in which case the
impairment is reported in "Other income (expense), net".

Accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount. The Company has a group-wide policy on the
management of credit risk. The policy includes a credit assessment methodology to assess the credit
worthiness of customers and assign to those customers a risk category. Third-party agencies' ratings are
considered, if available. For customers where agency ratings are not available, the customer's most recent
financial statements, payment history and other relevant information are considered in the assignment to
a risk category. Customers are assessed at least annually or more frequently when information on significant
changes in the customers' financial position becomes known. In addition to the assignment to a risk
category, a credit limit per customer is set.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Company's best estimate of the amount of probable credit
losses in existing accounts receivable. The Company determines the allowance based on historical write-off
experience and customer specific data. Ifan amount has not been settled within its contractual payment
term then it is considered past due. The Company reviews the allowance for doubtful accounts regularly
and past due balances are reviewed for collectability. Account balances are charged off against the related
allowance when the Company believes that the amount will not be recovered.

The Company,in its normal course of business, transfers receivablesto third parties, generallywithout
recourse. The transfer is accounted for as a sale when the Company has surrendered control over the re
ceivables. Control is deemed to have been surrendered when (I)the transferred receivables have been put
presumptively beyond the reach of the Company and its creditors, even in bankruptcy or other receivership,
(ii)the third-party transferees have the right to pledge or exchange the transferred receivables, and (iii)the
Company has relinquished effective control over the transferred receivables and does not retain the ability
or obligation to repurchase or redeem the transferred receivables. At the time of sale, the sold receivables
are removed from the Consolidated BalanceSheets and the related cash inflowsare classified as operating
activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Costs associated with the sale of receivables,
including the related gains and losses from the sales, are included in "Interest and other finance expense".
Transfers of receivables that do not meet the requirements for treatment as sales are accounted for as
secured borrowings and the related cash flows are classified as financing activities in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.

Concentrations of credit risk

The Company sells a broad range of products, systems, services and software to a wide range of industrial,
commercial and utility customers as well as various government agencies and quasi-governmental
agencies throughout the world. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are
limited, as the Company's customer base is comprised of a large number of individual customers.
Ongoing credit evaluations of customers' financial positions are performed to determine whether the use
of credit support instruments such as guarantees, letters of credit or credit insurance are necessary;
collateral is not generally required. The Company maintains reserves for potential credit losses as
discussed above in "Accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts". Such losses, in the
aggregate, are in line with the Company's expectations.
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It is the Company's policy to invest cash in deposits with banks throughout the world with certain
minimum credit ratings and in high quality, low risk, liquid investments. The Company actively manages its
credit risk by routinely reviewing the creditworthiness of the banks and the investments held. The
Company has not incurred significant credit losses related to such investments.

The Company's exposure to credit risk on derivative financial instruments is the risk that the counterparty
will fail to meet its obligations. To reduce this risk, the Company has credit policies that require the
establishment and periodic review of credit limits for individual counterparties. In addition, the Company
has entered into close-out netting agreements with most derivative counterparties. Close-out netting
agreements provide for the termination, valuation and net settlement of some or all outstanding transac
tions between two counterparties on the occurrence of one or more pre-defined trigger events. In the
Consolidated Financial Statements derivative transactions are presented on a gross basis.

Revenue recognition

The Company generally recognizes revenues for the sale of goods when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the price is fixed or determinable and collectability is reason
ably assured. With regards to the sale of products, delivery is not considered to have occurred, and
therefore no revenues are recognized, until the customer has taken title to the products and assumed the
risks and rewards of ownership of the products specified in the purchase order or sales agreement.
Generally, the transfer of title and risks and rewards of ownership are governed by the contractually-defined
shipping terms. The Company uses various International Commercial shipping terms (as promulgated by
the International Chamber of Commerce) in its sales of products to third-party customers, such as Ex
Works (EXW), Free Carrier (FCA) and Delivered Duty Paid (DDP).Subsequent to delivery of the products,
the Company generally has no further contractual performance obligations that would preclude revenue
recognition.

Revenues under long-term construction-type contracts are generally recognized using the percentage-of-
completion method of accounting. The Company principally uses the cost-to-cost method to measure
progress towards completion on contracts. Under this method, progress of contracts is measured by
actual costs incurred in relation to the Company's best estimate of total estimated costs, which are
reviewed and updated routinely for contracts in progress. The cumulative effect of any change in estimate
is recorded in the period when the change in estimate is determined.

Short-term construction-type contracts, or long-term construction-type contracts for which reasonably
dependable estimates cannot be made or for which inherent hazards make estimates difficult, are
accounted for under the completed-contract method. Revenues under the completed-contract method are
recognized upon substantial completion —that is: acceptance by the customer, compliance with perfor
mance specifications demonstrated in a factory acceptance test or similar event.

For non construction-type contracts that contain customer acceptance provisions, revenue is deferred un
til customer acceptance occurs or the Company has demonstrated the customer-specified objective crite
ria have been met or the contractual acceptance period has lapsed.

Revenues from service transactions are recognized as services are performed. For long-term service
contracts, revenues are recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract or, if the perfor
mance pattern is other than straight-line, as the services are provided. Service revenues reflect revenues
earned from the Company's activities in providing services to customers primarily subsequent to the sale
and deliveryof a product or complete system. Such revenues consist of maintenance-type contracts, field
service activities that include personnel and accompanying spare parts, and installation and commission
ing of products as a stand-alone service or as part of a service contract.

Revenues for software license fees are recognized when persuasive evidence of a non-cancelable license
agreement exists, deliveryhas occurred, the license fee is fixed or determinable, and collection is proba
ble. Insoftware arrangements that include rights to multiple software products and/or services, the total
arrangement fee is allocated using the residual method. Under this method, revenue is allocated to the
undelivered elements based on vendor-specific objective evidence (VSOE)of the fair value of such
undelivered elements and the residual amounts of revenue are allocated to the delivered elements.

Elements included in multiple element arrangements may consist of software licenses, maintenance
(which includes customer support services and unspecified upgrades), hosting, and consulting services.
VSOE is based on the price generallycharged when an element is sold separately or, in the case of an
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element not yet sold separately, the price established by management, if it is probable that the price, once
established, will not change once the element is sold separately. If VSOEdoes not exist for an undelivered
element, the total arrangement fee will be recognized as revenue over the life of the contract or upon
delivery of the undelivered element.

The Company offers multiple element arrangements to meet its customers' needs. These arrangements
may involve the delivery of multiple products and/or performance of services (such as installation and
training) and the delivery and/or performance may occur at different points in time or over different pe

riods of time. Deliverables of such multiple element arrangements are evaluated to determine the unit
of accounting and if certain criteria are met, the Company allocates revenues to each unit of accounting
based on its relative selling price. A hierarchy of selling prices is used to determine the selling price of
each specific deliverable that includes VSOE (if available), third-party evidence (if VSOE is not available),
or estimated selling price if neither of the first two is available. The estimated selling price reflects the
Company's best estimate of what the selling prices of elements would be if the elements were sold on a
stand-alone basis. Revenue is allocated between the elements of an arrangement at the inception of the
arrangement. Such arrangements generally include industry-specific performance and termination provi
sions, such as in the event of substantial delays or non-delivery.

Revenues are reported net of customer rebates and similar incentives. Taxes assessed by a governmental
authority that are directly imposed on revenue-producing transactions between the Company and its
customers, such as sales, use, value-added and some excise taxes, are excluded from revenues.

Contract loss provisions

Losses on contracts are recognized in the period when they are identified and are based upon the
anticipated excess of contract costs over the related contract revenues.

Shipping and handling costs
Shipping and handling costs are recorded as a component of cost of sales.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method, the weighted-average cost method, or in certain circumstances (for example, where the
completed-contract method of revenue recognition is used) the specific identification method. Inventoried
costs are stated at acquisition cost or actual production cost, including direct material and labor and
applicable manufacturing overheads. Adjustments to reduce the cost of inventory to its net realizable value
are made, if required, for decreases in sales prices, obsolescence or similar reductions in value.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets that are held and used are assessed for impairment when events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. If the asset's net carrying value
exceeds the asset's net undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated over its remaining useful life
including net proceeds expected from disposition of the asset, if any, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its estimated fair value. The estimated fair value is determined using a market, income and/or
cost approach.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and is depreciated using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of the assets are generally as follows:

factories and office buildings: 30 to 40 years,
other facilities: 15 years,
machinery and equipment: 3 to 15 years,
furniture and office equipment: 3 to 8 years, and
leasehold improvements are depreciated over their estimated useful lifeor, for operating leases, over
the lease term, if shorter.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually as of October 1,or more frequently if events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
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Goodwill is evaluated for impairment at the reporting unit level.Areporting unit is an operating segment or
one level below an operating segment. For the annual impairment review in 2016, the reporting units were
the same as the operating segments for Electrification Products, Discrete Automation and Motion and
Power Grids, while for the Process Automation operating segment, the reporting units were determined to
be one level below the operating segment.

When evaluating goodwill for impairment, the Company uses either a qualitative or quantitative assessment
method for each reporting unit. Thequalitativeassessment involves determining, based on an evaluationof
qualitative factors, if it is more likely than not that the fair valueof a reporting unit is less than its carrying
value. If, based on this qualitative assessment, it is determined to be more likely than not that the reporting
unit's fair value is less than its carrying value,the two-step quantitative impairment test (described below)is
performed, otherwise no further analysisis required.Ifthe Companyelects not to perform the qualitative
assessment for a reporting unit, the two-step quantitative impairment test is performed.

The two-step quantitative impairment test calculates the fair value of a reporting unit (based on the
income approach whereby the fair value of a reporting unit is calculated based on the present valueof
future cash flows) and compares it to the reporting unit's carrying value. If the carrying value of the net
assets of a reporting unit exceeds the fair valueof the reporting unit then the Company performs the
second step of the impairment test to determine the impliedfairvalueof the reporting unit's goodwill. If
the carrying value of the reporting unit's goodwillexceeds its implied fair value, the Companyrecords an
impairment charge equal to the difference.

The cost of acquired intangible assets with a finite lifeis amortized using a method of amortization that
reflects the pattern of intangible assets' expected contributions to future cash flows. Ifthat pattern cannot
be reliablydetermined, the straight-line method is used. Theamortization periods range from 3 to 5 years
for software and from 5 to 20 years for customer-, technology-and marketing-related intangibles. Intangible
assets with a finite life are tested for impairment upon the occurrence of certain triggering events.

Capitalized software costs
Software for internal use

Costs incurred in the application development stage until the software is substantially complete are
capitalized and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lifeof the software,
typically ranging from 3 to 5 years.

Software for sale

Costs incurred after the software has demonstrated its technological feasibility until the product is avail
able for general release to the customers are capitalizedand amortized on a straight-linebasis overthe
estimated lifeof the product. The Companyperiodicallyperforms an evaluation to determine that the un
amortized cost of software to be sold does not exceed the net realizable value. If the unamortized cost of
software to be sold exceeds its net realizable value, the Company records an impairment charge equal to
the difference.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
The Companyuses derivativefinancial instruments to manage currency, commodity,interest rate and
equity exposures, arising from its global operating, financing and investing activities (see Note 5).

The Company recognizes all derivatives, other than certain derivatives indexed to the Company's own
stock, at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Derivatives that are not designated as hedging
instruments are reported at fair valuewith derivativegains and losses reported through earnings and
classified consistent with the nature of the underlying transaction.

Ifthe derivativesare designated as a hedge,depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair
value of the derivatives willeither be offset against the change in fair value of the hedged item attribut
able to the risk being hedged through earnings (in the case of a fair value hedge) or recognized in
"Accumulatedother comprehensive loss" until the hedged item is recognized in earnings (in the case of
a cash flow hedge). Theineffectiveportion of a derivative'schange in fair valueis immediatelyrecognized
in earnings consistent with the classificationof the hedged item. Wherederivativefinancialinstruments
havebeen designated as cash flowhedges of forecasted transactions and such forecasted transactions
are no longer probable of occurring, hedge accountingis discontinued and anyderivative gain or loss
previously includedin "Accumulated other comprehensive loss"is reclassifiedinto earnings consistent
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with the nature of the original forecasted transaction. Gains or losses from derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in a fair value hedge are reported through earnings and classified consistent with
the nature of the underlying hedged transaction.

Certain commercial contracts may grant rights to the Company or the counterparties, or contain other
provisions that are considered to be derivatives. Such embedded derivatives are assessed at inception of

the contract and depending on their characteristics, accounted for as separate derivative instruments and
shown at their fair value in the balance sheet with changes in their fair value reported in earnings consis
tent with the nature of the commercial contract to which they relate.

Derivatives are classified in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in the same section as the

underlying item. Cash flows from the settlement of undesignated derivatives used to manage the risks
of different underlying items on a net basis, are classified within "Net cash provided by operating activi
ties", as the underlying items are primarily operational in nature. Other cash flows on the settlement of
derivatives are recorded within "Net cash used in investing activities".

Leases

The Company leases primarily real estate and office equipment. Rental expense for operating leases is
recorded on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term. Lease transactions where substantially all
risks and rewards incident to ownership are transferred from the lessor to the lessee are accounted for

as capital leases. Allother leases are accounted for as operating leases. Amounts due under capital leases
are recorded as a liability. The interest in assets acquired under capital leases is recorded as property,
plant and equipment. Depreciation and amortization of assets recorded under capital leases is included in
depreciation and amortization expense.

Translation of foreign currencies and foreign exchange transactions

The functional currency for most of the Company's subsidiaries is the applicable local currency. The
translation from the applicable functional currencies into the Company's reporting currency is performed
for balance sheet accounts using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and for income
statement accounts using average exchange rates prevailing during the year. The resulting translation
adjustments are excluded from the determination of earnings and are recognized in "Accumulated other
comprehensive loss" until the subsidiary is sold, substantially dated or evaluated for impairment in
anticipation of disposal.

Foreign currency exchange gains and losses, such as those resulting from foreign currency denominated
receivables or payables, are included in the determination of earnings, except as they relate to intercom
pany loans that are equity-like in nature with no reasonable expectation of repayment, which are recog
nized in "Accumulated other comprehensive loss". Exchange gains and losses recognized in earnings are
included in "Total revenues", "Total cost of sales", "Selling, general and administrative expenses" or
"Interest and other finance expense" consistent with the nature of the underlying item.

Income taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method to account for deferred taxes. Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between the financial
reporting and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.
The Company records a deferred tax asset when it determines that it is more likely than not that the
deduction will be sustained based upon the deduction's technical merit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

that can be offset against each other are reported on a net basis. Avaluation allowance is recorded to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likelythan not to be realized.

Deferred taxes are provided on unredeemed retained earnings of the Company's subsidiaries. However,
deferred taxes are not provided on such unredeemed retained earnings to the extent it is expected that
the earnings are permanently reinvested. Such earnings may become taxable upon the sale or liquidation
of these subsidiaries or upon the remittance of dividends.

The Company operates in numerous tax jurisdictions and, as a result, is regularly subject to audit by tax
authorities. The Company provides for tax contingencies whenever it is deemed more likelythan not that
a tax asset has been impaired or a tax liability has been incurred for events such as tax claims or changes
in tax laws. Contingency provisions are recorded based on the technical merits of the Company's filing
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position, considering theapplicable taxlaws and Organisation forEconomic Co-operation and
Development (OECD) guidelines and are based onitsevaluations ofthefacts and circumstances asofthe
end of each reporting period.

The Company applies a two-step approach to recognize andmeasure uncertainty inincome taxes. The
firststep is to evaluate the taxposition forrecognition bydetermining iftheweight ofavailable evidence
indicates that it is more likely than notthatthe position will besustained onaudit, including resolution of
related appeals or litigation processes, ifany. The second stepisto measure thetaxbenefit as thelargest
amountwhich is morethan 50percent likely of being realized uponultimate settlement.Uncertain tax
positions thatcould besettled against existing loss carryforwards orincome tax credits are reported net.

The expense related totax penalties isclassified in the Consolidated Income Statements as"Provision for
taxes", while interest thereonisclassified as "Interest and other finance expense".

Research and development
Research anddevelopment costs not related to specific customer ordersaregenerally expensed
as incurred.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings pershareis calculated bydividing income bythe weighted-average number of shares
outstandingduring the year. Diluted earnings pershareis calculated bydividing income bythe
weighted-average number ofshares outstanding during theyear, assuming that all potentially dilutive
securities were exercised,if dilutive. Potentially dilutive securities include:outstanding written calloptions,
outstanding options and shares granted subject tocertain conditions under theCompany's share-based
payment arrangements. Seefurther discussion related to earnings pershare inNote 20andofpotentially
dilutive securities in Note 18.

Share-based payment arrangements
TheCompany has variousshare-based payment arrangements for its employees, which are described
morefully in Note18.Such arrangements are accounted for underthe fairvalue method.Forawardsthat
are equity-settled, total compensation is measured at grant date, basedon the fairvalue of the award at
that date, and recorded in earnings over the period the employees are required to render service. For
awards that are cash-settled, compensation is initiallymeasured at grant date and subsequently remea-
sured at each reporting period, based on the fairvalue and vesting percentage of the awardat each of
those dates, with changes in the liability recorded in earnings.

Fair value measures

The Company uses fair value measurement principles to record certain financial assets and liabilities on
a recurring basis and, when necessary, to recordcertain non-financial assets at fair valueon a non-recurring
basis, as well as to determine fair value disclosures for certain financial instruments carried at amortized
cost in the financial statements. Financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis
include foreign currency, commodity and interest rate derivatives, as well as cash-settled call options and
available-for-sale securities. Non-financial assets recorded at fair value on a non-recurring basis include

long-lived assets that are reduced to their estimated fair value due to impairments.

Fair value is the price that would be received when selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, the
Company uses various valuation techniques including the market approach (using observable market data

for identical or similar assets and liabilities), the income approach (discounted cash flow models) and the
cost approach (using costs a market participant would incur to develop a comparable asset). Inputs used

to determine the fair value of assets and liabilities are defined by a three-level hierarchy, depending on the
reliability of those inputs. The Company has categorized its financial assets and liabilities and non-financial
assets measured at fair value within this hierarchy based on whether the inputs to the valuation technique
are observable or unobservable. An observable input is based on market data obtained from independent
sources, while an unobservable input reflects the Company's assumptions about market data.
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The levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1:

Valuation inputsconsist ofquotedprices inanactive market foridentical assets or liabilities (observable
quoted prices). Assets and liabilities valued using Level 1inputs include exchange-traded equity securities,
listedderivatives which areactively traded suchas commodity futures, interestratefuturesandcertain
actively traded debt securities.

Level 2:

Valuation inputs consist ofobservable inputs (other than Level 1inputs) such asactively quoted prices for
similar assets, quoted prices ininactive markets andinputs other than quoted prices such as interest rate
yield curves, credit spreads, orinputs derived from other observable databy interpolation, correlation,
regression orothermeans. The adjustments applied to quoted prices ortheinputs usedinvaluation
models may be bothobservable and unobservable. In these cases,the fairvalue measurement is classified
as Level 2unless theunobservable portion oftheadjustment ortheunobservable input to thevaluation
model is significant, inwhich case the fairvalue measurement would beclassified as Level 3.Assets and
liabilities valued ordisclosed using Level 2inputs include investments in certain funds, reverse repurchase
agreements, certain debtsecurities thatarenotactively traded, interest rateswaps, commodity swaps,
cash-settled call options, forward foreign exchange contracts, foreign exchange swaps and forward rate
agreements, time deposits, as wellas financing receivables and debt.

Level 3:

Valuation inputs are based ontheCompany's assumptions ofrelevant market data(unobservable input).

Whenever quotedprices involve bid-ask spreads, the Company ordinarily determines fair values basedon
mid-market quotes. However, for the purpose ofdetermining thefair value ofcash-settled call options
servingas hedges of the Company's management incentive plan(MIP), bid pricesare used.

When determining fair values basedonquotedprices inanactive market, the Company considers ifthe
level of transaction activityfor the financial instrument has significantly decreased,or would not be
considered orderly. Insuch cases, the resulting changes in valuationtechniques wouldbe disclosed. Ifthe
marketis considered disorderly or ifquoted pricesare not available, the Company is required to use
another valuation technique, such as an income approach.

Disclosures about the Company's fair value measurements of assets and liabilities are included in Note 6.

Contingencies

TheCompany is subject to proceedings,litigationor threatened litigationand other claimsand inquiries,
related to environmental, labor, product, regulatory, tax (other than income tax) and other matters, and is
required to assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes to these matters, as well as
potential ranges of probable losses. Adetermination of the provision required, if any, for these contingen
cies is made after analysis of each individual issue, often with assistance from both internal and external
legal counsel and technical experts. The required amount of a provisionfor a contingency of any type may
change in the future due to new developments in the particular matter, including changes in the approach
to its resolution.

The Company records a provision for its contingent obligations when it is probable that a loss will be
incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Anysuch provision is generally recognized on an
undiscounted basis using the Company's best estimate of the amount of loss incurred or at the lower end
of an estimated range when a single best estimate is not determinable. In some cases, the Company may
be able to recover a portion of the costs relating to these obligations from insurers or other third parties;
however, the Company records such amounts only when it is probable that they will be collected.

The Company provides for anticipated costs for warranties when it recognizes revenues on the related
products or contracts. Warranty costs include calculated costs arising from imperfections in design,
material and workmanship in the Company's products. The Company makes individual assessments on
contracts with risks resulting from order-specific conditions or guarantees and assessments on an overall,
statistical basis for similar products sold in larger quantities.
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The Company may have legal obligations to perform environmental clean-up activities related to land and
buildings asa result ofthenormal operations ofitsbusiness. In some cases, thetiming orthemethod of
settlement, or both,are conditional upona futureeventthat mayor maynot be within the control of the
Company, butthe underlying obligation itself isunconditional andcertain. The Company recognizes a
provision for theseobligations when it isprobable thata liability for theclean-up activity has been
incurred and a reasonable estimate of its fair valuecan be made. Insome cases, a portion of the costs
expected to beincurred to settlethesematters may berecoverable. An asset is recorded when it is
probable thatsuch amounts are recoverable. Provisions for environmental obligations are notdiscounted
to theirpresentvalue when the timing of payments cannot be reasonably estimated.

Pensions and other postretirement benefits
The Company hasa number ofdefined benefit pension andotherpostretirement plans. The Company
recognizes anassetfor such a plan's overfunded status ora liability for such a plan's underfunded status
in its Consolidated Balance Sheets.Additionally, the Company measuressuch a plan'sassets and obliga
tions that determine its funded status as of the end of the year and recognizesthe changes in the funded
status intheyear inwhich thechanges occur. Those changes arereported in"Accumulated othercompre
hensive loss".

The Company usesactuarial valuations to determine its pension andpostretirement benefit costsand
credits. Theamounts calculated depend on a varietyof key assumptions, including discount rates and
expected return on plan assets.Current market conditions areconsidered inselecting theseassumptions.

TheCompany's various pension plan assets areassigned to theirrespective levels inthe fair value hierar
chyinaccordance withthe valuation principles described inthe "Fair value measures" sectionabove.

See Note 17for further discussion of the Company's employee benefit plans.

Business combinations

TheCompany accounts for assets acquiredand liabilities assumed in business combinationsusing the
acquisitionmethod and records these at their respectivefairvalues.Contingentconsideration is recorded
at fair value as an element of purchase price with subsequent adjustments recognized in income.

Identifiable intangibles consist of intellectual property such as trademarks and trade names, customer
relationships, patented and unpatented technology, in-process research and development, order backlog
and capitalized software; these are amortized over their estimated useful lives.Such intangibles are
subsequently subject to evaluation for potential impairment if events or circumstances indicate the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. See "Goodwill and other intangible assets" above. Acquisition-related costs
are recognized separately from the acquisition and expensed as incurred. Upon gaining control of an
entity in which an equity method or cost basis investment was held by the Company, the carrying value of
that investment is adjusted to fair value with the related gain or loss recorded in income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities based on temporary differences between the financial reporting and the
tax base of assets and liabilities as well as uncertain tax positions and valuation allowances on acquired

deferred tax assets assumed in connection with a business combination are initially estimated as of the

acquisition date based on facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date. These estimates
are subject to change within the measurement period (a period of up to 12 months after the acquisition
date during which the acquirer may adjust the provisional acquisition amounts) with any adjustments to

the preliminary estimates being recorded to goodwill. Changes in deferred taxes, uncertain tax positions
and valuation allowances on acquired deferred tax assets that occur after the measurement period are
recognized in income.

New accounting pronouncements

Applicable for current period

Discinsures for investments in certain entities that calculate net asset value per share (or its equivalent)
Asof January l, 2016, the Companyadopted an accounting standard update regarding fairvaluedisclo
sures for certain investments.Under the update, the Company is no longerrequiredto categorizewithin
the fairvalue hierarchy anyinvestments for which fair value is measured usingthe net asset value per
share practicalexpedient.Theamendments also removed the requirementto makecertain disclosuresfor
investments that are eligible to be measured at fairvalue usingthe net asset value per share practical
expedient. Rather, those disclosures are limited to investments for which the Company has electedto
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measure thefair value using that practical expedient. This update was applied retrospectively anddid not
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

S mplify ng the measurement of inventory

As ofJanuary 1,2016, theCompany early-adopted anaccounting standard update simplifying thesubse
quent measurement of inventories by replacing the current lower of cost or market test with a lower of
cost and net realizable value test. The guidance applies only toinventories for which cost isdetermined by
methods other than last-infirst-out and the retailinventory methods. Netrealizable valueis the estimated
selling price in theordinary course ofbusiness, less reasonably predictable costs ofcompletion, disposal
andtransportation. The update was applied prospectively and did nothave a significant impact onthe
consolidated financial statements.

Applicable for future periods

Revenue from contracts with customers

In May 2014, anaccounting standard update was issued toclarify theprinciples for recognizing revenues
from contracts with customers. The update, which supersedes substantially all existing revenue recogni
tionguidance, provides a single comprehensive model for recognizing revenues onthe transferof
promised goods orservices tocustomers in anamount thatreflects theconsideration thatisexpected to
bereceived for thosegoods orservices. Under thestandard it ispossible that more judgments and
estimates would berequired thanunder existing standards, including identifying theseparate perfor
mance obligations ina contract, estimating any variable consideration elements, andallocating the
transaction priceto eachseparate performance obligation. The updatealsorequires additional disclo
suresaboutthe nature, amount, timing anduncertainty of revenue andcashflows arising from contracts
with customers. Further updateswere issued in2016 to clarify the guidance onidentifying performance
obligations, licensing andcontractcosts,to enhance the implementation guidance onprincipal versus
agent considerations and to add other practical expedients.

InAugust 2015, the effective date for the update was deferred and the update is now effective for the
Company for annualand interimperiods beginning January1,2018, and is to be appliedeither (i)
retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented, with the option to elect certain defined
practical expedients, or (ii)retrospectivelywith the cumulative effect of initially applyingthe update
recognizedat the date of adoption in retained earnings (withadditional disclosure as to the impact on
individualfinancial statement lines affected). Early adoption of the standard is permitted for annual
reporting periods beginning after December15,2016,including interim reporting periods within that
reporting period.

The Company currently plans to adopt these updates as of January l, 2018, pursuant to the aforemen
tioned adoption method (ii)and currently does not anticipate these updates willhave a significant impact
on its consolidated financial statements. The Company's analysis of contracts performed in 2016 resulted
in immaterial differences in the identification of performance obligations compared to the current unit of
accounting determination. Except for a limited number of contracts where the required criteria are not
met, the analysis supports the recognition of revenue overtime following the cost-to-cost method under
the new revenue recognition standard for those contracts which are following the cost-to-cost method
under the current revenue recognition model. The Company continues to evaluate the expected impacts of
the adoption of these updates and the expected impacts are subject to change.

Balance sheet classification of deferred taxes

In November 2015, an accounting standard update was issued which removes the requirement to separate
deferred tax liabilities and assets into current and non-current amounts and instead requires all such

amounts, as well as any related valuation allowance, to be classified as non-current in the balance sheet.
This update is effective for the Company for annual and interim periods beginning January 1,2017, with
early adoption permitted, and is applicable either prospectively to all deferred tax liabilities and assets or
retrospectively to all periods presented. The Company willadopt this update as of January 1,2017, on a
retrospective basis and expects the balance of deferred tax assets and liabilities to decrease by approxi
mately $300 million due to additional netting impacts.

Recognition and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
InJanuary2016, an accountingstandard update was issued to enhancethe reportingmodelfor financial
instruments, which includes amendments to address aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure. Forexample, the Companywould be required to measure equity investments (except
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those accounted for under the equity method) at fairvaluewith changes in fair valuerecognized in net
income and to presentseparately financial assets andfinancial liabilities bymeasurement category and
formof financial asset. This update is effective for the Company forannual and interim periodsbeginning
January 1,2018, with early adoption permitted forcertain provisions. The Company iscurrently evaluating
the impact of this update on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, anaccounting standard update was issued that requires lessees to recognize lease
assets andcorresponding leaseliabilities onthe balance sheetforall leases with termsof more than12
months. The update, which supersedes existing lease guidance, will continue to classify leases as either
finance oroperating, with theclassification determining the pattern ofexpense recognition intheincome
statement. This update is effective for the Company forannual and interim periodsbeginning January 1,
2019, with early adoption permitted, andisapplicable ona modified retrospective basiswith various
optional practical expedients. The Company iscurrently evaluating theimpact of thisupdate onits
consolidated financial statements.

Simplifying the transition to the equity method of act ounnng
In March 2016, an accounting standard update wasissuedwhich eliminates the retroactive adjustments
to an investment upon it qualifying forthe equity method ofaccounting as a resultofan increase inthe
level of ownership interestor degreeof influence bythe investor. Itrequires that the equity method
investoradd the cost of acquiring the additional interest in the investeeto the currentbasisof the
investor'spreviously heldinterest and adopt the equitymethodof accounting as of the date the
investment qualifies forequity method accounting. This updateis effective forthe Company forannual
and interim periods beginningJanuary1,2017, with earlyadoption permitted, and is applicable
prospectively. TheCompany does not believe that this update will have a significant impacton its
consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to employee share-based |)l>\merit accounting

InMarch 2016, an accounting standard update was issued whichchanges the accounting for certain
aspects of share-based payment awards to employees, including the accounting for income taxes,
forfeitures,and statutory tax withholding requirements, as well as the classification in the statement of
cash flows. This update is effective for the Company for annual and interim periods beginning January 1,
2017, with earlyadoption permitted. TheCompany does not believethat this update will havea significant
impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Measurement of credit losses on financial instruments

In June 2016, an accounting standard update was issued which replaces the existing incurred loss impair
ment methodology for most financial assets with a new "current expected credit loss" model. The new
model will result in the immediate recognition of the estimated credit losses expected to occur over the
remaining life of financial assets such as trade and other receivables, held-to-maturity debt securities,
loans and other instruments. Credit losses relating to available-for-sale debt securities will be measured in
a manner similar to current GAAP, except that the losses will be recorded through an allowance for credit
losses rather than as a direct write-down of the security.

This update is effective for the Company for annual and interim periods beginning January 1,2020, with
early adoption permitted for annual and interim periods beginning January 1,2019. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of this update on its consolidated financial statements.

Classifu anon of cer tain cash receipts and <<ish payments in the statement of cash flows

In August 2016, an accounting standard update was issued which clarifies how certain cash receipts and
cash payments, including debt prepayment or extinguishment costs, the settlement of zero coupon debt
instruments, contingent consideration paid after a business combination, proceeds from insurance
settlements, distributions from certain equity method investees and beneficial interests obtained in a
financial asset securitization, should be presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. This
update is effective for the Companyfor annualand interim periods beginning January 1,2018on a
retrospective basis, with earlyadoption permitted. TheCompanydoes not believethat this update will
have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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Ircorne taxes - intra-entity transfers of assets other than inventory

In October 2016, anaccounting standardupdatewasissued that requires the Company to recognize the
income taxconsequences of an intra-entity transferofanasset otherthaninventory when the transfer
occurs instead of whenthe asset has been sold to an outside party.Thisupdate is effectivefor the
Company forannual andinterim periods beginning January 1,2018, with early adoption permitted, andis
applicable ona modified retrospective basisthrough a cumulative-effect adjustment directly to retained
earnings as of the beginning ofthe period ofadoption. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
this update on its consolidated financial statements.

Statement of cash flows - Restricted cash

InNovember2016,an accounting standard update was issued whichclarifies the classification and
presentation of changesin restrictedcashon the statementof cashflows. Itrequires the inclusion of cash
andcashequivalents that have restrictions onwithdrawal oruseintotalcash andcash equivalents onthe
statement ofcash flows. This update iseffective fortheCompany for annual andinterim periods begin
ning January 1,2018 ona retrospective basis, with early adoption permitted. The Company doesnot
believethat this update will havea significant impact on its consolidated financialstatements.

Clarifying the definition of a business

InJanuary 2017, an accounting standard update was issued which narrows the definition of a business.
It also provides a framework for determining whether a set of transferred assets and activities involves
a business. This update iseffective for theCompany for annual and interim periods beginning January 1,
2018 on a prospective basis,withearly adoptionpermitted.TheCompany does not believe that this
update willhave a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Simplifying the test for goodwill impairment

InJanuary2017, an accountingstandard update was issued which eliminatesthe requirementto calculate
the implied fair value ofgoodwill when measuring a goodwill impairment loss. Instead, the Company is
required to record an impairment lossbased on the excessof a reporting unit'scarrying amountoverits
fairvalue provided that the loss recognized does not exceedthe total amountof goodwill allocatedto that
reporting unit.This update is effective for the Company forannual andinterim periodsbeginning
January1,2020 on a prospective basis,with earlyadoption permitted.TheCompany plans to earlyadopt
this update in the first quarter of 2017 and applyit prospectively. TheCompany does not believe that this
update will have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Clarifying the scope of asset derecognition gjidanceand accounting for partial sales of nonfinancial assets
In February 2017, an accounting standard update was issued whichclarifies the scope of asset derecogni
tion guidance, adds guidance for partial sales of nonfinancial assets and clarifies recognizing gains and
losses from the transfer of nonfinancial assets in contracts with noncustomers. The Company plans to
adopt this update retrospectively as of January 1,2018, with the cumulative effect of initiallyapplying the
update recognized at the date of adoption in retained earnings. The Company does not believe that this
update will have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Note 3

Acquisitions and business divestments

Acquisitions

Acquisitions were as follows:

(Sinmillions, except number ofacquired businesses) 2016 2015 2014
Acquisitions(net of cash acquired)'1'

Aggregateexcessof purchase priceoverfair valueof net assets acquired'2'

Number of acquired businesses

13 37 58

12 34 9

1 3 6
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Business divestments

In 2014, theCompany received proceeds (netoftransaction costsandcash disposed) of$1,090 million,
relating todivestments ofconsolidated businesses and recorded netgains of$543 million in "Other
income (expense), net" onthesale ofsuch businesses. In 2016 and2015, there were nosignificant
amounts recognizedfrom divestments of consolidated businesses.

In September 2016, theCompany announced anagreement to divest its high-voltage cable system
business (Cables business). The assetsand liabilities ofthisbusiness areshown asassetsand liabilities
held forsaleintheCompany's Consolidated Balance Sheet as at December 31,2016. The transaction
closed on March 1,2017.

Note 4

Cash and equivalents, marketable securities
and short-term investments

Current assets

Cash andequivalents andmarketable securities andshort-term investments consisted ofthefollowing:

December 31,2016 ($ in millions) Cost basis

Gross

unrealized

gains

Gross

unrealized

losses Fair value

Cash and

equivalents

Marketable

securities and

short-term

investments

Cash

Time deposits

Other short-term investments

Del'.! •wu'iti," ," ,'i.it-l.. '.." '.-I.

— U.S. government obligations

— Other government obligations

— Corporate

Equity securities available-for-sale

1.704

2,764

271

221

2

95

530

1

1

11

(2)

(1)

1,704

2.764

271

220

2

95

541

1,704

1,940 824

271

220

2

95

541

Total 5,587 13 (3) 5,597 3,644 1,953

December 31,2015 ($ in millions) Cost basis

Gross

unrealized

gains

Gross

unrealized

losses Fair value

Cash and

equivalents

Marketable

securities and

short-term

investments

Cash

Time deposits

Other short-term investments

:.)ehi ••..'(. hi Kk", ,K\iilfibl.- I'-'-s.jl-

— U.S. government obligations

— Other government obligations

— Corporate

Equity securities available-for-sale

1,837

2,821

231

120

2

519

658

2

1

9

(1)

(1)

1,837

2,821

231

121

2

519

667

1,837

2,717

11

104

231

121

2

508

667

Total 6,188 12 (2) 6,198 4,565 1,633

Included in Other short-term investments at December 31,2016 and 2015, are receivables of $268 million

and $224 million, respectively,representing reverse repurchase agreements. These collateralized lendings,
made to a financial institution, have maturity dates of less than one year.

Non-current assets

Included in "Other non-current assets" are certain held-to-maturity marketable securities. At December 31,
2016,the amortized cost, gross unrecognized gain and fair value (based on quoted market prices) of these
securities were $80 million, $6 million and $86 million, respectively. At December31,2015, the amortized
cost, gross unrecognized gain and fair value (based on quoted market prices) of these securities were
$99million, $11 million and $110 million, respectively. These securities are pledged as security forcertain
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o jtstandingdeposit liabilities and the funds eceived at the respective maturity dates of the securities
will only be available to the Company for repa/ment of these obligations.

Gains, losses and contractual maturities

Gross realized gains(reclassified from accumulated othercomprehensive lossto income) onavailable-for-sale
securities totaledSi million, $1 million and $2 million in2016, 2015 and2014, respectively. Gross realized
losses(reclassified from accumulated other ccmprehensive lossto income) onavailable-for-sale securities
totaled SImillion, $2million and$23 million in2016, 2015 and2014, respectively. Such gains andlosses
were included in "Interest and other finance expense".

In 2016, 2015 and 2014, other-than-temporary impairments recognized on available-for-sale equity
securities were not significant.

At December31, 2016, 2015and 2014, gross unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities that have
been in a continuous unrealized loss position were not significant and theCompany does not intend and
does notexpectto be required to sell these securities before the recovery of theiramortized cost.

Contractual maturities of debt securities consisted of the following:

Available-for-sale _ Held-to-maturity
Cecember 31, 2016 (S inmillions) Cost basis Fair value Cost basis
Lass than one year ion ioo —

One to fiveyears 161 161 80

Six to ten years 57 56 _

Fair value

Hi.

Total 318 317 80 86

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Compan/ pledged $91 million and $92 million, respectively, of
available-for-sale marketable securities as collateral for issued letters ofcredit andothersecurity
c.rtangements.

Note 5

Derivative financial instruments

TheCompany is exposed to certain currency, commodity,interest rate and equity risks arising from its
global operating, financing and investing activities. The Company uses derivative instruments to reduce
and manage the economic impact of these exposures.

Currency risk

Due to the global nature of the Company's cperations, many of its subsidiaries are exposed to currency
-isk in their operating activities from entering into transactions in currencies other than their functional

currency. To manage such currency risks, the Company's policies require the subsidiaries to hedge their
foreign currency exposures from binding sa es and purchase contracts denominated in foreign currencies.
For forecasted foreign currency denominate d sales of standard products and the related foreign currency

denominated purchases, the Company's po icy is to hedge up to a maximum of 100 percent of the

forecasted foreign currency denominated e cposures, depending on the length of the forecasted expo

sures. Forecasted exposures greater than li! months are not hedged. Forward foreign exchange contracts

are the main instrument used to protect the Company against the volatility of future cash flows (caused

by changes in exchange rates) of contracted and forecasted sales and purchases denominated in foreign

currencies. In addition, within its treasury operations, the Company primarily uses foreign exchange
swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the currency and timing mismatches arising in
its liquidity management activities.

Commodity risk

Various commodity products are used in the Company's manufacturing activities. Consequently it is
exposed to volatilityin future cash flows ari singfrom changes in commodity prices. Tomanage the price
risk of commodities other than electricity,the Company's policies require that the subsidiaries hedge the
commodity priceriskexposures from bindingcontracts, as well as at least 50 percent (up to a maximum
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of100 percent) of theforecasted commodity exposure over thenext 12 months orlonger (up toa maximum
of18months). Primarily swapcontracts areusedto manage the associated price risks ofcommodities.

Interest rate risk

The Company hasissued bonds at fixed rates. Interest rateswaps areusedto manage the interest rate
risk associated with certain debt and generallysuch swaps are designated as fair value hedges. In
addition,fromtime to time, the Company uses instruments such as interest rate swaps, interest rate
futures, bondfutures or forward rateagreements to manage interestrate risk arising from the Company's
balance sheet structure but does not designate such instruments as hedges.

Equity risk
The Company isexposed to fluctuations in thefair value ofitswarrant appreciation rights (WARs) issued
under its MIP. AWAR gives its holder the right to receive cash equal to the market price ofanequivalent
listed warrant on the date of exercise. Toeliminatesuch risk,the Company has purchasedcash-settled call
options, indexed to theshares oftheCompany, which entitle theCompany to receive amounts equivalent
to its obligations under the outstanding WARs.

Volume of derivative activity
In general, while theCompany's primary objective in its use ofderivatives isto minimize exposures arising
from its business, certain derivatives are designated and qualify for hedge accountingtreatment while
others either are not designated or do not qualify for hedge accounting.

Foreign exchange and interest rate derivatives
Thegross notional amountsof outstandingforeign exchange and interest rate derivatives (whether
designated as hedges or not) were as follows:

Type of derivative Total notional amount!5 at

December 31, ($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Foreign exchange contracts 15,353 16,467 18,564

Embedded foreign exchange derivatives 2,162 2,966 3,013

Interest rate contracts 3,021 4,302 2,242

Derivative commodity contracts

Thefollowing table shows the notionalamounts of outstanding commodityderivatives(whether designated
as hedges or not), on a net basis, to reflect the Company's requirements in the various commodities:

Typeof derivative Unit Total notional amountsat
December 31, 2016 2015 2014
Copper swaps

Aluminum swaps

Nickel swaps

Lead swaps

Zinc swaps

Silver swaps

Crudeoilswaps

Equity derivatives

At December 31,2016,2015 and 2014, the Company held 47 million, 55 million and 61 million cash-settled call
options indexed to ABBLtd shares (conversion ratio 5:1)with a total fair value of $23 million, $13 million and
$33 million, respectively.

Cash flow hedges

Asnoted above,the Company mainly uses forwardforeignexchangecontracts to manage the foreign
exchange risk of its operations, commodity swaps to manage its commodity risks and cash-settled call
options to hedge its WAR liabilities. Where such instruments are designated and qualifyas cash flow
hedges,the effective portionof the changesin theirfairvalue is recorded in"Accumulated other compre
hensive loss"and subsequently reclassified intoearningsin the same line itemand in the same periodas
the underlying hedged transactionaffects earnings. Any ineffectiveness inthe hedge relationship, or
hedgecomponentexcluded from the assessmentof effectiveness, is recognized inearningsduringthe
current period.

metric tonnes 47,425 48,903 46,520

metric tonnes 4,650 5,455 3,846

metric tonnes — 18 -

metric tonnes 15,100 14,625 6,550

metric tonnes 150 225 200

ounces 1,586,395 1,727,255 1,996,845

barrels 121.000 133,500 128,000
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AtDecember31, 2016, 2015and 2014, "Accum jlated other comprehensive loss" includednet unrealized
losses of$1 million, $11 million and $21 million, respectively, netoftax, on derivatives designated ascash
flow hedges. Of theamount at December 31, ,?016, netgains of$2 million areexpected to bereclassified
to earningsin2017. At December 31,2016, the longest maturity of a derivative classified as a cash flow
h edge was 39 months.

In 2016, 2015 and 2014, theamounts ofgains or losses, netoftax, reclassified into earnings due to the
discontinuance ofcash flow hedge accounting and theamount ofineffectiveness in cash flow hedge
relationships directly recognized inearnings werenot significant.

The pre-tax effects ofderivative instruments designated and qualifying ascash flow hedges, on
"Accumulated other comprehensive loss" (OCI) and the Consolidated Income Statements wereas follows:

Gains (losses) recognized in OCI
on derivatives (effective portion)

Gains (losses) reclassified from OCI

into income (effective portion)
(S in millions) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014

Type of derivative Location

Foreign exchange
contracts 2 (11) (42)

Total revenues

Total cost of sales

(11)

10

(36)

11

(9)

8

CDmmodity contracts 4 (9) (7) Total cost of sales (2) (10) (3)
Cash-settled call options 15 (6) (16) SG&A expenses'" 10

7

(4)

(39)

(6)
Total 21 (26) (65) (10)

Theamounts in respect of gains (losses) recognized in income forhedgeineffectiveness and amounts
excluded from effectiveness testing were no-, significant in 2016, 2015and 2014.

Netderivative gains of $6 million and net dei ivative losses of $30 million and $9 million, net of tax, were
reclassifiedfrom "Accumulated other comprehensiveloss" to earnings during 2016, 2015and 2014,
respectively.

Fair value hedges

Toreduceits interest rate exposuie arising primarily from its debt issuanceactivities, the Company uses
interest rate swaps. Where such instruments aredesignated as fairvalue hedges, the changes in the fair
value of these instruments, as well as the changes infairvalue of the riskcomponent of the underlying debt
being hedged, are recorded as offsetting gains and losses in "Interestand other financeexpense".Hedge
ineffectivenessof instruments designated as fairvalue hedges in2016,2015 and 2014, was not significant.

The effect of Interest rate contracts, designated and qualifying as fair value hedges, on the Consolidated
income Statements was as follows:

S in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Gains (losses) recognized in Interest antl other financ; expense:

—on der ivatives designated as fair value hedges (28) 8 84

— on hedged item 30 (4) (83)

Derivatives not designated in hedge relationships

Derivative instruments that are not designated as hedges or do not qualify as either cash flow or fair value

hedges, are economic hedges used for risk management purposes. Gains and losses from changes in the

fair values of such derivatives are recognized in the same line in the income statement as the economically

hedged transaction.

Furthermore, under certain circumstances, :he Company is required to split and account separately for
foreign currency derivatives that are embecded within certain binding sales or purchase contracts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the subsidiary and the counterparty.
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The gains (losses) recognized intheConsolidated Income Statements onderivatives notdesignated in
hedging relationships were as follows:

Type of derivative not designated as a hedge
($ in millions)

Gains (losses) recognized in income

Location 2016 2015 2014

Foreign exchange contracts Total revenues (206) (216) (533)

Total cost of sales (56) 16 19

SG&A expenses'" 8 13 2

Non-order related research

and development (2) (1) —

Other income (expense), net 22 — —

Interest and other finance expense (34) 287 (260)

Embedded foreign exchange contracts Total revenues (5) 127 149

Total cost of sales (5) (25) (27)

SG&A expenses'" (2) (5) —

Commodity contracts Total cost of sales 42 (61) (28)

Other Interest and other finance expense 4 (1) (1)

Total (234) 134 (679)

The fair values of derivatives included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows:

December 31,2016 ($ in millions)

Foreign exchange contracts

Commodity contracts

Interest rate contracts

Cash-settled call options

Total

inMM'M.'iil',

Foreign exchange contracts

Commodity contracts

Cross-currency interest rate swaps

Cash-settled call options

Derivative assets

Current in Non-current in

"Other current "Other non-current

assets" assets"

22

169

29

62

9

71

29

2

2

1

Derivative liabilities

Current in Non-current in

"Other current "Other non-current

liabilities" liabilities-

257

6

Embedded foreign exchange derivatives 58 21 35 18

Total 256 55 298 96

Total fair value 278 126 304 101

December 31,2015 ($ in millions)

Foreign exchange contracts

Commodity contracts

Interest rate contracts

Cash-settled call options

Total

:)<|l.

Foreign exchange contracts

Commodity contracts

Cross-currency interest rate swaps

Embedded foreign exchange derivatives

Total

Total fair value

Derivative assets

Current in Non-current in

"Other current "Other non-current

assets" assets"

29

172

2

94

268

297

10

86

5

101

32

53

85

186

Derivative liabilities

Current in Non-current in

"Other current "Other non-current

liabilities" liabilities"

237

29

41

307

318

16

16

81

9

1

27

118

134
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Close-out nettingagreementsprovide for the termination, valuation and net settlementof someor all
outstanding transactions between two counterparties ontheoccurrence ofone ormore pre-defined
trigger events.

Although theCompany isparty toclose-out netting agreements with most derivative counterparties, the
fair values in thetables above and intheConsolidated Balance Sheets at December 31,2016 and 2015, have
been presented on a gross basis.

The Company's nettingagreements andothersimilar arrangements allow net settlementsundercertain
conditions. At December 31,2016 and 2015, information related to these offsetting arrangements was
as follows:

December 31,2016 ($ in millions)

Type of agreement or
similar arrangement

Gross amount

of recognized
assets

Derivative liabilities

eligible for set-off in
case of default

Cash

collateral

received

Non-cash

collateral

received

Net asset

exposure

Derivatives

Reverse repurchase agreements

325

268

(190)
—

(268)

135

Total 593 (190) — (268) 135

December 31,2016 ($ in millions)

Type of agreement or
similar arrangement

Gross amount

of recognized
liabilities

Derivative liabilities

eligible for set-off in
case of default

Cash

collateral

pledged

Non-cash

collateral

pledged
Net liability

exposure

Derivatives 352 (190) — 162
Total 352 (190) — 162

December 31,2015 ($ in millions)

Type of agreement or
similar arrangement

Gross amount

of recognized
assets

Derivative liabilities

eligible for set-off in
case of default

Cash

collateral

received

Non-cash

collateral

received

Net asset

exposure

Derivatives

Reverse repurchase agreements

336

224

(215)
—

(224)

121

Total 560 (215) — (224) 121

December 31,2015 ($ in millions)

Type of agreement or
similar arrangement

Gross amount

of recognized
liabilities

Derivative liabilities

eligible for set-off in
case of default

Cash

collateral

pledged

Non-cash

collateral

pledged
Net liability

exposure

Derivatives 384 (215) (3) — 166

Total 384 (215) (3) — 166
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Note 6

Fair values

Recurring fair value measures
The fair values of financial assets and liabilitiesmeasured at fair valueon a recurring basis were as follows:

December 31,2016 ($ in millions)

Assets

Available-for-sale securities in "Marketable securities and short-term investments":

Equity securities

Debt securities — U.S.government obligations

Debt securities — Other government obligations

Debt securities — Corporate

Derivative assets — current in "Other current assets"

Derivative assets —non-current in"Othernon-current assets"

Total

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities — current in "Other current liabilities"

Derivative liabilities — non-current in "Other non-current liabilities"

Total

December 3L 2015 ($ in millions)

Assets

Available-for-sale securities in "Cash and equivalents":

Debt securities — Corporate

Available-for-sale securities in "Marketable securities and short-term investments":

Equity securities

Debt securities — U.S. government obligations

Debt securities — Other government obligations

Debt securities — Corporate

Derivative assets — current in "Other current assets"

Derivative assets — non-current in "Other non-current assets"

Total

Liabilities

Derivative liabilities — current in "Other current liabilities"

Derivative liabilities — non-current in "Other non-current liabilities"

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value

220

541 —
541

— — 220

2 — 2

95 — 95

278 —
278

126 —
126

220 1,042 1,262

— 304

— 101

— 405

304

101

405

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value

— 667

121 —

— 2

— 508

1 296

— 186

122 1,670

3 315

— 134

449

11

667

121

2

508

297

186

1,792

318

134

452

The Company uses the following methods and assumptions in estimating fair values of financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Available-fur-sale sei unties in Cash and t.-au'valents" and 'Marketable securities and short-term

invest mem s" if quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets are available, these are

considered Level1 inputs; however, when markets are not active, these inputs are considered Level2. If
such quoted market prices are not available, fair value is determined using market prices for similar
assets or present value techniques, applying an appropriate risk-free interest rate adjusted for nonper
formance risk. The inputs used in present value techniques are observable and fall into the Level 2
category.

Der i. at iv es The fair values of derivative instruments are determined using quoted prices of identical
instruments from an active market, if available (Level 1 inputs). Ifquoted prices are not available, price
quotes for similar instruments, appropriately adjusted, or present value techniques, based on available
marketdata, or option pricing models are used.Cash-settled call options hedging the Company's WAR
liability are valued based on bidpricesof the equivalent listedwarrant. Thefairvalues obtainedusing
pricequotes forsimilar instrumentsor valuation techniques representa Level 2input unless significant
unobservable inputs are used.
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Non-recurring fair value measures

There werenosignificant non-recurring fairvalue measurements during 2016 and 2015.

Disclosure about financial instruments carried on a cost basis

The fair values of financial instruments carried on a cost basis were as follows:

December 31,2016 ($ in millions) Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value
Assets

Cash and equivalents (excluding available-for-sale
securities with original maturities up to 3 months):

Cash

Time deposits

Marketable securities and short-term investments
(excluding available-for-sale securities):

Time deposits

Receivablesunder reverse repurchase agreements
Other short-term investments

Other non-current assets:

Loans granted

Held-to-maturity securities

Restricted cash and cash deposits

Liabilities

Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt
(excluding capital lease obligations)

Long-termdebt (excludingcapital lease obligations)
Non-current deposit liabilities in "Other non-current
liabilities"

December 31,2015 ($ in millions)

Assets

Cash and equivalents (excluding available-for-sale
securities with original maturities up to 3 months):

Cash

Time deposits

Marketable securities and short-term investments

(excluding available-for-sale securities):

Time deposits

Receivables under reverse repurchase agreements

Other short-term investments

Other non-current assets:

Loans granted

Held-to-maturity securities

Restricted cash and cash deposits

Liabilities

Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt
(excluding capital lease obligations)

Long-term debt (excluding capital lease obligations)

Non-current deposit liabilities in "Other non-current
liabilities"

1,704 1,704 —

1,940
—

1,940

824 __ 824

268 — 268

3 3
—

30 31

80 — 86

91 59 42

980

5,709

106

856

5,208

124

784

— 124

1,704

1,940

824

268

3

31

86

101

980

5,992

124

Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value

1,837 1,837
—

2,717
—

2,717

104 104

224 — 224

7 7
—

29 — 30

99 — 110

176 55 138

1,427

5,889

215

614

5,307

817

751

— 244

1,837

2,717

104

224

7

30

110

193

1,431

6,058

244

The Company uses the following methods and assumptions in estimating fair values of financial instruments
carried on a cost basis:

Cash and equivalents (excluding availaok-fnr-sale securities with original maturities up to 3 months),
and Marketable securities and shott-tprm investments (excluding available-for-sale securities):

The carrying amounts approximate the fair values as the items are short-term in nature.

Other non-current assets: Includes (i) loans granted whose fair values are based on the carrying
amount adjusted using a present valuetechnique to reflecta premiumor discount based on current
market interest rates (Level 2 inputs), (ii)held-to-maturity securities (see Note 4) whose fair values are
based on quoted market prices in inactivemarkets (Level 2 inputs), (iii) restricted cash whose fair
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valuesapproximatethe carrying amounts (Level 1 inputs)and restricted cash deposits pledgedin
respectof certain non-current depositliabilities whose fair values aredetermined using a discounted
cash flow methodology based on current market interest rates (Level 2 inputs).

Short term debt and ai"<=ni maturities f lunu-s-in rj'-ht i.j-., lucnnq capital lease obligations):

Short-term debt includes commercial paper, bank borrowings and overdrafts. The carrying amounts
of short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt, excluding capital lease obligations,
approximate their fair values.

Lono term debt (e ciudiui <apitai lease obligating Fairvalues of bonds are determined using quoted
market prices (Level l inputs), if available. For bondswithoutavailable quoted market pricesand
otherlong-term debt,the fair values aredetermined using a discounted cashflow methodology based
upon borrowing ratesof similar debt instruments andreflecting appropriate adjustments for
non-performance risk (Level 2 inputs).

fJon-cur rent deposit liabilities in"Other non-current liabilities": Thefairvaluesof non-currentdeposit
liabilities are determined usinga discounted cash flow methodologybased on risk-adjustedinterest
rates (Level 2 inputs).

Note 7

Receivables, net

"Receivables, net" consisted of the following:

December 31, ($ in millions) 2016 2015

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Allowance

7,293

587

(314)

7,197

665

(258)

7,566 7,604

v.Mi'.llle; re.. ,.|.vit;l,.v net

Costs and estimated profits in excess of billings

Advance payments consumed

3,058

(928)

3,385

(928)

2,130 2,457

Total 9,696 10,061

"Trade receivables" in the table above includes contractual retention amounts billed to customers of

$463 million and $545 million at December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively. Management expects that the
substantial majority of related contracts will be completed and the substantial majority of the billed
amounts retained by the customer will be collected. Of the retention amounts outstanding at December 31,
2016,65 percent and 21 percent are expected to be collected in 2017 and 2018, respectively.

"Other receivables" in the table above consists of value added tax, claims, rental deposits and other
non-trade receivables.

"Costs and estimated profits in excess of billings" in the table above represents revenues earned and
recognized for contracts under the percentage-of-completion or completed-contract method of accoun
ting. Management expects that the majorityof the amounts will be collected within one year of the
respective balance sheet date.

The reconciliation of changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows:

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014
Balance at January 1,

Additions

Deductions

Exchange rate differences

Balance at December 31,

258 279 317

163 118 103

(96) (113) (118)

(11) (26) (23)

314 258 279
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Note 8

Inventories, net

"Inventories, net" consisted of the following:

December 31, ($inmillions) 2016 2015
1.692 1,793Raw materials

Work inprocess ^326 1574
Finished goods 1369 j 442
Advances to suppliers 14g 18g

4,536 4,997
Advance payments consumed /J89) (240)
I2*2L . 4,347 4,757

"Work inprocess" inthe tableabove contains inventoried costs relating to long-term contracts of
$212 million and $411 million at December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively. "Advance payments consumed"
inthe tableabove relates to contractual advances received from customers onwork inprocess.

Note 9

Other non-current assets

"Other non-current assets" consisted of the following:

December 31. ($inmillions) ^ 2016 2015
Pledged financial assets

Derivatives (including embedded derivatives) (see Note 5)
Investments

Restricted cash

Other

112 220

126 186

57 58

59 55

178 124

Total 532 643

TheCompany entered into structured leasingtransactions with U.S. investorspriorto 1999.Atthe
inception of the leasing arrangements the Companyplacedcertain amounts in restricted cash deposits
and held-to-maturity debt securities. These amounts, included as "Pledged financial assets" in the table
above, are pledged as security for certain outstanding deposit liabilities included in "Other non-current
liabilities" (see Note 13)and the funds received upon maturity of the respective pledged financial assets
willonly be available to the Company for repayment of these obligations.

"Investments" represents shares and other equity investments carried at cost.

Note 10

Property, plant and equipment, net

"Property, plant and equipment, net" consisted of the following:

December 31, ($ in millions) 2016 2015

Land and buildings

Machinery and equipment

Construction in progress

3,786

7,368

515

4,003

7,554

559

11,669 12,116

Accumulated depreciation (6,926) (6,840)

Total 4,743 5,276
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Assetsundercapitalleasesincluded in"Property, plantand equipment, net"wereas follows:

December 31, ($ in millions)

Land and buildings

Machinery and equipment

Accumulated depreciation

Total

2016 2015

120 149

47 53

167 202

(82) (U32
85 89

In 2016,2015 and 2014, depreciation, including depreciation ofassetsunder capital leases, was $767 million,
$764 million and $851 million, respectively.

Note 11

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Effective January 1,2016, theCompany reorganized its operating segments with theaim ofdelivering
more customer valueina better, morefocused wayfromits combined powerand automation offering.
The new Electrification Products segment includesthe business of the former Low Voltage Products
segment and theMedium Voltage Products business from theformer Power Products segment. The
Process Automation segmenthas been expanded to include the Distributed Control Systems business
from the former Power Systems segment, while the remaining businesses of the former Power Products
and Power Systems segmentswere combined to form the new Power Grids segment.There were no
significant changes to the Discrete Automation andMotion segment. The table below hasbeen reclassi
fied to reflect this reorganization.

Changes in "Goodwill" were as follows:

Discrete

Electrification Automation Process Power Corporate

($inmillions) Products and Motion Automation Grids and Other Total
Costat January 1,2015 2,970 3,766 1,546 1,748 41 10,071

Accumulated impairment charges — — — — (^8) (18)
Balance atJanuary 1,2015 2JJ70 3J66 |L546 1J48 23 10,053
Goodwill acquiredduringthe year 4 24 6 — — 34

Goodwill allocated to disposals - - —
(23) (1) (24)

Exchange rate differences and other (203) (92) (34) (62) (1) (392)

Balance at December 31,2015 2,771 3,698 1,518 1,663 21 9,671

Goodwill acquired during the year —
12

- - -
12

Goodwill allocated to assets held for sale — — —
(105)

—
(105)

Exchange rate differences and other (4) (49) (13) (11) —
(77)

Balance at December 31,2016 2,767 3,661 1,505 1,547 21 9,501

In 2016, goodwill allocated to the Cables business, within the Power Grids operating segment, was
transferred to "Assets held for sale", see Note 3 for details.

In 2015, there were no significant acquisitions or divestments.
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Intangible assets other than goodwillconsisted of the following:

2016 2015

December 31, ($ in millions)

Gross

carrying
amount

Accumulated

amortization

Net carrying
amount

Gross

carrying
amount

Accumulated

amortization

Net carrying
amount

Capitalized software for internal use

Capitalized software for sale

It t.inqiblej othen th.tn v>ttw<»n •.

Customer-related

Technology-related

Marked ng-rela ted

Other

712

409

2,500

755

291

34

(596)

(365)

(904)

(660)

(159)

(21)

116

44

1,596

95

132

13

692

401

2,517

790

308

67

(567)

(357)

(767)

(585)

(140)

(22)

(2,438)

125

44

1,750

205

168

45

Total 4,701 (2.705) 1,996 4,775 2,337

Additions to intangible assets other than goodwill consisted of the following:

($ in millions)
2016 2015

Capitalized software for internal use

Capitalized software for sale

It tangibles other than software

Technology-related

39

18

1

63

15

33

Total 58 111

There were nosignificant intangible assets acquired inbusiness combinations during 2016 and 2015.

Amortization expenseof intangibleassets other than goodwill consistedof the following:

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014
Capitalized software for internal use 57 60 72

Capitalized software for sale 25 21 20

Intangibles otherthansoftware 287 315 362
Total 369 396 454

In2016,2015and 2014,impairment charges on intangible assets other than goodwillwere not significant.

At December 31,2016, future amortization expense of intangible assets other than goodwill is estimated
to be:

(Sinmillions)
2017 284

2018 233

2019 189

2020 170

2021 145

Thereafter 975
Total 1,996
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Note 12

Debt

The Company's total debtat December 31, 2016 and 2015, amounted to $6,803 million and $7,439 million,
respectively.

Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt
The Company's "Short-term debt and current maturities oflong-term debt" consisted ofthefollowing:

December 31, ($ in millions) 2016 2015

Short-term debt (weighted-average interest rate of3.3 %and 4.2 %, respectively) 135 278
Current maturities of long-term debt
(weighted-average nominal interest rate of2.8 %and 2.0 %, respectively) 8J58 UJ6
Tolal I003 ^

Short-term debtprimarily represents short-term loans from various banks and issued commercial paper.

At December 31,2016, the Company hadinplace twocommercial paperprograms: a $2billion Euro-
commercial paper program for the issuance ofcommercial paper in avariety ofcurrencies, and a $2 billion
commercial paper program for theprivate placement ofU.S. dollar denominated commercial paper in the
United States.AtDecember 31,2016 and 2015, $57million and $132 million, respectively, wasoutstanding
under the $2 billion program in the United States.

In addition, during 2016, theCompany exercised itsoption to further extend thematurity ofits$2 billion
multicurrency revolving creditfacility to 2021. The facility is forgeneral corporate purposes. Interest costson
drawings under thefacility are LIBOR orEURIBOR (depending on thecurrency ofthedrawings) plus a margin
of0.20 percent, while commitment fees (payable ontheunused portion ofthefacility) amount to 35percent
ofthemargin, which represents commitment fees of0.07 percent per annum. Utilization fees, payable on
drawings, amountto 0.075 percent perannum ondrawings upto one-third of the facility, 0.15 percent per
annum ondrawings inexcess ofone-third but lessthanorequal to two-thirds of the facility, or0.30 percent
perannum ondrawings over two-thirds ofthefacility. No amount was drawn at December 31,2016 and 2015.
Thefacility containscross-default clauses whereby aneventof defaultwould occurifthe Company were to
default on indebtedness as defined in the facility, at or above a specified threshold.

Long-term debt
The Company utilizes derivative instruments to modify the interestcharacteristics of its long-term debt.
In particular, theCompany usesinterest rateswaps to effectively convert certain fixed-rate long-term debt
intofloating rate obligations. Thecarrying value of debt, designatedas beinghedgedbyfairvalue hedges,
is adjusted for changes in the fairvalue of the riskcomponentof the debt beinghedged.

The following table summarizes the Company'slong-term debt considering the effect of interest rate
swaps. Consequently, a fixed-rate debt subject to a fixed-to-floatinginterest rate swap is includedas
a floating rate debt in the table below:

2016 2015

December 31. ($ in millions, except % data) Balance Nominal rate Effective rate Balance Nominal rate Effective rate

Floating rate

Fixed rate

1,745

4,923

2.0%

2.9%

1.3%

2.9%

2,285

4,876

2.7%

3.2%

0.8%

3.2%

6,668 7,161

Current portion of long-term debt (868) 2.8% 2.4% (1,176) 2.0% 1.4%

Total 5,800 5,985
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At December 31,2016, theprincipal amounts oflong-term debtrepayable (excluding capital lease obligations)
at maturity were as follows:

($ in millions)

2017
843

2018
379

2019
1,321

2020
4

2021
1,251

Thereafter
2,736

Total 6,534

Details of the Company's outstanding bonds were as; follows:

2016 2015

Nominal Carrying Nominal Carrvina
December 31, (in millions) outstanding value'1' outstanding value"'
B;rvis,

2.5% USD Notes, due 2016 USD 600 $ 599

1.25% CHF Bonds, due 2016
— CHF 500 $ 510

. 1.625% USD Notes, due 2017 USD 500 $ 500 USD 500 $ 499

4.25% AUD Notes, due 2017 AUD 400 $ 291 AUD 400 $ 297

1.50% CHF Bonds, due 2018 CHF 350 $ 342 CHF 350 $ 352

2.625% EUR Instruments, due 2019 EUR 1,250 $ 1,311 EUR 1,250 $ 1,363
4.0% USD Notes, due 2021 USD 650 $ 643 USD 650 $ 641

2.25% CHF Bonds, due 2021 CHF 350 $ 368 CHF 350 $ 383

5.625% USD Notes, due 2021 USD 250 $ 274 USD 250 $ 279

2.875% USD Notes, due 2022 USD 1,250 $ 1,261 USD 1,250 $ 1,275

0.625% EUR Notes, due 2023 EUR 700 $ 732

4.375% USD Notes, due 2042 USD 750 $ 722 USD 750 $

$

722

Total $ 6,444 6,920

During 2016, the Company repaidat maturity the 2.5% USD Notes,due 2016, and the 1.25% CHF Bonds,
due 2016. TheCompany had entered into interest rate swaps to hedgeits interest obligation on the 1.25%
CHF Bonds, due 2016. Afterconsidering the impact of suchswaps,these bonds effectively became
floating rate Swissfrancobligationsand consequently havebeenshownas floating rate debt at December
31,2015, in the table of long-term debt above.

The4.0%USD Notes,due 2021, payinterest semi-annually inarrears, at a fixedannual rate of 4.0 percent,
respectively. The Companymayredeem these notes prior to maturity,in wholeor in part, at the greater of
(i)100 percent of the principalamount of the notes to be redeemed and (ii)the sum of the present values
of remainingscheduled payments of principaland interest (excluding interest accrued to the redemption
date) discounted to the redemption date at a rate defined in the note terms, plus interest accrued at the
redemption date.

The 2.25% CHF Bonds, due 2021, pay interest annually in arrears, at a fixed annual rate of 2.25 percent,
respectively. The Company has the option to redeem the bonds prior to maturity, in whole, at par plus
accrued interest, if 85 percent of the aggregate principal amount of the bonds has been redeemed or
purchased and cancelled. The Company entered into interest rate swaps to hedge its interest obligations
on these bonds. After considering the impact of such swaps, these bonds effectively became floating rate
Swiss franc obligations and consequently have been shown as floating rate debt in the table of long-term
debt above.

The 1.50% CHF Bonds, due 2018, pay interest annually in arrears at a fixed annual rate of 1.5 percent. The
Company has the option to redeem the bonds prior to maturity, in whole, at par plus accrued interest, if
85 percent of the aggregate principal amount of the bonds has been redeemed or purchased and cancelled.

The 2.625% EUR Instruments, due 2019, pay interest annually in arrears at a fixed rate of 2.625 percent
per annum.
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The1.625% USD Notes,due 2017, payinterest semi-annually inarrears at a fixedannualrate of1.625 per
cent. The2.875% USD Notes,due 2022, payinterest semi-annually in arrears at a fixedannual rate of
2.875 percent. The 4.375% USD Notes, due2042, pay interest semi-annually inarrears at a fixed annual rate
of4.375 percent. The Company may redeem any ofthese notesprior to maturity, inwhole or inpart,at the
greater of(i) 100 percent oftheprincipal amount ofthenotes to beredeemed and (ii) thesum ofthe
present values of remaining scheduled payments ofprincipal andinterest (excluding interest accrued to
the redemption date)discounted to the redemption date at a ratedefined inthe noteterms,plus interest
accrued at the redemption date.These notes, registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission,
were issued byABB Finance (USA) Inc., a 100 percent owned finance subsidiary, andwere fully and
unconditionally guaranteed byABB Ltd. There arenosignificant restrictions onthe ability ofthe parent
company to obtain funds from its subsidiaries by dividend or loan. In reliance onRule 3-10 of
Regulation S-X, theseparate financial statements ofABB Finance (USA) Inc. arenotprovided. The
Company hasentered intointerest rateswaps for anaggregate nominal amount of$1,050 million to
partially hedge its interest obligations onthe2.875% USD Notes, due2022. After considering theimpact
ofsuch swaps, $1,050 million oftheoutstanding principal isshown as floating ratedebt in thetable of
long-term debt above.

The5.625% USD Notes,due 2021, payinterest semi-annually inarrears at a fixedannualrate of 5.625 per
cent.TheCompany has the optionto redeem the notes priorto maturityat the greaterof (i) 100percent
of the principal amount of the notesto beredeemed, and(ii) the sumof the presentvalues of remaining
scheduled payments of principal andinterest(excluding interestaccrued to the redemption date)
discounted to the redemption date at a rate defined in the note terms, plus interest accrued at the
redemption date.

The 4.25%AUD Notes, due 2017, payfixed interest of 4.25 percent semi-annuallyin arrears. The Company
entered into interest rate swaps to hedge its interest obligationson these bonds. Afterconsideringthe
impact of such swaps, these bonds effectively becamefloating rate Australian dollarobligationsand
consequently have been shown as floating rate debt in the table of long-term debt above.

In May 2016,the Companyissued notes with an aggregate principalof EUR 700 million, due 2023.The
notes pay interest annuallyin arrears at a fixed rate of 0.625 percent per annum. The Company recorded
net proceeds of EUR 697 million (equivalent to approximately $807 millionon date of issuance).

The Company's bonds contain cross-default clauses which would allow the bondholders to demand
repayment if the Company were to default on any borrowing at or above a specified threshold.
Furthermore, all such bonds constitute unsecured obligations of the Company and rank pari passu with
other debt obligations.

In addition to the bonds described above, included in long-term debt at December 31,2016 and 2015, are

capital lease obligations, bank borrowings of subsidiaries and other long-term debt, none of which is
individually significant.

Note 13

Other provisions, other current liabilities

and other non-current liabilities

"Other Provisions" consisted of the following:

December 31. ($inmillions) 2016 2015
Contract-related provisions

Restructuring and restructuring-related provisions

Provisionsfor contractual penalties and complianceand litigation matters

Provision for insurance-related reserves

Other

Total 1,765 1,920

673 724

577 538

210 220

153 190

152 248
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"Other current liabilities"consisted of the following:

D 9cember 31, (S in millions)

Employee-related liabilities

Accrued expenses

Non-trade payables

Derivative liabilities (see Note 5)

Other tax liabilities

Income taxes payable

Accrued customer rebates

Deferred income

Accrued interest

Pension and other employee benefits (see Note 17)

Other

Total

"Other non-current liabilities" consisted of the following:

1,670 1,709

413 457

394 319

304 318

301 271

226 240

206 161

147 156

67 67

59 66

149 53

3,936 3,817

December 31, (S inmillions) 2016
Income tax related liabilities

Non-current deposit liabilities (see Note 9)

Derivative liabilities (see Note 5)

Deferred income

Employee-related liabilities

Environmental provisions

Provisions for contractual penalties and compliance ar d litigation matters

Other

Total 1,604 1,650

2015

923 851

106 215

101 134

80 85

66 66

62 86

27 31

239 182

Note 14

Leases

"he Company's lease obligations primarily rel ite to real estate and office equipment. Rent expense was
S459million, $497 million and $558 million in ,!016,2015 and 2014, respectively. Sublease income receivedby
the Company on leased assets was $13 million, $13 million and $17million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

At December 31,2016, future net minimum loase payments for operating leases, having initial or remaining
non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one /ear, consisted of the following:

<$ in millions)

,?017 382

!018 304

2019 248

2020 205

2021 166

Thereafter 243

1,548

Sublease income (24)

Total 1,524
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AtDecember 31,2016, the future net minimum lease paymentsfor capital leases and the present valueof
the net minimum lease payments consisted of the following:

($ in millions)

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

Thereafter 5?
177Total minimum lease payments

Less amount representing estimated executory costs included intotal minimum lease payments (1)
176Net minimum lease payments

Less amount representing interest J5~i
114Present value of minimum lease payments

Minimum lease payments have notbeen reduced by minimum sublease rentals dueinthefuture under
non-cancelable subleases. Such minimumsublease rentals were not significant. The present value of
minimum leasepayments is included in"Short-term debt andcurrent maturities of long-term debt"or
"Long-term debt" in the Consolidated BalanceSheets.

Note 15

Commitments and contingencies

Contingencies — Regulatory, Compliance and Legal
Antitrust

InApril 2014,the EuropeanCommission announced its decisionregardingits investigationof anticompetitive
practices in the cables industry and granted the Company fullimmunity from fines under the European
Commission's leniency program. In December 2013, the Company agreed with the BrazilianAntitrust
Authority (CADE) to settle its ongoing investigation into the Company's involvement in anticompetitive
practices in the cables industry and the Company agreed to pay a fine of approximately 1.5 million
Brazilian reals (equivalent to approximately $1 million on date of payment).

In Brazil, the Company's Gas Insulated Switchgear business is under investigation by the CADEfor alleged
anticompetitive practices. In addition, the CADEhas opened an investigation into certain other power
businesses of the Company, including flexible alternating current transmission systems (FACTS)and
power transformers. With respect to these matters, management is cooperating fully with the authorities.
An informed judgment about the outcome of these investigations or the amount of potential loss or range
of loss for the Company, if any, relating to these investigations cannot be made at this stage.

Suspect payments

As a result of an internal investigation, the Company self-reported to the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) and the Department of Justice (DoJ) in the United States as well as to the Serious Fraud

Office (SFO) in the United Kingdom concerning certain of its past dealings with Unaoiland its subsidiaries,
including alleged improper payments made by these entities to third parties. The SFO has commenced an
investigation into this matter. The Company is cooperating fullywith the authorities. At this time, it is not
possible for the Company to make an informed judgment about the outcome of these matters.

General

Inaddition, the Companyis aware of proceedings, or the threat of proceedings, against it and others in
respect of privateclaimsbycustomersand other third parties with regard to certainactual or alleged
anticompetitivepractices.Also, the Company is subject to other various legalproceedings, investigations,
and claimsthat havenot yet been resolved. With respect to the above-mentioned regulatory matters and
commercial litigation contingencies, the Company will bear the costs of the continuing investigations and
any related legal proceedings.
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Liabilities recognized

At December 31,2016 and 2015, the Company hadaggregateliabilities of $150 million and $160 million,
respectively, included in"Other provisions" and "Other non-current liabilities", for theabove regulatory,
compliance andlegal contingencies, andnone oftheindividual liabilities recognized was significant. As it
isnot possible to make aninformed judgment ontheoutcome ofcertain matters and asit isnotpossible,
based oninformation currently available to management, toestimate themaximum potential liability on
other matters, there could be material adverseoutcomesbeyond the amountsaccrued.

Guarantees

General

The following table provides quantitative dataregarding theCompany's third-party guarantees. The
maximum potential payments represent a "worst-case scenario", and donotreflect management's
expected outcomes.

Maximum potential payments
December 31, ($inmillions) 2016 2015
Performance guarantees J93
Financial guarantees gg

Indemnification guarantees 71
Total

209

77

50
333 336

The carrying amount of liabilities recorded in theConsolidated Balance Sheets reflects theCompany's
bestestimate offuture payments, which it may incur as partoffulfilling itsguarantee obligations. In
respect of the aboveguarantees, the carrying amounts of liabilities at December 31,2016 and 2015, were
not significant.

TheCompanyis party to various guarantees providingfinancial or performance assurances to certain
third parties. Theseguarantees, which havevarious maturitiesup to 2020, mainly consist of performance
guarantees whereby (i)the Companyguarantees the performanceof a third party's product or service
accordingto the terms of a contract and (ii) as memberof a consortiumthat includesthird parties, the
Companyguarantees not onlyits own performance but also the workof third parties. Suchguarantees
mayinclude guarantees that a project will be completed within a specified time. Ifthe third party does not
fulfill the obligation,the Company will compensate the guaranteed party in cash or in kind. Theoriginal
maturity dates for the majority of these performance guarantees range from one to six years.

Commercial commitments

Inaddition, in the normal course of bidding for and executing certain projects, the Company has entered
into standby letters of credit, bid/performance bonds and surety bonds (collectively"performance
bonds") with various financial institutions. Customers can draw on such performance bonds in the event
that the Company does not fulfill its contractual obligations. The Company would then have an obligation
to reimburse the financial institution for amounts paid under the performance bonds. At December 31,
2016 and 2015, the total outstanding performance bonds aggregated to $7.9 billion and $9.5 billion,
respectively. There have been no significant amounts reimbursed to financial institutions under these
types of arrangements in 2016,2015 and 2014.

Product and order-related contingencies

The Company calculates its provision for product warranties based on historical claims experience and
specific review of certain contracts.

The reconciliation of the "Provisions for warranties", including guarantees of product performance, was

as follows:

($ In millions) 2016 2015 2014
Balance at January 1,

Net change in warranties due to acquisitions and divestments

Claims paid in cash or in kind

Net increasein provisionforchanges inestimates, warrantiesissued and warrantiesexpired

Exchange ratedifferences
Balance at December 31, U42 1,089 1,148

1,089 1,148 1,362

— — 11

(329) (357) (319)

424 377 224

(42) (79) (130)
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During 2016, the Company determined that the provision forproduct warranties inits solarbusiness,
acquired in2013 as partofthe purchase ofPower-One, was nolonger sufficient to cover expected
warranty costsintheremaining warranty period. Due to higher thanoriginally expected product failure
rates forcertainsolarinverters designed and manufactured byPower-One, a substantial portion of which
relates to products which were delivered to customers prior to the acquisition date, the previously
estimated productwarranty provision wasincreased bya total of $151 million duringthe year. The
corresponding increases were included in Cost ofsales ofproducts and resulted in a decrease in basic and
diluted earnings pershare of$0.06 and$0.05, respectively, for2016. As $131 million relates to products
which were soldprior to theacquisition date thesecosts have beenexcluded from the Company's
measure ofsegment profit, Operational EBITA (see Note 23). This increase inwarranty provision isbased
upon the information presently available andtherefore is subject to change inthe future.

The information for 2015contained in the table above has been adjusted to correct a classification
difference betweenClaims paidincashand kind and Neteffectof changesinestimates,warranties
issued and warranties expired.

Related party transactions
The Company conducts business with certain companies where members of the Company's Board of
Directors or ExecutiveCommittee act, or in recent years have acted, as directors or senior executives.
The Company's Board of Directors hasdetermined that the Company's business relationships with
those companies do not constitute material businessrelationships. This determination wasmadein
accordancewith the Company's relatedparty transaction policy which was preparedbased on the Swiss
Codeof Best Practice and the independence criteria set forth in the corporate governance rulesof the
New York Stock Exchange.

Note 16

Taxes

"Provision for taxes" consisted of the following:

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Current taxes

Deferred taxes

925

(144)

1,005

(217)

1,130

72

Tax expense from continuing operations 781 788 1,202

Tax expense (benefit) from discontinued operations (4) (2) 1

Tax expense from continuing operations is reconciled below from the Company's weighted-average global
tax rate (rather than from the Swiss domestic statutory tax rate) as the parent company of the ABB Group,
ABB Ltd, is domiciled in Switzerland and income generated in jurisdictions outside of Switzerland (hereafter
"foreign jurisdictions") which has already been subject to corporate income tax in those foreign jurisdictions
is, to a large extent, tax exempt in Switzerland. There is no requirement in Switzerland for any parent
company of a group to file a tax return of the consolidated group determining domestic and foreign
pre-tax income. As the Company's consolidated income from continuing operations is predominantly

earned outside of Switzerland, corporate income tax in foreign jurisdictions largely determines the
weighted-average global tax rate of the Company.
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The reconciliation of "Tax expense from continuing operations" at the weighted-average tax rate to the
effective tax rate is as follows:

($ inmillions, except %data) 2016 2015 2014
Income from continuing operations before taxes

Weighted-average global tax rate

Income taxes at weighted-average tax rate

Items taxed at rates other than the weighted-average tax rate
Impact of non-deductible goodwill allocated to divested businesses

Changes in valuation allowance, net

Effects of changes in tax laws and enacted tax rates

Non-deductible expenses, excluding goodwill
Other, net

2,799 2,840 3,896

21.2% 21.8% 23.8%

594 619 929

27 (36) 146

— 9 77

(17) 57 52

42
— (52)

86 52 45

49 87 5

Tax expense from continuing operations 78i 788 1202

Effective taxratefortheyear 27.9 % 27.7% 30.9%

In 2015, the benefit reported in"Items taxed at ratesotherthan theweighted-average taxrate" predomi
nantly included $50million related to taxcreditsarising from research anddevelopment activities. In 2014
theexpense reported in "Items taxed at rates other than theweighted-average taxrate" predominantly
related to tax credits arising in foreign jurisdictions for whichthe technicalmerits did not allowa benefit
to be taken.

In2016,2015 and 2014, "Changes in valuation allowance, net" included reductions in valuation allowances
recorded incertain jurisdictions where the Company determined that it wasmorelikely than not that such
deferred taxassets (recognized fornetoperating losses andtemporary differences inthosejurisdictions)
wouldbe realized, as well as increases in the valuation allowance incertain other jurisdictions.In2015, the
"Changes in valuation allowance, net" included an expense of $21millionrelated to certain of the
Company'soperations in Asiaand in 2014, the "Changesin valuationallowance, net" includedan expense
of $31million related to certain of the Company'soperations in South America.

In2016the "Effects of change in tax laws and enacted tax rates" included an expense of $16million related
to certain of the Company's operations in Europe. In2014,the "Effects of change in tax laws and enacted
tax rates" included a benefit of $62 million related to enacted changes in double tax treaties.

In2016,2015and 2014,"Non-deductible expenses" of $86 million, of $52 million and $45 million, respectively,
included expenses in relation to items that were deducted for financial accounting purposes, but were not
tax deductible, such as interest expense, local taxes on productive activities, disallowed meals and
entertainment expenses and other similar items.

In2016,"Other, net" of $49 millionincluded a net charge of $50 milliondue to the interpretation of tax law
and double tax treaty agreements by competent tax authorities. In 2015, "Other, net" of $87 million
included a net charge of $74 million due to the interpretation of tax law and double tax treaty agreements
by competent tax authorities.

In 2014, "Provision for taxes" included $279 million relating to income taxes recorded on $543 million of net
gains from sale of businesses. This expense is primarily included in "Income taxes at weighted-average tax

rate" and "Impact of non-deductible goodwill allocated to divested businesses".
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities consisted of the following:

December 31, ($ in millions)

Unused tax losses and credits

Provisions and other accrued liabilities

Pension

Inventories

Property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets

Other
Totalgross deferred tax asset

Valuation allowance

Total gross deferred tax asset, net of valuationallowance

Detent-i tan li.itjilMie--.

Property, plant and equipment

Intangibles and other non-current assets

Pension and other accrued liabilities

Inventories

Other current assets

Unremitted earnings

Other
Total grossdeferredtax liability
Net deferred tax asset (liability)

"Deferred taxes" — current assets

"Deferred taxes" — non-current assets

"Deferred taxes" — current liabilities

"Deferred taxes" — non-current liabilities

Net deferred tax asset (liability)

2016 2015

514 623

865 887

507 528

273 267

266 282

93 89

2,518 2,676

(561) (606)

2,0701.957

(234) (279)

(616) (721)

(79) (143)

(91) (91)

(108) (139)

(537) (523)

(92) (84)

(1,757) (1.980)

200 90

888 881

527 423

(258) (249)

(957) (965)

200 90

Certain entities have deferred tax assets related to net operating loss carry-forwards and other items. As
recognition of these assets in'certain entities did not meet the more likelythan not criterion, valuation
allowances have been recorded and amount to $561 million and $606 million, at December 31,2016 and

2015, respectively. "Unused tax losses and credits" at December 31,2016 and 2015, in the table above,
included $108 million and $127 million, respectively, for which the Company has established a full valuation
allowance as, due to limitations imposed by the relevant tax law, the Company determined that, more
likely than not, such deferred tax assets would not be realized.

At December 31,2016 and 2015, deferred tax liabilities totaling $537 million and $523 million, respectively,
have been provided for primarily in respect of withholding taxes, dividend distribution taxes or additional
corporate income taxes (hereafter "withholding taxes") on unremitted earnings which will be payable in
foreign jurisdictions on the repatriation of earnings to Switzerland. Income which has been generated
outside of Switzerland and has already been subject to corporate income tax in such foreign jurisdictions
is, to a large extent, tax exempt in Switzerland. Therefore, generally no or only limited Swiss income tax
has to be provided for on the repatriated earnings of foreign subsidiaries.

Certain countries levywithholding taxes on dividend distributions. Such taxes cannot always be fully
reclaimed by the shareholder, although they have to be declared and withheld by the subsidiary. In2016
and 2015, certain taxes arose in certain foreign jurisdictions for which the technical merits do not allow
utilization of benefits. AtDecember 31,2016 and 2015, foreign subsidiaryretained earnings subject to
withholding taxes upon distribution of approximately $100million and $500 million, respectively, were
considered as permanently reinvested, as these funds are used for financing current operations as wellas
businessgrowth through working capitaland capitalexpenditurein those countriesand, consequently, no
deferred tax liability was recorded.

At December 31,2016, net operating loss carry-forwards of $1,622 million and tax credits of $125 million
were available to reduce future taxes of certain subsidiaries. Of these amounts, $846 millionof loss
carry-forwards and $101 million of taxcredits will expire invarying amounts through 2036. The largest
amount of these carry-forwards related to the Company's Europeoperations.
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Unrecognized tax benefits consisted of the following:

(S in millions)
Unrecognized

tax benefits

Classificationas unrecognizedtax items on January 1,2014

Nat change due to acquisitions and divestments

Increase relating to prior year tax positions

Decrease relating to prior year tax positions

Increase relating to current year tax positions

Decrease relating to current year tax positions

Decrease due to settlements with tax authorities

Decrease as a result of the applicable statute of limitations

Exchange rate differences

B.ilanceat December 31,2014, which would, if recogni. ed, affect the effective tax rate

Ircrease relating to prior year tax positions

Decrease relating to prior year tax positions

Ircrease relating to current year tax positions

Decrease due to settlements with tax authorities

Decrease as a result of the applicable statute of limitai ions

E<change rate differences

733

(3)

25

(24)

85

(1)

(19)

(36)

(55)

705

52

(33)

155

(38)

(62)

(35)

Balanceat December 31,2015. which would, if recogni red,affect the effective tax rate 744

Increase relating to prior year tax positions 88

Decrease relating to prioryeartax positions (21)
Increase relating to current year tax positions 167

Decrease due to settlements with tax authorities (96)

Decrease as a result of the applicable statute of limitaions (95)

Exchange rate differences (27)

Balance at December 31,2016, which would, if recognised, affect the effective tax rate 760

Penalties and

interest

related to

unrecognized
tax benefits

154

1

39

(7)

(10)

(19)

(12)

146

38

(3)

(13)

(15)

(8)

145

74

(20)

13

(21)

(13)

(6)

172

Total

887

(2)

64

(31)

85

(1)

(29)

(55)

(67)

851

90

(36)

155

(51)

(77)

(43)

162

(41)

180

(117)

(108)

(33)

932

In 2016, 2015 and 2014, the "Increase relating to current year tax positions" included a total of $132 million,
1127 million and $56 million, respectively, in taxes related to the interpretation of tax law and double tax
treaty agreements by competent tax authorities.

At December 31, 2016, the Company expected the resolution, within the next twelve months, of uncertain

tax positions related to pending court cases amounting to $9 million for taxes, penalties and interest.

Otherwise, the Company had not identified a ~\y other significant changes which were considered reasonably
possible to occur within the next twelve months.

At December 31, 2016, the earliest significan: open tax years that remained subject to examination were
the following:

Hegion

ilurope

The Americas

Asia, Middle East & Africa

Year

2011

2013

2007

Note 17

Employee benefits

The Company operates defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution pension plans, and termination
indemnityplans, in accordance with localregulations and practices. These plans covera large portion of
the Company's employees and provide benefits to employees in the event of death, disability, retirement,
or termination of employment. Certain of these plans are multi-employer plans. The Company also
operates other postretirement benefit plans including postretirement health care benefits and other
employee-related benefits for active employees including long-service award plans. The measurement
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date used for the Company's employeebenefit plansis December 31. Thefunding policiesof the
Company's plans are consistent with the localgovernment and tax requirements.

The Company recognizes inits Consolidated Balance Sheetsthe funded status of its defined benefit
pension plans, postretirement plans, andotheremployee-related benefits measured as the difference
between the fair value of the plan assets and the benefit obligation.

Obligations and funded status of the plans
The change inbenefit obligation, change infair value of plan assets, andfunded status recognized inthe
Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows:

Defined pension benefits Other postretirement benefits

(S in millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015

Benefit obligations at January 1, 11,224 12,355 178 245

Service cost 249 267 1 1

Interest cost 280 305 6 8

Contributions by plan participants 74 76 — —

Benefit payments (596) (614) (U) (15)

Benefit obligations of businesses acquired (divested) (26) — — —

Actuarial (gain) loss 375 (469) (17) (31)

Plan amendments and other (76) (141) (10) (27)

Exchange rate differences (608) (555) — (3)

Benefit obligation at December 31, 10,896 11,224 147 178

Fair value of plan assets at January 1, 9,743 10,465 - —

Actual return on plan assets 659 (8) — —

Contributions by employer 270 243 11 15

Contributions by plan participants 74 76
— —

Benefit payments (596) (614) (11) (15)

Plan amendments and other (133)
— — —

Exchange rate differences (524) (419) — —

Fair value of plan assets at December 31, 9,493 9,743 — -

Funded status — underfunded (1.403) (1,481) (147) (178)

The amounts recognized in "Accumulated other comprehensive loss" and "Noncontrolling interests"' were:

Defined pension benefits Other postretirement benefits

December 31, ($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014

Net actuarial (loss) gain (2,237) (2,383) (2.765) 10 (8) (39)

Prior service credit 108 127 2 31 33 16

Amount recognized in OCI"' and NCIKI (2,129) (2,256) (2.763) 41 25 (23)

Taxes associated with amount recognized
in OCI and NCI 487 512 652 — — —

Amount recognized in OCIand NCI,net of tax1" (1.642) (1,744) (2.1U) 41 25 (23)

In addition, the following amounts were recognized in the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Defined pension benefits Other postretirement benefits

December 31, ($ in millions) 2016 2015 2016 2015

Overfunded plans

Underfunded plans — current

Underfunded plans — non-current

68

(16)

(1.455)

42

(18)

(1.505)

(13) (14)

(134) (164)

Funded status — underfunded (1.403) (1.481) (147) (178)
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December 31, ($ in millions)

Non-current assets

Overfunded pension plans

Other employee-related benefits

Prepaid pension and other employee benefits

December 31, ($ in millions)

Current liabilities

Underfunded pension plans

Underfundedother postretirement benefit plans

Other employee-related benefits

Pension and other employee benefits (see Note 13)

December 31. ($ in millions)

Non-current liabilities

Underfunded pension plans

Underfundedother postretirement benefit plans

Otheremployee-related benefits
Pension andother employee benefits

2016

68

22

90

2016

(16)

(13)

(30)

(59)

2016

(1.455)

(134)

(245)

(1,834)

2015

42

26

68

2015

(18)

(14)

(34)

(66)

2015

(1.505)

(164)

(255)

(1,924)

The funded status,calculated using the projected benefit obligation (PBO) andfair value ofplan assets,
for pension plans with a PBO inexcess offair value ofplan assets(underfunded) orfair value ofplan
assets in excess of PBO (overfunded), respectively,was:

December 31, ($ in millions)

PBO exceeds assets

Assets exceed PBO

Total

PBO

9,892

1,004

10,896

2016

Assets Difference

8,420

1,073

9,493

(1,472)

69

(1.403)

PBO

10,413

811

11.224

2015

Assets Difference

8,890

853

9.743

(1.523)

42

(1.481)

The accumulated benefit obligation (ABO) for alldefined benefit pension plans was $10,612 million and
$10,924 million at December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively. Thefundedstatus, calculated usingthe ABO
and fair valueof plan assets for pension plans with ABO in excess of fairvalueof plan assets (underfunded)
or fair value of plan assets in excess of ABO (overfunded), respectively,was:

2016 2015

December 31. ($ in millions) ABO Assets Difference ABO Assets Difference

ABO exceeds assets

Assets exceed ABO

9,612

1,000

8,406

1,087

(1.206)

87

8,781

2,143

7,496

2,247

(1,285)

104

Total 10,612 9.493 (1.119) 10,924 9,743 (1.181)

Allof the Company's other postretirement benefit plans are unfunded.

Components of net periodic benefit cost

Net periodic benefit cost consisted of the following:

Defined pension benefits Other postretirement benefits

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014

Service cost 249 267 243 1 1 1

Interest cost 280 305 409 6 8 10

Expected return on plan assets (402) (456) (481)
- — —

Amortization of prior service cost (credit) 40 38 27 (12) (9) (9)

Amortization of net actuarial loss 85 112 102 —
1

—

Curtailments, settlements and special
termination benefits 41 20 1

Net periodic benefit cost 293 286 301 (5) 1 2
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The net actuarial loss and prior service cost for defined pension benefits estimated to be amortized
from "Accumulated other comprehensiveloss" into net periodic benefit cost in 2017 is $87million and
$35 million, respectively.

The net priorservicecredit forother postretirement benefitsestimated to be amortized from
"Accumulated other comprehensiveloss"into net periodic benefit cost in 2017 is $5 million. Thereis no
significant actuarial gain or loss to be amortized in 2017.

Assumptions
Thefollowing weighted-average assumptions were usedto determine benefitobligations:

Defined pensionbenefits Other postretirementbenefits

December 31, (in %) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Discount rate 2-3 2-6 3-3 36
Rate of compensation increase

Rateof pensionincrease

Thediscountrate assumptionsare based uponAA-rated corporatebonds. In those countrieswith
sufficient liquidity incorporate bonds, the Company usedthe current market long-term corporate bond
yields and matched the bondduration with the average duration of the pension liabilities. In those
countrieswherethe liquidity of the AA-rated corporate bonds was deemed to be insufficient, the
Company determinedthe discountrate byaddingthe creditspread derived froman AA corporatebond
index in another relevant liquidmarket, as adjusted for interest rate differentials, to the domestic govern
ment bond curve or interest rate swap curve.

Thefollowing weighted-averageassumptions were used to determine the "Netperiodicbenefit cost":

Defined pension benefits Other postretirement benefits
(in%) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Discount rate 2.6 2.6 3.6 3.6 3.5 4.2

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets

Rateof compensationincrease

The "Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets" is derived for each benefit plan by considering
the expected future long-term return assumption for each individual asset class. Asingle long-term return
assumption is then derived for each plan based upon the plan's target asset allocation.

The Company maintains other postretirement benefit plans, which are generally contributory with
participants' contributions adjusted annually. The assumptions used were:

December 31. 2016 2015
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year

Rate to which the trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate)

Year that the ratereaches the ultimatetrendrate

Aone-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects
at December 31,2016:

2.3 2.6

1.7 1.5

1.0 0.9

2.6 2.6 3.6

4.3 4.6 4.6

1.5 1.7 1.8

7.3% 7.7%

5.0% 5.0%

2028 2028

1-percentage-point

($ in millions) Increase Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest cost 1 —

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 9 (8)

Plan assets

The Company has pension plans in various countries with the majority of the Company's pension liabilities
deriving from a limited number of these countries.

The pension plans are typicallyfunded by regular contributions from employees and the Company. These
plans are typicallyadministered by boards of trustees (whichinclude Company representatives) whose
primary responsibilities include ensuring that the plans meet their liabilities through contributions and
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investment returns. The boards of trusteeshave the responsibility formaking key investment strategy
decisions within a risk-controlled framework.

The pension plan assets areinvested indiversified portfolios that aremanaged bythird-party asset
managers, inaccordance withlocal statutory regulations, pension plan rules andthe respective plans'
investment guidelines, as approved by the boards of trustees.

Plan assets aregenerally segregated from thoseofthe Company andinvested with the aim of meeting the
respective plans' projected future pension liabilities. Plan assets are measured at fair value at the balance
sheet date.

The boards of trustees manage the assets of the pension plans in a risk-controlledmanner and assess
the risks embedded in thepension plans through asset/liability management studies. Asset/liability
management studies typically take placeeverythree years. However, the risksof the plansare monitored
on an ongoing basis.

The board oftrustees'investment goal is to maximize the long-term returns ofplan assetswithin speci
fied risk parameters, while considering thefuture liabilities andliquidity needs oftheindividual plans.
Risk measures taken into account include thefunding ratio oftheplan, thelikelihood ofextraordinary
cashcontributions being required, the riskembedded ineachindividual asset class, andthe plan asset
portfolio as a whole.

TheCompany's global pension asset allocation is the result of the asset allocations of the individual plans,
which areset bythe respective boardsof trustees.The targetasset allocation of the Company's plans on
a weighted-average basis is as follows:

('n%> . Target
Asset class

Equity 22

Fixed income 59

Realestate 12

Other 7

100

The actual asset allocations of the plans are in line with the target asset allocations.

Equity assets primarily include investments in large-cap and mid-cap publicly-traded companies. Fixed
income assets primarilyinclude corporate bonds of companies from diverse industries and government
bonds. Both fixed income and equity assets are invested either via funds or directly in segregated investment
mandates, and include an allocation to emerging markets. Realestate consists primarilyof direct investments
in real estate in Switzerland held in the Swiss plans. The "Other" asset class includes investments in private
equity, hedge funds, commodities, and cash and reflects a variety of investment strategies.

Based on the above global asset allocation and the fair values of the plan assets, the expected long-term
return on assets at December 31,2016, is 4.2 percent. The Company and the local boards of trustees
regularly review the investment performance of the asset classes and individual asset managers. Due to
the diversified nature of the investments, the Company is of the opinion that no significant concentration
of risks exists in its pension fund assets.

The Company does not expect any plan assets to be returned to the employer during 2017.

At December 31,2016 and 2015, plan assets include ABB Ltd's shares (as well as an insignificant amount of
the Company's debt instruments) with a total value of $8 millionand $9 million,respectively.

The fair values of the Company's pension plan assets by asset class are presented below. For further
information on the fair value hierarchy and an overviewof the Company's valuation techniques applied,
see the "Fair value measures" section of Note 2.
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December 31, 2016 (S in millions)

Asset class

Equity

Equity securities

Mutual funds/commingled funds

Emerging market mutual funds/commingled funds

Fixed income

Government and corporate securities

Government and corporate — mutual funds/commingled funds

Emerging market bonds — mutual funds/commingled funds

Real estate

Insurance contracts

Cash and short-term investments

Private equity

Hedge funds

Commodities

Total

December 31,2015 ($ in millions)

Asset class

Equity

Equity securities

Mutual funds/commingled funds

Emerging market mutual funds/commingled funds

Fixed income

Government and corporate securities

Government and corporate — mutual funds/commingled funds

Emerging market bonds — mutual funds/commingled funds

Real estate

Insurance contracts

Cash and short-term investments

Private equity

Hedge funds

Commodities

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value

244

449

260

953

— —
244

1.610 — 1,610

337
—

337

909 — 1,358

3,446 — 3,446

692 — 692

33 1,116 1,149

99 — 99

104 — 364

—
114 114

— 13 13

67 — 67

7,297 1,243 9,493

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value

364

587

160

1,111

— —
364

1.633 — 1,633

328
—

328

949 — 1,536

3,257
—

3,257

669 — 669

74 1,106 1,180

121 — 121

219 — 379

— 123 123

— 94 94

59 — 59

7,309 1,323 9,743

The following table represents the movements of those asset categories whose fair values use significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3):

($ in millions)

Balance at January 1,2015

Return on plan assets

Assets still held at December 31.2015

Assets sold during the year

Purchases (sales)

Exchangeratedifferences

Balance at December 31,2015

Return on plan assets

Assets still held at December 31,2016

Assets sold during the year

Purchases (sales)

Transfers into Level 3

Exchangerate differences

Balance at December 31,2016

Private equity Hedge funds Real estate Total Level 3

136 93 842 1,071

(9) 1 54 46

20 (1) (1) 18

(24) — 215 191

— 1 (4) (3)

123 94 1,106 1,323

(9)
_ 82 73

15 (4) -
11

(13) (77) (1) (91)

1 — (3) (2)

(3) — (68) (71)

114 13 1,116 1,243

Realestate properties, which are primarily located in Switzerland, are valued under the income approach
using the discounted cash flow method, by which the market value of a property is determined as the
total of all projected future earnings discounted to the valuation date. The discount rates are determined
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for each property individually according to the property's location and specific use, and by considering
initial yields of comparable market transactions.

Private equity investments include investments in partnerships and related funds. Such investments

consist of publicly-traded and privately-held securities. Publicly-traded securities that are quoted in

inactive markets are valued using available quotes and adjusted for liquidity restrictions. Privately-held

securities are valued taking into account various factors, such as the most recent financing involving
unrelated new investors, earnings multiple analyses using comparable companies and discounted cash
flow analyses.

Hedge funds are not normally exchange-traded and the shares of the funds cannot be redeemed daily.
Depending on the fund structure, the fair values are derived through modeling techniques based on the

values of the underlying assets adjusted to reflect liquidity and transferability restrictions.

Contributions

Employer contributions were as follows:

(S in millions)

Total contributions to defined benefit pension
and other postretirement benefit plans

Of which, discretionary contributions
to defined benefit pension plans

Defined pension benefits Other postretirement benefits

2016

270

15

2015

243

31

2016 2015

15

In 2016 and 2015, total contributions included non-cash contributions totaling $52 million and $22 million,
respectively, of available-for-sale debt securities to certain of the Company's pension plans.

The Company expects to contribute approximately $193 million,including $12 million in discretionary
contributions, to its defined benefit pension plans in 2017.These discretionary contributions are expected to
be non-cash contributions. The Company expects to contribute approximately $13 million to its other
postretirement benefit plans in 2017.

The Company also contributes to a number of defined contribution plans. The aggregate expense for these
plans was $210 million, $218millionand $236 millionin 2016,2015 and 2014, respectively. Contributions to
multi-employer plans were not significant in 2016,2015 and 2014.

Estimated future benefit payments
The expected future cash flows to be paid by the Company's plans in respect of pension and other
postretirement benefit plans at December 31,2016, are as follows:

($ in millions)

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

Years 2022-2026

Defined pension benefits Other postretirement benefits

593

598

578

585

563

2,718

13

13

13

12

12

51

Note 18

Share-based payment arrangements

The Company has three principal share-based payment plans, as more fullydescribed in the respective
sections below. Compensation cost for equity-settled awards is recorded in "Total cost of sales" and in
"Selling,general and administrative expenses" and totaled $54 million,$61 millionand $73 million in 2016,
2015and 2014,respectively. Compensation cost for cash-settled awards is recorded in "Selling, general and
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administrative expenses" and is disclosed in the "WARs", "LTIP" and "Other share-based payments" sections
of this note. The total tax benefit recognized in 2016,2015and 2014was not significant.

AtDecember31,2016, the Companyhad the abilityto issue up to 94 million newshares out of contingent
capitalinconnectionwithshare-basedpaymentarrangements.In addition,29million shares (ofthe 76million
shares heldbythe Company as treasury stock at December 31,2016) couldbe used to settle share-based
paymentarrangements (the remaining sharesof treasurystockare heldforcancellation —see Note19).

Asthe primarytrading marketfor the shares of ABB Ltdis the SIX SwissExchange (onwhich the shares are
traded in Swiss francs) and substantially all the share-based payment arrangements with employees are
based on the Swiss franc share or havestrike prices set in Swiss francs, certain data disclosed below related
to the instruments granted undershare-basedpaymentarrangements are presented inSwissfrancs.

MIP

Underthe MIP, the Company offers options and cash-settled WARs to keyemployeesfor no consideration.

Theoptions granted under the MIP allow participants to purchase shares of ABB Ltdat predetermined
prices. Participants maysellthe options rather than exercisethe right to purchase shares. Equivalent
warrants are listed bya third-partybankon the SIX SwissExchange, which facilitates pricing and trans
ferabilityof instruments granted under this plan.Theoptions entitle the holder to request that the
third-party bank purchase such options at the market priceof equivalentlisted warrants related to that
MIP launch. Ifthe participant elects to sell the options, the instruments will thereafter be held by a third
party and, consequently, the Company'sobligation to delivershares will be toward this third party. Each
WAR gives the participant the right to receive,in cash, the market price of an equivalent listed warrant on
the date of exercise of the WAR. Participants may exercise or sell options and exercise WARs after the
vesting period, which is three years from the date of grant. Vesting restrictions can be waived in certain
circumstances such as death or disability. All options and WARs expire six years from the date of grant.

Options

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using a lattice model that uses the assump
tions noted in the table below. Expected volatilities are based on implied volatilities from equivalent listed
warrants on ABB Ltd shares. The expected term of the options granted is the contractual six-year life of each
option, based on the fact that after the vesting period, a participant can elect to sell the option rather than
exercise the right to purchase shares, thereby also realizing the time value of the options. The risk-free rate
is based on a six-year Swiss franc interest rate, reflecting the six-year contractual life of the options. In
estimating forfeitures, the Company has used the data from previous comparable MIP launches.

2016 2015 2014
Expected volatility 19% 17% 18%

Dividend yield 4.9% 3.2% 2.9%

Expected term 6 years 6 years 6 years

Risk-free interest rate -0.5% -0.3% 0.2%
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Presented below is a summary of the activity related to options under the MIP:

Outstanding at January 1,2016

Granted

Exercised'4'

Forfeited

Expired

Outstanding at December 31,2016

Number of Number of

instruments shares

(in millions) (in millions)'"

399.1

79.0

(36.9)

(12.9)

(36.9)

391.4

79.8

15.8

(7.4)

(26)

(7.3)

78.3

Vested and expected to vest at December 31,2016 386.9 77.4

Exercisable at December 31,2016 186.8 37.4

,' I U"iii.i!!iiri |.T.",.Mitt--!) i.-ti. ' !•• rl,.

if ui.put-.cl-r.niMttn-, k,',m, i pr n ,.

Weighted- Weighted-
average average

exercise remaining Aggregate
price contractual intrinsic value

(in Swiss term (in millions of

francs)'" (in years) Swiss francs)"1

20.51

21.50

15.75

20.47

22.52

20.98

20.97

21.32

3.4

3.4

2.0

75

75

41

At December 31,2016, there was $50 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested
options granted under the MIP. That cost is expected to be recognizedovera weighted-average period of
2.1years. Theweighted-average grant-date fair value(per instrument) of options granted during 2016,
2015and 2014 was 0.47 Swiss francs, 0.39 Swiss francs and 0.49 Swiss francs, respectively. In2016and
2015 the aggregate intrinsic value (on the date of exercise) of instruments exercised was $27 million and
$10 million, respectively,while in 2014it was not significant.

Presented below is a summary, by launch, related to instruments outstanding at December 31,2016:

Exercise price (in Swiss francs)"

25.50

15.75

17.50

21.50

21.00

19.50

21.50

Total number of instruments and shares

Number of instruments

(in millions)

42.8

21.2

14.5

81.2

73.0

80.2

78.5

391.4

Number of shares Weighted-average remaining
(in millions)"' contractual term(in years)

8.6

4.2

2.9

16.3

14.6

16.0

15.7

78.3

0.4

1.4

1.4

2.4

3.7

4.6

5.7

3.4

WARS

As each WAR gives the holder the right to receive cash equal to the market price of the equivalent listed
warrant on date of exercise, the Company records a liability based upon the fair value of outstanding
WARs at each period end, accreted on a straight-line basis over the three-year vesting period. In "Selling,
general and administrative expenses", the Company recorded an expense of $14 millionin 2016,as a result
of changes in both the fair value and vested portion of the outstanding WARs. The amount recorded in
2015 and 2014 was not significant. To hedge its exposure to fluctuations in the fair value of outstanding
WARs, the Company purchased cash-settled call options, which entitle the Company to receive amounts
equivalent to its obligations under the outstanding WARs. The cash-settled calloptions are recorded as
derivatives measured at fair value (see Note 5), with subsequent changes in fair value recorded in earnings
to the extent that they offset the change in fair valueof the liabilityfor the WARs. In2016,2015and 2014
the amounts recorded in "Selling, general and administrativeexpenses" related to the cash-settled call
options was not significant.

Theaggregatefairvalue of outstandingWARs was $23 million and $13 million at December 31,2016 and
2015, respectively. Thefairvalueof WARs was determined based uponthe trading priceof equivalent
warrants listed on the SIXSwiss Exchange.
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Presented below is a summary of the activity related to WARs:

Outstanding at January 1,2016

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Expired

Outstanding at December 31,2016

Exercisable at December 31,2016

Number of WARs (in millions)

55.2

9.3

(13.3)

(0.2)

(3.7)

47.3

19.5

The aggregate fair value at dateofgrant ofWARs granted in2016,2015 and2014 was notsignificant. In
2016 and 2015, share-based liabilities of $7million and$9 million, respectively, were paidupon exercise of
WARs byparticipants. In2014, the amount paidwas not significant.

ESAP

The employee shareacquisition plan (ESAP) isanemployee stock-option plan with a savings feature.
Employees save over a twelve-month period, byway of regular payroll deductions. At the endofthe
savings period, employees choose whether to exercise theirstockoptionsusing theirsavings plus
interest, ifany, to buy ABB Ltd shares(American Depositary Shares (ADS) inthe caseofemployees inthe
UnitedStates and Canada —each ADS representing one registered share of the Company) at the exercise
price set at the grant date, or have theirsavings returned withanyinterest.Thesavings areaccumulated
in bank accounts heldbya third-partytrustee on behalfof the participants and earn interest, where
applicable. Employees canwithdraw from the ESAP at anytimeduringthe savingsperiodand will be
entitled to a refund of their accumulated savings.

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the same option valuation model as
described under the MIP, using the assumptions noted in the table below.The expected term of the option
granted has been determined to be the contractualone-yearlifeof each option, at the end of which the
options vest and the participants are required to decide whether to exercise their options or have their
savings returned with interest. The risk-freerate is based on one-yearSwissfranc interest rates, reflecting
the one-year contractual lifeof the options. Inestimating forfeitures, the Company has used the data
from previous ESAP launches.

Expected volatility

Dividend yield

Expected term

Risk-free interest rate

Presented below is a summary of activity under the ESAP:

2016 2015 2014

20% 20% 18%

3.7% 3.9% 3.1%

lyear lyear lyear

-0.7% -0.8% -0.1%

Number of Weighted-average Weighted-average Aggregate intrinsic
shares (in exercise price (in remaining contrac- value (in millions of

millions)'" Swiss francs)'*' tual term (in years) Swiss francs)'*""

Outstanding at January 1,2016 3.7 18.78

Granted 3.4 20.12

Forfeited (0.2) 18.84

Exercised"' (2.6) 18.78

Not exercised (savings returned plus interest) (0.9) 18.78

Outstanding at December 31,2016 3.4 20.12

Vested and expected to vest at December 31,2016

Exercisable at December 31,2016

3.3 20.12

0.8 4.7

0.8 43
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The exercise prices perABB Ltd shareandperADS of 20.12 Swiss francs and$20.52, respectively, forthe
2016 grant, 18.78 Swissfrancs and $19.10, respectively, for the 2015 grant, and 20.97 Swissfrancs and
$21.81, respectively, forthe 2014 grant were determined using the closing price of the ABB Ltd shareon
the SIX Swiss Exchange and ADS on the New York StockExchange on the respective grant dates.

AtDecember 31,2016, the total unrecognized compensationcost relatedto non-vested options granted
underthe ESAP wasnot significant. Theweighted-average grant-date fairvalue (peroption) of options
granted during2016,2015 and 2014 was 1.24 Swiss francs, 1.07 Swiss francsand 1.19 Swiss francs,
respectively. Thetotal intrinsicvalue(onthe date of exercise) of options exercisedin 2016,2015 and 2014
was not significant.

LTIP

The Company has a long-term incentive plan (LTIP) for members of its ExecutiveCommittee and selected
other senior executives (EligibleParticipants), as defined in the terms of the LTIP. The LTIP involvesannual
conditional grants of the Company's stockto suchEligible Participants that aresubjectto certain
conditions.

The 2016 and2015 LTIP launches areeach composed oftwoperformance components: (i) a component
which is basedon the achievement of a consolidated net income threshold and (ii) a component which is
basedonthe Company's earnings pershare performance. The 2014 launch under the LTIP is composed of
two components: (i)a performance component based on the Company'searnings per share performance
and (ii) a retention component.

For shares to vest under the threshold net income component of the 2016and 2015 LTIP launches, the
Company's consolidated net income has to reach a certain levelset by the Board of Directors at the launch
of the LTIP. Theshares will not vest if this threshold is not achieved and will vest at 100percent if this
threshold is equaled or exceeded. Inaddition, the Eligible Participant has to fulfill the service condition as
defined in the terms and conditions of the LTIP.

For the earnings per share performance component of the 2016,2015 and 2014 LTIP launches, the actual
number of shares that willvest at a future date is dependent on (i) the Company's weighted cumulative
earnings per share performance over three financial years, beginning with the year of launch, and (ii)the
fulfillment of the service condition as defined in the terms and conditions of the LTIP.The cumulative

earnings per share performance is weighted as follows: 33 percent of the first year's result, 67 percent of
the second year's result and 100 percent of the third year's result. The actual number of shares that
ultimately vest will vary depending on the weighted cumulative earnings per share outcome, interpolated
between a lower threshold (no shares vest) and an upper threshold (the number of shares vesting is
capped at 200 percent of the conditional grant).

Under the retention component of the 2014 LTIP launch, each Eligible Participant was conditionally
granted an individually defined maximum number of shares which fully vest at the end of the respective
vesting periods (if the participant remains an Eligible Participant until the end of such period).

Under the threshold net income component of the 2016 and 2015 LTIP launches, an Eligible Participant
receives 70 percent of the shares that have vested in the form of shares and 30 percent of the value of the
shares that have vested in cash, with the possibility to elect to also receive the 30 percent portion in
shares rather than in cash. For the 2016 and 2015 LTIP launches, under the earnings per share performance
component, an EligibleParticipant receives 70 percent of the shares that have vested in the form of shares
and 30 percent of the value of the shares that have vested in cash, with the possibility to elect to also
receive the 30 percent portion in shares rather than in cash, while for the 2014 LTIP launch an Eligible
Participant receives, in cash, 100 percent of the value of the shares that have vested. Under the retention
component of the 2014 LTIP launch, an Eligible Participant receives 70 percent of the shares that have
vested in the form of shares and 30 percent of the value of the shares that have vested in cash, with the
possibility to elect to also receivethe 30 percent portion in shares rather than in cash.
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Presented below is a summary of activity under the LTIP:

Number of Shares Conditionally Granted

Equity &Cash or
choice of 100 %

Equity Settlement'"
(in millions)

Only Cash
Settlement'2'

(in millions)

Total

(in millions)

Weighted-average
grant-date fair
value per share

(Swiss francs)

Nonvested at January 1,2016

Granted

Vested

Forfeited

2.1

1.0

(0.5)

0.7

(0.2)

(0.2)

2.8

1.0

(0.7)

(0.2)

20.96

20.77

20.93

20.95

Nonvested at December 31,2016 2.6 0.3 2.9 20.89

Equity-settled awards are recorded inthe "Capital stockandadditional paid-in capital" component of
stockholders' equity, withcompensation cost recorded in"Selling, generaland administrative expenses"
overthe vestingperiod(which is from grant date to the end of the vestingperiod) based on the
grant-datefair value of the shares. Cash-settled awards are recorded as a liability, remeasured at fair
valueat each reporting date for the percentage vested, with changes in the liability recorded in
"Selling, general and administrative expenses".

At December 31,2016,there was $19million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to equity-settled
awards under the LTIP. That cost is expected to be recognizedovera weighted-average period of 2years.
The compensation cost recorded in 2016,2015and 2014for cash-settled awards was not significant.

The aggregate fair value,at the dates of grant, of shares granted in 2016,2015and 2014was $22 million,
$23 million and $22 million, respectively. The total grant-date fair value of shares that vested during 2016,
2015 and 2014 was $15 million, $12 million and $15 million, respectively. The weighted-average grant-date
fair value (per share) of shares granted during 2016,2015 and 2014 was 20.77 Swiss francs, 21.54 Swiss
francs and 20.35 Swiss francs, respectively.

For the net income threshold component of the 2016 and 2015 LTIP launches, the fair value of the granted
shares is based on the probability of reaching the threshold as well as on the market price of the ABB Ltd
share at grant date for equity-settled awards and at each reporting date for cash-settled awards. For the
earnings per share component of the LTIP launches, the fair value of granted shares is based on the
market price of the ABBLtd share at grant date for equity-settled awards and at each reporting date for
cash-settled awards, as well as the probable outcome of the earnings per share achievement that would
result in the vesting of the highest number of shares, as computed using a Monte Carlo simulation model.
The main inputs to this model are the Company's and external financial analysts' revenue growth rates
and Operational EBITA margin expectations. For the retention component under the 2014 LTIP launch, the
fair value of granted shares for equity-settled awards is based on the market price of the ABBLtd share on
grant date and the fair value of granted shares for cash-settled awards is based on the market price of the
ABBLtd share at each reporting date.

Other share-based payments

The Company has other minor share-based payment arrangements with certain employees. The compen
sation cost related to these arrangements in 2016,2015 and 2014 was not significant.

Note 19

Stockholders' equity

At December 31,2016 and 2015, the Company had 2,719 million and 2,819 million authorized shares,
respectively,of which 2,215 million and 2,315 million, respectively,were registered and issued.

Atthe Annual General Meeting of Shareholders(AGM) in April 2016, shareholders approvedthe proposalof
the Boardof Directorsto distribute a total of 0.74 Swissfrancs per share to shareholders bywayof
a nominal value reduction (reduction in the par value of each share) from 0.86 Swiss francs to 0.12 Swiss



195 04 FINANCIAL REVIEW OF ABBGROUP

francs. In July 2016, the nominal value reduction wasregistered inthecommercial register of the canton of
Zurich, Switzerland, and was paid.TheCompany recorded a reduction inCapital stockand additional
paid-in capitalof $1,224 million and a reductionin Retained earningsof $402million in relation to the
nominal value reduction. Atthe AGM inApril 2015, shareholders approved the proposals of the Board of
Directors to distribute a totalof0.72 Swiss francs pershareto shareholders, comprising ofa dividend of
0.55Swiss francs paid out of ABB Ltd's capital contribution reserves and a distribution of 0.17 Swiss francs
byway ofa nominal value reduction from 1.03 Swiss francs to 0.86 Swiss francs. The approved dividend
distribution amounted to $1,317 million and was paid in May 2015. The nominal valuereduction was
registered inJuly 2015 inthe commercial register ofthecanton ofZurich, Switzerland, andwaspaid inthe
third quarter of2015. The approved nominal value reduction was recorded as a reduction to Capital stock
andadditional paid-in capital of $349 million anda reduction inRetained earnings of $54million. At the
AGM inApril 2014, shareholders approved the payment ofa dividend of0.70 Swiss francs pershareoutof
thecapital contribution reserve instockholders' equity oftheunconsolidated statutory financial state
ments ofABB Ltd, prepared in accordance with Swiss law. The dividends were paid in May 2014 (amounting
to $1,841 million).

Between September 2014 andSeptember 2016, theCompany executed a sharebuyback program forthe
purchase ofupto $4billion ofitsown shares andonSeptember 30,2016, announced thatit hadcompleted
this program. Over the periodof the sharebuyback, the Company purchased a total of146.6 million shares
(for approximately $3billion) forcancellation and24.7 million shares (for approximately $0.5 billion) to
supportits employee shareprograms. The sharesacquired forcancellation were purchased through
a separate trading lineon the SIX SwissExchange (onwhich only the Company couldpurchaseshares),
while shares acquired fordelivery under employee share programs were acquired through theordinary
tradingline. In 2016, underthe announced share buyback program, the Company purchased 60.4million
shares forcancellation and 4.9 million shares to support its employee share programs. Thesetransactions
resulted inan increase inTreasury stockof $1,280 million. In 2015, underthe program, the Company
purchased60.2million shares for cancellation and 13.1 million shares to support its employee share
programs. These transactions resulted in an increase in Treasury stock of $1,501million.In2014, under the
program, the Companypurchased 26.0million shares for cancellation and 6.8 million shares to support its
employeeshare programs. These transactions resulted inan increaseinTreasurystock of $733million.

Inthe second quarter of 2014,the Company purchased on the open market an aggregate of 12.0million of
its own shares to be available for delivery under its employee share programs. These transactions resulted
in an increase in Treasury stock of $282 million.

At the AGM in April 2016, shareholders approved the proposal of the Board of Directors to reduce the
share capital of the Company by cancelling 100 million treasury shares which were acquired under the
share buyback program. This cancellation was completed in July2016, resulting in a decrease in Treasury
stock of $2,047 million and a corresponding combined decrease in Capital stock and additional paid-in
capital and Retained earnings.

Upon and in connection with each launch of the Company's MIP, the Company sold call options to a bank at
fair value, giving the bank the right to acquire shares equivalent to the number of shares represented by the
MIPWAR awards to participants. Under the terms of the agreement with the bank, the call options can only
be exercised by the bank to the extent that MIP participants have exercised their WARs.At December 31,
2016, such call options representing 11.0 million shares and with strike prices ranging from 15.75 to
21.50 Swiss francs (weighted-average strike price of 20.30 Swiss francs) were held by the bank. The call

options expire in periods ranging from May 2018 to August 2022. However, only 2.3 million of these instru
ments, with strike prices ranging from 15.75 to 21.50 Swiss francs (weighted-average strike price of 20.23
Swiss francs), could be exercised at December 31,2016, under the terms of the agreement with the bank.

In addition to the above, at December 31,2016, the Company had further outstanding obligations to deliver:

• up to 8.6 million shares relating to the options granted under the 2011 launch of the MIP, with a strike
price of 25.50 Swiss francs, vested in May 2014 and expiring in May2017,

• up to 7.1million shares relating to the options granted under the 2012 launches of the MIP, with a
weighted-average strike price of 16.46 Swiss francs, vested in May2015 and expiring in May2018,

• up to 16.3 millionshares relating to the options granted under the 2013 launch of the MIP, with a strike
price of 21.50 Swiss francs, vested in May 2016 and expiring in May 2019,



04 FINANCIAL REVIEW OF ABB GROUP 197

• upto 14.6 million sharesrelating to the options grantedunder the 2014 launch ofthe MIP, with a strike
price of 21.00Swissfrancs, vesting in August2017 and expiringinAugust 2020,

. up to 16.0 million shares relating to the optionsgrantedunderthe 2015 launch of the MIP, witha strike
priceof 19.50Swissfrancs,vestingin August2018 and expiring inAugust2021,

. up to 15.7 million shares relating to the optionsgrantedunderthe 2016 launch of the MIP, witha strike
price of 21.50Swiss francs, vesting in August 2019and expiring in August 2022,

. up to 3.4 million shares relatingto the ESAP, vesting and expiringin October 2017,
• upto 3.6million sharesto Eligible Participants under the 2016,2015 and2014 launches of the LTIP,

vestingand expiring inJune 2019, June2018 and August2017, respectively, and
• less than 1 millionshares in connection with certain other share-based payment arrangements with

employees.

See Note 18 for a description of the above share-based payment arrangements.

In 2016,2015 and 2014, the Company delivered 8.9million, 5.3million and 1.3million shares, respectively,
out of treasurystock,foroptionsexercised in relation to the MIP. In addition, in2016 the Company
delivered 2.6million shares fromtreasury stock under the ESAP. In2015 and 2014the numberof shares
delivered under the ESAPwas not significant.

Amounts available to be distributed as dividends to the stockholders of ABB Ltd are based on the require
ments of Swiss law and ABB Ltd's Articles of Incorporation, and are determined based on amounts
presentedinthe unconsolidated financial statementsof ABB Ltd, prepared inaccordance withSwiss law.
At December 31,2016, the total unconsolidated stockholders' equity of ABB Ltdwas 9,029 million Swiss
francs ($8,840 million), including266 million Swissfrancs ($260 million) representing share capital,
10,283million Swissfrancs ($10,068 million) representing reserves and 1,520million Swissfrancs
($1,488million) representing a reduction of equity for own shares (treasury stock). Of the reserves,
1,520million Swiss francs ($1,488million) relating to own shares and 53 million Swiss francs ($52million)
representing 20 percent of share capital, are restricted and not availablefor distribution.

InFebruary2017, the Companyannounced that a proposal will be put to the 2017 AGM for approvalby the
shareholders to distribute 0.76 Swiss francs per share to shareholders.

Note 20

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing income by the weighted-average number of shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing income by the
weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the year, assuming that all potentially dilutive
securities were exercised, if dilutive. Potentially dilutive securities comprise outstanding written call
options and outstanding options and shares granted subject to certain conditions under the Company's

share-based payment arrangements. In 2016,2015 and 2014, outstanding securities representing a

maximum of 87 million, 78 million and 59 million shares, respectively, were excluded from the calculation
of diluted earnings per share as their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

Basic earnings per share:

($ in millions, except per share data in $) 2016 2015 2014

Amount- oU'ii;.:!•>!.if- <•• AP'3 •.!„.•, •,. .i,-|.—

Income from continuing operations, net of tax

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax

1,883

16

1,930

3

2,570

24

Net income 1,899 1,933 2,594

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding (in millions)

Income from continuing operations, net of tax

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax

Net income

2,151

0.88

0.88

2,226

0.87

0.87

2,288

1.12

0.01

1.13
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Diluted earnings per share:

($ in millions, except per share data in $)
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2016 2015 2014

A nounts attributable to ABE shareholdi ",:

Income from continuing operations, net of tax

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax

Net income

1,883

16

1,899

1,930

3

1,933

2,570

24

2,594

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding (in millions)

E'tf-it of dilutive ;><>i unties.

Call options and shares

2,151 2,226 2,288

Adjustedweighted-average number of shares outstanding (in millions)

Diluted earnings per sharp amitj.itablo '•; ABB si ,nth: IcI.ts

Income from continuing operations, net of tax

Income from discontinued operations, netoftax
Net income

2,154

0.87

0.01

0.88

2,230

0.87

0.87

2,295

1.12

0.01

1.13

Note 21

Other comprehensive income

The followingtable includes amounts recorded within "Totalother comprehensive income (loss)"
including the related income tax effects.

2016 2015 2014

($ in millions)
Before

tax

Tax

effect

Net

of tax

Before

tax

Tax

effect

Net

of tax

Before

tax

Tax

effect

Net

of tax

f oieign c. inency translation ,

Net change during the year

utju'-tmen:

(462) (12) (474) (1,105) 47 (1.058) (1.691) 11 (1.680)

• /cilable for-salc-sec untie'

Net unrealized gains (losses) arising
during the year

Reclassification adjustments for net
(gains) losses included in net income

Net change during the year

('•vision and other postretirement plan .

Prior service (costs) credits arising
during the year

Net actuarial gains (losses) arising
during the year

Amortization of prior service cost
included in net income

Amortization of net actuarial loss

included in net income

Net losses from pension settlements
included in net income

Net change during the year

(8) 1 (7) (14) 5 (9)

1 — 1 21 (6) 15

- (7) (6) 0)

(46) 6 (40) 113 (25) 88 (5) 2 (3)

38 6 44 285 (75) 210 (826) 212 (614)

28 (2) 26 29 (3) 26 18 (1) 17

85 (23) 62 113 (31) 82 102 (21) 81

37 (11) 26 15 (6) 9 (3) 1 (2)

142 (24) 118 555 (140) 415 (714) 193 (521)

(26) 6 (20) (65) 13 (52)

39 (9) 30 10 (1) 9

Cash flo.v hedge derivatives

Net gains (losses) arising during the year 21 (5) 16

Reclassification adjustments for net
(gains) losses included in net income (7) 1 (6)

Net change during the year 14 (4) 10 13 (3) 10 (55) 12 (43)

Total other comprehensive income (loss) (306) (40) (346) (544) (95) (639) (2.453) 215 (2,238)



04 FINANCIAL REVIEW OF ABB GROUP 199

Thefollowing table shows changes in"Accumulated other comprehensiveloss" (OCI) attributable to ABB,
by component, net of tax:

Foreign currency
translation

($ in millions) adjustments

Unrealized gains Pension and
(losses) on other post-

available-for-sale retirement plan
securities adjustments

Unrealized gains
(losses) of cash

flow hedge
derivatives Total OCI

Balance at January 1,2014

Other comprehensive (loss) income
before reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from OCI

(431)

(1.680)

7

(9)

15

(1.610)

(617)

96

22

(52)

9

(2.012)

(2.358)

120

Total other comprehensive (loss) income (1.680) 6 (521) (43) (2,238)

Amounts attributable to

noncontrolling interests (9) (9)

Balance at December 31,2014 (2.102) 13 (2.131) (21) (4,241)

Other comprehensive (loss) income
before reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from OCI

Total other comprehensive (loss) Income

(1,058)

(1,058)

(7)

1

(6)

298

117

415

(20)

30

10

(787)

148

(639)

Amounts attributable to

noncontrolling interests (25) 3 _ (22)

Balance at December 31,2015 (3,135) 7 (1.719) (11) (4,858)

Other comprehensive (loss) income
before reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from OCI

(474)
-

4

114

16

(6)

(454)

108

Total other comprehensive (loss) income (474) — 118 10 (346)

Amounts attributable to

noncontrolling interests (17) (17)

Balance at December 31,2016 (3,592) 7 (1,601) (1) (5,187)

The following table reflects amounts reclassified out of OCIin respect of Pension and other postretire
ment plan adjustments and Unrealized gains (losses) of cash flow hedge derivatives:

Details about OCI components ($ in millions)

Amortization of prior service cost

Amortization of net actuarial losses

Net losses from pension settlements

Location of (gains) losses
reclassified from OCI 2016 2015 2014

Net periodic benefit costa) 28 29 18

Net periodic benefit cost'1' 85 113 102

Net periodic benefit cost'*' 37 15 (3)

Total before tax 150 157 117

Tax Provision for taxes (36) (40) (21)

Amounts reclassified from OCI 114 117 96

Foreign exchange contracts

Commodity contracts

Cash-settled call options

Total revenues

Total cost of sales

Total cost of sales

SG&A expenses1'

11 36 9

(10) (U) (8)

2 10 3

(10) 4 6

Total before tax (7) 39 10

Tax Provision for taxes 1 (9) (1)

Amounts reclassified from OCI (6) 30 9

The amounts reclassified out of OCI in respect of Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities
were not significant in 2016,2015 and 2014.
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Note 22

Restructuring and related expenses

White Collar Productivity program

In September2015, the Company announceda two-year programaimedat making the Company leaner,
faster and morecustomer-focused.Productivity improvements include the rapid expansionand use of
regional shared servicecenters as well as the streamliningof globaloperations and head officefunctions,
withbusinessunitsmoving closerto their respective key markets. In the courseof this program, the
Company is implementing and executing variousrestructuring initiatives acrossalloperating segments
and regions.

The following tableoutlines the cumulative costsincurred to dateandthe totalamount ofcostsexpected
to be incurred under the program per operating segment:

($ in millions)

Electrification Products

Discrete Automation and Motion

Process Automation

Power Grids

Corporate and Other

Total

Costs incurred in

2016 2015

Cumulative costs

incurred up to
December 31,2016

Total

expected costs'"

14 73 87 89

27 45 72 74

36 96 132 134

33 70 103 105

30 86 116 118

140 370 510 520

Totalexpected program costs were originallyestimated to be $852million. During2016, the total expected
program costs were reduced by $332million. Thiswas primarilydue to the realization of significantly
higher than originallyexpected attrition and internal redeployment rates. The reductions were made
across all operating segments as well as for corporate functions.

Of the total expected costs of $520 million the majority is related to employee severance costs.

The Company recorded the following expenses, net of changes in estimates, under this program:

(S in millions) 2016 2015

Cumulative costs

incurred up to
December 31,2016

Employee severance costs

Estimated contract settlement, loss order and other costs

Inventory and long-lived asset impairments

130

2

8

364

5

1

494

7

9

Total 140 370 510

Expenses, net of changes in estimates, associated with this program are recorded in the following line

items in the Consolidated Income Statements:

($ in millions)

Total cost of sales

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Non-order related research and development expenses

Otherincome (expense), net
Total

2016 2015

92 122

38 187

(5) 38

15 23

140 370
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Liabilities associated with the White CollarProductivity program are primarily included in "Other provi
sions". The following table shows the activityfrom the beginning of the program to December31,2016,
by expense type:

($ in millions)

Liability at January 1,2015

Expenses

Cash payments

Liability at December 31,2015

Expenses

Cash payments

Change in estimates

Exchange rate differences

Liability at December 31,2016

Employee
severance costs

364

(34)

330

232

(106)

(102)

(23)

331

Contract

settlement, loss
order and other costs

5

(1)

3

(3)

(1)

Total

369

(35)

334

235

(109)

(103)

(23)

334

Thechangeinestimates during2016 of $103 million is due to significantly higher than expectedrates of
attrition and internal redeploymentand a lowerthan expected severance cost per employeefor the
employeegroups affected bythe first phase of restructuring initiated in 2015. The reductionin the liability
was recorded in income from operations, primarilyas reductions in Cost of sales of $49 millionand in
Selling,general and administrative expenses of $38 million.

Other restructuring-related activities
In2016,2015 and 2014, the Company executed various other restructuring-related activities and incurred
charges of $171 million, $256 millionand $235 million,respectively, which were primarily recorded in "Total
cost of sales".

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Employee severance costs 90 207 177

Estimated contract settlement, loss order and other costs 40 27 31

Inventory and long-lived asset impairments 41 22 27

Total 171 256 235

At December 31,2016 and 2015, the balance of other restructuring-related liabilities is primarily included in
"Other provisions".

Change in estimates

In addition to the change in estimate of $103 million relating to the White Collar Productivity program, a
further $46 million was recorded as a change in estimate to reduce liabilities associated with the
Company's other restructuring-related activities mainly due to changes in the planned scope of these
activities. This was recorded in income from operations, primarily as reductions in Cost of sales. The
combined total change in estimates during 2016 of $149 million resulted in an increase in earnings per
share (basic and diluted) of $0.05 for 2016.

Note 23

Operating segment and geographic data

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)is the Chief Executive Officer. The CODMallocates resources
to and assesses the performance of each operating segment using the information outlined below. The
Company's operating segments consist of Electrification Products, Discrete Automation and Motion,
Process Automation and Power Grids. The remaining operations of the Company are included in Corporate
and Other.

Effective January1,2016, the Company reorganized its operating segments with the aimof delivering
more customer value in a better, more focused wayfrom its combined power and automation offering.
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ThenewElectrification Productssegment includes the businessof the formerLow Voltage Products
segment and the Medium Voltage Productsbusinessfromthe formerPower Productssegment. The
ProcessAutomation segment has been expandedto include the Distributed Control Systemsbusiness
fromthe formerPower Systemssegment, while the remaining businessesof the formerPower Products
and Power Systems segments werecombined to form the newPower Grids segment.There wereno
significant changes to the DiscreteAutomationand Motion segment.

Inaddition,commencingin 2016, the Company changed its method of allocating incometaxes to its
operatingsegments whereby tax assets are primarily accounted forinCorporate and Other. Asa result,
certain amounts relating to current anddeferred taxassets previously reported within the totalsegment
assets of each individual operating segment have beenallocated to Corporate and Other.

Thesegment informationfor 2015 and 2014, and at December 31,2015 and 2014, has been recast to reflect
these organizational and allocation changes.

Adescription of the typesof productsand services provided byeachreportable segmentis as follows:

. Electrification Products manufactures and sellsproductsandservices including low- and medium-
voltage switchgear (air andgas insulated), breakers, switches, control products, DIN rail components,
automation anddistribution enclosures, wiring accessories andinstallation material formany kinds of
applications.

• Discrete Automation and Motion: manufacturesand sellsmotors, generators, variablespeed drives,
robotsandrobotics, solarinverters, wind converters, rectifiers, excitation systems, power quality
and protectionsolutions, electricvehicle fast charging infrastructure, components and subsystems
for railways, and relatedservices fora widerangeof applications indiscreteautomation, process
industries, transportation and utilities.

• Process Automation: develops and sells control and plant optimization systems, automation products
and solutions, including instrumentation, as well as industry-specific applicationknowledge and
services for the oil,gas and petrochemicals, metals and minerals,marine and turbocharging, pulp and
paper, chemical and pharmaceuticals, and power industries.

• Power Grids: supplies power and automation products, systems, and service and software solutions for
power generation, transmission and distribution to utility, industry, transportation and infrastructure
customers. These offerings address evolving grid developments which include the integration of
renewables, network control, digital substations, microgrids and asset management. The segment also
manufactures a wide range of power, distribution and traction transformers, an array of high-voltage
products, including circuit breakers, switchgear, capacitors and power transmission systems.

• Corporate and other: includes headquarters, central research and development, the Company's
real estate activities, Group Treasury Operations, historical operating activities of certain divested
businesses, and other minor business activities.

The Company evaluates the profitability of its segments based on Operational EBITA. In 2016, the
Company modified the definition of its measure of segment profit to also exclude changes in estimates
relating to opening balance sheets of acquired businesses (changes in pre-acquisition estimates) and
non-operational pension cost, which comprises: (a) interest cost, (b) expected return on plan assets,

(c) amortization of prior service cost (credit), (d) amortization of net actuarial loss, and (e) curtailments,
settlements and special termination benefits.

After these revisions, Operational EBITA represents Income from operations excluding: (i) amortization
expense on intangibles arising upon acquisitions (acquisition-related amortization), (ii) restructuring and
restructuring-related expenses, (iii)non-operational pension cost, (iv)changes in pre-acquisition estimates,
(v)gains and losses from sale of businesses, acquisition-related expenses and certain non-operational
items, as well as (vi)foreign exchange/commodity timing differences in income from operations consist
ing of: (a) unrealized gains and losses on derivatives (foreign exchange, commodities, embedded deriva
tives), (b) realized gains and losses on derivatives where the underlying hedged transaction has not yet
been realized, and (c) unrealized foreign exchange movements on receivables/payables (and related
assets/liabilities).
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TheCODM primarily reviews the resultsof eachsegmenton a basis that is beforethe elimination of
profitsmadeon inventory salesbetween segments. Segment resultsbelow are presentedbeforethese
eliminations,with a total deduction for intersegment profits to arriveat the Company'sconsolidated
Operational EBITA. Intersegment salesandtransfers areaccounted foras ifthe salesandtransfers were
to third parties, at current market prices.

The following tables presentsegmentrevenues, Operational EBITA, the reconciliations of consolidated
Operational EBITA to income from continuing operations before taxes, as well as depreciation and
amortization,and capital expendituresfor 2016,2015 and 2014, as well as total assets at December 31,
2016,2015 and 2014.

2016 ($ in millions)

Electrification Products

Discrete Automation and Motion

Process Automation

Power Grids

Corporate and Other

Intersegmentelimination

Consolidated

2015 ($inmillions)
Electrification Products

Discrete Automation and Motion

Process Automation

Power Grids

Corporate and Other

Intersegment elimination

Consolidated

2014 ($ in millions)

Electrification Products

Discrete Automation and Motion

Process Automation

Power Grids

Corporate and Other

Intersegment elimination

Consolidated

Third-party revenues

8,744

8,169

6,448

10,408

59

33,828

Third-party revenues

8,932

8,492

7,104

10,876

77

35,481

Third-party revenues

9,826

9.296

8,490

11,533

685

39,830

Intersegment revenues

548

545

150

567

1,553

(3,363)

Total revenues

9,292

8.714

6,598

10,975

1,612

(3,363)

33,828

venues Total revenues

615 9,547

635 9,127

120 7,224

745 11,621

1,459 1.536

(3,574) (3.574)

35,481

venues Total revenues

746 10,572

846 10,142

128 8,618

985 12,518

1,652 2,337

(4.357) (4.357)

39,830
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(S in millions) 2016 2015 2014

Operational EEITA

Electrification Products 1,528 1,561 1,739

Discrete Automation and Motion 1,195 1,295 1.595

Process Automation 824 863 1,045

Power Grids 1,021 877 607

Corporate and Other and Intersegment elimination (377)

4,191

(387)

4,209

(452)
Consolidated Operational EBITA 4,534

Acquisition-related amortization (279) (310) (380)

Restructuring and restructuring-related expenses'" (543) (674) (235)
Non-operational pension cost'1' (38) (19) (59)
Changes in pre-acquisition estimates'2' (131) (21) —

Gains and losses on sale of businesses,
acquisition-relatedexpenses and certain non-operationalitems

Foreign exchange/commoditytimingdifferencesin incomefromoperations:
Unrealized gains and losses on derivatives
where the underlyinghedged transaction has not yet been realized
Realized gains and losses on derivatives
wherethe underlying hedged transactionhasnot yet been realized
Unrealized foreign exchange movements
onreceivables/payables (and related assets/liabilities)

Income fromoperations
Interest and dividend income

Interest and other finance expense

Income from continuing operations before taxes

Depredation and amortization Capital expenditure"

(173) (120) 482

(65) 67 (223)

(5) (68) (42)

30 (15) 101

2,987

73

(261)

2,799

3,049

77

(286)

2,840

4,178

80

(362)

3,896

Total assets'" at December 31,

($ in millions) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014

Electrification Products 305 316 341 200 210

Discrete Automation and Motion 292 295 309 128 145

Process Automation 74 79 90 51 56

Power Grids 266 280 336 203 191

Corporate and Other 198 190 229 249 274

248 9,523 9,474 10,552

192 8,465 9,223 10,131

47 4,153 4.662 5,200

242 8,980 9.422 10,632

297 8,378 8,575 8,337

Consolidated 1,135 1,160 1,305 831 876 1,026 39,499 41,356 44,852

Geographic information

Geographic information for revenues and long-lived assets was as follows:

Revenues Long-lived assets at December 31,

(S in millions) 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015

Europe

The Americas

Asia, Middle East and Africa

11,315

9,741

12,772

11,602

10,554

13,325

13,745

11,490

14,595

2,768 3,253

1.100 1,113

875 910

Total 33,828 35,481 39,830 4,743 5,276

Revenues by geography reflect the location of the customer. Approximately 19 percent, 20 percent and
19 percent of the Company's total revenues in 2016,2015 and 2014, respectively, came from customers in
the United States. Approximately 13 percent of the Company's total revenues in 2016,2015 and 2014,
respectively,were generated from customers in China. In2016,2015and 2014,more than 98 percent of the
Company's total revenues were generated from customers outside Switzerland.

Long-lived assets represent "Property,plant and equipment, net" and are shown by location of the assets.
At December 31,2016, approximately 17percent, 17percent and 10 percent of the Company's long-lived
assets were located in Switzerland, the U.S.and Sweden respectively. At December 31,2015, approximately

16 percent were located in each of Switzerland, the U.S.and Sweden.
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The Company does not segregate revenues derived from transactions with external customers for each
type or group of products and services. Accordingly, it is not practicable for the Company to present
revenues from external customers by product and service type.

Realignment of segments
On October 4,2016, the Company announced a planned change in the composition of the business
portfolio of its four segments. Effective January 1,2017, the scope of the Electrification Products segment
has been expanded to include the electric vehicle charging, solar, and power quality businesses from the
Discrete Automation and Motion segment.

In addition, the Discrete Automation and Motion segment has been renamed the Robotics and Motion
segment while the Process Automation segment has been renamed the Industrial Automation segment.
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ABB Ltd Management
Report 2016

ABB Ltdis the holding company of the ABB Group,
owning directly or indirectlyallsubsidiaries globally.

The major business

activities during 2016 can

be summarized as follows:

Management services

The Company provided management services
to a Group company of CHF 25 million.

Share transactions

• share buyback for employee share programs of
CHF 93 million

• share buyback for reduction of share capital
of CHF 1,162 million

• share deliveries for employee share programs of
CHF 252 million

Dividend payment to external shareholders
• in form of a par value reduction

of CHF 1,581 million

Share capital

The Company reduced its share capital by
CHF 86 million in form of cancellation of

100 million shares of a par value of CHF 0.86.
In addition, the Company reduced its share
capital by CHF1,639 million in the form of a par
value reduction from CHF 0.86 to CHF 0.12

per share.

Other information

In 2016, the Company employed on average

21 employees.

Once a year, the Company's board of directors

performs a risk assessment in accordance with
the Group's risk management process and discuss
es appropriate actions if necessary.

The Company does not carry out any research
and development business.

In 2017, the Company will continue to operate
as the holding company of the ABBGroup.
No change of business is expected.

March 10,2017
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Financial Statements of ABB Ltd,
Zurich

Income Statement

Year ended December 31 (CHF in thousands)

Dividend income

Finance income

Other operating income

Finance expense

Personnel expenses

Other operating expenses

Netincome beforetaxes
Income taxes

Net income

Balance Sheet

December 31 (CHF in thousands)

Cash

Cash deposit with ABBGroup Treasury Operations

Non-trade receivables

Non-trade receivables - Group

Accrued income and prepaid expenses - Group

Othershort-term assets

Total current assets

Long-term loans - Group

Participation

Other long-term assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Non-trade payables

Non-trade payables - Group

Deferred income and accrued expenses

Deferred income and accrued expenses - Group

Interest-bearing liabilities

Note

Note

2016 2015

2,000,000 3,000,000

20,719 16,577

41,862 47,550

(67,035) (26,099)

(38,039) (32,030)

(29,344) (29,940)

1,928,163

(3,352)

1,924,811

2016

739

841,331

105

8,113

1,828

852,116

510,675

8,973,229

3,810

9,487,714

10,339,830

2,976,058

(2,341)

2,973,717

2015

835

1,979,217

82

10,215

3,329

697

1,994,375

8,973,229

4,944

8,978,173

10.972,548

7,135 18,909

1,763 1,797

90,740 64,581

495 126

— 499,775

Total current liabilities 100,133 585,188

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities - Group

5

5

700,034

510,675

700,052

Total non-current liabilities 1,210,709 700,052

Total liabilities 1,310,842 1,285,240

Share capital

Legal reserves

Legal reserves from capital contribution

Legal reserves from retained earnings

Free reserves

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Net income

Own shares

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

265,769 1,990,679

7 30,430 30,430

7 1,000,000 1,000,000

7 — 540,072

7 7,327,872 5,647,858

1,924,811 2,973,717

7 (1.519,894) (2,495,448)

9,028,988 9,687,308

10,339,830 10,972,548
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Cash Flow Statement

Year ended December 31 (CHF in thousands)

Operating activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile- net income ti

Reversal of amortization other assets

Change in valuation of bonds

C"ranges n operating assets and liabilities:

Receivables

Current liabilities

't cisli provided Pv operating sc P. itre

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities:

Loans granted to group companies

Net cash provided by investing activities

Financing activities:

Repayment of Bond 2011-2016

New Loan granted by group companies

Purchase of own shares

Delivery of own shares

Dividends paid

thereof from Legal reserves from capital contribution

thereof from nominal value reduction

Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents, opening balance

Cash and equivalents, closing balance

Note 2016 2015

1,924,811 2,973,717

1.831 1.840

207 265

3,580 205

14,720 48,991

1,945449 3,025,018

(510,675)

(510.675) —

5 (500,000)

5 510,675 —

7 (1,254,379) (1,441,493)

7 251,809 114,115

7 (1,580,561) (1,610,094)

7
— (1,232,575)

7 (1,580,561) (377,519)

(2,572,456) (2,937,472)

(1,137,982) 87,546

1,980,052 1.892.506

842,070 1,980,052
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Notes to Financial Statements

Notel

General

ABB Ltd, Zurich, Switzerland(the Company) is the parent companyof the ABB Group. Its unconsolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordancewith Swiss lawand serve as complementary information
to the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Article957 et seqq. of Title 32 of the
Swiss Code of Obligations.

Groupcompanies are all companies inwhichthe Company, directlyor indirectly, has more than 50%
of the voting rights or overwhich it exerts a significant influence. AGroup company is fully consolidated.

Note 2

Cash deposit with ABB Group Treasury Operations

The Company deposits availablecash in Swiss francs with Group Treasury Operations. The deposits
are stated at the lower of cost or fair value.

Note 3

Participation

December 31, 2016 and 2015

Company name Purpose Domicile Share capital Ownership and voting rights

ABB Asea Brown Boveri Ltd Holding CH-Zurich CHF 2,768,000,000 100': •

The participation is valued at the lower of cost or fair value, using generally accepted valuation principles.
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Note 4

Indirect Participations

Thefollowing tables set forth the name, country of incorporation, ownership andvoting rights,as well
as share capital, of the significant indirect subsidiaries of the Company, as of December31,2016and 2015.

Company name/location

ABB ABB

ownership Share ownership Share
and voting capital in and voting capital in

rights % thousands rights % thousands
Country 2016 2016 2015 2015 Currency

SARPI- Societe Algerienne pour la realisation
de projets industriels, Alger Algeria 50.00 814,500 50.00 814,500 DZD

ABB S.A., Buenos Aires Argentina 100.00 278,860 100.00 278,860 ARS

ABB Australia Pty Limited, Moorebank, NSW Australia 100.00 131,218 100.00 131.218 AUD

ABBGroup Investment Management Pty. Ltd.,
Moorebank, NSW Australia 100.00 355,312 100.00 355,312 AUD

ABB N.V., Zaventem Belgium 100.00 13,290 100.00 13,290 EUR

ABB Ltda., Osasco Brazil 100.00 689,793 100.00 994,708 BRL

ABB Bulgaria EOOD, Sofia Bulgaria 100.00 65,110 100.00 65,110 BGN

ABB Canada Holding Limited Partnership.
Saint-Laurent, Quebec Canada 100.00 _ 100.00 CAD

ABB Inc., Saint-Laurent, Quebec Canada 100.00 (i) 100.00 (ii CAD

Thomas & Betts Limited,
Saint-Jean-sur-Richelieu, Quebec Canada 100.00 (i) 100.00 (i) CAD

ABB S.A., Santiago Chile tJl (j> 100.00 4,741,936 CLP

ABB Beijing DriveSystems Co. Ltd., Beijing China 90.00 5,000 90.00 5,000 USD

ABB (China) Ltd., Beijing China 100.00 310.000 100.00 310,000 USD

ABB Engineering (Shanghai) Ltd., Shanghai China 100.00 40,000 100.00 40,000 USD

ABB High Voltage Switchgear Co. Ltd., Beijing China 60.00 11,400 60.00 11,400 USD

ABB Xiamen Low Voltage Equipment Co. Ltd.,
Xiamen China 100.00 15,800 100.00 15,800 USD

ABB Xiamen Switchgear Co. Ltd., Xiamen China 64.30 23,500 64.30 23,500 USD

ABB Xinhui Low Voltage Switchgear Co. Ltd.,
Xinhui China 90.00 6,200 90.00 6,200 USD

ABB s.r.o., Prague Czech Republic 100.00 400,000 100.00 400,000 CZK

ABBA/S, Skovlunde Denmark 100.00 100,000 100.00 100.000 DKK

ABB for Electrical Industries (ABB ARAB) S.A.E.,
Cairo Egypt 100.00 353.479 100.00 353.479 EGP

Asea Brown Boveri S.A.E., Cairo Egypt 100.00 166,000 100.00 116,000 USD

ABBAS.Juri Estonia 100.00 1,663 100.00 1.663 EUR

ABB Oy, Helsinki Finland 100.00 10,003 100.00 10,003 EUR

ABB France, Cergy Pontoise France 99.83 25,778 99.83 25,778 EUR

ABB S.A., Cergy Pontoise France 100.00 45,921 100.00 45,921 EUR

ABB AG, Mannheim Germany 100 167,500 (« O) EUR

ABB Automation GmbH, Mannheim Germany 100.00 15.000 100.00 15,000 EUR

ABB Automation Products GmbH, Ladenburg Germany 100.00 10,620 100.00 10,620 EUR

ABB Beteiligungs- und Verwaltungsges. mbH,
Mannheim Germany 100.00 61.355 100.00 61,355 EUR

ABB Stotz-Kontakt GmbH, Heidelberg Germany 100.00 7,500 100.00 7,500 EUR

BuschOaeger Elektro GmbH, Ludenscheid Germany 100.00 1,535 100.00 1,535 EUR

ABB Holding Ltd., Hong Kong Hong Kong 100.00 27,887 100.00 27,887 HKD

ABB (Hong Kong) Ltd., Hong Kong Hong Kong 100.00 20,000 100.00 20,000 HKD

ABB Global Industries and Services Private

Limited, Bangalore
India 100.00 408,930 100.00 608,930 INR

ABB India Limited, Bangalore India 75.00 423,817 75.00 423,817 INR

ABB S.p.A., Milan Italy 100.00 110,000 100.00 110,000 EUR

Power-One Italy S.p.A., Terranuova Bracciolini
(AR) Italy 100.00 22,000 <» o> EUR

ABB K.K.,Tokyo Japan 100.00 1,000,000 100.00 1,000,000 JPY



Company name/location

ABB Ltd., Seoul

ABB Holdings Sdn. Bhd., Subang Jaya

ABB Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Subang Jaya

ABB Mexico S.A. de C.V., San Luis Potosi SLP

Asea Brown Boveri S.A. de C.V., San Luis Potosi

SLP

ABB BY, Rotterdam

ABB Capital B.V., Rotterdam

ABB Finance B.V., Rotterdam

ABB Holdings B.V., Rotterdam

ABB Investments B.V., Rotterdam

Thomas & Betts Netherlands B.V., Barendrecht

ABB AS, Billingstad

ABB Holding AS, Billingstad

ABB Sp. z o.o., Warsaw

ABB Ltd., Moscow

ABB Contracting Company Ltd., Riyadh

ABB Electrical Industries Ltd., Riyadh

ABB Holdings Pte. Ltd., Singapore

ABB Pte. Ltd., Singapore

ABB Holdings (Pty) Ltd., Longmeadow

ABB South Africa (Pty) Ltd., Longmeadow

Asea Brown Boveri S.A., Madrid

ABBAB.Vasteras

ABB Norden Holding AB, VSsteras

ABB Information Systems Ltd., Zurich

ABB Investment Holding GmbH, Zurich

ABB Management Services Ltd., Zurich

ABB Schweiz AG, Baden

ABB Turbo Systems AG, Baden

ABB LIMITED,Bangkok

ABB Elektrik Sanayi A.S., Istanbul

ABB Industries (L.L.C.), Dubai

ABB Holdings Limited, Warrington

ABB Limited, Warrington

ABB Finance (USA) Inc., Wilmington, DE

ABB Holdings Inc., Cary, NC

ABB Inc., Cary, NC

ABB Treasury Center (USA), Inc., Wilmington, DE

Baldor Electric Company, Fort Smith, AR

Edison Holding Corporation, Wilmington, DE

Power-One Renewable Energy Solutions LLC,
Wilimgton, DE

Thomas & Betts Corporation, Knoxvilie, TN

Verdi Holding Corporation, Wilmington, DE
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Country

ABB

ownership
and voting

rights %
2016

Share

capital in
thousands

2016

ABB

ownership
and voting

rights %
2015

Share

capital in
thousands

2015 Currency

Korea,

Republic of 100.00 18,670,000 100.00 18,670.000 KRW

Malaysia 100.00 4.490 100.00 4,490 MYR

Malaysia 100.00 3,500 100.00 3,500 MYR

Mexico 100.00 633,368 100.00 633,368 MXN

Mexico 100.00 667,686 100.00 667,686 MXN

Netherlands 100.00 9,200 100.00 9,200 EUR

Netherlands 100.00 1,000 100.00 1,000 USD

Netherlands 100.00 20 100.00 20 EUR

Netherlands 100.00 119 100.00 119 EUR

Netherlands 100.00 100 100.00 100 EUR

Netherlands (») (J) 100.00 227 EUR

Norway 100.00 250,000 100.00 250,000 NOK

Norway 100.00 240,000 100.00 240.000 NOK

Poland 99.92 350,656 99.92 350,656 PLN

Russian

Federation 100.00 5,686 100.00 5,686 RUB

Saudi Arabia 65.00 40.000 65.00 40,000 SAR

Saudi Arabia 65.00 168,750 65.00 168,750 SAR

Singapore 100.00 32,797 100.00 32,797 SGD

Singapore 100.00 28,842 100.00 28,842 SGD

South Africa 100.00 4,050 100.00 4.050 ZAR

South Africa 74.91 1 74.91 1 ZAR

Spain 100.00 33,318 100.00 33,318 EUR

Sweden 100.00 400,000 100.00 400,000 SEK

Sweden 100.00 2,344,783 100.00 2.344,783 SEK

Switzerland 100.00 500 100.00 500 CHF

Switzerland 100.00 92.054 100.00 92,054 CHF

Switzerland 100.00 571 100.00 571 CHF

Switzerland 100.00 55,000 100.00 55,000 CHF

Switzerland 100.00 10,000 100.00 10,000 CHF

Thailand 100.00 1,034,000 100.00 1,034,000 THB

Turkey 99.95 13,410 99.95 13,410 TRY

United Arab

Emirates 49.00'1' 5,000 49.00(« 5,000 AED

United Kingdom 100.00 226,014 100.00 226,014 GBP

United Kingdom 100.00 120,000 100.00 120,000 GBP

United States 100.00 1 100.00 1 USD

United States 100.00 2 100.00 2 USD

United States 100.00 1 100.00 1 USD

United States 100.00 1 100.00 1 USD

United States 100.00 — 100.00 — USD

United States 100.00 10 100.00 10 USD

United States (J) (S) 100.00 — USD

United States 100.00 1 100.00 1 USD

United States 100.00 — 100.00 — USD
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Note 5

Interest-bearing liabilities

December 31 (CHF in thousands) 2016 2015

Bonds 2011-20161.25% coupon nominal value — 500.000

discount on issuance — (225)

Bonds 2012-20181.5% coupon nominal value 350,000 350,000

Bonds 2011-20212.25% coupon nominal value 350,000 350,000

premium on issuance 34 52

Fixed rate loan, $500 million Group 510,675 —

Total 1,210,709 1,199,827

thereof current liabilities — 499,775

thereof non-current liabilities 1,210.709 700,052

The 1.5%Bonds, due 2018 and the 2.25% Bonds, due 2021,pay interest annually in arrears, at fixed annual
rates of 1.5%and 2.25%,respectively. The Company has the option to redeem the bonds prior to maturity,
in whole, at par plus accrued interest, if 85% of the aggregate principle amount of the bonds has been
redeemed or purchased and cancelled. The 1.25% Bonds paid interest in arrears, as fixed annual rate of
1.25% and were repaid in October 2016.

The bonds, issued prior to January 1,2013, are stated at their nominal value less any discount or plus
any premium on issuance. Bonds are accreted/amortized to par over the period to maturity.

The Company has, through Group Treasury Operations, entered into an interest rate swap with a bank
to effectively convert the bonds maturing 2021 into floating rate obligations.

In 2016, the Company entered into a fixed loan agreement of USD 500 millionwith Group Treasury
Operations to hedge the USD500 million loan granted to a Group company. The average interest in 2016
was 1.65%.

Note 6

Contingent liabilities

The Company has issued a support letter to a surety institution for the issuance of surety bonds on behalf
of Group companies. The amount issued under this letter was CHF 766,013 thousand as of December 31,

2016 and CHF 741,900 thousand as of December 31,2015.

Furthermore, the Company has keep-well agreements with certain Group companies. A keep-well agree
ment is a shareholder agreement between the Company and a Group company. These agreements provide
for maintenance of a minimum net worth in the Group company and the maintenance of 100% direct or
indirect ownership by the Company.

The keep-well agreements additionally provide that if at any time the Group company has insufficient
liquid assets to meet any payment obligation on its debt (as defined in the agreements) and has insuffi
cient unused commitments under its credit facilities with its lenders, the Company will make available
to the Group company sufficient funds to enable it to fulfillsuch payment obligation as it falls due.
A keep-well agreement is not a guarantee by the Company for payment of the indebtedness, or any other
obligation, of a Group company. No party external to the ABB Group is a party to any keep-well agreement.

In addition, the Company has provided certain guarantees securing the performance of Group companies
in connection with commercial paper programs, indentures or other debt instruments to enable them

to fulfill the payment obligations under such instruments as they fall due. The amount guaranteed under
these instruments was CHF 5,918,680 thousand as of December 31,2016 and CHF 5,727,720 thousand
as of December 31,2015.
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Furthermore, the Company is the guarantor in the Group's USD 2 billion multicurrency revolving credit
facility, maturing in 2020 but no amounts were outstanding at December 31,2016 and 2015.

The Company through certain of its direct and indirect subsidiaries is involved in various regulatory
and legal matters. The Company's direct and indirect subsidiaries have made certain related accruals
as further described in "Note 15 Commitments and contingencies" to the Consolidated Financial

Statements of ABBLtd. As described in the note, there could be material adverse outcomes beyond
the accrued liabilities.

The Company is part of a value added tax Group and therefore is jointly liable to the Swiss Federal Tax
Department for the value added tax liabilities of the other members.

Note 7

Stockholders' equity

Legal reserves Free reserves

(CHF in thousands)

Opening balance
as of January 1,2016

from

from capital retained
Share capital contribution earnings

1,990,679 30,430 1,000,000

from

Other retained

reserves earnings Net income Own shares

540,072 5,647,858 2,973,717 (2,495,448)

Total

9,687,308

Allocation to retained

earnings

Cancellation of shares

Par value reduction

Purchases of own shares

Delivery of own shares

Net income for the year

Closing balance
as of December 31,2016

(86,000)

(1,638,910)

265.769 30,430 1,000,000

2,973,717 (2,973,717)

(598,421) (1,293,703)

58,349

1,924,811

1,978,124 —

(1,580.561)

(1,254,379) (1.254,379)

251,809 251,809

1,924,811

— 7,327,872 1,924,811 (1.519,894) 9,028,988

As a result of the Swiss corporate tax reform IIthat became effective on January 1,2011, qualifying
contributions from the shareholders exceeding the nominal share capital can be distributed without
deduction of Swiss withholding tax. Accordingly, such contributions have been recorded in a specific
account (legal reserves from capital contribution) within the legal reserves in order to benefit from
the favorable tax treatment.

Share capital as of December 31,2016

Issued shares

Contingent shares

Authorized shares

Number of

registered shares

2,214,743,264

304,038,800

200,000,000

Par value (CHF)

Total

(CHF in thousands)

0.12 265,769

0.12 36,485

0.12 24,000

Number of Total

Share capital as of December 31,2015 registered shares Par value (CHF) (CHF in thousands)

Issued shares 2,314,743,264 0.86 1,990,679

Contingent shares 304,038,800 0.86 261.473

Authorized shares 200,000,000 0.86 172.000

The own shares are valued at acquisition cost. During 2016, a loss from the delivery of own shares
of CHF 38,990 thousand was recorded in the income statement under finance expense. During 2015, a loss
from the delivery of own shares of CHF11,087 thousand was recorded, in contrast to 2016, in other reserves.

During 2016, a bank holding call options related to ABB Group's management incentive plan (MIP)
exercised a portion of these options. Such options had been issued in 2012 by the Group company
that facilitates the MIPat fair value and had a strike price of CHF 15.75. At issuance, the Group company
had entered into an intercompany option agreement with the Company, having the same terms
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and conditions to enable it to meet its future obligations. As a result of the exercise by the bank, the
Company issued 8,892,770 shares at CHF 15.75 out of own shares.

During 2015, a bank holding call options related to ABBGroup's management incentive plan (MIP) exer

cised a portion of these options. Such options had been issued in 2009 and 2012 by the Group company
that facilitates the MIPat fair value and had a strike price of CHF19.00 and CHF15.75, respectively.
At issuance, the Group company had entered into an intercompany option agreement with the Company,
having the same terms and conditions to enable it to meet its future obligations. As a result of the exer
cise by the bank, the Company issued 4,569,100 and 714,450 shares at CHF 19.00 and CHF 15.75, respec
tively, out of own shares.

The ABBGroup has an annual employee share acquisition plan (ESAP)which provides share options
to employees globally. To enable the Group company that facilitates the ESAPto deliver shares to employ
ees who have exercised their stock options, the Group company entered into an agreement with
the Company to acquire the required number of shares at their then market value from the Company.
Consequently in November 2016 and 2015, respectively, the Company issued, out of own shares,
to the Group company, 2,647,151and 30,003 shares at CHF21.01and CHF20.76, respectively.

In2016 and 2015, the Company transferred 851,773 and 706,963 own shares at an average acquisition price
per share of CHF20.36 and CHF20.77, respectively, to fulfillits obligations under other share-based
arrangements.

Between September 2014 and September 2016, the Company executed a share buyback program for

the purchase of up to USD4 billion of its own shares and on September 30,2016, announced that it had
completed this program. Over the period of the share buyback, the Company purchased a total
of 146.6 million shares (for approximately CHF2.9 billion) for cancellation and 24.7 million shares (for
approximately CHF0.5 billion) to support its employee share programs.

At the AGM in April 2016, shareholders approved the proposal of the Board of Directors to reduce the
share capital of the Company by cancelling 100 million treasury shares which were acquired under the
share buyback program. This cancellation was completed in July 2016, resulting in a decrease in Treasury
stock (own shares) of CHF 1,978 million and a corresponding combined decrease in share capital, other
reserves and retained earnings.

In October 2016, the Company announced a new share buyback program for the purchase of up to
USD 3 billion of its own shares from 2017 to 2019.

The movement in the number of own shares during the year was as follows:

2016 2015

Average acquisition Average acquisition
Number of shares price per share CHF Number of shares price per share CHF

Opening balance as of January 1 123,118,123 20.27 55,843,639 21.12

Purchases for employee share
programs 4,940,000 18.77 13,050,000 19.78

Purchases for cancellation 60,370,000 19.24 60,245,000 19.64

Cancellation (100,000,000) 19.78

Delivery (12,391,694) 20.32 (6,020,516) 20.80

Closing balance as of December 31 76,036,429 19.99 123,118,123 20.27

Thereof pledged for MIP 11,033,117 10,726,465

Note 8

Dividend income

The dividend payment from ABB Asea BrownBoveriLtdwas lower in 2016because the Company needed
less cash for the share buyback program and the dividend payment to the Company's shareholders.
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Note 9

Other operating income

Other operating income includes mainly outgoing charges for division management services and guaran
tee compensation fees to Group companies.

Note 10

Significant shareholders

Investor AB, Sweden, held 232,165,142 ABB Ltd shares as of December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively.

This corresponds to 10.48 percent and 10.03 percent of ABBLtd's total share capital and voting rights
as registered in the Commercial Register on December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively.

Pursuant to its disclosure notices, Cevian Capital IIGP Limited, Channel Islands, announced that, on behalf
of its general partners it held 115,868,333 and 132,196,131 ABBLtd shares as of February 23,2017 and
September 13,2016 which corresponds to 5.23 percent and 5.97 percent of ABBLtd's total share capital
and voting rights as registered in the Commercial Register on December 31,2016. As of July 24,2015, it
announced it held 119,377,120 ABB Ltd shares which corresponds to 5.16 percent of ABB Ltd's total share

capital and voting rights as registered in the Commercial Register on December 31,2015.

Pursuant to its disclosure notice, BlackRock, Inc., USA,disclosed that, as per July 25,2011, it, together with
its direct and indirect subsidiaries, held 69,702,100 ABB Ltd shares. This corresponds to 3.15 percent

and 3.0 percent of ABB Ltd's total share capital and voting rights as registered in the Commercial Register

on December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively.

To the best of the Company's knowledge, no other shareholder holds 3 percent or more of ABBLtd's total
share capital and voting rights on December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively.

Note 11

Shareholdings of Board and Executive Committee

At December 31,2016 and 2015, the members of the Board of directors as of that date, held the following

numbers of shares (or ADSs representing such shares):

Total number of shares held at December 31

Name 2016 2015
Peter Voser'"

Jacob Wallenberg"'

Roger Agnelli'"

Matti Alahuhta

David Constable

Frederico Curado'*'

Robyn Denholm'4'

Louis R. Hughes

David Meline14"5'

Satish Pai<4)

Michel de Rosen

Ying Yeh
Total 522^29 696,279

102,137 45,559

202,190 193,659

— 176,820

31,265 24,788

9,295 3,229

2,573 —

2,871
-

53,145 80,562

6,021
-

2,871
-

79,443 146,646

30,518 25.016
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At December 31,2016, the members of the Executive Committee, as of that date, held the following
number of shares (or ADSs representing such shares), the conditional rights to receive ABBshares under
the LTIPand options (either vested or unvested as indicated) under the MIPand unvested shares in re

spect of other compensation arrangements.

Vested at

December 31,2016 Unvested at December 31,2016

•a

s
o

«

1*.

hares
015

nte

id ••* ** cJ? O C S
E

t 8

2 10
53

delivt tenti< iLTIP

rofsi the2 pone
LTIP

rofsl the2 pone
LTIP

in <M

P3 a

Is
> *>

si
01 c
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E-o

tentionsharesiderthe2014re mponentofthe ferencenumber liverableunder rformancecom LandP2)ofthe ferencenumbei liverableunder rformancecom LandP2)ofthe
placementshai rforegonebene rmeremployer*

Name £s 2 or Sco
a s o S€ &£ S-S S.i S£fi

(vesting 2017) (vesting 2018) (vesting 2019) (vesting 2018)

Ulrich Spiesshofer 344,454 — 93,846 172,465 175,881 —

Eric Elzvik 71,369 408,875 30,549 44,562 40,583 —

Jean-Christophe Deslarzes 74,767
—

30,549 51,413 56,287 65,819

Diane de Saint Victor 507,824 — 35,940 45,873 47,745 —

Frank Duggan 158,528
—

27,548 46,390 48,028 —

Greg Scheu 101.250 221.375 26,159 45,896 43,144 —

Sami Atiya (EC member
as of June 14,2016)

— — — — 37,693 —

Tarak Mehta 134,449 — 34,677 42,780 45,624 —

Bernhard Jucker 293,771 — 40,750 51,902 54.112 —

Claudio Facchin 63,795 — 31,083 42,845 47,722 —

Peter Terwiesch 46,312 — 16,457 36,698 44,969 —

Total Executive

Committee members

as of December 31,2016 1,796,519 630,250 367,558 580,824 641,788 65.819

i.. J Up,': v.-stli'. j Ih. 1 TIF <,.-,- , 1

'. . -i '.:•:tc i'lt" •.

:. iiv.Minu i i(>.M. i

f.,-. • it -h.-.r,-,!,,...( '-. f.;M

111 i.f -hi ;.il,|.-. i,1 tllfvP'il

-mi f.i- 1 .,',,,:„

Ii;(l •.1l.lt.-. lirul.-r tt i,-. r,.I,.nPi,n , ,,rnpi .'ivnt II IIP -en-;, .1r <tp..rt,i-"i,inr,

.irrif.onf.Mif PI ,m'l n-l'et tllP.'i f .Hill,".'' '•'.! Ill ', f.ii- iilr Ht !..rn,imr|(M i„,„s»i .K.w.-v.-., f. irtl, if.ilif. h,-,..',.' tli .-(:,,• . llillilvlli'.-l" If, i,., !•>•',- !'if



05 ABB LTD STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 221

At December 31,2015, the members of the Executive Committee, as of that date, held the following

number of shares (or ADSs representing such shares), the conditional rights to receive ABBshares under

the LTIP, options (either vested or unvested as indicated) under the MIP and unvested shares in respect

of other compensation arrangements.

Vested at

TJ

December 31,2015 Unvested at December 31,2015
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Name I- Z £ ec 3 <i ft: 3 u K T3 Q.& s <S <*:

(vesting 2016
(vesting 2016) (vesting 2017) (vesting 2018) and 2018)

Ulrich Spiesshofer 289.048 — 78,395 93,846 172,465 —

Eric Elzvik 23,768 710,125 27,071 30,549 44,562 —

Jean-Christophe Deslarzes - —
27,071 30,549 51,413 144,802

Diane de Saint Victor 475,446
-

31,848 35,940 45,873 —

Frank Duggan 132,896
—

25,632 27,548 46,390
—

Greg Scheu 83,901 221,375 24,830 26,159 45,896
—

Pekka Tiitinen 21,000 221,375 22,294 25,158 42,845
—

Tarak Mehta 115,977 — 25,632 34,677 42,780 —

Veli-Matti Reinikkala 202,175 — 9,810 27,674 36.010 —

Bernhard Jucker 267,848 — 37,033 40,750 51.902 —

Claudio Facchin 41,501 — 22,294 31,083 42,845
—

Peter Terwiesch 30,393 250,000 15.919 16,457 36,698 —

Total Executive

Committee members

as of December 31,2015 1,683,953 1,402,875 347,829 420,390 659.679 144,802
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At December 31,2016, the following members of the Executive Committee held vested WARsand condi
tionally granted ABB shares under the performance component of the LTIP2014, which at the time of

vesting will be settled in cash.

Name

Ulrich Spiesshofer

Eric Elzvik

Jean-Christophe Deslarzes

Diane de Saint Victor

Frank Duggan

Greg Scheu

Sami Atiya (EC member as of June 14,2016)

Tarak Mehta

Bernhard Jucker

Claudio Facchin

Peter Terwiesch

Total Executive Committee members

as of December 31,2016

Vested at

December 31,2016

Number of fully
vested WARs held

under the MIP

Unvested at December 31,2016

Reference number

of shares under

the performance
component of the

2014 launch of the LTIP

(vesting 2017)

51,489

17,147

17,147

20,173

15,463

14.684

16,139

19,548

14,122

10,292

196,204

At December 31,2015, the following members of the Executive Committee held vested WARsand condi
tionally granted ABBshares under the performance component of the LTIP 2014 and 2013, which at the
time of vesting will be settled in cash.

Name

Ulrich Spiesshofer

Eric Elzvik

Jean-Christophe Deslarzes

Diane de Saint Victor

Frank Duggan

Greg Scheu

Pekka Tiitinen

Tarak Mehta

Veli-Matti Reinikkala

Bernhard Jucker

Claudio Facchin

Peter Terwiesch

Total Executive Committee members

as of December 31,2015

Note 12

Full time employees

Vested at

December 31,2015 Unvested at December 31,2015

Reference number Reference number

of shares under of shares under

Number of fully the performance the performance
vested WARs held component of the component of the

under the MIP 2013 launch of the LTIP 2014 launch of the LTIP

287.500

287,500

(vesting 2016)

50,024

16,659

16,659

19,599

15,023

14,553

13,720

15,023

15,091

18,992

13,720

10,007

219,070

(vesting 2017)

51,489

17,147

17,147

20,173

15,463

14,684

14,122

16,139

15,534

19,548

14.122

10,292

225,860

During2016and 2015,the Company employed on average 21and 20 employees, respectively.
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Proposed appropriation of
available earnings
Proposed appropriation of retained earnings (CHF in thousands) 2016 2015

Net income for the year

Carried forward from previous year

Cancellation of shares

1,924,811

8,621,575

(1,293,703)

2,973,717

5,647,858

Retained earnings 9,252,683 8.621.575

Gross dividend of CHF0.76 per share on total number of registered shares'" (1,683,205) —

Balance to be carried forward 7,569,478 8,621,575

•

•

On February 8, 2017, the Company announced that the Board of directors will recommend for approval

at the April 13, 2017,Annual General Meeting that a dividend of CHF 0.76 per share be distributed out of
the retained earnings available, to be paid in April 2017.
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Report of the Statutory Auditor
on the Financial Statements

To the General Meeting

of ABB Ltd, Zurich

As statutory auditor, we have audited the accom

panying financial statements of ABBLtd, which
comprise the balance sheet, income statement,

cash flow statement and notes (pages 211-223), for
the year ended December 31,2016.

Board of Directors' responsibility
The Board of Directors is responsible for the prepa
ration of the financial statements in accordance

with the requirements of Swiss law and the com

pany's articles of incorporation. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining
an internal control system relevant to the prepa

ration of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error. The Board of Directors is further responsible
for selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with

Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether

the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error. In making those risk assessments, the

auditor considers the internal control system
relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control
system. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements. We believe that the

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements for the year

ended December 31,2016 comply with Swiss law

and the company's articles of incorporation.

Report on Key Audit Matters based on the circular

1/2015 of the Federal Audit Oversight Authority

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our

professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the

current period. We have determined that there are

no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Report on other legal

requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on
licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act

(AOA)and independence (article 728 Code of

Obligations (CO) and article 11 AOA) and that there

are no circumstances incompatible with our

independence.

In accordance with article 728a para. 1 item 3 CO

and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that

an internal control system exists, which has been

designed for the preparation of financial state

ments according to the instructions of the Board

of Directors.

We further confirm that the proposed appropria
tion of available earnings complies with Swiss law
and the company's articles of incorporation. We

recommend that the financial statements submit

ted to you be approved.

Ernst &Young AG

Leslie Clifford

Licensed audit expert

(Auditor in charge)

Zurich, Switzerland

March 10,2017

Robin Errico

Licensed audit expert
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So much has changed and
is still changing, the methods
we use to analyze the perfor
mance of transformers, the
development of materials,
and the way electricity is
generated and distributed.
These are things I really get
a lot of pleasure out of.
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Supplemental information

The following are definitions of key financial
measures used to evaluate ABB's operating
performance. These financial measures are

referred to in this Annual Report and are not
defined under United States generally accepted
accounting principles (U.S. GAAP).

While ABB's management believes that the financial
measures defined below are useful in evaluating
ABB's operating results, these measures should be

considered as supplemental in nature and not as

a substitute for the related financial information

prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

For a full reconciliation of ABB's non-GAAP mea

sures, please refer to Supplemental Reconciliations
and Definitions, ABB Q4 2016 Financial Information

atnew.abb.com/investorrelations/financial-

results-and-presentations/quarterly-results-and-
annual-reports-2016

Comparable growth rates

Growth rates for certain key figures may be
presented and discussed on a "comparable" basis.
The comparable growth rate measures growth on
a constant currency basis. Since we are a global
company, the comparability of our operating
results reported in U.S.dollars is affected by
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. We
calculate the impacts from foreign currency
fluctuations by translating the current-year
periods' reported key figures into U.S.dollar
amounts using the exchange rates in effect for
the comparable periods in the previous year.

Comparable growth rates are also adjusted for
changes in our business portfolio. Adjustments to
our business portfolio occur due to acquisitions,
divestments, or by exiting specific business
activities or customer markets. The adjustment for
portfolio changes is calculated as follows: where
the results of any business acquired or divested
have not been consolidated and reported for the
entire duration of both the current and comparable
periods, the reported key figures of such business
are adjusted to exclude the relevant key figures of
any corresponding quarters which are not compa
rable when computing the comparable growth
rate. Certain portfolio changes which do not
qualify as divestments under U.S. GAAP have been

treated in a similar manner to divestments.

Changes in our portfolio where we have exited

certain business activities or customer markets are

adjusted as if the relevant business was divested in
the period when the decision to cease business

activities was taken. We do not adjust for portfolio
changes where the relevant business has annual
ized revenues of less than $50 million.

Operational EBITA margin

Operational EBITAmargin

Operational EBITA margin is Operational EBITA as
a percentage of Operational revenues.

Operational EBITA

Operational earnings before interest, taxes and ac
quisition-related amortization (Operational EBITA)
represents Income from operations: excluding
(i) acquisition-related amortization (as defined

below), (ii) restructuring and restructuring-related
expenses, (iii) non-operational pension cost (as

defined below), (iv) changes in pre-acquisition
estimates, (v) gains and losses from sale of busi

nesses, acquisition-related expenses and certain

non-operational items, as well as (vi) foreign
exchange/commodity timing differences in income
from operations consisting of: (a) unrealized gains
and losses on derivatives (foreign exchange,
commodities, embedded derivatives), (b) realized

gains and losses on derivatives where the underly
ing hedged transaction has not yet been realized,
and (c) unrealized foreign exchange movements on
receivables/payables (and related assets/liabilities).
Operational EBITA is our measure of segment
profit but is also used by management to evaluate
the profitability of the Company as a whole.

Acquisition-related amortization

Amortization expense on intangibles arising upon
acquisitions.

Operational revenues

The Company presents Operational revenues solely
for the purpose of allowing the computation of
Operational EBITA margin. Operational revenues
are total revenues adjusted for foreign exchange/
commodity timing differences in total revenues of:

(i) unrealized gains and losses on derivatives,
(ii) realized gains and losses on derivatives where
the underlying hedged transaction has not yet
been realized, and (iii) unrealized foreign exchange
movements on receivables (and related assets).

Operational revenues are not intended to be an

alternative measure to Total Revenues, which



represent our revenues measured in accordance

with U.S. GAAP.

Non-operational pension cost

Non-operational pension cost comprises the total

net periodic benefit cost of defined pension

benefits and other postretirement benefits but
excludes the current service cost of both compo
nents. A breakdown of the components of non-op

erational pension cost is provided below.

Free cash flow conversion

to net income

Free cash flow conversion to net income

Free cash flow conversion to net income is calculat

ed as Free cash flow divided by Net income
attributable to ABB.

Free cash flow (FCF)

Free cash flow is calculated as net cash provided by

operating activities adjusted for: (i) purchases of

property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets, (ii) proceeds from sales of property, plant
and equipment, and (iii) changes in financing and

other non-current receivables, net (included in

other investing activities).

Cash return on invested

capital (CROI)

Cash return on invested capital (CROI)

Cash return on invested capital is calculated as

Adjusted cash return divided by Capital invested.

Adjusted cash return

Adjusted cash return is calculated as the sum of
(i) net cash provided by operating activities,

(ii) interest paid and (iii) estimate to annualize/

eliminate the net cash provided by operating

activities of certain acquisitions / (divestments).

Adjusted total fixed assets

Adjusted total fixed assets is the sum of

(i) property, plant and equipment, net, (ii) goodwill,

(iii) other intangible assets, net, and (iv) invest

ments in equity-accounted companies less

(v) deferred tax liabilities recognized in certain

acquisitions.

Net working capital
Net working capital is the sum of (i) receivables,

net, (ii) inventories, net, and (iii) prepaid expenses;

less (iv) accounts payable, trade, (v) billings in
excess of sales, (vi) advances from customers, and
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(vii) other current liabilities (excluding primarily:

(a) income taxes payable, (b) current derivative

liabilities, (c) pension and other employee benefits,

and (d) payables under the share buyback pro

gram); and including the amounts related to these
accounts which have been presented as either

assets or liabilities held for sale.

Capital invested

Capital invested is the sum of (i) Adjusted total

fixed assets, (ii) Net working capital and (iii)

Accumulated depreciation and amortization.
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Parts of the ABB Annual Report 2016 have been

translated into German and/or Swedish. Please

note that the English-language version of the ABB
Annual Report is the binding version

Caution concerning forward-looking statements
The ABBAnnual Report 2016 includes "forward-looking
statements" within the meaning of Section 27Aof the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934. We have based these forward-looking
statements largely on current expectations, estimates
and projections about the factors that may affect our future
performance, including global economic conditions as well
as the economic conditions of the regions and the industries
that are major markets for ABB. The words "believe," "may,"
"will,""estimate," "continue," "target," "anticipate," "intend,"
"expect" and similar words and the express or implied
discussion of strategy, plans or intentions are intended
to identify forward-looking statements. These forward-
looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and
assumptions, including among other things, the following:
(i) business risks related to the global volatile economic
environment; (ii) costs associated with compliance activities;
(iii) difficulties encountered in operating in emerging
markets; (iv) risks inherent in large, long term projects served
by parts of our business; (v) the timely development of
new products, technologies, and services that are useful for
our customers; (vi) our ability to anticipate and react to
technological change and evolving industry standards in the
markets in which we operate; (vii) changes in interest
rates and fluctuations in currency exchange rates; (viii)changes
in raw materials prices or limitations of supplies of raw
materials; (ix) the weakening or unavailability of our intellectual
property rights; (x) industry consolidation resulting in more
powerful competitors and fewer customers; (xi) effects of
competition and changes in economic and market conditions
in the product markets and geographic areas in which we
operate; (xii) effects of, and changes in, laws, regulations,
governmental policies, taxation, or accounting standards and
practices and (xiii) other factors described in documents
that we may furnish from time to time with the US Securities
and Exchange Commission, including our Annual Reports on
Form 20-F. Although we believe that the expectations
reflected in any such forward-looking statements are based
on reasonable assumptions, we can give no assurance that
they will be achieved. We undertake no obligation to update
publiclyor revise any forward-looking statements because of
new information, future events or otherwise. In light of these
risks and uncertainties, the forward-looking information,
events and circumstances might not occur. Our actual results
and performance could differ substantially from those
anticipated in our forward-looking statements.
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